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INTRODUCTION

Recorded 40 An:

‘The Jedi Master Mara Jade Skywalker is dead, killed
by an assassin's toxic dart. Abandoning patience
and meditation, Luke Skywalker, Mara's husband
and current head of the Jedi Order, confronted
and killed the primary suspect, Lumiya, the self-
proclaimed Dark Lady of the Sith. Afterward, Luke
learned that Lumiya's confirmed movements pre-
cluded her from being the assassin. Now focus has
shifted to the former Jedi Knight Alema Rar, a pos-
sible apprentice of Lumiya. While it remains con-
ceivable that Lumiya was an accomplice in Mara's
death, the possibiity of her innocence has further
devastated Luke and divided the Jedi Order.

All Jedi feel the loss of Mara Jade Skywalker,
but we are not united by grief. Recent events in-
volving our role in Galactic Alliance policy have
prompted many Jedi to question the fabric of our
Order, which is strong enough to be considered a
threat by outside factions, yet so delicate that it
can still be torn from within. Suspicions have led
to accusations, and guilt has mixed with anguish
to poison our spirits. Despite all the battles that
we've fought and won, it seems our greatest en-
emy is—and always has been—ourselves.

Because Lumiya was trained in the ways of the
Sith and has yet to be ruled out as an accessory
to Mara's death, some Jedi have come to me with
specific questions about Sith history and practices,
hoping that such knowledge might help to identify
and capture Mara's killer. Many believe that this s a
time for urgent action, but it would be negligent of
me to hastily divuige answers about the Sith with-

out providing relevant information about the Jedi,
as it would seem that the destinies of these two
groups will almost always be intertwined.

Younger students, be aware that 2 great deal
of our history has at least twice been lost through
the machinations of the Sith: first at the destruc-
tion of the original Jedi Temple on Ossus, and
second when Emperor Palpatine seized the Jedi
Archives on Coruscant. It was no coincidence that
the Sith were responsible for both incidents, for
their hatred of the Jedi has been established for
many thousands of years. However, it should be
noted that galactic academia regards these as mi-
nor losses compared with the devastation wrought
on the library world Obroa-skai, which the Yuuzhan
Vong invaded and scoured clean.

Although our knowledge of the Sith remains im-
ited, itis widely agreed that their goal i to eliminate
not only the Jedi but allevidence of our existence as
well, or at least disgrace our legacy. Because of the
possible temptation of the dark side of the Force,
the majority of contemporary Jedi have long main-
tained that ignorance of Sith history and teachings
is for the best. This belief is not without merit, as
nearly every Jedi who has studied Sith Holocrons
and relics has been drawn into darkness. However,
elief s not the same thing as knowledge, and by
deliberately avoiding comprehension of that which
we refuse to understand, we confine ourselves to a
darkness of our own design

Given the Sith's historic propensity to attack,
vanish, then reemerge after long periods, it's dis-
turbing that so many Jedi believed the death of
Palpatine brought an end to the Sith threat, Like-
wise, many were subsequently astonished by the
return of Lumiya. Despite all concerns regarding
the dark side, recent events serve as conclusive
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proof that ignorance is not the solution. As for the
current status of the Sith Order, there is no evi-
dence to substantiate that it died with Lumiya on

the planet Terephon.

All chroniclers must hope, if not believe, that
they will be survived by their recorded accounts
and narratives. Had Jedi of yore known with ut
most certainty that many of their struggles and
achievements would be forgotten and erased, one
can only imagine whether they might have chosen
ferent paths, and how those paths would have af-
fected galactic history. | can only speculate how my
own work will be perceived in the future, but | con:

sider it my responsibility to ensure that our legacy
will survive to enable future generations, and ot be
confiscated or obliterated.

Although this historic record may lack objec-
tivity, | 6o not intend to glorify the Jed or vilify the
Sith, but to
gins and encounters, and illustrate our similarities
and differences. Our histories are not separate but
dangerously entwined, like two branches on a tree
that threaten to break each oth
tive attempts to embrace sunlight and shadow.

present a cohesive account of our o

 in their respec

Some have speculated whether the Jedi and Sith
an even exist without each other, and most doubt
that there wil ever be a peaceful resolution to their
eternal confiict

While many aspects of the Sith Order may for-
ever remain a mystery, of this | am certain: s long
as Sith knowledge exists, 50, too, willthe Sith and
their pretenders. Furthermore, the Sith know more
about the Jedi than we do about them, and unless
ve examine the history of the Jedi vs. the Sith, the
Jedi will remain at a disadvantage.

must trust that you will use this knowledge
out malice. Under ordinary circum:

wisely and wi
stances, | would urge patience as you study and
contemplate this material, but | am compelled to
remind you that these are not ordinary times.

It is a very real possibity that Mara Jade Sky-
walker's kille is not only stll at large, but also a Sith,

3
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TIME LINE

As long as sentient beings have attempted to
measure time, there have been disputes over the
times by which one measures. The complicated
history of the Jedi and the Sith incorporates ancient
records from numerous worlds, which—depending
on when they were created or whether the creators
were citizens of the Old Republic—may or may
not have adopted Standard Time Parts as units of
measure.

It was the Historical Council of the Galactic

Federation of Free Alliances that ~officially
established and popularized the Battle of Yavin as
the zero point to mark the beginning of our current
society. Despite protests from some younger
‘generations who maintain that subsequent battles
were more significant, most educated beings
agree that the Battle of Yavin was a hugely pivotal
moment in galactic history. In keeping with the
conventions established by the Historical Council,
the following time line employs Standard Time
Parts that hinge Before the Battle of Yavin (8.8
and After the Battle of Yavin (+.8.1).

€.100,000 s.ev.Dawn of Sith civiztion onthe planet
Korrioon.

30000 sav. The Force-sing
Rakata

tumnel through

28,000 sy, Sith rler King Adss nifies the Sith ations

King Adas defets the Rakatan invaders

Koran s designated theis tombworc.

€.25.200 s, Rakatan infinte Empie mplodes
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PO ——

but succoed oty nreveling that thifelow
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Sthspace.the locatonof hich il amain
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5000 way.  Joch Odan-Ur has 8 vision of the death of

el Sith Lords Naga Sadow and Ludo
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PART ONE

HISTORY AND
HOLOCRONS

RECORDED 40 AB.Y

Tve sedi Order was founded more than twenty-
five thousand standard years ago,at the same time
asthe formation of the Galactc Repubiic. Athoush
the orgins of the early Jedi remain mysterous,
ancient texts indicate tha they not only shared
abiltiesto manipulte the energy feld we calthe
Force, but were aiso compelied to use their powers
selfessly to help others. This practce became &
Ky foundation of the Jedi Order

However, 25 long a there have been Jedi,there
have been those who have been tempted to use
the Force for selfih and even nefarous purposes
Jedi drawn into the negative side of the Force
known as the dark sce became referred to 2 Dark
Jedi, Approximately seven thousand years 390,
s confict between Jedi and Dark Jed e to the
later fleing to the far reaches of space. Shorty
afterwara, a few of these Dark Jeci—known as the
Exiles—managed to return to Republic space in
an attempt to destroy the . The effort faed,
anc the Jedi learmed that the surviving Exies had
conauered the people of the Sith system and
proclaimed themselves Sith Lo,

For neary two thousand years, thelocation of
theSithsystem remainedunknown othe Jed, while
the Sith Lords were unable tofind theirway back to
Republic space. The Sitn's ventual raturn iitated
what became known a5 the Great Hyperspace
War. 1t was during 3 subseauent conflct—the Sith
War, which occurred more than.four thousand

AUTHOR: TIONNE SOLUSAR

years ago~that the Sith triggered the explosion of
ten suns, causing a shock wave that ravaged the
original Jedi Temple and the Great Jedii Library on
Ossus. Research has revealed that the Jedi rescued
only a fraction of the materials from the Great Jedi
Library, and that these items were brought to Exis
Station before they were eventually transferred to
the Jedi Temple on Coruscant

Fortunately, all was not lost on Ossus, as the
planet's remote location, dry atmosphere, and
native  Ysanna—descendants of the Jedi who
remained on Ossus after the cataclysmic disaster—
helped preserve many ancient scrolls and books
that remained in the ruins of the library. These
texts, along with all known Jedi-related data that
survived the Clone Wars, are now held at the new
Jedi library on Ossus.

Contemporary Jedi also have two very unusual
resources on the history of the Sith: The Lundi
Series, recorded lectures of Professor Murk Lundi,
Who was by most accounts a better teacher than
researcher; and the Waviud Manuscript, which
was recovered from the personal effects of Ingo
Wavlud, a suspected Sith sympathizer from the
world of Byss. Although The Lundi Series frequently
fails to cite specific sources and some data
appears to have been invented by Lundi to boost
his academic reputation, the heavily annotated
Waviud Manuscript not only corroborates many
of Lundi's findings but also provides previously




unknown information regarding the Darth title and
the Sith Lord Darth Sidious.

ITHE HOLOCRONS

T'ne most precious and signfcant sources of e
history are held in Jedi Holocrons. Both compoct
repositories of knowledge and nteractive learning
devices, Holocrons employ patterns of organic
crystals and hologrammic technology to simulate
conversation with long-dead Jedi “gatekeepers
whose teachings infuse particular Holocrons, With
few exceptions, Jedi Holocrons ae cubes that can
easily be held in one's hand. Evidently, Holocrons
are partaly powered by the Force, a only Force
users can activate them; once activated, anyone—
even non-Force-users—can communicate with the
Satekeepers. However, not al data is really ac-

cessible, because Holocrons are engineered to
detect students’ abilities in order to hold back
elements they are not prepared to know.

Inaddition to the exotic Holocrons, Jedi utilized
standard data tapes for some educational aspects.
Data tapes lack the archival qualities of books,
scrolls, and Holocrons, but it is most fortunate that
some have survived, as they've provided many
details about the training of Jedi during the Old
Republic era. Nearly all of the existing tapes were
recovered from a single source: the wreck of the
Chu'unthor, a mobile training academy for groups
of Jedi apprentices, which crashed more than three
centuries ago on Dathorir

Records also indicate that the Jed Archives on
Coruscant once held a collection of Sith Holocrons,
most of which were pyramidical and—because
they housed information that was dangerous in
the wrong hands—off limits to the majority of Jedi.




Like Jedi Holocrons, Sith Holocrons implement
restrictive mechanisms to detect whether a student
is prepared to receive certain knowledge. The
Sith's hologrammic simulacra can exert only verbal
influence, but allegedly attempted to corrupt
otherwise innocent beings and draw “students”
Gown the path to the dark side. The Jedi Order's
earliest known awareness of Sith Holocrons dates
backto the end of the Great Hyperspace War, when

THE TEDRYN

HOLOCRON J

Leia oroana solo aiscovered the exitence of
Jedi Holocrons during the events of Palpatine’s
resurrection, six years after the Batte of Endor

the Jedi Odan-Urr. Odan-Urr kept this Sith Holocron
for nearly a millennium before it was stolen by the
Jedi Exar Kun, who used it to learn many secrets of
the Sith. It is also highly probable that at least one
Jedi with the knowledge of Holocron construction

After d by at
his citadel on the planet Byss, Leia escaped with
a Jedi Holocron—by all appearances a milky jade
crystal block—that Palpatine claimed had been
given to him by an aged Jedi Master. Subsequent
research eventually determined that the Jedi Master

was among the Exiles who prock
the first Sith Lords.

Although the Jedi once regarded Sith Holocrons.
as tools and not evil entiies, the devices are
embodiments of temptation to those who hope to
achieve power by way of arcane knowledge. During
the Clone Wars, the former Jedi Count Dooku~—at the
time, one.

was Ashka Boda,
the Jedi Purge at the end of the Clone Wars.

This Holocron's primary hologrammic gate-
keeper was the Jedi Bodo Baas, who'd served in
the Adega system six hundred years earlier. Via the
Holocron, Bodo Baas revealed many details of the
history of the Jed, including the saga of Exar Kun

renounced the Jedi Order—stole at least one Sith
Holocron from the Archives on Coruscant and also
acquired the Sith Holocron of Darth Andeddu. Like
Exar Kun, Count Dooku became a Sith Lord; while
it is conceivable that the respective experiences
and personaity traits of both individuals guided
their paths to the dark side, the possession of Sith
Holocrons certainly directed their courses as well.
Records do not reveal the fate of the Sith Holocrons
used by Exar Kun and Count Dooku.

Various databases and eyewitnesses testify
that the Jedi Archives on Coruscant held scores
of Jedi Holocrons. Unfortunately, the ancient
technology of the Holocrons, as wellas the majority
of the devices themselves, may be lost to time.
Because Holocrons have been such a significant
resource in the creation of this record, descriptions
of noteworthy Holocrons precede a detailed time
line of events in Jedi and Sith history.

and his the Jedi Ulic Gel-Droma,
Wwho also turned to the dark side. Shortly after Leia
first activated the Holocron, Bodo Baas recited a
prophecy that had been written by his own Master
a thousand years earlier

A brother and sister born to walk the sky,

But reckess brother fals into Dark Sice's eye!

Jedi sister carries hope for future in her
womb.

Only she can save the Skywalkers from certain
doom!

A Jedikiller wants to tame her.

Now the Dark Side Lord comes to claim her

She must battle join against this thief

Or the dynasty of all the Jedi will come to
griefl

Leia had no reason to doubt the veracity of
the prophecy, for it described her then current







circumstances: Palpatine, the “Jedi-killer” wanted
to convert Leia and her expected
dark side, while Luke Skywalker had embraced
the power of the dark side in an effort to conquer

d to the

Palpatine. Fortunately, Luke eventually. realized

hat he could not defeat Palpatine alone, a

the

Dark Lord ultimately failed to seduce Leia or any

her children. Because the Holocron contained

er prophecies as well as seemingly infinite data

Jedi,its value was incalculable.
Although this particular Holocron was some-
times referred

0 as the Jedi Holocron or Holocron
of Bodo Baas, it should be noted that Bodo Baas

was merely the last of a long line of Jedi who left

their impressions the device. Originally
it was n a5 the Tedryn Holocron, named

Jedi Master Tedryn, who may have been

Holocron's maker as well as its first keeper
More than four thousand years ago, the Tedryn
Holocron was kept by Jedi Master Vodo-Siosk
Baas, an ancestor of Bodo Baas and the former

apparently
ammic simulacrum to draw

the knowledge of subsequent gatekeepers
a5 well. According to Luke Skywalker, who was the

last to converse with this Holocron, Master Vodo's
hologram told him,

@r Kun destroyed me. He
siew his own Master.

One might think such a statement could be

Iyby aspiri

orsupernaturaltechnology,but

lograms are merely recordings o

personalites,
pulated by
alities rarely

ot thinking beings that can be mani

the Force. Although Holocron perso

adapt to requests and problems outside their

areas of knowledge, it is assumed that Vodo-Siosk

Baas's hologram could relate "his own” demise

by accessing data that was later inserted by his
descendant Bodo Baas.

To
Bodo Baas, and also to honor their predecessor,

s and

his

Holocron has long been referred to as the Tedryn
Holocron, albeit in the past tense, bec:

use it was
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THE ASLI
KRIMSAN
HOLOCRON

Eleven vears atter the destruction of the Tedryn
Holocron, a mission to Bast Castle—once Darth
s Vader's personal fortress on the planet Viun—
vielded two relics: the lightsaber Obi-Wan Kenobi
TIONNE SOLUSAR used in his duel with Vader on the first Death Star,
and the Holocron of Jedi Master Asli Krimsan.
Krimsan was a humanoid female with more
than two hundred years of teaching experience at

destroyed on Yavin 4 by the resurrected spirit of
the Sith Lord Exar Kun,

the Tedryn Holocron thet I joined Luke

Skywalker's Jedi a

e e cead the Jedi Temple on Coruscant. It remains unknown
. how the Holocron that she maintained came into
Darth Vader's possession. Although the Asli Krimsan
Holocron was primarily conceived for the education
of young Jedi, it also contains information on
a wide range of ancient events, including tales

Holocron and transcribing its  da

h a sense of urgency. Aside from my
obvious interest in historic preservation,

cannot entirely explain

pichlasin i apesra
i i e i ofthe Je Krights o the Old Republic and thef
e e cominees mysat ot we | battles aganst the Sith. Because Vader' few

records make no mention of Asli Krimsan, we can




only guess why this particular device was kept at
Bast Castle

THE GREAT
HOLOCRON

O vercoming numerous obstacies, the new Jeci
Order recovered a dodecahedron Holocron that
<ome Jedi maintain i the Great Holocron, believed
to have been ost during the Jeds Purge. Because of
this Holocron's uncertain provenance, one cannot
aismis the possibilty tha it is an extremely well-
crafted eplica. It s a reproduction, it seemslikely
that it was created by a Force-sensitve being, as it
s inaccessible to all others,

Questions of authenticity aside, this Holocron
has provided a staggering amount of information
most of which s profoundiy enlightening. Because
the Empire destroyed or twisted 50 many historic
resources, verifcation of the data s sometimes
a painstaking process, but eyewitness narratives
have helped separate many facts from legends,
myths, and outright ies. A computer analyss could
not determine the full scope of this Holocron's
knowledge, which seems multidimensional and
limitess. Unless a contrary oriin is revealed by
yet-to-be-discovered evidence, this device shall
henceforth be referred to as the Great Holocron

THE TELOS
HOLOCRON AND
DARTH ANDEDDU'S
HOLOCRON

Shorty tter the racovery ofthe Great Holocron
5 very diferent Holocron was discovered on
the planet Telos. Although this Holocron is not

pyramidal and has no external markings or glyphs,
it is unquestionably of Sith origin. Because it may
contain previously unknown information about
the Sith, this Holocron may prove useful as well as
valuable.

A clear crystal s set within the Telos Holocron's
apex, which seems to rule out the possibilty that it
could be Darth Andeddu’s Holocron, a description of
which was recorded by the Jedi Master Quinian Vos,
who operated as a secret agent during the Clone
Wars to infltrate the Confederacy of Independent
Systems. The Clone Wars had been raging for
sixteen months when Vos recovered the Holocron
from the planet Korriban and delivered it to CIS
leader and former Jedi Count Dooku. One month
later, at a time when the Jedi still only suspected
that Dooku might be a Sith Lord, Vos returned to the
Jedi Temple on Coruscant and made the following
holocube statement

©



give him “access to the long-dead wisdom

of Darth Andeddu, the wisdom and the

power of the Sith.” Dooku hasn't told me
what he plans to do with this knowledge,

but 1 doubt it's for anything good.

When | held the Holocron, I couldn't
feel any obvious release mechanism, but
Dooku seemed to know just how to open it
or certainly didn't have any problem doing
S0. The upper part of the Holocron held
a red crystal that—according to Dooku—
once powered Darth Andedcu's lightsaber.
Dooku gave the crystal to me, told me to
use it to power my own lightsaber. Aside
from making the blade blaze red, I can't
Say that the crystal has any other effect.

My weapon cuts like it always has.

till, the way Dooku popped open the
Sith Holocron, it seems likely that he had
previous experience. Maybe someone in
Archives should look into his background
a bit more, and also find out if there's
anything on Darth Anded.

Records indicate that Count Dooku first learned
about the existence of Sith Holocrons at age
thirteen, shortly after he became the Padawan to
Jedi Master Thame Cerulian. Evidently, Dooku and
fellow Jedi apprentice Lorian Nod were uninvited

Count Dooku told me that the Holocron when they entered Cerulian's quarters and
had been constructed by an old Sith Lord discovered a datapad that contained information
named Darth Andeddu. I've never touched about a Sith Holocron in the Archives. Nod stole the
& Sith Holocron before, but this one didn't Holocron, but his deed was discovered, and he was
feel anything like a Jedi Holocron. It's conscripted into the Agricultural Corps. Despite
not just that it's shaped like @ pyramid the rumors that Dooku studied Sith Holocrons in
and its surface was etched with unusual the years that followed, his actions as a Jedi did
markings, apparently Sith hieroglyphs not betray any leanings toward the dark side until
and incantations. The Holocron felt hot the Clone Wars, when he revealed himself to be a
and cold at the same time, and I sensed Sith Lord.
something malevolent about the energy Itis probable that Dooku's previous experience
that charged the thing. | only held it briefl, and his subsequent conversion to the Sith enabled
but it made me feel uneasy, even a little him to access the Holocron of Darth Andeddu.

queasy. Dooku said the Holocron would There has been no account of the Holocron of




Darth Andeddu sinc:

lone Wars, and as with
Quinlan Vos himself its fate remains unknown.

However, the Asli Krimsan Holo

some information about Darth Ar
have been th
honorific Darth.
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SIGNIFICANT i iesns T
BATTLES War delivered the Sith to the Jedi, time

and again did the Jeciivioed by the
Throughout history the sect ana it nave neary o e e
a cross lightsabers amongst. themselves
anniiated each other on countiess occasions,

only to survive, adapt, and re-form unti ther next

encounter Intha sense, an objective scholar might
thin tht these scversaries are more aike than
most lghtsaber-vieding Force-sensitves would
care o acmit, When one considrs hat renegade
Jeci were responsib for founding the Sith Order,
the simiaitie ar ronic as el aslogical.

| creatures into mutant warriors, mounts,
and spirit-devouring Leviathans. The war
that followed lasted more than a century,
left many worlds ravaged in its wake,
‘While most historians inevitably compare the Jedi it Bacama keiouias the Hundrecroees
‘andSith,the comparisons arerarely unbiased. Although Barkness
individual Jedi—as well s the Order as a whole—have The Jed afl but vanquished these Dark
erred i the past, thei intentions were usually regardedt
as noble, and their overall interest in maintaining
galactic peace is rarely disputed. The Sith, however,
are amost always depicted as the antagonists,
insidious masters of subterfuge and sneak attacks,
not only prepared but in fact eager to let innocent
blood spillin order to accomplish their goals.
Amost complete record of battles between Jedi
and Sith can be found in the chronology prepared
by Voren Na'al, archivist emeritus of the Historical
Council o the Galactic Federation of Free Alliances.
For this record, Jedi scholars have selected first-
person narratives and eyewitness accounts that
offer unique perspectives and illuminate the role
of the Force in these historic confrontations. All
narratives are drawn from the Great Holocron, the
AsliKrimsan Hol Tedryn
Holocron except where noted.

Jedi and their monsters, who made their

space,
beyond the boundaries established by the
Republic. There they discovered Korriban,
2 world inhabited by a primitive but Force-
sensitive species called the Sith. After
‘conquering the indligenous beings, the Dark
Jedi proclaimed themselves Sith Lords. It
s believed that one of the founders of the
Sith Empire was the Dark Jed Ajunta Pall.

It would be nearly two thousand years
before the Sith Lords rediscovered the path
to Republic space.

R TIONNE SOLUSAR_
THE HUNDRED- Recors indicatethat Aunta Pal a umancid
1 YEAR DARKNESS Dark Jedi o Exie, personalysiew more than

2 dozen Jed at the Battle of Corbos. A survey
7000-6900 s.5. of the Sith tombworld Korriban confirms the
Author: Jedi Master Vodo-Siosk Baas, gatekeeper existence of Pall’s tomb, and scientific analysis
of the Tedryn Holocron, teacher of Exar Kun,
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THE GREAT
HYPERSPACE WAR

5000 8.

Author: Jedi Master Odan-Urr, gatekeeper of the
Tedryn Holocron and founder of the original Jedi

library on Ossus,

Though | am both a Jediand a hstorian,
1 confess a strange discomfort in relaying
events in which I particioated. It is only at
the persistent urging of my students that |
feel compelied to record the events of the
Great Hyperspace War.

Younger Jedi,

of Korriban. Their arrival coincided with
the funeral of the Dark Lord of the Sith
Marka Ragnos, whose passing caused a
feud between two rival Sith Lords: Naga
Sadow, who claimed a long Sith bioodiine
and aspired to broaden the reaim of his
power, and Ludo Kressh, who was content
with the holoings alreadly controlled by the
Sith Order.

The Daragons were captured, but Noga
Sadow allowed Jori to escape in her star-
Ship. Why? Because he knew that she would
return to Republic space, and that the
tracking device he'd planted on her ship
would lead them back to his ancestors
greatest enemy, the Jedi. How do | know

tobelieve, but the great leaps across space
that are now commonplace were not only
less frequent, but for more hazardous
during my own youth. It was a time
when hyperspace routes were still being
navigated, and many of the Core Worlds
had et to be unified. I was on a mission
o the Koros system, which you now know
a5 the Teta system, when | came to the aid
of two hyperspace explorers, Gav and Jori
Daragon. They were being threatened by
assassins when my Master Memit Nadill
and I interceded.

Days later, I was visited by a dark night-
mare, a premonition that the banished Jedi
of ancient times had become the Lords of
the Sith Empire, and that they would soon
return to Republic space. So strong was
this vision that I knew it was delivered by
the Force, and that I could not ignore it
My Master was an adviser to Empress Teta,

and  wil tell,

Empress Teta informed the Republic
Senate of my vision, but many Senators
refused to heed her caution. Fortunately,
the empress had unified the seven worlds of
the Koros system, and the armies under her
command were as loyal as they were readly
to fight. Our forces were soon scattered.
Empress Teta readied her troops on Koros
Major while Memit Nadill joined other Jedi
Knights on Coruscant. Iwent to Kirrek, where
1d previously fought during the Unification

And then the Sith came. Wave after
wave of spear-wielding Sith poured out
from their massive invasion fieet, some
riding enormous monsters. Despite my
premonition, | was surprised by the sheer
viciousness of their attack. Our allies quickly
dismissed the possibility of our victory,
but continued to fight with great courage

They
listened, and they believe.

‘Shortly after my premonition, Gav and
Jori Daragon inadvertently arrived in Sith
space and landed on the Sith tombworld

0l against us.

After much blood had been spilled, we
realized that our enemy had been using
ilusions conjured by Naga Sadow to make
themselves appearinnumerable, which they




were not. The battle turned in our favor,
and the Sith retreated whence they came.
However, they were mistaken in thinking
they were safe. Using coordinates provided
by Jori Daragon, Empress Teta's armada
chased the weakened enemy back to their
own shattered empire. Not surprisingly,
Naga Sadow refused to surrender. Teta
herself witnessed the destruction of Naga
Sadows flagship.

Master Ooroo and Gav Daragon were
amongst the many casualties of the battle.
Moments before he died, Ooroo told me
1 would become one of the most ancient
Jedi ever, and that I would ultimately die
among my precious books and scrolls.  am
Proof that his prophecy was true. Even
century before this recording, | knew of no
Jedi older than |, and my eyes are still not
tired of readiing.

Regarding the Great Hyperspace
War, the knowledge that | did not gain
by experience was gleaned from three
Sources: the explorer Jori Daragon, who
granted me several interviews; the Jedi
Anavus Svag, who served in the fleet that
pursued Naga Sadow back to Sith space;
and a Sith Holocron that I recovered from
an abandoned Sith starship on Koros
Major. Locked within the recesses of this
Sith Holocron—the only Sith Holocron, as
far as anybody knows—are the forgotten
histories and lore of the Sith, dating back
o hundred thousand years and more. Both
Jori Daragon and Anavus Svag are long
gone, and the Holocron—because of the
dangerous knowledge it contains—remains
off limits to all but a few Jedi Masters

Now, there is one piece of information
from the Sith Holocron that 1 will share.
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According to the Holocron, Naga Sadow
escaped Empress Teta’s assault and
vanished with his. followers. It is most
puzziing how this information came  to
be on a Sith Holocron that had been
abandoned on Koros Major before Naga
Sadow's retreat to Sith space, but then
1 do not pretend to fully understand the
workings of this possibly corrupt device. It
is very possible that this Holocron contains
an interstellr transmission receiver, the
likes of which we cannot detect.

Ludo Kressh was never heard of again.
If Naga Sadow survived, is it possible any
Sith still exist? We know not, and we can
only imagine.

8ut if you are visited by nightmarish
visions, Jedi... trust me on thi.... do not
dlismiss them.

T A I A
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On Korriban, the funeral of Dark Lord of the
Sith Marka Ragnos is represented by ancient
hieroglyphs, which show his spirit appearing
before the rival Sith Lordis Naga Sadow and
Ludo Kressh. OF the various Sith who have
demonstrated the power to transcend death,
Marka Ragnos is the earliest case on record.
Naga Sadow did indleed survive the Great
Hyperspace War, and escaped on his Sith
flagship to Yavin 4, where he directed his
Massassi warriors to construct many temples.
The flagship would later be discovered
and utilized by the Jedi Exar Kun, who also
transformed the temples into his stronghold
and assumed command of the Massassi
Although a tomb for Naga Sadow was
discovered on Korriban, it remains unknown
whether his body was ever moved there.

After recovering the Sith Holocron,
Odan-Urr kept the device at the original
Jedi library that he founded on Ossus. It
is puzziing that the Sith Holocron could
have contained data about Naga Sadow's
escape from Empress Teta: this implies
that the Holocron's contents were updated
by supernatural forces. Although it is not
known how extensively Odan-Urr studied the
Holocron, it was in his possession for more
than a millennium, and records indicate that
both he and Jedi Master Vodo-Siosk Baas
studied it without any adverse effect. Stil,
it s possible that some Holocrons may be
more than mere repositories of knowledge.
and that they attract evil. Because Exar Kun's
desire for Sith teachings prompted him to slay
Odan-Urr—who was indeed surrounded by
his books at the time of his death—and seize
the Sith Holocron, the devices themselves
have a dangerous reputation that seems well
deserved.

It s unfortunate that Odlan-Urr s remem-
bered fess for his scholarly achievements and
preservation efforts than for his role in the
development of both the Great Hyperspace
War and the Sith War. More than one historian
has commented that the Daragons might
never have happened upon Sith space—and.
led the Sith back to the Republic—hadl Odan-
Urr ot rescued the siblings from assassins,
and that Exar Kun might not have risen to
power so quickly had Odan-Urr destroyed
the Sith Holocron when he'd had the chance.
However, numerous Jed texts recall Octan-Urr
a5 2 Jed who was especially mindful of the
Force; if his actions were guided by the Force
itself, he was hardly culpable for the wars.




THE SHADOW OF
FREEDON NADD

4000

Six hundred years after the Great
Hyperspace War, the Jedi Freedon Nadd
was seduced by the dark side, slew his own
Master, and apprenticed himself o a Dark
Lord of the Sith. In the tradiition of the Sith,
there can be only one Dark Lord at a time.
Unabe to become a Sith Lord as long as
his Master lived, Nadd came to the planet
Onderon to make himself a king.

Four centuries after Nadd's death, |
went to Onderon to bring peace to the
dvided world. | was preceded by my
students Ulic Qel-Droma, his brother Cay,
and Tott Doneeta, who had discovered that
Queen Amanca, wife of Onderon's ruler
King Ommin, was possessed by the spirt of
Freedon Nadd. My students and | tracked
Amanca to the deepest sublevels of her
palace and discovered Freedon Nadd's tomb,
which had become the focus of dark side
energy and enabled his power to pass (o his
descendants from generation to generation.

Exposed to the light, the dark power
that had supported Amanca abandoned
her and left her dead. Nadd transferred his
power to King Ommin. | was then attacked
by Ommin, who smothered me in dark side
energy and attempted to transform me into
his own Dark Jedi. After my Jedi students
came to my aid, Freedon Nadd realized that
King Ommin would fall to the Jedi, 5o he
switched his support (o the Krath, a secret
Society founded by the cousins Satal and
Aleema Keto, descendants of Empress Teta,
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The Krath gained knowledge of Sith sorcery
from ancient texts and relics. Nadd killed!
Ommin before his own apparition vanished

into thin air, swearing to me that the Jedi
had lost the battie.

To prevent Freedon Nadd from ever
gain exercising his power from beyond the
grave, | have transferred his sarcophagus
to a great tomb on another world. The
tomb is guarded by many beasts. May no
‘one dre to find it

ADDENDUM BY

_ TIONNE SOLUSﬁ(

Master Arca transferred the remains of
Freedon Nadd, Queen Amanca, and King
Ommin to the moon Dxun, but Nadd's tomb
was quickly discovered by Exar Kun. After the
Krath grew from a secret society to a galactic
threat, Arca was mortally wounded by Krath
war droids on the planet Deneba. Arca’s
death motivated his student Ulic Gel-Droma
to form a plan to infiltrate the Krath in order
o discover a way to destroy them. Tragically,
Gel-Droma's desire for vengeance only led
him to the dark side.

According to. Sith researcher Murk
Lundi, Freedon Nadd gained his knowledge
of the Sith not by direct apprenticeship to
a living Sith Lord but through the discovery
of an abandoned Sith Holocron. Allegedy,
this Sith Holocron was originally owned and
maintained by King Adas, who had ruled the
Sith approximately twenty-three thousand
vears previously, or three thousand years
before the formation of the Galactic Republic.
Lore has it that Adas learned about Holocrons
from Rakatan soldiers who attempted o
conquer Sith space. Around the time of the
Great Hyperspace War, a Sith Lord named
Garu lost King Adas's Holocron on the planet

Ashas Ree, where it remained until it was
found centuries later by Freedon Nadd. Other
sources suggest that Freedon Nadd's search
for Sith knowledge lect him to Yavin 4, where he
apprenticed with the spirit of Naga Sadow.
Master Arca did not note the existence
of King Adas'’s Holocron, but records indicate
the Jedi hid it under millions of tons of water
on the remote world Koda. In 29 5..v, Murk
Lundl'sstudent Norval recovered the Holocron,
which was subsequently seized by Obi-Wan
Kenobi and turned over to the Jedi Council.
For reasons that remain unclear; the Council
ultimately entrusted the Sith Holocron to Jedi-
affiliated House Pelagia’s extensive Holocron
library in the Tapani sector instead of to the
Jedi Archives on Coruscant; this was ultimately
unfortunate, as King Adas's Holocron was
stolen during the Jedi Purge, and it seems the
remaining Holocrons were destroyed before
Palpatine or his agents could claim them,

| THE SITH WAR __|

39965,
Author: Jedi Master Vodo-Siosk Baas

1 must tell you of the Great Sith War
that occurred four thousand years before
your time.

Thiswarwas causedbyastudentofmine,
Exar Kun, who found
the ancient Sith. He imitated the ways of the
long-fallen Sith and used them to form his
‘own philosophy of the Jedi Code, a distortion
ofallwe know to be true and right, With this
knowledge, Exar Kun established a vast and

After the war. I had hoped Exar Kun
and his kind were defeated once and for
all But Exar Kun joined forces with another
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powerful Jedi and great warlord, Ulic Gel-

Droma. He worked his invisible threads into

the fabric of the Republic, bringing downfall e

through treachery as well as through his

distorted abilites with the Force. x
Because | was his Master, I alone of the

alliedt Jedi went to confront hirm, hoping that

I could tun him back. | knew it was a foolish

mission, but | had no choice. 1 had to try.
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The Jedi chased Exar Kun to his stronghold
on Yavin 4 and used their combined power to
Strike him down and annhilate his Massassi
warriors. However, Exar Kun was able to
escape death by using Sith sorcery to preserve
his spiri in the Massassi temples. Although the
duration of a disembodied consciousness is
more often discussed by philosophers than
historians and scientists, it is an undisputed.
fact that Exar Kun's spirit survived more than
four millennia, and that he retained more than
enough power to attack Luke Skywalker's then
fledigling Jedi academy.

The Jedi Nomi Sunrider, who served with
Ulic Gel-Droma before his defection to the
Krath and the Sith, demonstrated a most
unusual Force ability when she stripped Ulic
Gel-Droma of his powers, leaving him biind to
the Force. According to Sunrider, she leared
of this power from Jedi Master Odan-Urr.

THE SECOND
SITH WAR

3958-3956 n.a.
Author: Bodo Baas

Two Jedi acquired a taste for rebelion
during their victories in the Mandalorian
Wers. They discovered pre-Republic Raka-
tan artifacts that led them to the Sith
tombworld of Korriban. Despite their lack of
2 connection to the Sith species, they drew
knowledge from the Sith tombs and declared
themselves to be the new Dark Lords of the
Sith—Darth Revan and Darth Malak.
Because they were known heroes of
the Mandalorian Wars, many Jedi Knights
regarded “the revanchist” and his former
apprentice Alek as champions, and eagerly

was revitalized on Korriban, and a new
corps of Dark Jedi readied to defend their
growing Sith Empire. Under the command
of Revan and Malak; they seized control of
the bulk of the Republic fieet, and it was
ehis act that initiated the Second Sith War.

The Sith Lords recovered an ancient
Rakatan device, the Star Forge, which
possessed the power to create fully formed
machines of destruction. They amassed an
even greater fleet and might have brought
the Republic o its knees but for the efforts
of the Jedi Knight Bastila Shan, a master of
battle meditation.

Bastila subcued and captured Revan,
and the Jedi Council Force-scoured his
memories to learn the location of the Star
Forge. In the process, the Jedi removed
Revan's memories of his allegiance to
the Sith and conscripted him to fight on
their behalf. Revan illed Darth Melak and
destroyed the Star Forge.

A for the end of this conflict, many

records are either unclear or inconsistent.
Revans fate s not documented, but it is
known that his defection caused a civil war
amongst the Sith, and/that a host of potential
Sith Lords—including Darth Sion,
Kreia, and Darth Nibilus—attempted to take
his place. According to one record, Erianna,
an attendant to Jedi Master Atris, defeated
the Sith Lord Darth Nihilus. Another record
indlicates that the Miraluka Jedi Visas Morr
was involved in killng Nitilus, while stillother
records suggest that Niilus slew Marr

After the Second Sith War, the Jedi
hunted down and exterminated the dis-
ciples of Darth Revan and Malak, and many
other followers of the dark side. The Sith
virtually disappeared for centuries, and it
was believed the galaxy was at last safe
from their dark order. This erroneous belief
[ Darth Ruin.

Asith







DARTH RUIN

Amysterious figure who may have been
an Umbaran, Darth Ruin revived the Sith
Order and seduced a number of Jedi to his
cause. A war with the Jedi Order inevitably
followed, but the Sith soon tumed the
war upon themselves. Ruin was destroyed
by his own disciples, who ushered in &
nnium-long period of betrayal and
Garkness amongst the Sith,

IONNE SOLUSAR







BATTLE OF
RUUSAN

1000 s

The atte of Ruusan, the notorious confict in
which Jedirecruitednovice orce-sensiiveyouthsto
bati the Sith, was  seies ofsoven ground batte,
and may have been the bloodiest confrontation
betwaen Jedi and ithin hitory. Casuates on both
sides numbered in the thousands, and the planet
isefi—once ush with lfe—was decimated. Only
 few brief mentions of Ruusan have been found
within the Great Holocron; i seems that even the
Jeci Orcr wished to forget the incicent.

Luke Skywalkr fist heard of the Batte of
Ruusan from the Jedi Master Yoda. Five years
after the Battie of Yavin, the Allance received a
message regarcing a piace called the Valey of the
Jedion Rusan, which compelled Luke toshare his
knowledige with Allance leaders:

Hundreds and hundreds of years ago,
a Jedi named Kaan turned away from
the light and formed the Brotherhood
of Darkness. The Brotherhood used the
dark side of the Force to build an empire,
and they were well on their way toward
expanding it when an army was raised to
oppose them.

The army of opposition consisted of
beings from many species and planets,
representing all walks of life. But they had
one thing in common. They were Jed!

The two sides came together on a
remote and little-known world. Salvos of
‘pure energy were exchanged, storms raged
across the land, and lightning flashed from
the skies. Entire cities were destroyed,
a species was pushed to the edge of
extermination, and spirits separated from
their bodies.

Finally, after days of mortal combat, the
Brotherhood was defeated. Knowing that
he had fost but unwiling to accept defeat,
Kaan lured his opponents into a valley.
And it was there that the Brotherhood of
Darkness committed suicide, taking good
Jediwith them,. Not to the freediom of death
but into a state of suspended animation,
where they remain trappec
The Republic agent Kyle Katarn—before he
became a Jedi-gathered additional facts. The
renegade Jedi Kaan had become a Sith Lord, and
his opposition was the Army of Light, which was
led by the Jedi Lord Hoth. To defeat the Jedi, Kaan
and his Brotherhood of Darkness—which consisted
of thousands of so-called Sith Lords—committed
suicide through the use of a Force weapon known
a5 a thought bomb, a volatile cauldron of seething
Force energy that consumed all Forcesensitive
beings within its blast radius. The disembodied
spiits of Jedi and Sith were instantly trapped
within a large ovoid of dark energy.
Fortunately, the Jedi Order had not sent all
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1 hacht sensed even the sightest danger
before Panaka's et
Outside the cockpit viewport, | saw
ui-Gon fghting the dark figure I drected
the shi's captain to fy toward Gui-Gon,
Wwho was able to leap on board before
e ascendec from the planet, leaving the
Gui-Gon was winded, but
was compelld to note that his opponent

of the Jedi Knights to Ruusan. As the Order went
through a period of re-formation, the Jedi built
a monument to their fallen comrades in what
became known to them as the Valley of the Jed
but knowledge of its location became lost over
time, and the spirits remained trapped.

The Ruusan natives made a prophecy: “A
Knight shall come, a battle will be fought, and the

the Battle of Ruusan, the prophecy was fulfiled by

Kyle Katarn.

RETURN OF
THE SITH

3200y,
Author: Obi-Wan Kenobi

It s five days since the death of my
Master. At the request of the Jedi Council
1 make this report of my encounters with
the Sith.

The first encounter was on Tatooine. My
Master, Gui-Gon Jinn, and I were escorting
Queen Amidala from Naboo to Coruscant
when the hyperdrive of the Queen's tarship
‘became damaged and we were forced to
land on the desert planet. Repairs had just
been completed as Qui-Gon was returning
toourlandingsite from the city of Mos Espa.
He brought with him the Force-sensitive
oy he'd discovered, Anakin Skywalker

According to Qui-Gon, they were
within sight of the shio when a black-clad
figure came racing out from the dunes
on a repulsoriift speeder. The figure leapt
from his speeder; ignited a lightsaber, and

was well trained in the Jed arts.
When Gui-Gon and I next saw this
nemy, we were assisting in the defense of
Naboo against the Trade Federation’s droidl

incredibly fast. Just as I sensed that the
creature was aware that Qui-Gon and I
would beat him, he found a way to divide
us. Moments later, we were separated by
Iaser doors in a security hailway. I could
dlo nothing but watch as our enemy struck
down Qui-Gon.

When the last laser door lfted, I gave in
to my anger as I charged the dark warrior. |
absolutely wanted to destroy him. He used
my anger against me, actually fed off my
fury. gaining strength as I exhausted my
own. 1 lost my lightsaber and he had me.
But then | saw my Master's weapon, and
a5 1 reached out for it, | heard Qui-Gon's
words within me

Be mindful of the iving Force.

The Force guided my movements, and
it was by Qui-Gon’s blade that hs killer was
felled.

attacked, but.
Anakin to run for the ship. | was inside the
Ship's cockpit when the Queen's security
head, Captain Panaka, came running in

v s
or attempting to assassinate the Queen, we
may never know. He was certainly a Sith,
but was he Master or apprentice? I believe
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it is only & matter of time before we find
out. Anticipating a future encounter, | am
compelled to remind all Jedi of what they
‘have been told since their earliest training:
donotlose yourselves to anger, even briefly
s1lid, for not only s this against our Code,
but it will make the enemy stronger

DENDUM BY
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Thanks to the findlings of the New Republic
Senate Council on Security and Inteligence,
research has confirmed that Obi-Wan  slew
Darth Maul an Iridonian Zabrak who was an
apprentice to the Sith Lord Darth Sidious, the
alter ego of Palpatine. Queen Amidala was
Maul's probable target on Tatooine and Naboo.

‘Before Gui-Gon'sfirst encounter with Darth
Maul, numerous records indicate that the Jedi
of the Old Republic believed the Sith had been
extinct for a millennium, apparently since the
Battle of Ruusan. The Jed also had records of
separate pre-Ruusan Sith Orders that were led
by two Sith Lords, such as Exar Kun and Ulic
Qel-Droma, or Darth Malak and Darth Revan.
Via the Great Holocron, the Jedi Master Yoda
said of the Sith, "Always two there are...no

But two was not always the standard.
According to Luke Skywalker, Yoda knew of
the Sith Lord Kaan's Brotherhood of Darkness,
an army of thousands who fought at Ruusan.
It is not known whether Yoda was aware that
all members of the Brotherhood referred to
themselves as Sith Lords, but records indicate
that most of the Brotherhood was hastily
trained; it is probable that Kaan's Force:
sensitive minions were “Lords” by name only,
and conceivable that the Jedi considered
them as such. It remains a mystery why Yoda

1o less. A Master and an apprentice.

and other Jedi—most of whom had believed
the Sith were annihilated at the Battle of
Ruusan—seemed so certain that the Sith
had returned to their Rule of Two, but it is
possible they sensed this through the Force.

THE BATTLE OF
GEONOSIS

2200y,
Author: Obi-Wan Kenobi

At the request of the Jedi Council, |
make this report of my confrontation with
Count Dooku on Geonosis. | confess, I'm
at something of a loss about where to
begin. What started as a mission to trace.
the origin of a Kamino saberdart has led to
the death of many Jedi and, even worse,
interstellar war.

It seems the seeds for the battle on
Geanosis were planted at least 5 decade
0. Actually, 'm not sure if planted is the
right word. Strewn seems more accurate,
et strewn with apparent precision in a
star system that someone didn't want us to
know existed, like some cosmic sieight of
hand that.

Please forgive me. My thoughts went to
my Padawan, who lost a hand on Geonosis.
He's with the surgeons now. Il continue.

As you know, | traced the saberdart to
Kamino, despite the fact that all records
of that star system were wiped from the
Jedl Archives. To reiterate my report from
Kamino, the Kaminoans maintain  that
Master Sifo-Dyas placed the order for a
clone army at the request of the Senate
almost ten years ago. | recalled that Sifo-
Dyas was kiled around that time, so




it seems possible that the Kaminoans

Gealt with an imposter. According to the

Kaminoans, Sifo-Dyas also requested that

they keep his inv
a Jed arrived to claim the clones, and to
expect the arrival of the clone host. The
clone host was the bounty hunter Jango
Fet

vement a secret until

and the Kaminoans introduced us.
claimed he'd been recruited not by
Sifo-Dyas, but by a man named Tyranus
on one of the moons of Bogden. | quickly

assessed that Fett was the same hunter
who had fired the saberdart that led me to

Kamino in the first place.

Fett attempted to escape me on
Kamino, but 1 1t
where | discovered Count Dooku meeting

wed him to Geonosis

forces. After transmitting a message to

Anakin, | was captured by the Geonosians
and briefly interrogated by Dooku. He
was very charming, made it seem

interview, even though | was trapped in
force field at the time.

Dooku told me that the Republic
is under the control of a Dark Lord of
the Sith called Darth Sidious. He said
that Sidious was once in league with the
Trade Federation but betrayed them ten
years ago, which is the same year as the
Battle of Naboo. Dooku claimed the Trade
Federation sought help from the Jedi
Council, but they were ignored. He asked
me to join him and destroy the Sith.

Obviously, | refused. I sensed the ark
sice in Dooku. The rest you know better than
I: how Anakin relayed my message about
the droid armies, how Jedi reinforcements
traveled to Geonosis, and how Chancellor
Palpatine was granted emergency powers
to utilize and activate the clone army. | take
o comfort in acknowledging that the Jedi
would have lost the battle at Geonosis had
the clone troops not arrived when they ol

O



Count Dooku toldl me that our vision
has become clou

led by the dark side of
the Force. As Master Yoda will attest
Dooku s himself strong with the dark sice,
and it may be impossible to unray
ims. sti

Perhaps | have become too much of a
detective, but | find myself preoccupied by
S0 many references—if not facts—related

any

truth from his cf

to events of “ten years ago.
A Sith Lord named Darth Sidious
betrayed the Trade Federation.
Sifo-Dyas army.

erased the Kamino system from  the
Archives. It seems highly likely that this
deed was done at a time consistent with
the other noted events. Sifo-Dyas strikes
me as a more likely suspect if only because

id have

I can't imagine why Dooku
taken measures to build a secret army

for the Republic, then allow that army to

attack his own forces on Geonosis.
What disturbs me most of all is that

the Kaminoans were expecting a

arrive when 1 id, as if everything was going

The mysterious Tyranus  recruited
Jango Fett as a genetic template for the
clone army.

Sifo-Dyas was killed.

And Count Dooku left the Jedi Order.
Al ten years ago.

1 suspect that only a Jedi

possibly
Sifo-Dyas or Count Dooku—could have

the saberdart was also part of this plan?
And sending the clone troops to Geonosis?
1 thought the Force was guiding me, yet

wonder whether |

25 an unwitting

e decade-old scheme.

ndler much. Dooku has
caused the death of many Jedi, and must
be stopped.




ONNE SOLUSAR

The Sith Lord Darth Sidious bet

ration at the Battle

2. Count Dooku left the Jedi Order

and became Darth Tyranus, an

apprentice to Darth Sidious.

Acting in secrecy, Sifo-Dyas ordered
clone army from the Kaminoans.

e friend

Count Dooku, Yoda theorized that

Sifo-Dyas may have been

under Dooku's Influence.

The Kaminoans received payments

from Tyranus (Dooku),

The Kaminoans never saw. either
Sifo-Dyas or Tyranus (Dooku.

Sifo-Dyas was killed. Yoda thet

he was murdered by Dooku.

Dooku erased Kamino from the

Jango Fett arrived

the Kaminoans began pro
the







THE CLONE WARS

2219 85,

Because the Empire haa authorization over
nearly al existing records of the Clone Wars, many
facts were twisted or buried to prevent the pubic
from discovering the truth: The Clone Wars were
entirely conceived and orchestrated by Darth
Sious, who—under the guise of Palpatine—used
s bowers and influence to maripuate the Senate
Darth Sidlouss primary goals were both the
extermination of the Jedi, and gaactic conauest
Because the Jedi id not discover the Sith Lord's
identity unti t was 1o at,fevs Jedi recordsreveal
anytning but—in indsignt—how easily they fell
victm to te sitn

Palpatine projected an unassuming manner
as e manipuiated siuations to grant himsel
aditiona political authoriy at every opportunity:
few suspected he was seizing power, because
virtally everyone was foisting it pon him. Al
were dsceived by Palpatine’s modest, reluctant
acceptance speeches

Although the Clane Wars offcially began with
the Battle of Geonosis, when the Republcs clone
army fst engaged the Separatists’ droid milti,
isaifficut Darth Sidious

and Intelligence indicates he was also involved in
commissioning the Republic’s clone army.

Dooku s also credited with teaching lightsaber
fighting techniques to two notorious  killers of
Jedi: General Grievous, the cyborg leader of
the Confederacy’s droid army, and the Force-
sensitive Asaij Ventress, who aspired to being a
Sith. Records indicate Grievous was not a Force-
user; although he probably knew Dooku was a Sith
Lord, he may never have realized that Supreme
Chancellor Palpatine—whom Grievous abducted
during the Clone Wars—was really Darth Sidious.
Whether Dooku was grooming Asaij Ventress as a
genine Sith apprentice remains unknown, as does
her fate.

Near the end of the Clone Wars, Anakin
Skywalker killed Count Dooku, discovered that
Palpatine was a Sith Lord, and was conscripted
into the Sith Order as Darth Vader. Recordings
sequestered by the droid R2-D2 eventually revealed
a possible motivation for Anakin to ally with the
sith. These recordings include conversations be-
tween Anakin and his secret love, Senator Padmé
Amidala, the former Queen of Naboo. Evidently,
Anakin feared that Padmé would die in childbirth,
and came to believe he could gain new knowledge
of the Force—apparently from Darth Sidious—that
would enable him to save her. Also believing that

began setting plans in motion that would lead to
this war. His schemes were years in the making,
and the fact that he engineered the develop-
ment of two massive opposing factions without
arousing suspicion is a testament to his cunning
and patience.

Darth Sidious did not accomplish his goals on
his own. After Obi-Wan killed Darth Maul, the then
newly appointed Supreme Chancellor Palpatine
took on as his next apprentice the renegade Jedi
Master Count Dooku, who also operated as Darth
Tyranus. Although it is well known that Dooku came
to lead the Confederacy, information gathered
by the New Republic Senate Council on Security

executed many Jedi on Coruscant before Palpatine
declared himself Emperor. Ultimately, Anakin/
Vader attempted to kill Padmé and continued to
Serve his Sith Master—although not necessarily with
any degree of loyalty—untilthe Battle of Endor.

The Clone Wars may have truly been the end
of the Jedi had Padmé not given birth to the twins
Luke and Leia. Leia would be adopted and raised
by Senator Bail Organa on Alderaan, while Luke
was taken to Anakin's stepbrother Owen Lars on
the sand planet Tatooine.
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very last time I saw my father, or the last
time I'd ever taste Alderaan’s sweet ir

The rest you probably know. It seems as.
ifeverybody does. If 1 had a credit for every
academic who wanted me to verify specific
dletails about the events leading up to the
destruction of both Death Stars, | could
pay for several planetary relief efforts. But
for posterity’s sake, | want my descendants
to know that it was a great turning point
for me when | learned that Luke Skywalker
was Darth Vader's son, and that Luke was
my brother. It's hard to explain to anyone
who doesn't comprehend the Force, but
when Luke revealed this information, it
really did feel as f Id known about our true
relationship all along.

But I was also overwhelmed by the
knowledge that Vader was not only Luke’s
father, but mine, too. My memories raced
to my first encounter with Vader. It was
during my first trip to Coruscant, when
1 accompanied my father—that is, Bail
Organa—to a reception for the Emperor
In hindsight, I'm surprised | was allowed to
0, a5 it exposed me to both the Emperor

him like a malevolent shadow, and there
was no doubt in my mind that if | had
found the courage to speak my mind to
the Emperor. Vader would have killed me
on the spot.

Me. His own daughter, not that he knew
it at the time.

It was only a few years after that first
encounter that Vader captured me, right
after the Alliance hadintercepted the Death
Star plans. In an effort to locate Alliance
headquarters, Vader tortured me. Do |
think he would have done so had he known
1 was his daughter? Yes, and in a heartbeat.
Whether he would have tried to lure me to
the dlark side or just indluce pain, | can only
imagine, but given how he dealt with Luke
on Cloud City, there was nothing stopping
him from harming his own offspring.

And yet Luke believed there was still
some good in him, just as my mother—as
revealed by the old recordings~believed,
and after Vader had tried to strangle her! It
was beyond difficult for me to believe any
‘goodness could be found within that black
armor, even after Id learned from Anakin's

and vader. Granted,
any Force powers at that point, so perhaps
Bail Organa thought it was relatively safe.
1 never knew anyone who guarded his
secrets as well as Bail Organa,

The reception was at the Imperial
Palace. As things turned out, it seems
neither Sith Lord sensed anything about
my true identity, for if they had, surely
they would have done something. That's

tell him what | thought of his xenophobic
Empire, but as he approached me in the
reception line, | was struck numb with fear.
1 remember thinking it was as if he were
pitch-black inside. Vader loomed behind

s a boy on Tatooine.
And yet some goodness did remain in
Anakin. Luke succeeded where others had

dlark side. Only Luke could have done that.
I wasn't strong enough. Not then.

It disturbs me to have such violent
family history. | can forgive Anakin Sky-
walker because he could not prevent
himself from being seduced by the dark
side and transformed by Palpatine. The
actions of Darth Vader and the Emperor,
however, remain unforgivable.

Am | concerned that I raised my own
children to be Jedi? Of course I am. | want
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my children to be safe and happy. | worry.
1 know they have fel the lure of the dark
Side at various times. I can only trust they
know how much 1 love them, and hope that
the lessons they have learned will continue
t0 keep them in the light.

Standerd records indicate the Galactic
Civil War ended nineteen years after the
Battle of Yavin, with the historic peace
accords that were signed aboard the
Chimaera by Admiral Pellaeon and Chief
of State and President of the Senate Ponc
Gavrisom. For some, like me, the war still
rages in my memories and dreams. How can
1 forget the horrors that claimed Alderaan
and pitted a man against his own children?

For all that I have learned about the
balance of nature and the power of the
Force, 1 will probably always have difficulty
with the idea that there’s enough room in
the galaxy for any Sith Lords.

THE DEMISE OF

PALPATINE

10-11 A,
Author: Luke Skywalker

This record is for my nephew, Anakin
Solo.

Anakin, | speak to you from the planet
Onderon, where your parents, siblings.
and | are the guests of Modon Kira and
his warrior clan. At this very moment, you
are sleeping peacetully in a crib in your
parents' suite. This is a wonderful thing for
you to be doing, Anakin. It is how every
baby should sieep, softly snoring without
fear o concern. And yet yesterdey. we
came 5o close to losing you.

1 have no doubt that you will grow

p good and strong, and that by the time
you_review this recording, you'll already
have heard something about the events of
yesterday. Because the Force is 5o strong
in you, I suppose it's possible that your in-
choate memory may preserve some aspects
of what happened. But | want you to know—
know from me—about what happened, as
best as I can tell it. And afterward, Il tell
you why I want you to know.

For more than two decades, the galaxy
was controlled by Emperor Palpatine, &
Sith Lord who had conquered the Republic
and virtually destroyed the Jedi Order.
To say that Palatine was evi, and would

entire civilizations and left worlds ravaged
beyond salvation, all i his ongoing effort
to achieve greater power. He was also
responsible for luring my father, the Jedi
Knight Anakin Skywalker, to the dark side
andtransforming him into a Sith apprentice
named Darth Vader 1 willtell you more of my
father another time, but for now, know that
he renounced the Sith, and that it was he
who killed Palpatine seven years ago at the
Battle of Endor. Know that your grand-
father, your namesake, died as a Jed.
Andforsixyears, Ibelieved, as everyone
else did, that Palpatine was dead. Only last
vear did I learn the truth: Palpatine had not
been consumed by a blast of energy, but
had survived as dark side energy itself. In
this bodiless, transitional state, he traveled
across the galaxy until he reached his
hidden retreat worlc. There he projected
his spiri into the body of a waiting clone,
a replica of himself. By this method, he had
cheated death. It was not the first time.
He had previously utiized clones after he
had discovered that the corrupting power
of the dark side had a detrimental effect




on his physical form. But after the Battle
of Endor, he commissioned many more
clones of himself to ensure that he would
lve forever.

And then his reign of terror began
again. He developed a loyal milltary and
builta new fleet of warships. Seeking a new
apprentice, he set his sights on me, and
then your mother. But from the moment
that he sensed you inside your mother's
womb, you became the greatest object of
his desire. Even more so after | destroyed
his cloning facility. leaving him with only
5 single clone to possess. No, he didn't
want you as his apprentice. He wanted to
possess a genuine Jedi body. Yours.

After you were bor, it didn't take

a5 his own was rapidly deteriorating. As
000 as | realized he was heading for the
fortress, I raced here with the Jedi Knight
Empatojayos Brand, my Jedi apprentice
Rayf Ysanna, and your father:

Brand and Rayf found Palpatine first.
1 was too late to stop Palpatine from
unleashing Sith lightning upon them. Rayf
was killed instantly, but Brano—possibly
because his cybernetic body absorbed
most of the energy—was stil alive when
your father and I arrived in the chamber
where Palpatine had comered you and
your mother. | told Palpatine that | would
accept his surrender. He lunged for you,
trying to tear you from your mother's arms.
Your father blasted him, and as he fel, he
said it was time for him “to enter the child”
a5 he had vowed,

An instant later, Pelpatine’s cloak
emptied, and both Leia and I sensed that
his spirit was about o possess your body.
Empatojayos Brand moved faster than

thought. He took you in his robotic arms
and used the light side of the Force to
shield you from Palpatine. Then he handed
you back to your mother, and assured us
that he had trapped Palpatine’s spirit

Brand said he could feel himself being
eaten alive by the arkness, and he could
ot stop it. Or maybe he would not stop
it He said that Palpatine would die with
him, and that Palpatine would never return.
“The Force,” he said, “and all the Jedi who
went before us will make sure of that." And
then Brand died.

Had | known how to contain and
destroy Palpatine, | would have done it
to save you. Because I did not know this
ability, | am grateful that Brand was with
us. He was a greater Jedi than I

So now, Anakin, 1 shall tell you why
it's important to me that | relate this
story to you. It's not because | want you
to remember your place in history at the
moment Palpatine died. | want you' to
remember Rayf Ysanna and Empatojoyos
Brand, two men who fought to save you.
1 also want you to remember Rayf's sister,
Jem, who died while defending your
mother and me against Palpatine’s minions
on New Alderaan. I hope you will honor
them by living a good, long life, as this is
what they would have wanted for you

Now that Palpatine is finally gone
forever, I feel a great relief. | don't know
how long this relief wil last, and | can only
imagine what your future holds. But with
the last Sith Lord dead, the future of the
Jedi Order has never looked brighter

May the Force be with you, Anakin.




ADDENDUM BY

TIONNE SOLUSAR

Luke Skywalker and Kam Solusar found Rayf
and Jem Ysanna, descendants of Jedi who
survived the Cron Supernova, while searching
for Jedi artifacts on Ossus in 10 . That
same year, the Jedi Knight Empatojayos Brand
came to the aid of the New Republic. Brand
had escaped the Jedi Purge, but was mortally
wounded when Darth Vader hunted him down
and destroyed his starship. Rescued by the
technologically limited Ganathans, Brand's
body was so ravaged that he could only survive
s a cyborg, with his head and limbless torso
encased in prosthetic machinery. Despite his
condition, Brand remained strong with the
Force and became the leader of Ganath.

THE
RESURRECTION
OF EXAR KUN

Nasn
Ear s spirt was trapoed for four mitenria n
the tempies of Yovin 4 befor it was briefy stired
by Luke Skywalker' armval at the secret Allance
base. Eleven years ater, when Luke founded the
Jeciacademy on Yavin 4, Exar Kun corrpted Luke's
most powerfu tudent, Kyp Durron,and attempted
o resurrect himsel by craining power from Luke
and the other trainees. Among the trainees viere
Streen.  former gas prospector, and Krana Ti of
Dathomi, who eventually became Jec Masters
and—folowing the war with the Yuuzhan Vong—
co-foundet a new Jedi praxeum to train Dathomir-
ianForce-sensitves.Nineyearsafter the confictvith
Exar Kun, Streen made the following recording:

Im not much of a storyteller, but
after Tionne heard me talking with some
youngsters who'd asked me about that
business with Exar Kun, she wanted me to
tell it again for the record, so here / am.

Just 50 you know, I'm not even going to
try for a whole history of Exar Kun or what
Kyp Durron went through. There's other
records for that, and Tionne can direct
you to them. Im just going to say what I
remember about the Dark Man's last dey
on Yavin 4.

The Dark Man had already caused the
death of my friend Gantoris, turned Kyp
Durron against Master Skywalker, and put
Master Skywalker's body into a state that
hovered between life and death before
we—the other Jedi apprentices and I~
finally realized what we were up against: a
Spirit who put thoughts into our headss to
corrupt us. Sad to say we dicin't sort this out
until the spirit had gotten his hooks into me.
Itolel my alles that he'd been whispering to
me constantly for weeks, just as he'd done
to Gantoris, but that didn't stop his prattle.
Entered my mind while I was sleeping, he
dlic, and made me think | was having a dream
about fighting hirm, but what he was really
dloing was making me try to destroy Master
Skywalker's unconscious body, which | very
nearly dic. Fortunately, Leia Organa Solo and
my fellow Jedi trainees were able to stop
me. I snapped out of the nightmare, and
thought Kam Solusar was going to take my
‘head off before Kirana Ti quickly convinced
him 1 dlcn't know what | was doing. After |
recovered, I told everyone what | knew must.
be done. We had to destroy the Dark Man
before he killed us al.

It was Jacen and Jaina Solo who told us
the Dark Man was Exar Kun. They'd come to
Yavin 4 with their parents to check on their
uncle, Master Skywalker that is. The twins
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were only three years old at

out they could communic
uncle, who spoke to them from
ok

ne, and told them Exar Kun's name.

Tionne already knew more about Jedi
ore than most, and she knew a thing or
out this Sith

o After Exar Kun's

o turn his student back to

the light side, other Jedi banded together
in & massive strike force and followed him
back to his stronghold, right here on Yavi

4. The Jedl combined their might, unified

their focus of the Force to lay waste to
most of the jungles. Exar Kun
obiiterated, but he must have used some

body was

Kind of Sith sorcery to preserve his spirt in

rusted with Master Skywalker's

lightsaber and was guarding his body—he

was laid out on a stone platform in the
grand audience chamber—when the Dark
Man returned, and appeared before me as a
shadowy figure clad in dark, padded armor.
Apulsin

att00 of a black sun burned from

his forehead. I told him | wouldn't do his

struggle to resist the anger he wante

bring out in me. In the years Id spent as a

prospector at Bespin, /d come to bel

that 1| wasn't very comfortable around
but 1 felt empowere
of my fellow trainees, who included Kirana
Ti, Kam Solusar, Tionne, Cilghal, Dorsk &,




andl Brakiss. They'd been waiting for the
right moment to enter the chamber and
catch Exar Kun off guard. Present, too,
were Jacen and Jaina, who stayed close to
Cilghal's side.

Exar Kun was not impressed by our
numbers. He taunted us, even seemed
conficent he might defy us, but then
another Jedi appeared. It was the spirit of
Master Vodo-Siosk Baas, who said, “To-

Kirana Ti had activated her lightsaber.
and she and | crossed blades through the
middle of Exar Kun's shadowy body. There
was 5 great blaze of light, then darkness
flooded out of Exar Kun. The Sith Lord
Screamed before he vanished forever, then
Vodo-Siosk Baas disappeared, too.

And Master Skywalker awakened. Soon
he was fully recovered.

It does not pain me to admit that |
couldn't have defeated Exar Kun or rescued
Master Skywalker on my own. Even Master
Skywalker was vulnerable to that Sith fiend!
Only proud or overly confident beings think
they are completely abe to take care of
themselves without help at all times. Pride
and confidence can make a solid suit of
armor, but such armor is weak compared
with the power of the Force, especially if
it isolates you from other Jedi. Remember
the words of Vodo-Siosk Baas: “Together
Jedi can overcome their weaknesses.

THE YUUZHAN
VONG

J eci schotars have specuisted whether te sitn
played a part in the war with the Yuxizhan Vong.
Whie investigations have 5o fa been inconclusive
the war is noted here because it was very possibly

Exar Kun, my student—you are defeated
atlast.

Then yet another apparition appeared
that of Master Skywalker, whose physical
body remained inert. His apparition said,

The way to extinguish a shadow is to
increase the light

for the Jedi, and forever
changed not only the New Republic, but the known
galaxy itself.

Extragalactic invaders whose religious beliefs
threatened all, the Yuuzhan Vong considered tech-
nology an abomination. In the name of their gods,
they performed blood sacrifices and painful rituals
with fanatical devotion, and believed it was their holy




duty to destroy nonliving architecture, machines,
droids, and all “infidels” who opposed them.

e earliest Jedi record of the Yuuzhan Vong's
when Obi-Wan Kenob
and his Padawan Anakin Skywalker searched for

existence dates to 29

the mythical “living planet” Zonama Sekot. They
learned that a year earlier, another Jedi, Vergere,
d herself to the extragalactic “Fa
siders’—the Yuuzhan Vong—to prevent them

out
from att
o
Sol

revealing her Force o

nama Sekot. More than five

cking Zo

s later, Leia Organa Solo's eldest son, Jacen
th

dise rgere had survived without

wers to the Yuuzhan Vong,
and that she had provided the Yuuzhan Vong

with information that eventually allowed them to

infiltrate New Republic space.

Because of a unique gen

sequence, the
completely apart

Yuuzhan Vong seemed to exist

from the Force. This characteristic rendered the
Yuuzhan Vong and their fiving vessels and weapons
virtually invisible to the Jedi, who could ot use
the Force to perceive or influence the invaders.
According to Vergere, the apparent invisibility of
the Yuuzhan Vong owed not to any inherent failure

of the Force, but to the way Luke Skywalker and

his fellow Jedi perceived the Force, specifically

what Vergere referred to as the uni
it seemed the Jedi had failed to grasp
ander and farther reaching

tying Force.

Somenow,

that the Force was

than even they understood it to b

it was eventually discovered that the Yuuzhan
Vong had been severed from the Force by their

id, Yuuzhan'tar, after

ancestral living homew an

ancient confrontation with a warfaring species left

nquest. The

them with a hunger for violence and

Jedi's apparent inability to deal with the Yuuzhan




Vong by traditional methods prompted the New
Republic to consider other options, including
extremely hazardous bioweapons.
Amissiontoinfiltrate a Yuuzhan Vong worldship
over the forest world Myrkr proved tragic for the
Jedi: Leia Organa Solo's youngest son, Anakin Solo,
died, and Jacen Solo was abducted by the Yuuzhan
Vong. Months later, the Yuuzhan Vong Nom Anor
invited Jacen to convert to the invaders' religion;
Jacen agreed because he hoped to destroy the

Yuuzhan Vong from within, but as events turned

out he escaped and returned to his farmily.

After Coruscant fell to the invaders, the New.
Republic implemented a daring plan—conceived
by the aged Admiral Ackbar—to lure most of the
Yuuzhan Vong fleet to the moon Ebaq 9. The
battle that ensued brought an effective end to
the war, but certain Yuuzhan Vong factions
remained outraged by Jacen's false promise to
convert and wanted him dead. In a Yuuzhan Vong
ship that attempted to escape from Coruscant,
Jacen b

led the invaders’ Supreme Overlord and
was briefly transformed into the most powerful
manifestation of the Force on record. The duel was

witnessed by Leia Organa Solo and Han Solo, who
had boarded the ship with the assistance of the
Yuuzhan Vong executor Nom Anor. Leia Organa
Solo made the following record:

The escape ship was st

accelerating
from Coruscant as I followed Nom Anor
andl Han into the cavernous chamber that

was the bridge. What | saw made me feel
as if I were wedged between a dream and
a vision, lifted into a realm that was usually
denied to mortal beings

In the center of the bridge, Jacen
stood like @ pillar of biinding light, feet
planted, arms at his sides, chin lifted. The
Gazzling light seemed to spin
from his midsection and surround him like

an aura. His face was almost frighteningly
serene, and also, | thou

ht, a touch sad.

e bupils of his eyes were like rising suns.
He seemed to age five years—features
maturing, complexion softening, body
elongating. | felt light-headed, as if Id
forgotten to breathe.

Across the bridge, a male Yuuzhan




Vong—Jacen later identified him as the
Supreme Overlord—was pinned to the
coarse bulkhead ke a captive shadow-
moth. Between Jacen and the Supreme
Overlord was Jaina, suspended a meter
above the deck by hors that protruded
from the inner bulkhead. She was para-
lyzed but conscious, and dangled fimply,
like a mourntul sculpture. Then Jaina's
form began to strengthen, and at the same
time the Overlord waned. Before our eyes,
his disfigured body melted away and the
bridge’s deck absorbed him ke a stain.

Jaina was rescued, but what youth might
have remained in my son vanished that ay.
The sight of him on the bridge is something

will carry with me to my dying day.

The Yuuzhan Vong officially surrendered to
the New Republic on the Bothan Assault Cruiser
Ralroost. The death toll for the Yuuzhan Vong War
has been estimated at 365 trillon,

Perhaps the most perplexing aspect of the war
is Vergere, who willingly spent fifty years among
the Yuuzhan Vong, and who remains something of

a mystery. Although records indicate that a Jedi
named Vergere was sent to Zonama Sekot in 30
5., some Jedi scholars have speculated whether
Vergere may have been a Dark Jed or a failed Sith
apprentice to Palpatine.

Is it possible that Vergere deliberately en-
couraged the Yuuzhan Vong War or used it as a
vehicle for the singular purpose of grooming a
new Sith Lord? While some Jedi scholars have
dismissed this theory, there are precedents for Sith
conspiracies that were years in the making, leading
to interstellar war and new Sith regimes. Al that is
certain is that Jacen Solo was heavily influenced
and transformed by the being who called herself
Vergere, and it is in part because of her that he is
the Jedi he is today.







LUKE SKYWALKER
VS. LUMIYA: FIRST
ENCOUNTER

4nny

Lt was o 1on and twisted path tha e to Luke
Siowalkersfst confrontation with Lumiva on the

Rebel Alliance after the Battle of Yavin. Brie claimed
she was a native of the planet Shalyvane, and that
she was among the few members of her tribe to
escape an Imperial attack that destroyed the city
of Chinshassa. A skilled pilot, she soon became
a member of Rogue Squadron. Along with Luke,
she was among several pilots who flew in modified
TIE fighters on a mission to infiltrate an Imperial
armada; although these TIEs had been outfitted
with transceivers to prevent the Rebels from
targeting ther fellow pilots, the Imperials used a

various levels of deception; because a chronological
presentation of events might inaccurately suggest
that Luke Skywalker could have foreseen aspects
of the conspiracy, this entry begins not at the start
of the path but with the Rebel Alliance’s earliest
awareness of Lumiya.

Following the Battle of Endor, Princess Leia
Organa and Mon Mothma were on a diplomatic
mission to the planet Herdessa when they were
introduced to Lumiya, a female cyborg who wore
a face-concealing helmet and presented herself as
the head of Herdessan Planetary Security. Leia soon
discovered that Lumiya was allied with renegade
Imperials who were in partnership with Herdessan
slavers. According to Leia, Lumiya displayed no
Force powers, and had blaster weapons concealed
in her cybernetic hands. Leia shot Lumiya, but
Lumiya survived and managed to escape.

Luke Skywalker pursued the deadly fugitive
to Kinooine. There Lumiya attacked him with her
lightwhip, a whip possessing a combination of
energized and corporeal tendrils. Unprepared for
the attack, Luke was defeated and captured, but
escaped with the assistance of his friend Kiro, a
Forcersensitive Chuhkyvi from Iskalon. Luke hastily
constructed a red-bladed shoto, a lightsaber with
a relatively short beam, which he wielded simul-
taneously with his own lightsaber to subdue
Lumiya. During that duel, Luke shattered Lumiya's
helmet to reveal a familiar face: Shira Brie.

Luke had met Shira Brie when she joined the

jammer that prompted Luke to
rely upon the Force when choosing his targets. It
was in this capacity that Luke unknowingly fired
‘upon Shira Brie and destroyed her ship, a realization
he did not have until after the battle, when Princess
Leia showed him a holorecording that displayed
Brie’s body in the shattered TIE's cockpit
Luke was devastated that he had killed a close
friend. Suddenly regarded as a pariah by many
Rebels who openly blamed him for Brie’s death,
he was also stripped of his rank as commander.
However, Luke refused to believe that the Force
had failed him when he shot down Brie's ship.
With help from Chewbacca, he eventually found
information that would vindicate his belief. At an
Imperial data vault on Krake's Planet, Chewbacca
recovered a recording chip that yielded the
following information:
Subject: Shira Elan Colla Brie.
Current rank: Major, Imperial Special
Forces.
Personal history judged ideal. Born
in Empire capital. Raised in palace of
Emperor Palpatine as part of experiment
in adolescent indoctrination. Experiment
totally successful.
Gained expert rating in all known forms
of combat. Intelligence and coordination
both extraordinary.
Biologically altered to reject pain, and
to accelerate physical healing process.
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Graduated with top honors in history
of Academy Record unequaled since.

PersonallyselectedbyLordDarth Vader
for infiltration into banned organization
known as “Rebel Alliance.” See Reference
Log #49734

Vader project required total razing of
city of Chinshassa on planet Shalyvane to
establish credible background for subject.

Project's purpose: The elimination—
either actual or effectual—of Rebel com-
mander Luke Skywalker.

Project status: Open.

End of program.

Although Luke was absolved of blame for
shooting down Brie and was reinstated as a
commander, he took little consolation as he had
been so easily manipulated, and that Darth Vader
had gone to such extreme efforts to either destroy
or discredit him. The fact that the Empire had
razed Chinshassa merely to establish a “credible
background” for Brie was enough to remind the
Rebels that their fight was far from over.

Luke continued to believe that Shira Brie was
dead until he confronted her cybernetic alter ego
on Kinooine. Evidently, Darth Vader had recovered
Brie’s body from the wreckage of her TIE fighter and
had her reconstructed as Lumiya. Despite Luke's
victory over Lumiya on Kinooine, he was forced
to abandon her upon the arrival of her allies, the
Nagai invaders. Later that same year, Lumiya sided
with the Nagai's enemies, the Tofs, and nearly shot
Princess Leia on Saijo before she herself was shot
by one of her former Nagai agents. Once again,
Lumiya survived and escaped.

n a briefing to Rebel officials in 4 As.v., Luke
Skywalker stated:

On Kinooine, after Lumiya was un-
masked, she made it clear to me that she
ot only hates me but also blames me for
Who and what she is. She claimed she has
suffered ever since she was remade as a

cyborg, and held me responsible for her
condition. She vowed that someday. she
would spit on my pyre, after she had seen
me bereft of hope and the wil to live.

1 tried to reason with her, told her that
1 never intended to harm her when she
flew as Shira Brie on that terrible mission.
1 pointed out that Darth Vader, who was
responsible for reconstructing her as a
cyborg after hed molded her into an
Imperial agent, was dead, and that before
his death he'd reconciled to the good
in himself. 1 told Lumiya that my father
wouldn't have wanted her to go on hating
s she does, and that | believed she could
find goodness in herself.too.

And then the Nagai invasion fieet
arrived. 1 had no choice but to leave Lumiya.
I have little doubt that our paths will cross
again. Although | acknowledge that she
is a disturbed and dangerous indivicual
and discourage anyone from approaching
her without extreme caution, | urge you
to consider that she is also a victim of the
Empire.

Let it be known that | refuse to believe
that the woman I knew as Shira Brie was
Just an act, and that 1 am confident she will
return to the light.

Years later, Mara Jade Skywalker furnished
additional details about Shira Brie's transformation
into Lumiya. After Darth Vader supervised Lumiya's
reconstruction on his flagship, the Executor, he
helped her hone her ability with the Force and may
have given her some Sith training. Because Vader
knew he was unable to keep Lumiya a secret from
his own Master, he presented her as a gift: 2 new
Emperor's Hand. The Emperor sequestered Lumiya
on the ancient Sith world of Ziost, where she crafted
herself a lightwhip from Kaiburr crystal shards
and Mandalorian iron. She was still on Ziost when
the Emperor died at the Battle of Endor, and she
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subsequently committed herself to exterminating
the Rebels who had ruined what she believed was
the “natural order” It was probably during this time
that she assumed the mantle of Sith Lord.

LUKE SKYWALKER
VS. LUMIYA:
FINAL DUEL

40 ra.

Excopt for storementioned. information from
Mara Jade, there are few records of Lumiva's
activites between 4 ~.. and the current year of
40 g Following the Emperor's death, Lumiya
was conscripted by Ysanne Isard, the director of
Imperial Iteligence. 1sard cipatched Lumiye

was assumed dead, an assumption that was only
strengthened by the lack of any records of Lumiya
after the duel on Caprioril

1n40 45.v. Luke Skywalker sensed that Lumiya
had returned shortly after this premonition, Lumiya
and the renegade Jedi Alema Rar killed Jedi
Master Tresina Lobi—who had been searching for
Ben Skywalker—at Fellowship Plaza on Coruscant.
Ten days later, Luke and Mara dueled Lumiya and
Alema at Rogoo Depot, a refueling station in the
Hapes Cluster. Both Lumiya and Alema escaped.

It has already been noted that Lumiya was
the primary suspect in the death of Mara Jade
Skywalker when Luke Skywalker killed Lumiya on
the planet Terephon. It has also been noted that
Luke subsequently learned Lumiya's confirmed
whereabouts precluded her from poisoning Mara.
Although both Mara and Lumiya were on Kavan in
the Hapes Cluster at the moment Mara died, Ben
Skywalker—who was also on Kavan—personally

accounts for Lumiya being nowhere near Mara at
the time. Lumiya's activities on Kavan and the
identity of Mara's killer are still under inves-
tigation.

Because of the sensitive nature of the ongoing
investigation into the death of Mara Jade Skywalker,
further information is currently available only to
sanctioned Jedi
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PART TWO

THE JEDI

RECORDED 40 AB.Y

JJEDI EVOLUTION

Oler many mitennis, the seci order has
undergone numerous changes, from the semi-
organizec band of “wizarcs

the highy discpined warriors and peacekespers
of the Old Republc. Some changes have been
oracul, implemented by the Jedi after much

in ancient times to
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indicate they were Force-users or Force-adepts.
Although such beings have always been in the
minority, it is believed that many more are at least
Force-sensitive, meaning they have varying degrees
of potential to become Force-users.

Approximately thirty thousand years ago, a
species known as the Rakata used the Force to
‘power much of their technology, including starship
engines that enabled them to travel through
hypers

to unanticipated events and political upheavals.
Despite such transformation, the most remarkable
aspect of Jedi history is the fact that so many
powerful beings chose not only to band together but
to use their powers in service to others as well. Jedi
may share the ability to manipulate the Force, but it
s through the Jedi Order that they are truly united.

THE FORCE AND
ITS MYTHIC
ORIGINS

ancient glyphs that illustrate the Rakata's claims of
scientific invention and dominance of the galaxy.
some historians have speculated that the Rakata
may have appropriated their technology from the
mysterious Architects of the Corelian system, who
predated the Rakata by unknown millennia.
Relying upon information found in crumbling
history disks, researchers have attempted to trace
the Jedi back to several long-lost organizations,
including the mystic Order of Dai Bendu, the
Followers of Palawa at the legendary Chatos
Academy, or the Ashla worshipers of Tython.
Although the Great Holocron sheds some light on

e Force s an eneray i that binc togetner
i, space andivingbeings. Althoushpredecessors
ofthe eary Je are oten crecite with dentiing
it the Force hos aiways exsted and the Jei were

Ancint

the
remains of the other groups i their names.

EARLY JEDI |

A twenty-five thousand years ago,

history accounts for many beings who unwittingly
discovered and demonstrated special abilfties that

the development of hyperspace-travel technology
prompted many Core Worlds to form the




democratic union known as the Galactic Republic.
According to the Great Holocron, the first society
of Force-sensitive beings may have been founded
on the dawn world of Tython, where Force-users
harnessed a positive energy that they called the
Ashla. This energy allowed them to telepathically
communicate across vast distances, heighten their
senses, heal themselves, and see past the veils of
time. Eventually, they learned that this energy was
not limited to Tython, but permeated the entire
galaxy. It seems that it was these Force-users o
their descendants who eventually became known
as the Jedi, warriors who obeyed the precepts of
harmony, knowledge, serenity, and peace.

The Tython Jedi came torecognize that the Force
had two fundamental aspects: e light sice, or Ashia,
and the dark side that they called the Bogan. The

light side of the Force was regarded as the essence
of creation, balance, and growth that fiowed naturally
throughout the galaxy. The dark side was believed to
be entirely selfish in nature, and embraced negative
energy that made one simultaneously more isolated
and more destructive.

The Jedi required generations to master the
Force, transforming what once had been regarded
as wizardry into something of a science. After
they learned that the Force was all-encompassing,
they ventured to other worlds to recruit and train
those with similar powers. Some Jedi chose the
path of diplomacy while others became experts at
battle, respectively distinguishing themselves as
Jedi consulars and Jedi guardians. Those Jedi who
served specific sectors of space became known as
Jedi Watchmen. According to Sar Agorn, a Jedi
consular from the earliest days of the Republic
Wwho speaks from the Great Holocron:

The ability to manipulate the Force may

be unusual, but it is not unique. Given time

and the proper chemistry, aimost anyone

an learn how to tap into the power of the

Force and move small objects or influence

weak minds. But this is not the way of the

Jedi. The decision to use such powers for

the betterment of all. and not for selfish

purposes, distinguishes the Jedi from all
others.

Through meditation and practice, the Jedi
discovered that avoiding the emotions of hate,
anger, and desire could make them grow more
powerful in the light side of the Force. The ancient
Jedi did not forbid intimate relations or marriage
‘among their Order, but it was understood that the
strong emotions associated with such relationships
could easily affect the decisions and behavior of
most Jedi. The majority led monastic lives. Some
legends claim that the first Jedi Knights traveled to
the planet Caamas to learn proper moral judgment
in an attempt to understand how to use their
powers ethically.




Study of the Force continuedat the school of Jedi
philosophy that was founded on Ossus after the Great
Hyperspace War. Jedi students trained in the arts of
combat, but also learned that patience, huriity, and
self-sacrifice were paths to enlightenment. According
to the Jedi Master Odan-Ur.

A Jedi Master always said this to each of
his students before their first lesson: “Cross
an unfamiliar river without first discerning
its depths and shal
inits currents without reaching your goal.

ws, and you will drown

Being a Jedi is no different. Identify the
pittalls and learn the proper path, or you
fail the Order and sacrifice yourself in no
good purpose.

Asthe Jedi became celebrated for their actions
and achievements throughout Republic space, Jedi
Masters remained ever mindful of the dark side.
According to the Jedi Master Bodo Baas:

A Jedi does not grasp at power. A Jed

is not a dominator, not an oppressor. To
grasp for power is to abandon the ways of
the Force. Such a one ceases to know the

Force, except in his dark side. To grasp at

power is to take up the path that leads to

destruction. The dominator is the enemy,
yes. But the Jedi do not use the dark
powers of the dominator against him.

On Ossus, the Jedi came to understand that
both the light side and dark side of the Force reflect
aspects of the living Force, the in-the-moment
manifestation of life eneray, and the unifying Force,
the cosmic expression of prophecies and destinies.
More precisely, they realized that the light and dark
sides are intertwined and necessary to each ot

e,
as they form a cosmic balance. A Jedi could avoid
embracing the dark side, but could never ignore
its power. Over the millennia, awareness of the
unifying Force became lost to the Jedi, but it was
rediscovered during the New Republic's war with
the Yuuzhan Vong.




JEDI KNIGHTS

OF THE OLD
REPUBLIC

Abtnoush the sedi reaizec many great achieve-
ments during the. four-thousand-year-span

between the Great Hyperspace War and the Battle
Ruusan, their numbers were decimated during

the Second Sith War, and their image became
gan taking active roles
e noble intentions and

tarnished when they

in government; despite
scrupulous behavior of the several Jedi who served
as Republic Supreme Chancellor, the general
public was never entirely convinced that their
influential leaders had won their elections fairly,
and came to regard the Jedi as the most powerfu

of power-mongers. Even more scandalous was the
Jedi Order's part in a miltary strike that left the
Ubese homeworld inhospitable, and its desperate
recruitment of Force-sensitive chidren to fight the

Sith at the Battle of Ruusan.

No matter the circumst
remain conscious of how their actions will be
perceived. All Jedi would do well to remember the
words of Jedi Master Odan-Urr:

nces, Jedi must always

When a Jedi behaves badly in public
an observer might think, If this Jedi is
representative of the whole Order, then
plainly no Jedi is worthy of respect. On
who  behaves

meeting a second Jed
better than the first, that same person
might think, Does this say that half of the
Jedi are good, and half bad? On meetin

2 third Jed, who behaves as well as the

second, the person thinks, Was the first




Jedi an exception, then? In this way, only by

the good behavior of several Jedi can the

public be certain that the poor behavior of

one Jedi was unusual. Thus, it takes many.

Jedli to undo the mistakes of one.

In the aftermath of the Battle of Ruusan, the
surviving Jedi were forced to reevaluate every
aspect of their Order. A twelve-member Jedi
Council established new rules, the most radical of
which applied to recruitment and training. Via the
Tedryn Holocron, they heeded the words of Jedi
Master Bodo Baas:

Training Jedi is a most rewarding
pursuit, but one ringed with many unseen
perils. Never, O Master Jedi, rest easy
when your pupil begins to grow anxious
to learn at a pace greater than that which
you have set for him. Such impatience is
natural in the young and inexperienced,
and a commendable trait in a student. But
it also signals a time when the pupil is most
open to the temptation of stepping onto
the broad path of easy advancement that
leads to the dark side. Beware, Jedi Master;
lest through carelessness and inattention
you loose on the galaxy a monster:

After the Jedi Masters decided that it was too
dangerous to train anyone familiar with fear, anger,
and any other emotion that might lead to the dark
side, it was agreed that Force-sensitive juveniles,
adolescents, and adults would no longer be eligible
for enlistment or conscription. Instead, they sought
out and adopted Force-sensitive infants who would
beraisedandtrainedat the Jedi Temple on Coruscant;
to prevent any emotional attachments that might
cloud judgment, most recruits would never have any
subsequent contact with their families

Although the method by which the ancient
Jedi detected potential Force-users was almost
ost to time, records indicate that the Jedi—shortly
after the Battle of Ruusan—either discovered
or rediscovered the existence of midi-chiorians,

microscopic life-forms that reside within al living
cells and communicate with the Force to reveal its
will. Midi-chlorians can be detected by a simple
blood test, and a high midi-chiorian count indicates
great potential as a Jedi. The Great Holocron
confirms that the Jedi relied upon this blood-
‘analysis method up until the Jedi Purge.

While some beings considered it an honor
to have their child become a member of the Jedi
Order, others likened the Jedi to baby snatchers
However, records indicate that most parents—
after being educated about the myriad risks and
responsibilites of raising Force-sensitive children—
‘were genuinely relieved to relinquish their offspring
to the resourceful Jed.

It also seemed that the new rules worked. The
millennium that followed the Battle of Ruusan
became known as the Golden Age of the Republic.
Many worlds prospered, and the Jedi lived by their
ethical code:

There is no emotion; there is peace.

There s no ignorance; there is knowledge.

There is no passion; there is serenty.

There s no death there is the Force.

But the Golden Age was not to last. It ended
with the Rise of the Empire and the Jedi Purge,
‘which nearly succeeded in crushing the Order once
and for all

THE POTENTIUM
PERSPECTIVE

As seci earn more about the Force, it is not
unusual forther t form their own theories about
how and why it works. They question how  the
Force creates and sustains Ife tcan have a dark
sice. Some arive a the concluson tha the Force
is not divided nto dark and llht,tht s energy
is mherently positive, and tha thre is no “dark
6" waiting to corrupt them, Trme and again,




this conclusion has been proved erroneous, and
the Jedi who felt compelled to test the limits of
the Force rarely perceived the dangers of their
explorations. As they approached the brink of the
dark side, some were rescued by other Jedi or
came back willingly when they saw the error of
their ways. Those who refused to renounce their
mistaken beliefs were either exiled to the farthest
reaches of the galaxy, or destroyed.

During the penltimate century of the Ol
Republic, the Jed Leor Hal founded a philosophical
9roup that challenged the Jed Order's perspective
of the Force. Hal and his disciples maintained
that the Force could not push one into evil; that
the universe was infitrated by a benevolent field
of life energy whose instructions were inevitably
'900d. They called this energy field the Potentium,
maintaining that it was the beginning and ending
of all things, and that one's connection with it
should not be mediated or obscured by any sort of
training or discipline. Followers of the Potentium

insisted that the Jedi Masters and the Temple
hierarchy could not accept the universal good
of the Potentium because it meant they were no
longer needed. According to Asli Krimsan:
You are not the first student to ask me
of the Potentium, and I doubt you'll be the
last. It sounds so appealing, the idea that
one does not require any study or practice
to embrace and be a part of a benevolent
energy field. But when one considers the
history of the Force, all the many and
various reasons why the Jedi understand
there are definite divisions and pitfalls in
life’s tenure in space and time, one realizes
that the Potentium view is ultimately selfish.
It allows one to believe that one’s actions
are good and justified simply because
there is no evil intent.
f you find any merit in this phiosophy,
be cautioned This is not the way of the Jedi.
You might consider yourself a fair




____/m

person, even a good person, but do you
believe

Jedi Order. But according to the Great Holocron,

you the same? Is there not one of your
fellows who—from your perspective—has
ever acted unkindly? Is it conceivable that
atleast one of your friends might not regard
you as entirely benevolent and with-out
any negative qualities?

Do you believe that you're as good as
you willever be? That you know all that you
need to know? No, of course you do not.
for you are already wise.

There s nothing wrong with questioning
authority, history, and the nature of exist-
ence. But o not assume that all your ques-
tions can be answered by listening only
to yourself and an energy field you've just
begun to sense. You have much to learn,
and much to lear about the Force.

In the end, the Jedi Padawans who had been
caught up in the Potentium movement left the
Temple or were pushed out, and dispersed around
the galaxy. Although records do not reveal that
any of the original followers of the Potentium
succumbed to the dark side of the Force, their
beliefs may have been adopted by Vergere, who
twisted the philosophy to suit her own purposes.

It has also been theorized that the Potentium
may have originated as a Sith scheme to subvert
Jedi teachings; this theory allows for the possibility
that Leor Hal was entirely unaware of any Sith
influence on his explorations of the Force. The
Jedi Order continues to regard the Potentium
philosophy as dangerously misguided at the least,
and heresy at the worst.

THE LOST

History accounts for numerous sedi padawans,
Jedi Knights, and Jedi Masters who turned to the
ark side and etherfled or were banished from the

their commissions to the Jedi Order prior to Jedi
Master Dooku in 32 6.6.v. This group had long been
referred to as the Lost, but after Dooku joined their
numbers, they became krown as the Lost Twenty.

‘The Holocron's record of the Lost is incomplete,
and one can only speculate whether it has been
corrupted. The record indicates that most of the
Jedi Masters left because of ideological differences
with the Order, and did their best to leave on
positive terms. Except for Dooku, only one other
Jedi Master s identified by name: Phanius, who left
the Order circa 2000 &.0.v. According to ith scholar
Murk Lundi, Phanius became Darth Ruin, a Sith
Lord who recruited other Dark Jedi to fight their
former allies. No records indicate that the Jedi of
the OId Republic were aware Phanius or any other
members of the Lost had tured to the dark side,
let alone become Sith Lords. The fact that the Jedi
may have been completely oblivious to Phanius's
conversion, and that few Jedi even suspected that
Dooku had joined the dark side untilten years after
he had renounced his commission, suggests that
other Lost Jedi left the Order without arousing
concerns.

Research on the Jedi known as Vergere has
revealed that she was a Padawan to Jedi Master
Thracia Cho Leem, who left the Jedi Order in
29 ss. The Great Holocron does not offer any
explanation for why Thracia Cho Leem left the
Order, but the record suggests that she was not
considered among the Lost.

Following the Battle of Geonosis, many Jedi
chose to leave the Order rather than serve as
generals in the Republic army. Others, such as the
Jedi Master Sora Bula, chose to ally with Count
Dooku and fight against the Republic. By the end
of the Clone Wars, it seems that the Lost Twenty
had been reduced to a footnote in history.




THE DARK TIMES

t into hiding on separate,

th
a Jed
had

Evenafter the Empire felland t
reclaimed Coruscant, it s

impossible, that the

with
that his p
encounters encouraged him to consider training

hers to become Jedi.

THE JEDI
ACADEMY

s after the Battle of Yavin, Luke
discovered the nearly three-hundred-and-fift
of the on Dathomir,

vided him with

yn Holocron and the
the Jedi library at

contained litle information about the hierarchy of

o Ag
invaluable data regarding Jedi training, medtation,
and lightsaber forms. Although Luke kn
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Order could not be restored to its former glory, he
believed that it could be reinvented.

Three years after the recovery of the data
tapes, the New Republic granted permission for
Luke to seek out students whom he could train
to become new Jedi. Whereas Jedi of the Old
Republic had been conscripted as infants into the
Jedi Order and were generally forbidden to marry
and have children, Luke was willing to consider
anyone who demonstrated some ability with the
Force. Because Luke believed the galaxy needed
2 new generation of Jedi and knew firsthand that
the Force was strong in certain farmilies, he did not
discourage marriage and procreation.

Luke founded his Jedi academy on Yavin 4 in
the Great Temple that had once been the secret
base of the Rebel Alliance. He considered it an
institution established not only for learning but
also for discussion; rather than dictate what the
new Jedi should think, he encouraged his trainees
to arrive at group conclusions. While most students
regarded the academy as a place of contemplation
where they could learn to use their powers, some
saw it as a haven where they could strive to
overcome the dark side within them,

Luke's first students included Kam Solusar,
Who'd been a young Jedi when he escaped the Jedi
Purge; Kirana Ti, a Witch of Singing Mountain Clan
who had a husband and daughter on Dathomir:
Streen, a former recluse and gas prospector at
Bespin; Dorsk 81, a humanoid clone from Khomm;
Gantoris, a leader of abandoned colonists on the
planet Eol Sha; Corran Horn, who'd served as a
pilot with Rogue Squadron; Kyle Katarn, a former
special operative for the Rebel Alliance; Mara Jade,
a former Emperor's Hand; Cilghal of Mon Calamar;
Brakiss, who was eventually revealed as an agent
of the Imperial Inquisitorius; Kyp Durron, an
escapee from the Kessel mines; and myself, Tionne,
a historian and minstrel with only a modest amount
of Force abilty.

The academy's first year was marked by
unanticipated events, including the resurrection

of Exar Kun's spirit, which resulted in the death
of Gantoris and the dark side seduction of Kyp
Durron. Mara Jade, Corran Horn, and Kyle Katarn
left the praxeum for different reasons, but each
eventually returned to resume training. Although
critics suggested that Luke Skywalker might have
done better to begin with fewer students, all the
surviving students were stronger and more united
by their experiences, and better prepared for
service to the New Republic.

Academy students subscribed to the basic
tenets that characterized a balanced approach to
their role in galactic affairs:

« The Force is to be used to save lives, not

to take lives.

« The Force should never be used for

personal gain.

+ Every Jedi has a vote in making decisions.

for the group.

+ The Jedi should work to support and
maintain the New Republic—but not at
the expense of Jedi ideals.

« If the Jedi are called upon to fight, they
will defend the helpless without hatred,
anger, or thoughts of revenge.

Using an illusion technique Luke learned from
the Fallanassi, Kam Solusar and myself—two of
the academy’s permanent staff—he kept the Jedi
academy relatively safe from casual inspection.
Some academy students would eventually see
their own Force-sensitive children follow in their
footsteps. These offspring included the twins Jaina
and Jacen Solo, and their younger brother Anakin;
and Ben Skywalker, the son of Luke and Mara
Skywalker.




THE NEW JEDI
ORDER

[ 28 xs.. Luke Skywalker esablished anew Jedi
Councithat consisted of poiticans as well s Jeci
Likets previous incarnation, this Jeci Order found
that it surviva depended not only on adherence
o rles of conduct but on a certan egree of
adaptabilty as well
At the outbreak of the wir with the Yuuzhan
Vong, most Jedi lef the academy on Yavin 4
o help with the defense of the New Republic
When 3 Yuuzhan Vong invasion force arrived at
Yavin 4, t signaled the end o the academy. The
Invaders destroyed the Grest Terple and captured
several Jedi, including Anakin Soo. After Anakin
was.rescued, New Repubic ally Talon Karrde
commanded the destruction of the Yuuzhan Vong-
occupied base on Yavin 4
The Yuuzhan Vong invasion caused some Jedi
o questionthe tenets o their acadermy. Severa Jei
Sraviated to Kyp Durrons “racical party;” which
believed that negotiaton wias best accomplished
from a positon of power,and t was foolsh not to
strike frst againt a clear enemy. This contingent’s
Bhilosophy was summed up as follows:
+ D0 not be araid to use the Forco—it's
200l just a5 a lightsaber i a ool
Do not wat for others to perceive the
danger before acting
- Listen'to the Force.its on your side
and will war you if you're making a
istake
- The Jedi have served the Republic for
millenni, They have a proud tradtion
and should never be perceived a5 2
collection of weakiings or cowards,
- The Jedi are the best weapon the
Galaxy has against the Yuuzhan Vong

invasion. Waiting for the New Republic

to understand this might be self-

defeating, if by the time they realize

the need for the Jedi there is no more.

New Republic—or no more Jed

Luke Skywalker and Kyp Durron did not resolve.

all their differences, but worked together to stop the.
invaders. Whenthe war with the Yuuzhan Vong ended,
Skywalker summoned all Jedi to the planet Zonama
Sekot, where he made the following address:

If 1 have learned anything from the
events of the past five years, it is that the
Force is more all-embracing than | ever
realized. Light and dark do not always
stand opposed, but mingle with each other
in curious ways. More important, the Force
seems to have a will, and it's when we're
acting against the will of the Force that we




can get into trouble. Anger by itself s not
of the dark side unless it is accompanied
by a desire to dominate.

When we act in harmony with the will
of the Force, we disappear into it. When
we struggle against it, we not only sever
our ties with the Force, but also feed the
needs of chaos.

The evolution of sentience reflects
the constant movement between those
two poles. Evil—the dark side—won't be
eradicated until it has been discarded as
an option for acquiring power, subjugating
would-be opponents, or offsetting feelings
of anger, envy, or exclusion. Where victims
of injustice exist, the dark side finds
initiates. That is the cycle our actions are
meant to forestall, and in this battle the
Force is both our ally and our guardian.

path for some of us. But I do advocate
attuning ourselves to the longer view, and
reaching out to others who seek to serve
the Force. The genetic makeup of each
and every one of s augments our ability
to tap the Force, but everyone, regardess
of his or her genetics, has the potential to
use the Force to one degree or another.
Perhaps not to move rocks and take giant
strides; but in some sense those physical
powers are lttle more than surface effects.
The real powers are more subtle, for they
involve adhering to the true path, avoiding
the temptation to dominate, sacrificing
oneself for those who have less, and living
impeccably, by recognizing that the Force
doesn't flow from us but through us, ever
on the move.

Following the war with the Yuuzhan Vong, the.
Jedi decided that they should not be affiliated with
any political entity that might interfere or restrict
their efforts to maintain peace. The Jedi dismissed
all politicians from what is now known as the
Masters' Council and relocated the Jedi academy
to Ossus. Kirana Ti returned to her war-ravaged
homeworld Dathomir with Streen, who worked
with her to establish a new Jedi praxeum for the
Force-senstive Dathomirians.

Luke Skywalker continues to lead the new Jedi
Order, but in this current period of darkness it is
difficut for anyone to foresee how the Order will
evolve and whether it will continue to thrive.

We serve it best by listening to its will, and/
serving the good with our every action—by
personifying the Force.

But /'m no longer convinced that we're.
meant to police the galaxy. For one thing,
we're too few in number. That was made
evident early in the war, and it's likely to
hold true for whatever confiicts erupt in
the coming years. The Jedi began as a
meditative order. Our forebears believed
that they could balance light and dark by
remaining always in the Force, and thereby
perfecting themselves. Gradually, however,
as the Supreme Chancellors appealed
to the Order time and again for advice
in resolving disputes, the Jedi became
‘adjuncts of the OId Republic, then marshals
and warriors, taking it upon themselves to
uphold the peace, and ittle by little being
drawn away from the Force and into the
mundane.

Idon't propose that we place ourselves
in seclusion and pass our days meditating
on the Force—though that might be the

FORCE-SENSITIVE
ABILITIES

For i the countess nours that Jedi have spent
in meditaton and contempiation o the Force it
is not their quiet moments for which they re
qenerally recognized, but rather their special




abilties. Popularly regarded as  supernatural
powers, some of these abilities—including fast
reflexes and telepathy—are naturally possessed by
various species, but only Force-sensitive beings
are known to have mastered such a wide array of
paranormal talents.

The Jedi regard their skills as rooted in three
areas: Control, Sense, and Alter. According to the
Jedi Master Bodo Baas:

Control is internal. It s the Jedi's ability

to recognize the Force in himself and to

use it to his benefit. Sense involves the next

SENSE POWERS

N earty al Force-users are born ith hightened
Sight, hearing, and. offactory senses, allowing
them to perceive things that otherwise would be
impossible without artifcial ids. A Jedi learns
‘o fee the bonds that join al iving things and
gains the abilty to understand how these things
are interconnected. Such talents enable the Jeci
to gather information about their environment,
detect danger and hidden beings, and “see” in

step,in
in the universe outside herself. Here she
feels the Force and is able to draw upon it
for information about the world around her.
Throughit she s connected to the rest of the
universe. Alter s the third and most difficult
area to master for it involves the student's
ability to modify the Force and redistribute
its energies. Through these skils, the Jedi
can influence the universe, making changes
a5 needed to accomplish his or her goals.
The power known as Alter Mind
bridges all these skill areas. Through it &
Jedi can project her perception of reality
into the mind of another, or an illusion or
conclusion that she needs the other to

through barriers.

Although Jedi cannot always easily sense the
presence of Sith, they can sense disturbances in
the Force that can indicate such a presence. The.
sensation is mostly instinctive, a bad feeling that
should not be dismissed as simply an emotional
reaction to a situation. If a Jedi senses that some-
thing is amiss, the feeling is almost always justified.

TELEPATHY

hold as true. This is @

useful power, but it is also one fraught with

danger. Bending the will of another for a

benign purpose can be noble and gooo.

The dlark side lurks nearby in this power, so

it should be used with caution.

Some Jediare more adept than others at specific
Force-related abilities. While such proficiency is
often the result of intensive study and practice,
genetics and heredity can be a crucial factor in
either enhancing or limiting certain abilties. For
example, members of the Halcyon Jedi bloodiine
lack telekinetic powers but excelin other areas of the
Force to easily compensate for their “weakness.”

a Master and apprentice, can exchange short four-
o five-word sentences with each other, but few
can engage in actual telepathic conversations.
Generally, Jedi employ telepathy to read states
of minds and exchange silent communications.
This talent is most useful in moderating peace
negotiations, but s also used in combat situations
to anticipate an opponent's actions. Although Jedi
routinely rely upon comlinks for the purposes of
standard communication, there have been cases
where individuals were able to contact each other
over great distances using the Force.

One of the more intriguing Jedi telepaths




on record is the Iktotchi Jedi Master Saesee Tiin,
who served on the Jedi Council during the Clone
Wars. Like all Iktotchi, Master Tiin was a natural
telepath, but his powers were much greater than
any other on his homeworld, Interestingly, various
records indicate that other Jedi regarded him as
something of a loner, an attribute not typical of
Council members, but one should keep in mind
that verbal communication s almost always a
redundant process for an Iktotchi

Twenty years before the Clone Wars, few were
surprised when Master Tiin refrained from speaking
at the funeral of his own teacher and mentor, the
renowned Jedi Master Omo Bouri. Several months.
later, Mace Windu encouraged Tiin to consider
taking on a Padawan, and Tiin met with a group of
Jedi younglings at the Jedi Temple on Coruscant
The following s a recording of his speech~his
longest on record—to the younglings, which
should enlighten any student about the pitfalls and
strengths of telepathic powers;

When 1 was a Padawan, many of my
fellow students believed that my inherited
telepathic abilities gave me an unfair
advantage in my education. It is true that
I never had difficulty in communicating my
thoughts or comprehending the thoughts
of others, but I do not believe that this
made my education any easier. For unlike my
peers, Iwasanaturalreceiverandtransmitter
of thoughts, a condition that I=not then
able to organize incoming thoughts o
consistently contain my own deliberations—
often considered a hindrance and, at times,
an embarrassment. I will not share details
but allow you to imagine. Had 1 been raised.
on lktotch, where societies are designed to
accommodate telepaths, my circumstances
stil would have been awkward, for my Force
sensitvity would have set me apart.

I dic my best to seal off my mind from
others. I found that I could home in on the

minds of specific beings if | maintained eye
contact.  also learned to incorporate my
abilities during a fight

In combat, telepaths do have a distinct
edge. Even if one fights by instinct and
refiex, most cannot stop themselves from
emitting monosyllabic thoughts that
project their next movement. During my
training bouts at the Jedi Temple, my
‘opponents unwittingly revealed their every
move, allowing me that crucial fraction of a
moment that enabled me to be the one who
would remain standing. Understandably,
my fellow Jedi students began to keep
their distance.

I came to the attention of the Jedi
Master Omo Bouri, a Wol Cabbashite who,
for reasons | could not fathom, selected me
s his Padawan. | had never encountered
2 Wol Cabbashite before. Master Omo's
cognitive brain, as opposed to the one
that controlled his digestive tasks, was so
highly evolved and alien from mine that
his musings were often indecipherable. To
communicate, he used phonemic pulses of




energy with syntactic contours in a mag-
netic field that he exuded and controlled
with his tongue. At first, | couldn't under-
stand his thoughts or a single word he saic.
It was a most refreshing experience.

1 thought | knew more than | needed
to know about telepathy, but Master Omo
showed me that I was wrong. He showed me
~how to use the Force to isolate my own brain
waves, intercept stray thoughts, and screen
dozens of minds at once. How to whisper
across space, yellwithout noise, keep secrets,
and sift through layers of lies and buried
memories to uncover the truth. How to seek
out information from the stars themselves,
allowing one to astrogate a starshio through
htspeed without a nav computer

What's more, he taught me. the
meaning of conviction and dedication to
the Jedi Order.

What path might my life have taken
had not Omo Bouri chosen me as his
Padawan? I do not care to speculate, for |
am certain any other path would have been
for less engaging. And | would have been
less of a Jedl.

Records indicate that Tiin did not take on
Padawan. He devoted much time toward an effort
to communicate with his deceased teacher's spirt,
but it is unknown whether he succeeded. He died
during the Jedi Purge on Coruscant

AFFECT MIND/
JEDI MIND TRICK

A ledi can use the Force to manipulate the
behavior and perceptions of weakcminded beings.
Essantialy, tis power—refered to by Jed a affect
mind and aiter mind, but popularly known as Jedi

mind tricks—utilizes a combination of receptive
empathy, projective empathy, and hypnosis. Jedi
mind tricks can stop the understanding of what's
really happening by blocking the senses, and can
also obliterate memories altogether or even replace
them with false ones. Species with highly organized
mental facilities, such as Hutts and Toydarians, are
naturally immune to mind tricks.

The Jed Master Yarael Poof was a consummate
illusionist, reportedly capable of making himself
invisible to fellow Jedi. He was also able to quickly
determine an opponent's fears through the use
of the Force, and could create illusions that were
perceived by entire armies. In several instances,
his projected mind tricks prompted quick ends to
battles. The Asli Krimsan Holocron provides the
following recording by Master Poof:

=
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Young Jedi, I know many of you are
eager to test your affect mind abilities,
‘and that some have already attempted this.
‘power amongst yourselves. While it can be.
most useful in confiict resolution, affect
mind must be used with restraint, almost
always as a last resort, after exhausting
less dangerous avenues that lead to peace.
Yes, less dangerous, say |, for the power
can easily cause permanent damage to @
relatively innocent subject.

For example, imagine you are on &
mission  that requires you to discreetly
infiltrate a secured building. Despite your
efforts at steath, you are sighted by an
armed guard. Ah, an opportunity for affect
mindl But with so many opportunities to
choose from, what is a Jed to do?

Before you answer, consider this: While
the guard may prove to be an obstacle on
your mission, he is also a living being. He
may not be menacing by nature, merely an
employee or servant. He may have a family,
others who care about him. Had you met
him under different circumstances, you
might have discovered him to be  friend
and ally.

What to do, then? Make the guard see
you as a small unthreatening creature? Make.
him go to sleep, or forget he saw you at all>
Hypnotically suggest that you have leapt
away from where you are standing, and
encourage the guard to chase the apparition

Al these things could very well work,
young Jed, but have you considered the
consequences? What if the guard enjoys
shooting at small, unthreatening creatures?
What if his species is physically incapable
of sleep? What if he forgets he saw you,
but the fact that he even unwittingly
allowed you to pass will cost him his job or

his life? What physical trauma will he suffer
i he chases your apparition into a wall of
solid rock? What if you strike such fear in
‘him that he dies on the spot, or forgets the
nature of gravity as he tries to escape over
the edge of the nearest ciiff?

I need not lecture that you are respon-
sible for your decisions and actions. How-
ever, | will remind you that any course will
leave a wake, and that even the smallest
ripple can cause death. I also will remind
you that you have yet to resolve that
problem with the guard.

Makes you wish you had been more
stealthy, yes?

1 have presented only a few variables
for you to consider about the situation
with the guara, but this s enough for you
to realize that it would be irresponsible of
me to encourage any specific utiization of
affect mind.

1 will make a few suggestions, however

As 2 Jedi, you should be able to sense
immediately whether the guard is prone
to violence or susceptible to fear. This
knowledge can be used to your advantage,
and may direct your use of affect mind,
Also, you must determine whether it is
best to divert or subdue your target. Such
decisions must often be made instantly.
without hesitation.

What would | have done in such a
situation, you ask? | really can't say. A Jedi
is not proud or boastu, and | trust you will
understand I am sincere when | say that it
s hard for me to imagine that the guard
might have spied me in the first place, had
1ot wished to be seen.

But if a guard had seen me, I might
make him believe | was nothing but a
gust of wind, or the shadow of a soaring
indigenous avian. A Jedi can do such
things, for it is the will of the Force.




TELEKINESIS

Commonty known ss 3 Jeds object movement

power, telekinesis is more accurately described a5

amanipulation ofthe Force to control the direction

# objects through space. Jedi utiize this

50, pul, and It objects, but also
their starships

nt

only to

to redirect projectiles and guid
through combat.

Before Dooku renounced the Jedi Order and
reclaimed his family title of Count, he was among
the most highly regarded lightsaber instructors
and made a series of recordings that demonstrated
—preserved on the

Great Holocron—became  required viewing for

/o generations of Padawan learners during the
he Old Republic. On the Asli Krimsan
ne of Dook's lesser-known recordings

telekinesis, and also suggests  that

Dooku was not always as confident as he seemed.
Although Dooku ultimately turned to the dark side,
a Jedi can still learn from his account of a lesson

with Master Yoda:
Hello, younglings. Asli Krimsan has

asked me to tell you about using the Force

to move objects. Rather than offer specific
instruction, | offeryoumy recollection of the
day I learned that this skill was something
more than a Jedi's own personal tractor

always something of a public record. My
homeworld was Serenno, my family wealthy

ke many Jedi my origins were

and of noble rank, and they were proud tha
1 had been conscrinted into the Jedi Order.
In my youth, | believed that my fellow Jed
knew of my background and so looked
upon me differently. Not with sympathy,

envy, admiration, or disdain, but merely




differently, as if my being a Jedi was not as
remarkable as was my lineage. I stress that
this was my perception, and mine alone. |
was never treated unfairly

And yet, as a child at the Jedi Temple,

to tremble. Using the Force, I touched
the leaves and calmed them, and it was
then that I felt the plant's own life eneray,
Something a tractor beam could never do.
It had been my error to think of the plant as

myself from my biological relatives. |
thought that if | knew less of my origins,
1 would not feel as I did, as though | had a
greater burden to prove myself. | did my
best and pushed myself to be better; as |
thought this might alleviate the weight
that I felt upon my shouiders.

My self-consciousness did not go
unnoticed by Master Yode. | was just over
seven years old on the day that | crossed
Paths with him at a garden in the Temple, a
researchlaboratory for the Jedi Agricultural
Corps. foundhim on a stone path, standing
beside a potted long-stemmed plant that
had broad, translucent yellow leaves. He
gazed up at the delicate leaves, and told
me the plant was alien, very rare, the only
one of ts kind on Coruscant. He said some
service droids had left the plant on the
path, and he wondered if I might move it
onto a nearby patch of grass. | bent to pick
up the ceramic pot, but before my fingers
touched it, Master Yoda encouraged me to
use the Force.

Every Jedi learer is trained to move
objects, and / had already proved some
capabilty with this skill. I stepped back to
examine the rounded shape of the pot and
sensed the air around it, then allowed my
mind to lock onto the pot. I attempted to
visualize it rising from the path, but the pot
merely shifted, scraping the surface of the
Stone that it continued to rest upon.

Collecting myself I focused on the pot's
base, confirmed that it was not vacuum-
locked to the path, then pushed upward.
The pot wobbled, causing the plant's leaves

linked to the Force itself

1 extended my hold and visualized the
ot within a column that extended from the.
‘garden floor to the ceiling. Finding myself
short of breath, | inhaled, then slowly,
slowly, 1 lfted the pot until it hovered a full
meter above the path.

1 guided the plant through the air and
lowered it upon the grass. Although Id
meant for a soft landing, I was surprised
when the pot sank a few millmeters into
the ground, the base tearing the blades of
grass.

Master Yoda then said, ‘Incredibly
dense alien soil, that plant can only survive
in. Very heavy, the pot is. Neglected to
tell you of this, | dic. No matter. The path
it blocks no longer Then he looked me
in the eye and said, “Why our paths cross
today, 1 wonder?”

With some reluctance, I confided my
belief that other Jedi regarded me as
different because of my heritage. Master
Yoda responded with great laughter. When
he recovered, he saic, “Aware of your
fomily. few Jedi are. For themselves, your
skills and behavior speak. Think others look
at you differently, do you? Because of your
posture, they might. Stand straighter than
any other youngling, you dor”

The lesson that | learned from Master
Yoda was that burdens are only as heavy as
one imagines, and that—with the Force—
any weight can be lifted,

T,




FORCE LEAP

['he asiity to 1eap igher and farther comes
relatvely naturally to Jedi. Among other ussful

aspects, a well-timed Force leap enables a Jedi
quickly draw within range of a potential enemy.
Although the leaping range varies depending on
 Jedi's training and physique, most Jedi Masters
are easily able to make leaps several times their
own height. This skl can also be integrated with
acrobatic martial arts, and is essential for Jedi who
practice Form IV lightsaber combat

BURST OF SPEED

¥ using the Force to attune their entire body
with their heightened reflexes, Jedi can use the
skill commonly referred to as the burst of speed to
sprint with such velocity that they appear to vanish

from their starting point. In unarmed combat, this
ability can be utiized to bring a rapid end to a fight,
More than other Force powers, the burst of speed
can have a draining effect on a Jedi's energy and
metabolism, and extended use typically requires a
recovery period.

Although this power was understood and used
by the Jedi of the Old Republic, Luke Skywalker
did not discover it until three and a half years
after the Battle of Yavin, when he confronted the
human replica droid Guri in Prince Xizor's castle
on Coruscant. Luke described his experience to his
first students at the Jedi academy:

By all appearances, Guri was human. If
Lando Calrssian hadhn't told me about her
beforehand, | never would have guessed
she was a droid, let alone an assassin who
served Prince Xizor. It wasn't until Guri
demonstrated her supernatural strength
and speed that she revealed herself to be

inhuman,




In brief, | was in a castle that was only
minutes away from obiiteration when
Guri blocked my exit. She was unarmed,
unafraid of death, and because she'd heard
about Jedi from Xizor, she wanted to find
out whether she could best one in hand-to-
hand combat. She leapt at me, and it was
only by the Force that I was able to evade
her initial attack. Unfortunately, | was
momentarily distracted, and that fraction
of 3 second was al she neededto strike me
in the stomach and the side of my head,
driving me to the floor. | was dazed, and
felt It lost contact with the Force.

Then 1 heard Ben Kenobi's voice calling
as if from a great distance, echoing across
time and space. He said, The Force. Let it
‘work for you, Luke.

I had to trust the Force completely.

Guri's hand was coming down like a
blade at me. A death strike. | watched her
hand descend, saw it moving to smash
me, but it seemed 5o incredibly siow that |
was able to roll aside and stand before the
blow could land. I feltas if | were moving at
normalspeed, though there was a crackling
feeling to my motions, and a sound like a
strong wind whistling about my ears. To
me, Guri seemed to be suddenly mired
in thickened time. It wasn't any effort to
knock her to the fioor. As she fell, time
seemed to speed up and return to normal,
Guri was subdued, and | proceeded to exit
the castle.

The burst of speed that I experienced
was not a fluke, but unlike other Force
Ppowers, 1 cannot say | felt in complete
control of t. All of you should bear in mind
that while it often seems we use the Force
t0 achieve our goals, it is ultimately the will
of the Force that guides our actions.

HEALING

Ancient sediearmed that the power of the Force
could be used to ease pain, healwounds, and cure
arious ffictons,and tha these healing ats were
efectiveon ordinary beings as well as Force-users
During the Old Republic ers, the Jedi Temple on
Coruscant headauartered the Jedi Medical Corps,
where young Force-users learmed vluable essons
about the fraity of Ife through their work i a
medcenter,training o ease the suffering of others.
The Ol Republic Jedi also founded 3 chaper
house on Rhinnal, a planet that remains famous
for its expertise n medicine. As with other Force
owers,some Jdi have a natural abilty as healers
such Jedi have never been common, and their
Kindred guard the careully
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The Jedi Master Cilghal is one of the most herfocus—hermindand Force-awareness—

celebrated of contemporary Jedi healers. Before until it becomes microscopic. While her

becoming a Jedi, Cilghal—a niece of the legendary physical body remains unchanged, her

Admiral Ackbar—was a New Republic ambassador projected form shrinks to an infinitesimal

of Mon Calamari. It was during a raid by Imperial size. In that state, she can rearrange

forces on Mon Calamari that Leia Organa Solo molecules, take them apart, and build new

became aware of Cilghal’s ability to predict which ones bit by bit. She maintains that she uses

casualties would die in battle or survive triage. her tears because they are convenient, but

Realizing that Cilghal was Force-sensitive, Leia that she can accomplish the same thing

sent her to join Luke Skywalker's academy on Yavin with other material.

4, where she became one of the first of Luke's Afterward, | met with Master Skywalker,

students to graduate as a Jedi Knight. Cilghal whohadalso discussed Vergere's technique

and her talents achieved renown after she used with her. I presented my assessment that

the Force to cure Mon Mothma of a degenerative this skill presents limitiess possibilities for

molecular poison healing, and was surprised when Master
After Mara Jade Skywalker became infected Skywalker asked me if I had considered

with deadly coomb spores planted by the Yuuzhan alternative uses. | admitted that | had

Vong agent Nom Anor, she was eventually cured not, and he explained that Vergere had

by an antidote from a most unusual source: a vial demonstrated how making oneself small

of tears from the former Jedi Vergere. Cilghal could also be used to conceal one’s ability

learned that Vergere produced natural antitoxins. with the Force, or render a Force-user

through a Force technique that Vergere referred invisible. According to Master Skywalker,

to as “making herself small Through this tech- Vergere claimed that an enemy has the

nique, a Force-user can manipulate and alter things same chance of finding her as of finding

at a molecular level. After meeting with Vergere in one molecule amid bilions of others.

the New Republic Fleet Command annex on Mon Despite my cautions, | endeavor to learn

Calamari, where the and

a provisional capital during the Yuuzhan Vong war, t0 share my discoveries with other Jedi.

Slighelmade the foliowing fecorcing: Vergere died shortly after this recording, but

Because Vergere was regarded as Cilghal was eventually able to master the art of

untrustworthy, | was cautious of her advice making herself small. Many beings have been
and instructions on any subject. However, | healed by the technique, and thus far Cilghal has
‘could not ignore the fact that it was she who suffered no il side effects from its use.

ot anto ot et inesite
orrotrn e it sl
T win v s o wee | TTEALING TRANCE

oy Feet telgence. Atbougn she ap- Some Jedi have learmed to piace other Force:
pearedabit tred, found er to beentrely | sensitvebeingsinneaingtrancestoacceleratether
cooperatie a5 she expained her heaing | natural healing rocess. Whie na tranc, patients

technique to me. Essentially, she narrows heartbeats slow, their breathing all but ceases, |




and they appear to be dead. Unconscious of their
surroundings, human patients have been known to
remain in trances for up to a week in dry climates,
and even up to a month in wet climates before
there is a risk of them succumbing to dehydration
In cases where water was supplied, patients have
remained in trances for as long as three months
without requiring further nourishment.

A number of Jedi have also demonstrated
the ability to put themselves into trances for
long periods of time. Perhaps the most amazing
example is the Kushiban Jedi Master lkrit, who had
been trained by Yoda. In 378 sa.v, lkrit traveled
to Yavin 4 and discovered the Golden Globe, an
ancient device created by the Sith Lord
to imprison the souls of Massassi children. Ikrit

ar Kun

realized that only Force-sensitive children could
break Exar Kun's curse on the Golden Globe
free the captive souls, and went into a trance to
wait until help could come. Incredibly, lkrit was

still in hibernation when he was discovered in 22
by Jed trainees Anakin Solo and Tahiri Veila,
10 s00n figured out how to release the souls and
destroy the Golden Globe.

FARSIGHT

D hroushthe Force.a seican sensetheoccurrence
of distant events or receive a brief glimpse
the future. This sense sometimes activates at

unexpected moments, but can also be achieved
through a meditation technique called farsight.
Luke Skywalker's first awareness of farsight
occurred while traveling through hyperspace in
the Millennium Falcon with Obi-Wan Kenobi, why
sensed the sudden death of millions before the
Falcon arrived upon the remains of the planet
Alderaan. Roughly three years later, while training
with Yoda, Luke himself experienced farsight when
he envisioned t

Solo were in danger in the Bespin system
Although Luke’s training with Yoda was brief,
he could not have learned from a better teacher.
One of the greatest practitioners of farsight during
the OId Republic era, Yoda's meditations often led
to visions that helped guide the Jedi on missions
throughout the galaxy. The following recording of
Yoda is from the Great Holocron:
often aiff
like searching for raindrops beneath the

ult to see, the future s,

surface of the water. But raindrops do
fall, and discerned in depths, they can
be. Fleeting can be visions of the future,
momentary glimpses of both the familiar
and the strange. More dangerous are clear
visions, as easy it is to confuse clarity with
truth. Truth can be murky, and crucial is
perspective to any vision.

See you do from the right angle at the
wrong thing, or from the wrong angle at
the right thing? No perspective is fixed.




Frequently am | asked if inevitable
s the future. Do visions reveal what may
be or what will be? Know you will when a
vision is what will be. Feel it by the Force
you will. Know you will whether to chase
raindrops before they fall or remain where
you are. Stay where you are, and move you

will anyway. Always in motion is the future.
Yoda was also renowned for his sense of
nger
in time to avert an immediate threat or take evasive

action.

precognition, which alerted him to extreme

PSYCHOMETRY

Alithough psychometric talents are limited to

a small number of species, and not something
inherent in Jedi, there are members of these
species who also possess Force powers. Thus
these individuals have psychometric ~abilities
that are naturally enhanced through the Force.

s the ability to “read” inanimate

ts psionically, to perceive past events by

gathering the tenuous psychic imprints left by
iving hands. The received perspective is the same
as the perspective of the object’s original wielder,
and a skiled Jedi can also gain an impression of
the wielder’s emotions in regard to specific events
One of the most accomplished psychometrics was
the Jedi Quinlan Vos of Kiffu.

Although the twin planets Kiffu and Kiffex had
f the Old Republic for thousands of
vears, they were protected by not only the Jedi but

been part

also the Kiffar Guardians, whose commander was

e centuries, members
sition of Sheyf. Several
ut the
n ability
was Quinlan Vos, second cousin of Sheyf Kurlin

known as the Sheyf. For

of the Clan Vos held the

Guardians had ~psychometric ~talent,

one who possessed the highest know

Vos. The Jedi Master Tholme, Watchman of the

sector that included Kiffu and Kiffex, discovered

Quinlan's strong affinity to the Force and was
granted permission to train him, but because of
Quinlan's heritage and potential as a Guardian,

Clan Vos insisted that Quinlan's Jedi training

would be conducted on Kiffu. A
s decisi
Padawan, but evidently few Jedi knew why Clan

+ several years,

to take Quinlan as his

Vos agreed to allow Quinian to leave Kiffu. In the
vear 285,
Jedi Master, Tholme made the following recording,

shortly before Quinian Vos became a

presented here because it sheds light on

dangerous aspects of psychometry:

Recently. Quinlan Vos has overcome

memory and been restored
to the Jedi Order. He has also saved
Coruscant from the Witches of Dathomir
recovered

is Padawan Aayla Secura from

abductors, and defeated the Dark Jedi
Volfe Karkko. Though | believe that these




accomplishments more than sufficiently
qualify Quinlan to be granted the position
of Jedi Master, | am aware that some
members of the Council have always had
misgivings about my training Quinlan, not
only because he was already a toddler
when | first detected his high midi-chiorian
level, but also because—at the request of
his clan—the initial training was conducted
on Kiffu, not Coruscant. For anyone who
ever questioned my reasons for taking him
as my Padawan, I urge you to consider
certain details of his history.

You will recall that Quinlan's parents
were Guardians, and also direct relations
of Sheyf Kurlin Vos and his sister Tinte Vos.
Several years into his training, Quinlan's
parents were found dead within their
starship on the surface of Kiffex, the worid
that contains the prison colonies overseen

by the Guardians. There were no marks on
their bodies, and no cause of death could be
determined. Unfortunately, | was occupied
with another assignment, and was unable to
return to Kiffu until three ays later. Shortly
afterward, I lay down my Watchman duties
and took Quinlan as my Padawan.

1 confess there is more to the story,
but the details are not on any of the official
records because, for Quinlan's sake, omitted
them. Before my return to Kiffu, Tinte Vos—
without the consent of her brother—had
forced Quinlan to hold an emblem that his
mother had been wearing when she died.
Tinte Vos told him it was the only way to
find out what killed his parents. What she
dlidin't tell him is that eath experiences are
very vivid, and that touching such objects
can be hazardous to psychometrics.

By holding his mother's emblem,
Quinlan learned that his parents had
intercepteda ship of Anzatiwho were trying
to land on Kiffex. His parents attempted to
arrest the Anzati, but despite their Guardian
training they were unable to overcome an
attack from the thirsty beings. The shock
of seeing the Anzati feast on his parents’
essence was beyond overwhelming.

By the time | found Quinlan, he'd been
Screaming for three days. It wasn't until |
used Jedi healing techniques that | knew
that we could draw his mind back from his
mother's grave. The boy was shattered, and
Sheyf Kurlin was appalied by what hs sister
had done. When | told the Sheyf that only
Jed training would enable the boy to face
and master his newly and deeply instilled
fear of the Anzati, he readily agreed to
allow me to bring Quinlan to Coruscant.

Quinlan was my first Padawan. Though
I was sometimes at a loss to advise him on
the best use of his psychometric talents, |
did teach him to be a Jedi. I taught him




to carry the light within him. If one senses

a darkness about Quinlan, remember his

experience as a child, but trust that I also

trained him how to walk in shadows.

Although corpses are essentially objects
without sentience, neither Guardians nor Jedi
encourage or approve the use of psychometry on
the dead. Death experiences are extremely intense;
by touching a corpse, a psychometric’s own mind
can become trapped, possibly causing him or her
to follow the subject into death.

FORCE
CAMOUFLAGE

Severairecordings rom the Great Holocron cite
power known as Force camoufiage, which renders
2 Force-user nvisible o others. Although specific
nstructions and nsights have yetto be iscovered
tseems Force camouflage manipuiates ight a vl
a5 sound waves around a Jedi, Athough this abilty
would be useful on missions requring sealth, it
aiso demands a reater degree of concentration
and energy expenditure than powers such 35
aiter mind, a kil that also enables Jedi to evade
enemmies. Records ndicatethat four thousand years
before the riseof the Galacic Empire, aJedi named
Jubani~a felne Cathar with natural camoufiaging
ability—was especialy siled with this powe,

BATTLEMIND

A retatvely obscure power, batieming augments
Jedi morsle and fighting abiltes by enhancing
concentration and commitment, Jeci Master Mace
Windu utized battlemind in combination vith
other skisto exercise Vaapad, which Old Republic
records indicate s the most chalienging and

demanding form of lightsaber combat.

BATTLE
MEDITATION

Tovouoh theie sty of the Force, ancient Jeci
learnecto nfiuence bttles by envisioning a desied
outcome: opposingfactions would ind themseives
compelectolowertheirweapons,oronesidewould
be given courage and strength whi the oher was
sapped ofts willo fight,Using thir sils n batle
meditation, powerful Jedi have demonstrated the
abiltyto controlentie armies and fleets,directing
them to do their biding. According to the Great
Holocron, Jed Masters Thon, Arca Jeth, and Nomi
Sunrider al exceled n this techniave. During
the Clone Wars, the Jedi Master Oppo Rancisis
employed Jedi batle meditation to subtly ater the
will of opposing forces, shifting the odds i favor
of the Repusiic

Luke Skywalker discovered a book about Jedi
battle meditation in the ruins of the Jed lirary
on Ossus. Written in an arcane language, the
book was transiated by the protocol croid C-370,

@)
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B teiepatricaty inking ther mings together
Jedi can craw on one anathers strength for
Support, ntially refrre to s Force-meld o Jedi
meld the power became most commonly known
o batle-meld because o it more frequent use
in combat. Battie-meld permits »group of Je to
become stronger than if each stood alone, whie
50 ensbing them to communicate with one
another troush the orce. Using  combinatio of
the group's minds and perceptions,each ndvicel
Jedi ans a sense of the entie batte arens,
heling them to btter discern where to move
tactical slments and when t press a attack, hold
back.orwithcaw, By nartowing is o her focus, 2
Jedi can siso sense the istinct personaites and
fealings o the indiduals who ke up the meld

Althoush earler Jedi may very wel have
iizetths power,t was fourteen-year-oid Anakin
Solo who introduced t 1o the new Jedi Order
uring the evacuation of Dubrilion, e of the frst
New Republic worlds £ fall o the Yuuzhan Von,
Shorty afer the evacuation, Jaina Solo recalled
herbrothersactions:

experienced was a fluke. If enough Jedi
can learn to embrace the Force together
a5 my brothers and | did, | believe this
power might be our best weapon against

the invaders.
should know about this.

After we realized the invaders had Indeed, the battle-meld was an advantage the
targeted Dubrillion, everything happened enemy couldn't match. The Jedi utilized the power
pretty fast. Anakin, Jacen, and I were with great success during the Yuuzhan Vong War,
piloting Lando’s TIE fighters, fiying surface including at the Second Battle of Duro, which ended
patrol and doing our best to keep incoming ina nearly bloodless victory for the New Republic.
shios away from friendlies. My tracking Generally, battle-meld requires more than three
Screen was already glowing red from the Jedi to be particularly effective, but three can be

sheer number of enemy fighters when sufficient if the Jedi are well attuned to one another




already. The presence of a single additional Jedi
greatly increases the power of the meld, but if the
individuals aren'tin complete agreement, the meld
can swiftly fall apart

Near the end of the war with the Yuuzhan
Vong, Luke Skywalker noted that the strength of
his battle-meld with Jaina and Jacen Solo was such
that the three might have been sharing the same.
mind, and that mind was the Force itself.

MALACIA

The asii keimsan Holocron and the reat
Holocron information abou. the Force
techniaue called Malacia, by which a Jed

reveal
turns
an opponent's equilibrium against him or her,
causing extreme dizziness and nausea without any.
permanent effects. It seems that this ability was
seldom used by Jedi of the Old Republic, as most
found it easier to employ affect mind or a simple

Force push to achieve similar results, but Malacia’s
proponents regarded it as a powerful defense. The

Jedi Master Oppo Rancisis was a master of Malacia
and taught the techniaue to a small number of his
peers. According to Master Rancisis:

The Force can be used in many ways
to subalue an opponent, but the principal
quality of Malacia is that the Jedi achieves it
notby expending energy but by transforming
the energy of the target. Crtics aways note
that Malacia s limitedto organic opponents,
but there are many situations where it is
preferable to other means.

Imagine a sentry guarding a post that
youmustbypass. Thesentrymay bestanding
still, bt his mindis alert and his systems are
functioning. Everything is in motion. Blood
flows, muscles tense, food is dligested, and
atmospheric gases are inhaled and exhaled
All that motion is enough to make him
dizzy and ueasy, and by focusing on the
flow of blood, you can make that happen.
The sentry will be so overwhelmed that he
s completely disabled, yet will suffer no
permanent side effects.

Now imagine a gang of murderous
warriors running toward an intended victim
when they are suddenly sickened by their
own movements. Robbed of their sense
of balance and unable to proceed, the
warriors collapse, clutching at the ground
asif they might fal from it. There are some
Jedi Masters who have contended that
such brutes may benefit from Malacia, as
it serves to remind them that they are—like
their prey~mere mortals

Molacia requires a direct line of
sight between the Jedi and the targets,
i the
targets begin to retch, you may want to

regardiess of distance. However,

briefly avert your gaze, s this is almost
always unpleasant to watch.
According to the Great Holocron, Master
Rancisis was killed by the former Jedi Master Sora




Bula, who had abandoned the Order and allied
with the Confederacy of Independent Systems
during the Clone Wars. Soon afterward, Bulg died
in a duel with Guinlan Vos.

SEVER FORCE

A powertu seci can biock a Force-user's access
to the Force, preventing him or her from using
Force skills or Force feats. The Jedi Nomi Sunrider,
who served with Ulic Gel-Droma before he became
a Sith Lord, used the skill known as sever Force
to strip Ulic Gel-Droma of his powers, leaving
him essentially blind to the Force. Nomi Sunrider
learned of this power from the Jedi Master Odan-
Urr, who speaks of it via the Tedryn Holocron:

When you feel the dark side energies
turned against you, you must use your
Jed abilities to take power away from an
opponent, rather than to inflict harm. This
technique blinds your enemy to the Force
with a wall of light, a permanent blockage
if you so choose, rendering him unable to
use Jedi powers. It s difficult. And it is the
most devastating attack possible using the
powers of the light side. To block a Jed
from the Force—even a Dark Jediis a
terrible thing.

BEAST LANGUAGE

T Force can enable ane to communicate with
various nonsentient creatures—inclucing herd
animals,predators, and scavengers—in a language
they understanc. Because nonsentients rarely have
true languages. the Jedi is actually reading the
iffernces in suface emotions withn grunts and
growis and cues of body anguage.

The power is relatively easy to employ if
the animal s already domestcated or naturally




frendiy, and becomes increasingly challenging if
a beast is wid and predatory. Communication is
most effctive when the messages or commands
are simp and convey tha the animal should trust
the Jet: Don' e arai. | won' harm you. Willyou
carry me? More inteligent creatures are sometimes
capabe of following more complex instructions
(reet me_here when.the moon s highy and
auestions (Can you helo me find my destnation?),
A Force-user cannot converse with creatures that
do ot normally communicate, such as microbes
and othersimple organisms,
MORICHRO
A forbisden Jeai techniaue, Morichro works in
o way simir o  Force trance. It slows down a
being's matabolism, breathing, and heart rat (or
similr bioogical systems). Unilke a Force trance
Morichro can be used o affect beings other than
the Jedi employing the techniaue;  targeted!
sublect can be rendered unconscious or  speciic
orindeinite period

The Jedi Maste Yaddle was one of the most
prominent practtoners of Morchro. While head
of the Librarans’ Assembly of the Jeci Temple,
Yoddie made the following recording for the Great
Holocron:

Learned of Morchro from a single
source I di not. Barely hintetat 1 tree
holocrons . Partlly descrived over
many ancient scrols and tomes it was,
Used by Jecfong ago, Morchro was, Used,
foridden, and forgotten

A Force technique, it is. The body
functons of targets it rapcly siows, Most

or starvation, can an untended target.

Realized this, the ancient Jed dic,

Much research into history, | have done.
Known to use this technique, dark side
Force-users are not. Not malevolent is
Morichro. To master Morichro, less mal-
evolent uses of the Force must a student
master first.

Although the Jedi Council of the Old Republic
apparently allowed Yaddle to teach some Jedi
students about Morichro, the Council ultimately
forbade its use because abuse of the technique
could prove fatal. It is not known whether any of
her students ever actually used Morichro. Four
years prior to the Clone Wars, Yaddle died on a
mission to the world of Mawan.

FORCE LIGHTNING

At the gattie of Geonoss, the renegad Count
Dooku revesed the ful measure of isdark nture
when e cast iightaing from his fingetis. in
on attack on the Jedi who pursusd him. Years
late, Emperor Palpatne uleashed this same
power on Luke Skywalker during the Batti of
Endor. Although the Jeci were long aware of Force
lightning a purely offensive power that often
appesied to those who had embraced the dark
sice, t was 50 lon associatad with the Sith that
wasoften reerre o 2 Sithlghring.

Force lghtring causes _excruciating pain
o5t weakens an incviduals Ife, and is nearly
impossble to defiect. Because of the power's
Gbvious negative aspects, it is no vionder various
Jedi Orders forbade its use. However,some Jedi

effective for . this s,

Vet dangerous, too. Constantly moni-
tored, a target must be. Fall to reverse the
Process, should the Jedi, and indefinite, the
‘unconsciousness can be. Die of dehydration

have refused to dismiss or suppress
what they considered to be a natural asset to their
arsenal of powers. Before his appointment to the
Jedi Council, the Jedi Master Plo Koon left the
following record on the Great Holocron:







TR e s N

At the request of the Jedi Council,
1 submit this report of my actions on the
mission to Metellos, specifically my use of
Force lightning.

Id been tracking Dreed Pommel for
five days across space before I found him
on Metellos. Pommel had taken refuge in
an executive suite within the floating city
of Ektra. Despite my efforts at stealth,
Pommel was somehow alerted to my
approach, for when | entered the suite he
was already clutching a female human child
and holding a blaster to her head

The suite was spacious, and | was
separated from Pommel by a distance of
fifteen meters. Keeping his eyes on me,
Pommel began puling the crying giri—I
estimated her to be five years old—out
through  wide doorway, beyond which |
could see a small ship that rested on the
suite's private landing pac. Obviously. his
intent was to escape, and he considered the.
hill his insurance. I had o reason to doubt.
that he would ultimately il her, even if |
allowed them to board the escape vessel,
for I could see what he'd done to the girl's
parents and two siblings, whose bodies lay
upon the floor of the inner suite.

In hindsight, there were many possible
tactics | might have employed to apprehend
Pommel and rescue the child, but I did not
consider any options or calculate angles of
attack as | watched him orag her toward
the ship. | believe | acted entirely instinc-
tively when | extended my right arm toward
Pommel and released a barrage of lightning.

after the death of Master Tyvokka, but | did
not let loose with Force lightning the way
undisciplined beings might release stress.
Like other Jed, | learned of Force lightning

it is regarded as a dark side power. | never
had any special interest in Force lightning,
or felt compelled to experiment with it, but
1 knew it was—at least in me—an innate
abilty. | i not feel anger as I directed the
lightning at Pommel's head, nor did | fear
for the girl's safety. 1 was calm and in control
of my faculties. I merely acted to end the
situation before any more innocents dlied.

Upon being struck by the first bolt,
Pommel reacted as anticioated as the
shock seized his system. His arms flew out
and away from his body, releasing both
the blaster and the child, who fell to the
landing pad. A second bolt ensured that
Pommel would remain unconscious until
the local authorities arrived. | was never
tempted to deal a killing blow.

Upon my return from Metellos, my
use of Force lightning was included in my
report to the Council. | maintained that |
dlid not embrace the dark side when | used
this ability, and that | acted by the will of
the Force.

1 appreciate the Council's concern with
my report. I have not forgotten that it was
Master Tyvokka's last wish that | join the
Council. I also acknowledge the Council's
observation that the Force runs strong in
my family. My uncle was a Jedi Knight, as
is my niece Sha Koon. Whille Kel Dors like
ourselves have a reputation for seeing moral
ssues in black and white, | urge the Council
to disregard my family in this situation, for |
‘alone am responsibe for my actions.

The Council asked me to contemplate
whether | would hesitate to use Force
lightning again, and whether | was wrong
to employ it on Metellos. Atter much med-
tation, I believe it would be wrong of me.
to ignore this power that | might develop.
into a useful technique for combat. As for

at the Jedii Temple,

touse i, | believe the




only person who can rightully answer that

question s a five-year-old girl. Her name is

Claria Labreezle, and she has been placed

with relatives at Stratablock 7 on Metellos.

May the Force be with us al.

Plo Koon was not only appointed to the Jedi
Council but apparently succeeded in perfecting
the technique that he called Electric Judgment.
Old Republic records from the Clone Wars place
Plo Koon at Cato Neimoidia, where it is believed he
was killed during the Jedi Purge.

‘guess | hoped the flames would somehow
iberate him.

As 1 joined my friends at the victory
celebration, apparitions of Obi-Wan and
Yoda appeared before me. Because of my
previous encounters with Obi-Wan’s spirit
at Yavin, Hoth, and Dagobah, | was aware
that his spirit could travel across space, 5o
I wasn't surprised to see them so much as |
was glad they had endured.

Then a third apparition appeared that
I recognized as my father. | cannot express

ke

[JEDI SPIRITS |

Desote ther powers, even the most powertl
of Jedi eventually e, For mos,death s a release
from their physical forms, and llows them to jon
the totaity of the Force. However, encounters
with Jedi apparitions indicte that some Jedi
have learned how to maintai thelr centites even
aterdesth, 50 that they linger t th edgss o the
hysical word ofth Iving s Force soirts,
Althoush these spirs can communicate with
the Ining, the method by which they become
spirs has never been documented, and is not
Compltely understood, Being a Jed does not
Seem to guarantee one’s abilty to remateriaize,
and it s oy assumed tha the traniton camnot
be achieved accidentaly, but rather by some
Gelbeate effort or knowledge.In some cases, the
Jecs body demateriaizes upn death, but not
Simays. According to Luke Skywalkr in aecording
e made shortyafer founcing the Je academy:
atter myfathr oed on the Death tar
his bocly vanished. | brought his armor,
and is mechanical remains to Encor and

and smiling.

There are many old stories in which
a Jedi becomes one with the Force but it
Seems this phrase could be interpreted as
2 Jedi euphemism for “Gying," as the tales
seldom indicated whether a Jedis corpse
actually vanished.

Tionne was able to find numerous
records of Jed that corroborated the fact
that 1 was not the first to witness a Jedi's
transition to spiritual form. Two accounts
were recorded by the ancient Jedi Nomi
Sunrider, who saw the spirit of her husband,
the Jedi Knight Andur Sunrider, moments
after he was slain by an underworld gang.
Years later; she saw the physical body of
the mortally wounded Uiic Qel-Droma—ike
my father, a former Jedi and reformed Sith
Lord—disappear on the planet Rhen Var
after he'd redeemed himself to the Jed,
vet there is no mention that he reappeared
in spiritual form.

Evidently, the ancient Jedi did not
regard such spirits as remarkable or
accidental occurences, which suggests that

burned them. thing
to do. Maybe the best thing. The idea of
burial just felt wrong. | could only imagine
what it must have been like for him, trapped.
within that armor for so many years, and I

death, but it seems that this knowledge
became lost or forgotten, possibly more
than three thousand years ago. Although
‘some texts indicate that only Jedi Masters
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could achieve this transition, exceptions
such as Jedi Knights Andlur Sunrider and

Anakin Skywalker indicate that a Force-

user's title is not so significant. For now,

1 can only assume that the survival of &

Jedl's consciousness beyond death may

have something to do with training, as well

as with the will of the Force, or with the

individual's openness to the Force.

The ability to transcend death is not exclusive to
Jedi: Emperor Palpatine and the ancient Sith Lords.
Marka Ragnos and Exar Kun managed to preserve
their psyches after their deaths, but it seems their
spiritual forms were restricted by certain boundaries.
and limitations. Palpatine’s spirit required clone
bodies to manifest his powers; Marka Ragnos's and
Exar Kun's spirits were essentially trapped within
Sith-engineered temples for thousands of years.

DETECTING JEDI |

POWERS

Prior 1o the reciscovery that potental Force-
users can be detected by a biood test for mick

chiorians, Luke Skywalker—while ~training

his.

sister Leia Organa Solo in the ways of the Force—
stumbled upon a different method for naturally
detecting Force-users. He explained this method
in a recording made at the former Jedi academy

on Yavin 4
1 was working with Leia on developing

her control of the Force, testing her ability

to invoke her inner defenses by using the
Force to probe her mind. At first, | touched

Although
not able to cause more havoc on Yavin 4, the Jedi
Corran Horn offered the following theory:
The only vaguely positive explanation

for Exar Kun's dormancy that | could come.

up with was that his effort to draw the Sun

Crusher from Yavin and to down Luke had

tired him out. I had no way to determine

how powerful Exar Kun could be, but it

Struck me as possible that he'd expended

a lot of energy to defeat a Jedi Master

During the Jedi academy’s battle with the
spirit of Exar Kun, an apparition of Jedi Master
Vodo-Siosk Baas—who was slain by Exar Kun on
Coruscant—materialized on Yavin 4 and aided the
Jedi in bringing an end to the ancient Sith Lord,
Given that an earlier effort to materialize might
have thwarted Exar Kun from endangering the
Jedi in the first place, it is a mystery why Vodo-
Siosk Baas appeared when he did. One can only
surmise whether he sought or found closure in
witnessing the final downfall of his own killer, but

mind to
by surprise, but then I reached to the back
of her consciousness, to an area of deep
primal memories. Her thoughts were like a
map laidl out in front of me, and I doubted
that 1 could get any defensive reaction
there. So I touched inward to an isolated

hat happened next is hard to
describe. It felt as if a giant invisible paim
had planted itself on my chest and shoved
me backward. | actually stumbled to keep
my balance. We were both surprised by
this, and we weren't even sure of what had
just happened, but we decided to try it
again. We got the same result. Suspecting
the reaction was an instinctive reflex, |
encouraged Leia to seek and find the same.
area at the back of my own mind Without
any conscious effort on my part, Leia was
knocked off her feet and landed in a chair.

1 need to try this on other people, but

Sith counterparts—can endure for many millennia.

f the reaction is a reflex, it could be a very.
us

latent Jedi powers.




wielder; it is this protective “shield"—an involuntary
defense mechanism maintained by every Force-

sensitive being—that pushes violently back at an

ntruder. Some Jedi also learned to anticipate ar

occasionally resist the reflexive “push that results

of detection s not as scientifically

hiorian count, it has proven a
techniue.

THE FORCE AS

A SOURCE OF
ENERGY

Trvougn meditation and by remaining caim

to enhance their abilties. In
diametrical fashion, the Sith embrace anger to
draw power from the dark side, and also utilize this

energy to enhance both vehicles and weapons.

and that this energy sometimes lingers in places
where the Jedi and Sith have fought

Althoughthe Force exists everywhere and within
allliving things, certain artfacts have demonstrated
the ability to augment it. One such artifact s the
Kaiburr crystal of the planet Circarpous V, locally




known as Mimban. According to an ancient myth,
the god Pomojema, a minor deity of Mimban, used
the Kaiburr crystal to heal the wounded. In the year
2 a8, Luke Skywalker and Leia Organa became
stranded on Mimban and met a self-proclaimed
“master of the Force” named Halla, who had spent
seven years searching for the crystal. Together they
found the crystal in the jungle Temple of Pomojema.
Thirty-three years after her visit to Mimban, Leia
‘OrganaSoloremembered the occasioninarecording
‘made during her induction as a Jedi Knight:
According to Master Saba, I am now

a full Jedi Knight. I first constructed a

lightsaber more than twenty years ago,

but Master Saba did not need to convince

me that my skills needed improvement.

However, because she so graciously re-

lieved me of that weapon, | was compelled

to make a new one. Although it only took me

a few days, it has a history I like to share.

Two years after the Battle of Yavin,

Luke and 1. well, we took a wrong turn

and wound up on the swamp. planet

Mimban. There we met a woman named

Halla, who showed us what appeared to be

a splinter of red glass that she claimed was

a fragment of the Kaiburr crystal. The first

time L back

idea of our true lineage at the time of this
encounter. | was unaware that | possessed
any Force powers, and our proximity to the.
crystal didnothing to trigger any insights to
our relationship with each other or Vader.
I'm certain Vader had no idea he was my
father, and if he had any inkling that Luke
was his son, he didn't mention it. He was
t00 busy trying to ill us both.

Everything happened so fast. After
Vader struck down Luke, | took Luke's
lightsaber and...Im afraid I didn't ac-

breathing. Incredible as it sounds, Luke
used the crystal to revive me and heal my.
wounds as well as his own. As for Vader,
Luke told me he'd fallen into a crumbling
weil in the temple’s fioor

We left Mimban with the crystal, and
so0n found that its powers decreased in
direct proportion to its distance from the
temple. Returning it to Mimban was out of
the question, as it would have inevitably
become the target of thieves or, worse,
been claimed by the Empire. Except for its
history, it seemed relatively useless, and
over the years I almost forgot about the

his arm as if he'd touched a live current. He
said that the crystal caused sensations to

Eventually. Luke used the crystal as
a training aid for students. He did some

weren't felt so much as experienced. The
fragment increased one’s perception of
the Force, and apparently magnified and
clarified in proportion to size and density.
Luke believed that anyone in possession of
the entire crystal would have such a lock on
the Force that he or she could accomplish
almost anything. Unfortunately, by the
time we found the crystal in the Temple of
Pomojema, Darth Vader had found us.
Keep in mind that Luke and | had no

‘gem could be used as focusing crystals for
lightsabers. He said he found the resulting
blade to be remarkably energy-efficient
and strong. 1 remembered this when Master
Saba advised me to build a new weapon.

1 must say that my new lightsaber is a
significant improvement on my oldl one. But
more than that, | feel more connected to
this weapon because it carries a part of my
history. A long time ago, Luke and I were
saved by the Kaiburr crystal, Although | am
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prepared to activate my lightsaber in the
line of duty, it is my hope to employ the
erystal so that it continues to save lives, not

Also known to enhance Force powers a

artusian crystals from the mines of the planet Artus
Prime. In 12 s, the ex-Jedi-student Desann used
alchemy in combination with

. rtusian crystals
to artificially i

/e human youths with the Force.
However, it seems that Desann's knowledge of the
Sith was limited to data provided by Lord Hethrir,a
former Imperial Procurator of Justice who led the
radical movement that he called the Empire Reborn.
Aided by Luke Skywalker and Lando Calrissian, Kyle
Katarn defeated Desann and his "R

During the Sith War in 3996 e.a

Exar Kun constructed the superweapon known as

Sith Lord

the Dark Reaper. The Dark Reaper was powered by
e For

Harvester, which was capable of drawing
in the life energies of thousands of combatants
within a limited range of kilometers. Exar Kun's

lieutenant Ulic Qel-Droma unleashed the Dark

Reaper against hundreds of Republic troops on the
outpost world of Raxus Prime, but before Ulic coul
deliver the weapon to Coruscant, he was defeated
and captured by Republic forces. Eventually, the
Dark Reaper's parts became scat

tered on various
planets, and the Force Harvester was buried o
Raxus Prime. During the Clone Wars, Count Dooku
unearthed the Force Harvester and used it on Mon

Calamari, Bakura, and Agamar. Dooku attempted

to assemble the Dark Reaper on the planet Thule,
but Anakin Skywalker destroyed the superw

eapon
before it could be

operly deployed.
Ten years prior to the Clone Wars, the Sith Lord
Darth Maul piloted a unique starship to the planet
Naboo, and at least one record suggests that the
ship may have been imb

with the power of
the dark side. The following recording was made
by Jedi Master Saesee Tiin, a member of the Jed:
Council who was called in to secure the ship after
d down the R
engineers who discovered it on Naboo:

ts automated weapons gunn«

public

Greet

ngs, Master Yoda. The v




that delivered the Sith Lord to Naboo has
been secured. It does not surprise me that
the ship was designed to kill intruders, but
given its contents, it seems strange that it
did not self-destruct when its owner failed
to return.

The ship's exterior bears a striking
resemblence to an experimental Sienar
Design Systems armed star courier, but
every aspect of the vessel i either heavily
modified or prototypical. It is equipped
with a built-in cloaking device, and I've
confirmed that the device is fueled by
stygium crystals. Various weapons and
devices indlicate Sith technology.

All the ship’s records have been wiped
clean. 1 have found nothing to identify
the Sith Lord slain by Obi-Wan. Although
1 have disabled the ship's weapons, | am
compelled to say that it still poses a great
danger; and | recommend that this vessel
be placed in the Jedi Council's care.

That ship is alive with the dark sice,
Master Yoda. I can feel it clinging to my

decimated the Rakatan species; the surviving
Rakata devolved into barbarism and eventually
forgot how to operate their own technology. After
lingering unoccupied and unused for more than
twenty millenniain orbit of the Rakatan homeworld,
Rakata Prime, the Star Forge was discovered during
the Second Sith War by the Sith Lords Darth Revan
and Darth Malak. Having learned of the Star Forge's
existence from ancient Sith sources, the Sith Lords
revived the station and used captive Jedi to fuel the
station's dark side power. Fortunately, the Republic:
was ultimately able to defeat the Sith Lords and
destroy the Star Forge.

FORCE
ANOMALIES

Anthropotogists an sencbiologists have iden
tfied varous Ife-forms that have unique and
unusual connections with the Force. Among the
mostdeadlyof hese creatures wre theterentatec,

robes. And worse, . calling
me back with promises of fantastic journeys
to the far reaches of the galaxy.

Despite Master Tiin's recommendations, Maul's
ship—eventually identified as a Sith Infiltrator
dubbed Scimitar—disappeared whie being trans-

the size of a rancor and fed on Force-strong blood.
During the Sith War, Exar Kun bred these beasts
a5 “Jed killers" and distributed them on numerous
worlds. Because a single terentatek was a match
for an entire squad of Jedi, the extermination of
terentateks was the Order’s highest priority in

ported to a Kuat Drive Yards facility. The ship's
remains unknown.

‘The Jedi and Sith are not the only beings who
have used the power of the Force as a source of
eneray. As already noted, the ancient Rakata rel
upon Force-powered technology to conquer many
worlds. Their most incredible achievement was the
Star Forge, a space station that used raw stellar
material to build anything its creators desired.
Infused with the power of the dark side, the Star
Forge was used to mass-produce weapons, droids,

i

War. This
iragon quest” became known as the Great Hunt,
and led to what is believed to be the extinction of

are  salamander-iike,  nonsentient
creatures native to the planet Myrkr. Sessile,
arboreal, and equipped with strong claws that draw.
nutrients from Myrkr's mineral-rich trees, they cling
to their branches with such tenacity that special
knowledge is required to remove them without
killng them. The ysalamiri's most remarkable
is its ability to create a "bubble” in




which the Force cannot exist. More specifically, the
Force cannot be manipulated within such a bubble,
which can extend up to ten meters in radius from
a single ysalamiri. In groups of ysalamiri, such
bubbles can extend and overlap, resulting in vast
areas in which the Force cannot be used on Myrkr.

Talon Karrde, the founder of the Smugglers
Alliance, was based on Myrkr when Grand Admiral
Thrawn came to acquire ysalamiri, which Thrawn
then used to protect himself from Force-users. To
prevent the ysalamiri from dying after they were
removed from the trees and to allow for their use
a5 a mobile means of defense against Force-users,
Imperial engineers fashioned special nutrient-
infused pipe frames that could be worn on the
backs of individuals.

The ysalamiri' incredible ability to disable or
“push back” the Force is part of a natural defensive
mechanism that protects them from another

indigenous species on Myrkr, the Force-sensitive
pack animals called vornskrs. Cunning predators,
vornskrs are fur-covered canine animals with sharp
teeth and poison-coated, whip-like tails. Their
attunement to the Force seems to be tied directly
to their hunting instincts, as they are naturally able
to detect Force-users, and also use this ability to
hunt ysalamiri. They regard any Force-user as prey.
and will not hesitate to attack Jedi.

In an article submitted to Galactic Zoology
Monthly, Karrde offered a concise account of how
he domesticated two vornskrs and trained them
to serve as his own guard animals. According to
Karrde, vornskrs are good company as long as one
removes their tails, keeps them well fed, and plays
with them regularly. Karrde discouraged inviting
Jedi friends over for dinner.

The Yuuzhan Vong are themselves an anomaly
in the way they seem to exist apart from the
Force, possibly as an ancient consequence of their
warfaring heritage. The Yuuzhan Vong genetically
engineered vornskr stock to create a new creature,
the six-legged voxyn, which was designed to
hunt and Kill Jedi. Voxyn retained the vornskr's
venomous barbed tail but also had sharper,
stronger claws and acid-spitting glands. Several
Jedi were killed by voxyn before Anakin Solo led a
strike team to destroy the voxyn genetic template
on Baanu Rass, a Yuuzhan Vong worldship in orbit
of Myrkr. Tragically, this was Anakin's final mission,
for he sacrificed himself so that his team could live,
allowing them to destroy the voxyn queen.

Possibly the most bizarre Force anomaly is the
taozin, a gigantic, translucent invertebrate that can
evade efforts to be detected or located through
the Force. Native to the jungle moon of Va'art
near the Roche asteroid field, the taozin spews an

adhesive substance from its mouth to trap its prey,
and it can easily devour a full-grown human. ts
flesh is permeated with tiny, crystalline structures
that actually diffuse light energy, which makes the
creature invulnerable to most blaster weapons and
lightsabers. When hit by a lightsaber, the taozin's




body sends the energy “splashing” outward in all
directions. Because the taozinis effectively invisible
to the Force, the creature is especially dangerous
to Jed.

Force sensitivity was also found recently in
some types of Killk, the sentient insectoid species
that inhabited Alderaan many millennia before the
arrival of human colonists. Kiliks have a pheremonal
telepathic connection to one another, and their
society is centered on a hive-mind that makes
Killik groups act as an individual. Their telepathic
connection can extend to

er species, including
the result that these "Joiners'
Iose their independent will when they are absorbed
into the hive-mind. However, Killk Force abilties
e due primarily to the absorption of three Force-
sensitives in 27

non-insectoids, wit

ax. The Force-sensitives were the
Nightsister Lomi Plo, her apprentice Welk, and
Jedi Apprentice Raynar Thul, who escaped from
Myrkr during the Yuuzhan Vong War. After being

orbed by the Killks, the transformed Force-
sensitives introduced the species to the Galactic
Alliance in 35 .., and fought their former alies
in the conflict that became known as the Swarm
War. Of the trio, only Raynar Thul survived he is
the subject of ongoir

habilitation at the Jed

praxeum on Ossus. By the end of the Swarm War,
the Killiks began to revert to their natural state.
Both Hutts and Toydarians possess varying
a
immune to Jedi mind tricks. In an event from
year 4 s
legend. Luke Skywalker found himself unable to

s of mental strength that can make them

that has since become the stuff of

mentally persuade Jabba the Hutt to release Rebel
prisoners, and had to resort to a backup plan.

A personal log of Darth Vader, recovered from
his fortress on Viun, revealed Vader's disturbing

was a relatively benevolent master, itis conceivable
that Vader's memories of Watto were unfavorable.
Furthermore, the identity of the “Toydarian subject
mentioned in Vader's recording remains unknown,
but records from Tatooine preclude the possibility
that it was

s have become such an
irmitation that every time | see one | want to
strike it down with

ightsaber. Be that
as it may, |

terviewed a Toydarian subject
who showed a great amount of resistance
to Force suggestion, up to the p
createdpt

int that |

wysical discomfort. I found that they

Toydarians. o
that Vader's disposition may have been influenced
by Anakin Skywalker's relationship to Watto, the
Toydarian junk dealer and slaver who was young
Anakin's on Tatooine. Although Shi
Skywalker's recovered journal suggests that Watto

of strength. And it proved relatively simple
to cause it to expire, merely by making its
uttimately
da great degree of willoower,

existence
thoughitsho
it was no match for the power of the Force.

extremely  painful

©




It has already been noted that members of the
Halcyon Jedi bioodiine inherited the inabilty to use
the Force to perform telekinetic feats. Dating back
thousands of years, this trait was often mi

for a weakness, but the Halcyon Jedi 5o
excelled in other areas of the Force that they easily
mpensated for this “flaw. The Jedi Master Corran
Horn is a direct descendant of Keiran Halcyon, 2
famed Jedi who played a key role inthe defeat of the
Afarathuterrorists on Corelliain 380a..v.Inresponse
to the suggestion that a Jedi was impaired by the
lack of telekinetic ability, Corran Horn's grandf:
the Jedi Master Nejaa Halcyon, reportedly quipped,
“The starship fles faster and hits harder when you
don't need to power up your shields.

JLIGHTSABERS

e tracitonsi weapon of the Jec, th ightsaver

is blade of pure energy that can

materials,with the exceptions o anatherighsaber

blade, achemically aterec metals used in ancient

Sith swords, and 3 small number of exotic alloys
Although  lighsaber

.t can easiy mel through thick

hrough most

such as cortosis. beam
radiates no he:
durasteel plating, and~—in skilled hands—deflect
It is widely considered the most
incredible weapon ever created,

Lightsaber blades operate on the complex
principle of tightly controlled arc-wave eneray,
while the pure energy
electromagnetically generated arc wave creates a

blaster bolts

blade has no mass, the

strong gyroscopic effect that makes the lightsaber
a distinct challenge to handle. Mastering it requires
alifetime of training. The Jedi Order's affinity for the
weapon is such that it was a long:
for a Jedi to construct a lightsaber before being
promoted to Jedi Knight. However, urgent situations
sometimes encouraged the Jedi Knights of the
Old Republic to issue prefabricated emergency
lightsabers. I other cases, lightsabers were handed
down from one generation of Jed to the next, or
gifted, as was Anakin Skywalker's ightsaber, which
Obi-Wan gave to Luke Skywalker

The close association of the Jed, the Force, and
he misconception that Jedi

tanding tradition

lightsabers has led
channel the Force through their weapons. Although
he Force through
lightsaber exercises and rely upon the Force to
eapons are not in any
way a direct link to the power of the Force.

There are
who served the Order without ever igniting their
lightsabers, but relatively few Jedi refused to carry
the weapon at all. According to Luke Skywalker:

Jedi can become more attuned to

construct lightsabers, the w

umerous documented cases of Jedi

The lightsaber is the weapon of a Jedi
Knight, though a true Jedi rarely uses it







to settle a dispute. It is better to outthink
and outmaneuver your opponent. But
when forced, a Jedi strikes quickly and
decisively. In peaceful times, the lightsaber
s only a symbol of the fight we wage
within ourselves—to keep us from taking
the wrong path.

LIGHTSABER
CONSTRUCTION
For centuries. the construction o 2 new

lightsaber was a rite of passage accompanied
by ritual ceremonies. On t

‘e planet llum, where
generations of Jedi went to build their lightsabers,
a lone Padawan was sometimes expected to
enter the Force-permeated crystal caves and not

emerge until his or her lightsaber was finished,

although Jedi Masters were also known to serve
a5 witnesses. While watching a Padawan complete
the lightsaber, a Jedi Master sometimes recited the
following words;

The crystal s the heart of the blade.
The heart is the crystal of the Jed
The Jedi is the crystal of the Force.
The Force is the blade of the heart.
Al are intertwined.
The crystal, the blade, the Jedi

You are one.

Twenty-three years after the Battle of Yavin,
Luke Skywalker instructed a small group of young
Jedi-including Jaina and Jacen Solo, Lowbacca,
Tenel Ka, and Raynar Thul—on the construction of
lightsabers. The following is an abridgement of his
presentation:

Youmay have heard about Jedi Masters

during the Clone Wars who were able to




fashion lightsabers in only a day or two,
using whatever raw materials were at hand.
But don't get the idea that your weapon
is & quick little project to be slapped to-
‘gether. Ideally, a Jedi took many months to
construct a single perfect weapon that he
or she would keep and use for a lifetime.
Once you buid it, the lightsaber wil
become your constant companion, your
tool, and a ready means of defense.

The components are fairly simple.
Every lightsaber has a standard power
source, the same type used in small
blasters, even in glow panels. They last a
long time, though, because Jedi should
rarely use their weapons.

One of the other crucial pieces is a
focusing crystal. The most powerful and
Sought-after gems are rare Kaiburr crystas.
However, though lightsabers are powerful
weapons, their design is so flexible that
practically any kind of crystal can be used.
And since | don't happen to have a stash of
Kaiburr crystals, you'll have to make do with
Something else of your own choosing.

ne of my students, Cilghal, a Mon
Calamari like Admiral Ackbar, made her
lightsaber with smooth curves and pro-
trusions, s if the handle had been grown
from metallic coral. Inside, she used a rare
Ultima-Pear, one of the treasures found in
the seabeds of her watery planet.

My first true failure as a teacher was
another student named Gantoris. He built
his lightsaber in only a few intense days,
following instructions given to him by the
evil spirit of Exar Kun. Gantoris thought he
was ready, and my mistake was not seeing
what he was up to.

You, my young Jedi Knights, must be
different. I can't wait any longer to train
you. You must learn how to build your
lightsabers—and how to use them—in the

right way. The galaxy has changed, and

you must meet the challenge. A true Jed s

forced to adapt o be destroyed.

14 like you to start on your lightsabers
immediately. But | hope you'll need to use
your weapon only rarely ... if ever
A standard lightsaber consists of a compact

handle—generally twenty-four to thirty centimeters.
long—with a diatium power cell and one to three
multifaceted crystals. Contrary to the popular
notion that a lightsaber blade's color changes to
match its wielder's personality, it is the crystals
that determine the blade's color. These crystals
also focus energy from the power source through
a concave disk atop the handle, resulting in a blade.
about a meter in length.

Only Force-users are capable of buiding
lightsabers, as it is by the Force that the power cell
is initally charged. There is no exact formula for
the crucial alignment of the irregular crystals, but
they must be aligned by hand or extremely precise
telekinesis, and builders are cautioned that the
slightest misalignment will cause the weapon to
detonate on activation. Documented attempts to
mechanize the assembly process were unsuccessful

Prior to the Battle of Ruusan, the Jedi used
crystals from many different sources, and ignited
lightsabers in every known hue, including purple,
‘orange, and gold. Toward the end of the Old Republic:
era, llum was the primary source of most crystals
used for lightsabers; this dramatically limited the
color range, as the crystals harvested from llum
produce only green or blue blades. Most sources
for lightsaber crystals were razed or quarantined
during the reign of Emperor Palpatine, but when the
New Republic was established following the Battle
of Endor, a number of crystal caches were regained.
Luke Skywalker and his followers have since drawn
from these caches to construct new lightsabers.

The exact connection between the Jedi and
certain crystals is not completely understood, but it
is known that a Jedi can enhance the properties of
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Afteral, as I read the instructions | came to
realize that the nature of the battery was.
ot as important as how it was integrated

more and more energy to flow into the
cell and throughout the weapon. | was not
certain how the changes were being made.

with the rest of

The core of the Jedi ritual for creating
a lightsaber came down to charging the
power cell that first time. My grandfather
ridiculed the popular superstition stating
a Jedi channeled the Force through his

charge it nitially andtie it to the rest of the.
weapon. The Jed, carefully manipulating
the Force, bound the components to-
gether—linking them on something more
than a mechanical or material level, 5o they
workedwithunimaginedefficiency. Without
this careful seasoning and conditioning of
the lightsaber, the blade would be flawed
and would fail the Jed.

After assembling the components, |
prepared to charge the power cell for the
very first time. With my finger poised on
the transformer button that would start the.
eneray flowing, | drew in a deep breath and
lowered myself into a trance. I knew that
manipulating matter sufficiently to meld
the part and forge the weapon would have
been all but impossible for anyone but a
Jedi Master fike Yod, but doing just that
a5 part of the construction of  lightsaber
hadl been studied and ritualized 5o even a
student could manage it It was very much a
lostart, a link to a past

they were
being made in the lightsaber, they were
being made in me also.
And | was Jedi.

During the war with the Yuuzhan Vong, Anakin
Solo was searching for the Jedi student Tahiri
Veila on Yuuzhan Vong-occupied Yavin 4 when his
lightsaber's focusing crystals became damaged.
Anakin disguised himself s a slave to infiltrate a
Yuuzhan Vong compound and was assigned to
harvest Yuuzhan Vong lambents, living crystals that
provide illumination when stimulated by something
similar to telepathic energy. After two days of
meditation, Anakin attuned himself to a lambent
crystal, which he used to repair his lightsaber. He
so0n discovered that his attunement to this crystal
enabled a vague awareness of any nearby Yuuzhan
Vong, who had been previously undetectable to
any Jedi's Force powers.

ARCHAIC B
LIGHTSABERS

Accondingtotnetilocrons theeariestishtsabers

were crude devices that utized an experimental

frozen blaster” technology to create an eneray

beam of a fixed length. Designed primariy for
e

wibed out, and by performing it | completed
my inheritance of my Jed legacy.

1 hit the button, allowing the slow
trickle of energy to fill the battery. | opened
myself to the Force and with the hand |
had touching the lightsaber's hlt | bathed
the lightsaber with the Force. As I did so,
subtle transformations took place in the
weapon. Elemental bonds shifted, allowing

siege
portable; their energy requirements necessitated a
flexible cable that connected a lightsaber's handle
to a power pack wor on a Jedi's belt. Because
the cable was not shielded and literally tied a Jedi
to the lightsaber, the limitations in battle were
obvious. Over time, emerging technologies allowed
the Jedi to miniaturize the parts and pack more
power output into a smaller energy cell that could
be set within a lightsaber’s handle.
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focus their power strongly enough to cut through
objects, are a relatively new invention in the long
history of the Jedi. It was not until approximately a
thousand years ago, after the Jedi Order sustained
heavy losses at the Battle of Ruusan, that the
Jedi developed training lightsabers for Padawan
learners. Although most training lightsabers were
destroyed during the Jedi Purge, a number have
been recovered from various sources.

Standard lightsabers may be used for training
if they are equipped with a control device that
adjusts the blade's energy, but such weapons
were not available to the first students at Luke
Skywalker's Jedi academy on Yavin 4. Instead,
students used padded wooden practice swords
for combat exercises, and were instructed by Kam
Solusar. One of Solusar's students was former
Corelian Security officer Corran Horn, who also
helped develop the training program and served
a5 Kam's corinstructor for self-defense techniques.
Horn provided the following account:

Kam Solusar taught us well the three
rings of defense. The outermost ring
consisted of four guard positions: upper
right, upper left lower right, and lower left.

The lightsabers hilt would end up wide of

the body, with the tip coming back toward

the middle to pick up the grand sweeping

blows that are very powerful, but also take

longer to deliver

The midicle ring also involved four guard
positions: high, low, eft, and right. Whereas
in the outer ring the blade tended to be held
ata dlagonal,in the middle ring up and down
were parallel to the ground at head and knee

of blocks and was proof against lunging
attacks. For this third line of defense. the
lightsaber was kept in close, with the hilt
covering the navel. By angling the blade’s
tip and picking up attacks on the lower
third of the blade, attacks could be shunted
aside, and a riposte to the opponent's chest
or stomach became a very real possibilty.
The inner ring was the last line of defense,
dangerous to be defending from, and
dangerous to be attacking from.

During a basic sparring match that
pitted me against Gantoris, I learned an
important lesson. 6 made the mistake of
thinking that my CorSec experience would
give me an edge over my opponent, and
als0 believed it was important to convince.
the other students of my abilities as an
instructor. | dignt anticioate Gantoris's
speed, and actually felt shame when his

abandoned conscious thought and felt the
Force flow through me. An instant later, |
sent Gantoris to the ground

What surprised me was that my access
to the Force had come at a point when |
had been forced to abandon the image |
had been trying to present to others. Once
1 got past pretense and was just what |
was, the Force flowed more freely. It was
as if the role I had created for myself had
inhibited the flow, whereas abandoning the
role brought me closer to it

1 realized that it was not for me to
sculpt the Force's flow to my purposes, but

to it. The idea with the middle ring was to
‘pick up quicker blows and stop them before
they could intersect with the body. Luke also
noted that the midde ring was effective
‘against picking off blaster bolts.

The inner ring involved parries instead

for. which more
easily works with the Force.
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DUAL-PHASE
LIGHTSABERS

Ligntsabers with cuar-phase focusing crysals can
be adjusted tovariblelengths and widths, granting
a deceptive and highly effective tactic against
unwary opponents. Records from circa 400 o
catethat Keiran Halcyon constructed a special
ualphase ightsaber that could 9o from standard

length (13 meters) to a length of 3 meters with the

flick of a switch. Most dual-phase lightsabers date
from an earlier period in Republic history, when

lightsaber duels were more common and the Sith

the height of their power. As more beings

ecame aware of Jedi fighting skills, and the Jedi

disputes without

apons, duels grew less frequent
and the need for adjustable blades essentially
ended. However, lightsaber dueling techniaues
remained part of Jedi training well into the Golden
Age, with Jedi Knights and Masters clashing using
lightsabers set to a nonlethal “sparring mode;” and
Luke Skywalker continues to emphasize lightsaber

training within the ranks of his new Jedi Order. The

craft of dual-phase lightsabers also continued, as
many Jedi prefer the option of the short-bladed
adjustment that serves as a more precise cutting
tool in emergency situations,

ILLUSTRIOUS
LIGHTSABERS

Over time, certain lightsabers have taken on
legendary status.Inthe twilight o the Old Republic
one such fightsaber belonged to the Jedi Kright
Sharad Hett. Ater serving as a Padawan to Jedi
Master Eeth Koth, Sharad et was assigned fo the
most malignant corners of th ne

jalaxy to defend

weak and uphold the law of the Republic. For his
continual acts of daring, he earned a reputation as
d Jedi Knight of his
time. He also earned many epithets, including the
Howlrunner, the Champion of Krmar, the Defender
of Kamparus, the Hound of Worlds, the Nemesis of
the Kimm, and Tamer of Tyrants. To many Jedi and

the most fearless and dedic:

their Padawans, his lightsaber became a symt

his valor.

In47 5., Sharad Hett disappeared after taking
a leave of absence. Fifteen years later, shortly after
the Battle of Naboo, Hett resurfaced on Tatooine
as the leader of a group of Tusken warriors. The
Jedi Master Ki-Adi-Mundi was dispatched to learn
hether Hett had embraced the dark side, and he

made the following recording after returning from
his mission

Iregret to announce that Sharad Het
dead. Even though I witnessed his p




s, he utilized both the lightsaber he'd crafted

e 9 and the one he'd inerited from his father
and any Jedi born wit g the few Jedi who simultane
ightsabers. His fate remains unkng

Records indicate that Ki-Adi-Mundi was slain

his own troops on the InterGalactic Banking

1d of Mygeeto near the ¢

also declare my decision  to M ntemporary Jedi
A'Sharad Hett, as t in the history of Luke Sky

lightsaber, which originally belonged to hi

returned to llum to make his second lihtsaber, but
llum crystals were used to
/eapon that he used through

The astromech R2-D2




holorecordings that revealed previously unknown
details about Anakin's transformation into Darth
Vader, including the fact that he slaughtered many.
Jedi on Coruscant before Obi-Wan Kenobi tracked
him to the planet Mustafar. Vader was mortally
wounded in the resulting duel with Kenobi, who
left Mustafar with his former Padawan's lightsaber.
The weapon would remain in Kenobi's possession
for nineteen years, until he presented it to Luke
Skywalker on Tatooine.

the box. Somehow Obi-Wan had rigged it
with a thumbprint clasp that would only
yield to my touch, along with  flashpacket
that would have caused the box to burst
into flame and explode if anyone else had
tried,

The box held Obi-Wan's journal and
an ancient leather-bound book  that
contained, among other things, plans for
building  lightsaber. | hadn't had any

In3 a5, Luke lost both and his
right hand in his own duel with Vader on Cloud City.
Luke's right hand was replaced with a cybernetic
prosthetic, and he followed instructions from a
book he'd found in Obi-Wan Kenobi's abandoned
home on Tatooine to construct a new lightsaber.
Eight years later, Luke related this experience to his
first students at the Jedi praxeum on Yavin 4:

1 not only lost my lightsaber and right
hand on Cloud City, but lost a friend,
too. Darth Vader had Han Solo frozen
in carbonite, then released Han's frozen
form to the bounty hunter Boba Fett.
After. this

since
I left Dagobah, just before my duel with
Vader on Cloud City, so I was astonished to
find this book when | did. It was as if Obi-
Wan had anticipated that | would lose my
lightsaber, and hadleft this book behind to
help me.

According to Obi-Wan's book, the best
lightsabers used natural jewels, preferably
three jewels with different densities and
facets to construct a fully adjustable blade.
Because there weren't a lot of natural
Jewels ying around where I could find them
on Tatooine,  realized | would have to keep

prosthetic, 1 eventually went to Tatooine,
where | hoped to intercept Boba Fett
before he delivered Han to Jabba the Hutt,
the gangster who had placed the bounty
‘on Han. While on Tatooine, | hid out in the
small house where Obi-Wan Kenobi had
lived as Ben Kenobi.

Obi-Wan  hadn't left much behind,
which is only appropriate. It is not the way
of the Jedi to accumulate possessions.
till, given the number of scavengers on
Tatooine, | was surprised to find anything
stilin his home, which seemed to have gone.
unoceupied since his departure. One thing
1 found was what appeared to be an old
and intricately carved boa-wood trunk; but
was actually a keypad safe box. It's a good
thing no one else ever attempted to open

a5 simple s possible and
limit my new lightsaber to a single jewel.

1 followed the book's instructions to
the letter: | managed to collect most of the
electronic and mechanical parts—power
cells, controls, a high-energy reflector
< he

text maintained that building a personal
lightsaber was a rite of passage for a Jed,
and that a Jedi Master could construct a
new lightsaber in a couple of days.

1 was hardly a Jedi Master. | triple-
checked each step, doing my best to ensure
that when | finally pressed the switch to
activate the weapon, it would work. My
greatest concern was that | would press
that switch and the lightsaber wouid blow
up, vaporizing me, all because | hadn't
tuned it quite right. After nearly a month of
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tinkering and checking, I still had to make

hadto cut the jewel, polish and install it,and
tune the photoharmonics. The cuts were
tricky. One wrong tap with the shearing
tool and I could have shattered the jewel,
and then I'd have to cook another one and
start over

When! finally completed the lightsaber,
I took it outside Obi-Wan's house. Only R2-
D2 was with me at the time, and I told him
to.go back inside. It may sound ridiculous,
but 1 thought if something went wrong,
1 needed someone to tel Leia that Luke
Skywalker, the galaxy’s biggest idiot, had
flash-flamed himself into a black crisp
because he couldn't follow an elementary
circuit dlagram.

[Laughter from some Jedi trainees]

Iwaited until R2 was out of sight before
Ipushed the control button. I felt both relief
and satisfaction when the blade ignited as
expected. | waved it experimentally to find
that it had a good balance, maybe even
better than my first one. Holding one hand
near the blade, I felt no sensation of heat,
which meant the conductors were working.
I tested the blade by whioping it down at
an angle to cleave through a wrist-thick
chunk of rock. It passed through the rock
easily, leaving a smooth cut.

And so it was that | carried this
lightsaber with me when | next confronted
Darth Vader. Except for the color of his
lightsaber's blade, | don't know that there
were any significant differences between
his weapon and mine. My only advantage
in that duel was that | knew there was still
‘goodhess inmy father:

1 hope my account conveys that no
one should construct a lightsaber in haste.

To those of you who have yet to wield a
lightsaber, I urge you to be patient. After
using training sabers to learn the basics of
lightsaber combat, you will examine our
collection of ancient lightsabers that were.
recovered from Ossus ast year. Soon you
willlearn to build your own.

19 x5y, Luke discovered that Palpatine had
recovered Luke's severed hand and lightsaber, and
that the demented Jedi Master Joruus Clbaoth
had used genetic material from the hand to grow.
a mindless clone of Luke. Armed with Luke's also-
recovered lightsaber, this clone fought Luke at
the Emperor's stronghold at Mount Tantiss on the
planet Wayland. This duel ended when Mara Jade—
2 former Imperial agent who'd been assigned to kill
Luke—killed both the clone and C'baoth,

Luke recovered his first lightsaber and gave it
to Mara Jade. In 10 As.v., Mara constructed a new.
violet-bladed lightsaber for herself as part of her
training to become a Jedi Knight. Luke has retired
his first lightsaber, and continues to use the second
one that he made for himself.

SITH |
LIGHTSABERS

As previousy notea, the orginal sith Loras—
the Jedi Exies who survived the Hundred-Year
Darkness, and their_descendants—apparently
abandonsd the use of lightsabers i favor of oher
weapons, s th Sithcid ot se ightsabers during
the Hyperspace War The earlest record of a Jed-
expatriate-turnec-Sith using a ligtsaber was
Freedon Nadd i 4400 s

The construction and use of the fst double-
bladed lightsaber is sometimes creted to Jedi-
turnectSith Exar Kun, bt according to the Tocyn
Holocron, Exar Kun assembled his weapon by
followinginsructions froma it Holocron, possibly

)
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brepared by the Jedi Exiles themselves. Because
the singular purpose of a double-bladed lightsaber
is to enable its wielder to make more effective
Kkils, the Jedi have long regarded it as an offensive
weapon, and Jedi students are discouraged from
attempting to create or train with one.

For more than a thousand years, nearly every
record of lightsaber-wielding Dark Jedi or Sith
Lords indicates their predilection for red-bladed
lightsabers, usually made with synthetic crystals.
The exact origin of this apparent standard remains
unknown, but may be the result of non-Jedi being
forced to use crystals or gems from worlds other
than lum. It is also conceivable that the Sith Lord
Kaan's Brotherhood of Darkness adopted red
lightsabers to distinguish their army from their
‘enemy at the Battle of Ruusan, and that subsequent
Sith Lords maintained this tradition. As for the

qualities of red crystals, the Jedi Holocron yields.
the following information:

1010 8sv

Author: Jedi Master Pernicar

In our most recent confrontation with
the Sith, 1 finally met up with my former
Padawan, Wud Mortull, who went missing
more than eight years ago. I had just siain
three Sith soldiers when he called out

me, running as if to embrace me the way
a son might embrace his long-lost father.
And then a lightsaber suddenly appeared
n his right hand and a red blad ignited

Wud was still smiling when | cut him
down.

tillsmiling when | removed his weapon
from his dead fingers.

till smiling as 1 stood there, momen-
tarily obiivious to the chaos around, and |
wondered, Why red?

Surely I've seen enough Sith lightsabers
in my lifetime that I should have wondered
this before. But for some reason, Id never
pondered this question until the moment
1 realized Wud had forsaken the green-
bladed lightsaber that he'd made for
himself a decade ago. At the time, after
he'd constructed that first lightsaber,
he confided that he felt such a strong
connection to it

What had caused him to ally with the
Sith, 1 cannot say. But as I held his Sith
lightsaber, this poorly crafted insult to
his heritage, it was hard for me to believe




that he could have joined the Sith entirely
willingly. 1 know it sounds ludicrous, but |
wondered if the Sith lightsaber had been
somehow responsible for his conversion.
Was there anything in the Sith weapon's
properties that might have made him want
to relinquish his Jedi lightsaber?

1 consulted our armorer, asking if she.
had any knowledge about whether any
properties of Sith lightsabers affected the
behavior or disposition of the user. She
answered, “I know they affect me, because
whenever I see a Sith holding one, I'm
inclined to killthe Sith.” Then she referred
me o a holobook entry on the subject of
erystals. Here is an excerpt:

Red crystals are ordinarily unsuitable
for lightsabers, since they are less stable
than the customary green and blue crystals
Jedi use for the blade generators in their
lightsabers. However, red crystals—both
genuine and synthetic—glow in harmonic
vibration when energized by the dark side
of the Force. When energized this way,
red "Sith” crystals, as they are sometimes
called, can actually produce a stronger
blade that has the rare potential to "break
the blade” of Jedi lightsabers, overloading
the energy matrix and instantly burning
out the opponent's weapon. Although
this rarely happens, it is a known and
frightening possibility in combat.

Indeed, this is rare, as | have only seen
3 Sith lightsaber “break” a Jedi lightsaber
on one occasion, something | believed, at
the time, was a defect in the Jedi weapon.
At my request, the armorer analyzed the
Sith lightsaber that Id recovered from Wud
Mortul. She confirmed that his lightsaber
contained synthetic crystals, as did every
other Sith lightsaber she ever examined.
till, when | think of that wicked smile

on Wud's face, | have difficulty dismissing
the feeling that his weapon exerted some.
kind of control over him, driving him to
do terrible things. I suspect I am guilty of
wishfulthinking. It is easier for me to believe
that a red crystal tuned Wud to evil than
that he took that path all by himself
When Darth Maul revealed the return of the
Sithin 32 8..v. he used a double-bladed lightsaber
to duel Qui-Gon Jinn and Obi-Wan Kenobi. Ten
years later, Count Dooku~—the alter ego of Darth
Tyranus—used a curved-handied lightsaber when
he dueled with Kenobi and Anakin Skywalker on
Geonosis. Like their predecessors, Maul and Dooku
wielded red-bladed weapons. Various. records
note that Dooku's protégée, the Sith aspirant Asaii
Ventress, may have gained possession of the two
curved-handled lightsabers once possessed by
Dooku's last Padawan, Komari Vosa. This theory is
given credence by reports that, like Komari Vosa's
weapons, Asaij Ventress's lightsabers were red-
bladed and featured similar hilts. Records initially
fated

Interestingly, Anakin Skywalker did not
immediately adopt a red-bladed lightsaber when
he became Darth Vader in 19 8..v, but initially used
the blue-bladed lightsaber that was subsequently
taken by Kenobi and passed on to Luke Skywalker
Hologrammic records from the astromech R2-D2
attest to Vader's use of this blue-bladed weapon
when he slaughtered Jedi at the Temple. We can
surmise that Vader did not have sufficient time
to construct a red-bladed lightsaber before the
slaughter, but it is equally possible that he used his
original Jedi weapon to avoid alerting any of his
vietims that he had gone to the dark side.




~ THE SEVEN
FORMS

Thhe creat Holocron has yieided a most eniignt-
ening ecording by the Je Knight Ci Dral, who
served a5 a lightsaber nstructor a the Jedi Temple
on Coruscant during the fnal years of the Old
Republic. In is recording, made in 31 ea, Dralig
iscusses the seven forms even fighting discplnes
that were stucied by the Jediof his e,

Greeting, Padawans. | am Cin Drallig,
your instructor in lightsaber discipline.

1 have no doubt that you ail believe
you know something of the seven forms
of lightsaber combat. All of you spent your
first years studying Form I, and most of
you have spent a year or two studying each
additional form up through Form V. Some
of you may be undecided about whether
to now dedicate yourself to one particular
form, and some of you may choose to
build your own fighting style. Whether
you have gained additional knowledge
on lightsaber combat from databooks,
seen or participated in demonstrations, or
discovered and experimented with certain
techniques on your own, | assure you that
you have much to learn about the seven
forms.

s you know, each form represents
differing styles and philosophies, and each
has its respective merits. For those of you
who are unaware of the unique and subtle
differences of the forms, allow me to
provide brief descriotions.

Form 1, also called Shii-Cho, requires
little explanation, as every Jed youngling
learns the basics of attack. parry. body
target zones, and the practice dfills called
velocities. Form | was created by the an-

cient Jedi during the transition from metal
swords to energy beam lightsabers, and
the principles of blade contact remain
essentially the same. Because the ancient
Jedi did not have lightsaber-wielding
enemies, Form | does not address the
lightsaber-to-lightsaber combat.

Form I, also called Makashi, represents
the ultimate refinement of lightsaber-to-
lightsaber combat. It evolved during an era
when battles between Jedi and Dark Jedi
had become expected, if not routine, and
may have produced the greatest dueling
masters the galaxy had ever seen. Masters
of Form Il developed unique offenses and
defenses, and trained studiously against
having their weapons taken or damaged.

Following the Battle of Ruusan, Form
1 became an archaism, for there were few
situations in which Jedi fought lightsaber-
wielding enemies. However, the former
Jedi learner Aurra Sing resurfaced more
than a decade ago as a bounty hunter and
assassin, and has developed a reputation
for taking lightsabers as trophies from her
Jedi victims. Furthermore, it is now nearly
3 year since Obi-Wan Kenob siew the Sith
Lord who killed Qui-Gon Jinn at the Battle
of Naboo, and some Jedi Masters have
suggested that the Order should reexamine.
the requirements of Form Il Other Masters
have countered that such confrontations
will remain exceedingly rare so fong as the
Jedl remain mindful of the Force and the
Sith imit their numbers to two. As long
a5 Aurra Sing and any Sith Lords remain
at large, it is the opinion of this instructor
that the study of Form Il should not be
dismissed as impractical.

Form I, also called Soresu, was first
developed in response to the advancement
of blaster technology in the galaxy. As an
ever-increasing variety of blaster weapons.
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became available to military factions as
well as criminals, Jedi had to revise their
lightsaber skills to defend themselves.
Originally, the basic principle of Form Il
was “laserblast” deflection training. This

open style of some other forms. Over
many centuries, Form Il has evolved into a
highly refined expression of nonaggressive
Jeai phllcsophy True masters of Form il

long been considered  invincible;
a/thcu,wh not always able to overcome their
adversaries, no Form il masters have ever
been defeated.

Form IV also called Ataru, s the most
acrobatic Form, filled with numerous
elaborate moves, and relies heavily upon a
Jedl's ability to run, jump, and spin using
the Force. Form IV can be astonishing
to watch. By incorporating all the Force

turns this defensive move into an offensive
attack by deflecting the bolt deliberately

lightsaber dueling. A dedication to. the
power and strength necessary to defeat an
opponent characterizes the philosophy of
Form V. which some Jed describe by the
‘maxim “Peace through superior firepower.”
While proponents of Form V regard it as a
worthwhile discipline to prepare a Jedi for
any threat, there are others who maintain
that Form V fosters an inappropriate focus
on dominating others.

You ask for my opinion on Form V2 1am
neither a proponent nor a detractor. One
must question any discipline that has lethal
potential. However, i it serves to suppress
violent opposition and preserve peace, |
believe itis a discipline worth knowing.

Form Vi, also called Niman, is.the
current standard in lightsaber training. This.
form balances the emphases of other forms

norms of physical possibilities, Jedi may.
resemble nothing less than a blur when
they utilize Form IV. Yes, it is true that Yoda
is a Form IV master. Although it has been
many years since Yoda has graced us with
2 demonstration, the Jedi Archives holds a
collection of databooks that are testament
o his mastery and prowess.

Form Vi which has two distinct
variations, Shien and Djem So, was
developed alongside Form IV, during an
era when Jedl were called upon to more
actively maintain the peace in the galaxy.
andl when purely defensive combat skills—
such as those of Form lli~were deemed
insufficient. Form V' focuses on strength
and lightsaber attack moves. Form V's
Shien variation exploits the ability of the
lightsaber to block a blaster bolt, and

Jedi may achieve true harmony and justice
without resorting to the rule of power. It
is often referred to as the diplomat's form
because it is less intensive in its demands
than the other disciplines, allowing Jedi
to spend more time developing their
skills in perception, political strategy, and
negotiation. The Jedi Councilmaintains that
Form Vi best suits the role of contemporary.
Jedi Knights. After all, a Jedi Knight who
s overly trained in martial combat might
be at a loss to resolve a complex political
conflict or a sensitive trade disagreement.

How long can you expect to study Form
VI before you master it? If you dedicate
yourself only to Form Vi, you willstudy for
at least ten years.

Is Form VI the most worthy of study?
No, but in general it is the most practical.




1 would be negligent if I refrained from
noting that full masters of other forms have
come to consider Form V1 as insufficiently
demanding.

Form Vil also called Juyo, is the most
difficult and demanding of all forms. Only
high-level masters of multiple forms can
achieve and control this discioline, which
can lead to fantastic power and skill Form
Vil employs bold, direct movements, more
‘open and kinetic than Form V. but ot so
elaborate in appearance as the acrobatic
Form IV. Uniike Form V. Form VIl requires
greaterenergy because the focusis wielded
more broadly. and draws upon a deeper
well of emotion; while the outward bearing
of a Form Vil practitioner is one of calm,
the inner pressure verges on explosion.
And unlike the graceful, linked movement
sequences of Form IV, Form VIl tactics
overwhelm opponents with seemingly
unconnected staccato sequences. This
combination of traits makes Form Vil highly
unpredictable in battle.

Because so few have achieved the
necessary mastery to advance to Form Vi,

VAAPAD

Recoversa from the Great Holocron, the
following recording by Jedi Master Mace Windu
provides information about a specific variaton on
Form Vi, andiitsdangerous conection to the dark
side. Made in 22 a. the recording also reveals
previously unknown details about certan events
uring the Clone Wars

Master Ki-Ads-Mundi and Master Kolr
This dota tape hs been sent directly o you
a5 o precaution against Separatist spies
Who.have been attempting to_ntercept
Repubic transmissions.

Al members of the Counci are aware
that we've lost a great many Jedi i the
three months since the Repubiic deciared
war againstthe Separatsts.Not only those
who died in combar, but also those who

recently, Sora Bulq, who fought by our side
on Geonosis, chose to leave for his family's
estate on Ruul, a moon of the Weequay

Temple,

select few,
t0 all others. Mace Windlu and his former
Padawan Depa Billaba are among the only
current practitioners of Form Vil and even
they acknowledge that it is a dangerous
regimen that may cut close to the Sith
intensity of focus on physical combat abilty
And now let us medtate before we
begin basic exercises for Form Vi

‘Sora trained andinfiuenced many, many Jedi.
When Guinian Vos had to be retrained after
the events that left his memory impaired,
it was Sora who helped Guinian regain his
focus with a lightsaber. But on our recent
mission to Lianna, Masters Tholme, Yoda,
and | learned that Sora had taught Quinian
& maneuver from a Form Vil variation known
as Vaapad. Obviously, | recognized Vaapad
because | developed it. Quinlan claimed that
Sora said nothing about Vaapad, and told
me that he will not use the maneuver again.
I sensed Quinlan spoke without deceit,
but his awareness of Vaapad is disturbing,
particularly since Sora Bulg helped me




develop the maneuver. Except for Depa
Billaba, | have never encouraged any other
Jedli to adiopt Vaapad.

Ki-Adi-Mundl, you are aware that for
me, Vaapad is.... personal. To Agen Kolar,
I shall explain.

1 developed Vaapad to answer my
own weakness, and channel my inner
darkness into a weapon of the light. To use
Vaapad, a Jedi must give himself over to
the thrill of batte, enjoying the fight and
the satisfaction of winning. A Jedi must
also accept and embrace the fury of his
opponent. This transforms a Jedl into half of
a superconducting loop, the other half being
the power of darkness, which passes in and
out of the Jedi without touching hir.

Vaapad is more than a fighting style. It
is a state of mind, a path that leads through
the penumbra of the dark sice.

Itis also not meant for any Jedi without
my approval.

Shortly after this, Quinlan discovered
that four leaders of dissident Jedi—Master
KKruhk, Master Sian Jeisel, the Jedi Knight
Rhad Tarn, and Sora's former Padawan
Mira—had gathered on Ruul. All these Jedi
had different reasons for renouncing their
commissions. Sora Bulg invited me to Ruul
t0 meet with the other Jedi and discuss the
possibilty of preventing a schism within
the Order

i

by Count Dooku on Geonosis, or the pair
used by his failed Padawan, Komari Vosa.

I regret 1 was siow to ascertain that
this assassin had been contracted by Sora
Bulg, who identified her as Asaij Ventress.
Even worse, | failed to foresee that Sora
had gone to the dark side.

Sora claimed that he was long
fascinated by the dark side, and by our
work on Vaapad. He hadintended to kill the
other Jed on Ruul and blame me for their
deaths in order to widen the schism that
dlvides our Order. He also claimed to be a
true master of Veapad. It is my contention
that Vaapad has mastered Sora Bulq.

Ventress killed Mira and  quickly
conscrioted Rhad Tarn before she escaped.
Tarn was slain by Jeisel, who left Ruul with
KKruhk and myself because we were oo
badly outnumbered by the droids that Sora
Bulg unleashed upon us.

Itis imperative to alert all Jedi that Sora
Bulg has gone to the dark side. We must
also learn more about this Asaij Ventress
The Archives yielded no information about
her, and it may be pure speculation that her
lightsabers indicate any alliance with Count
Dooku. There is an undeniable darkness
about her, but  sensed she was ot a Sith.

Given that Sora Bulg is no longer
trustworthy, we must allow for the pos-
sibilty that Quinlan Vos knows more of

Sora about whether he had indeed taught
2 move from Vaapad to Quinlan Vos. Sora
answered that he had been testing Quinian,
and that he pursued it no further after
Quinlan passed the test.

But the meeting on Ruul tumned out to
be a trap. We were attacked by a female
assassin, possibly a Rattataki, who wielded

o a mission to Brentaal IV Let us be mind-
ful of him. 1 now know that it was a mistake.
to expose Sora Bulg to Vaapad, and hope
the mistake will not extend to Quinian.

I look forward to your retum to
Coruscant. May the Force be with you.

‘There s no record of whether Mace Windu chose

the name . but the name

Her weapons were ot unike the one used is shared by a creature that is indigenous to the




moons of Sarapin. A notoriously dangerous predator,
2 vaapad attacks its prey with whipping strikes of ts

An inconclusive mark of contact, shiim is
considered inferior to other marks that

tentacles.
but one confirmed report proves that the number
can be as high as twenty-three. Because vaapad
move with incredible speed, it is a commonly held
observation that their tentacles cannot be counted
until the creature is dead. It is sasily conceivable that
Mace Windu took inspiration from the vaapad when
he developed his lightsaber discipline.

THE MARKS OF
CONTACT

SMea.
Author: Cin Drallig

Greeting, Pacawans.
Alllightsaer combat forms involve the.
same marks of contact, target objectives

expresses nothing more than a strugale
with & powerful opponent. According to
Jedl Archives, it was not unusual for some

Jedi aliketo forgo corrective surgery
for wounds 5o that they might wear their
lightsaber-induced scars as a badge of

honor. Not surprisingly, this  tradition
began to die out about the same time as
the discovery of bacta.

Shiak is “stabbing.” Jedi tradition holds
that shiak is an honorable method of in-
ficting serious injury because it causes the
least visible injury to the opponent’s body.
Thus, shiak can express a Jedi's respect for
an opponent andthe living Force even as it
delivers a fatal blow.

Cho mai translates as “to cut off the
weapon hand.” Because this strike instantly

can infiict on your opponents. These marks
help focus your offense and defense on a
few clear categories rather than diffusing
awareness across an infinite number of
possibiities. The names of these marks
remain unaltered from the language of the
earliest Jedi sages.

Sun djem is the ancient term for “cis-
arming.” Because relieving an opponent
of his weapon or destroying it could win
victory without causing injury, sun diem
was especially consistent with Jedi con-
duct and was the primary goal of early
Form | masters. However, advances in
Form il made sun djem extremely difficult
in lightsaber-to-lightsaber combat, as all
Form Il masters trained to prevent them-
selves from being disarmed.

Shiim is any kind of wound that is
made with the edge of a lightsaber blade.

2 weapon
but does not kill cho mai is always a
preferred move in combat. The precision
of cutting off only a hand is considered the.
mark of a superior lightsaber master.

Cho sun is “to dismember” but the
term is used specifically in reference to

elegance of cho mai, but cho sun is the
move most often necessary in the heat of
‘confiict or where no chances can be taken.

Cho mok transiates as “to otherwise
maim,“targeting legs, limbs, or appendages
that wil disable your opponent. Although
emergency situations may sometimes leave
you with few options, | discourage cho mok
unless youhave an essential comprehension
of your opponent's physiology. Obviously,
itis crucial that you know the location of
vital organs before you strike.




Sai cha comes from the ancient words
for *separate” and “head” and as you
might expect it describes the act of using
2 lightsaber to behead an opponent. Jedi
commit sai cha only when batle is at its
most deadly serious and threatening, or

an inner focus on defeating the danger of
opponents, not striking with hate or wishing.
utter destruction upon them. Sai tok is
generally used only against enemy droids.
Should a Jedi hesitate to use sai tok
to kill a Sith Lord? An interesting question,

dangerous even to a full trained Jedi

You ask for an example of such a
situation? Six years ago, the Jedi Knight Qui-
Gon Jinn and his then Padawan, Obi-Wan
Kenobi, encountered Baroness Omnino of
Vena on the planet Ord Mantell. Guilty of
trafficking savrips, abducting Chancellor
Velorum, and  murder—among  other
things—Omnino wore a psychic augmenter,
a sophisticated device that enabled her to
control the minds and actions of virtually
anyone she wished. Although the device
dlid not work against Jed, Omnino had
manipulated savrips to seize Obi-Wan
while she also made two Senate Guards
aim their blasters at Chancellor Valorum's
head. Understand, Padawans, that with
but a fleeting thought, Omnino could have
urged the guards to pull the triggers of
their blasters and made the savrips tear
Obi-Wan to pieces. Qui-Gon knew that
the only way to prevent Omnino from
harming any more victims was to stop her
from projecting any more thoughts, and
that knocking her unconscious was not an
option, because her dangerous mind might
have remained active. It was under these
circumstances that Qui-Gon distracted
Omnino and resorted to sai cha,

the bisection of a living opponent's body.
s 2 form of butchery, a desecration to be
avoided if possible. Sai tok represents &
potentially Sith-like desire to destroy one's
enemy; whereas the Jedi goal in combat is

Obi-wan
Kenobi, who used sai tok to fell the Sith on
Naboo. But because he is not present, | shall
take it upon myself to answer the question.

lo. A Jedi should not hesitate to use
any combat technique to kill a Sith Lord.
Again, I stress the goal is not to wish
destruction on the Sith, but to defeat the
danger they pose.

"ON WINNING

AND LOSING

e seciMaster Rekoa De taust basic ihtsaber
training at the Jedi Tempie while Yoda was stil just
2 Jeci Knight.Of his many statements o ightsaber
e, this i perhaps Rekpa De's most nfluentil:

Do not see a lightsaber duel as a choice
between winning and losing. Every duel
can have many, many outcomes. When
you concentrate solely on winning—in
lightsaber duels as in everything else—you
sully your victory. Winning becomes worse
than losing. It is better to fose well than to
win badly. And it is always better to end a
dluel peacefuly than to win or lose.

— T




The Seven forms of Lightsaber Combnt

Each form represents diffring syls and phibsaphies, and e s its rspective
metts. for $ose of you who are waare of the wigue v subtle diffrences of the
forms, allow we to provide tricf descriptions

fom (,
¥ Shi~Cho

form [ reguires (it explovtion,
as ey Jedi youngling learns

the busics of attack, parry body
tuget zoves, i, the practice
drills called, velocities.

form ([ represents e ubtimats efinemort of ltsaber-
to-lhtsaber combat. Masters of form ([ dalpe wigue
dffonses and. defonses, and. train studiusly
apinst hwing thir weapens toon

or damayat
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form ([ ws first deelped.in response t0 the. advwcewont of Haster trhvolgy in
the gulasy. This form msionizss deforsie. protection in @ syle characterized by
tight, ffiiont wovemerts that expose wirioal
trge. areas when compared, with the rlatiely \
apmtyufmmyfmmg\

form IV is the wost aurdatic Form, filled. with wuverus daborate woves, and. rlies heautly
upon a Jedis ably to run, junp, and. spin using the force. By incorporating ol e
foree powers that owble ane to exceed. stavdard, vorms of physical
possitlies, Jedi way esomse nothing

les thon o Hur whon they utlize

fom V.

o v Ao




form /s Shion wration explats the abilty of the ltsaber
to Hock a Haster bolt, and. turws this defonsive woe into an
dfforsive attack by deflcting the ot deliperately
towar. an gppovert

form VI lavces e ovphases of
ather forms with overall woderation.
Traugh form VI, o Jedi may
achie true harwony avdustice
withodt rsortin to the nile

of power

7




form V(I owploys bold, dirct woreworts,

mere gpon and. kietic than form V, bt vot
s0 daboratz in appearance as the aurchatic form (V.
Unlike form /. form VI reguires greater
oty because Y fows is widlded wore
broadly and. draws upon a deeper well of
otion; whie the adward bearin of @
Form VI practitioner is one of calm,
the i pressure s on explsion






PART THREE

THE DARK SIDE

RECORDED 40 4

For nearty a3 tong as the seci nave usea thei
abilties to maipuiate the Force, they. have
understoo the dark side a5 3 power that can
influence and seduce ven the most decicated
members of the Order. Existig records indicate
that Joci who were drawn to the dark side but
returmed to the ight are greatly oy

AUTHOR: TIONNE SOLUSAR.

IDARK JEDI

Those who embrace the dark side have sther
lsimed or been sscribed various tte. Perhaps
the bestknown s Dk Jed something of a blanket

those who were unable or unwilling to leave the
Gark path.Itis further stressed that no Jedi has ever
emerged from this journey entirely unscathed.

Jedi are hardly the only Force-sensitive beings
Vulnerable to the dark side. There are numerous
cases of Force-users—mostly from very remote
worlds—who developed their powers with little
or no knowledge of the Jedi and Sith. Some even
cultivated their own traditions that were passed on
to subsequent generations. However, few of these
individuals and factions were as altruistic with their
abilties as the Jedi; not surprisingly, selfish and
competitive beings were especially inclined to use
their powers to dominate others.

Because even cautious examination of the dark
side can have dire consequences, the Jedi Order
has long forbidden such study by all but the most
highly disciplined Jedi Masters. It may beimpossible
to discourage those who are naturally inclined to
explore that which is forbidden, but contemporary
Jedi scholars hope to at least diminish curiosity
by presenting the following information and case

term to describe
dark side of the Force. Dark Jedi are historically
distinguished from Sith and dark side Force-users
by heritage and experience; more specifically,
Jedi of the OId Republic regarded Dark Jedi as
Jedi-trained individuals who had abandoned their
Order's way to pursue a selfish and malicious
agenda of their own design, and only those with
direct Sith influence might be considered as Sith
or Sith Lords. Because of these distinctions, two
more accurate terms for a non-Jedi who wields
dark side powers are dark sider, which dates back
over many millennia, and Dark Side Adept. Both
terms were used by Palpatine to describe many
of his dark side servants. Stil, the term Dark Jedi
remains most prevalent.

Ancient records indicate a separate term for
what a Force-sensitive being can become if he
or she turns to the dark side early on: a dark side
devotee. Unlike Jedi who began their training during
infancy or have a mature awareness of the Force,
dark side devotees regard the Force as something
supernatural, and foster that image in the minds of

into the dark side.

and powerful. Because their belief system may

e SEv r7a Sv
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not recognize the Force as the same tool used by
the Jedi or the Sith, they pursue a different path
or develop their own traditions. Historically, not
all dark side devotees were obsessed with power,
but most did use their abilities to manipulate the
environment and exploit the weak. Many took up
careers as wanderers and adventurers. Although
it is not known whether dark side devotees ever
outnumbered more benevolent Force-adepts, they
have certainly outnumbered the Sith ever since the
Sith Order limited themselves to one Master and
one apprentice.

One of the oldest records of a Dark Jedi—and
possibly a dark side devotee—comes to us via the
Great Holocron from the Jedi consular Sar Agorn.
As previously noted, Sar Agorn was counted
among the earliest Jedi during the dawn of the
Republic. Upon first sight of Agorn's hologrammic
representation, most assume that his appearance
is the result of a degraded image, but light wave
analysis indicates otherwise. It seems he was a
most unusual being, an apparently bulbous, soft
creature who lacked limbs or facial features, and
had greenish gases continually surrounding his
form, wholly unlike any species known today.

The following recording dates back to
approximately 500 years before the First Great
‘Schismthat dividedthe Jedi,and 18100 yearsbefore
the exiled Dark Jedi arrived in Sith space, at a time
when the Jedi may have sill been developing their
terminology for the Force. Although the dark side
is not mentioned by name in Sar Agorn's record,
his descriptions leave little doubt about the nature
of the "shadows.”

You ask of my first awareness of evil?
That is difficult for me to say. It is not that
my memory fails me, but that memories
are based on our perceptions at specific
moments. Are there not beings, things, or
Places that you regarded as evil when you
were young, but that you subsequently
determined were not evil at all? Did you

eventually forgive the inconsiderate rela-
tive, the howling wind, and the ominous
Structures that never really posed a threat

‘profoundly immoral or wrong, such as the
desire to deliberately cause great harm,
pain, or upset. But let me ask...if | told
you that right now, at this very moment,
your involuntary breathing was  killng
sentient microscopic innocents, would you
choose to continue breathing? And even
if you found a way to end the massacre,
would it disturb you if you were unable to
convince the microscopic survivors that
you never meant them harm, and that they
and their descendants would consider you
evil and wish you dead for the devastation
you brought to. their loved ones and
civilization?

You say that I tend to answer questions
with too many questions in return? Well how
else will ou learn to think for yourself>

Oh. So you wanted to know if have ever
known of a Jedi who turned to evil. You
might have asked that in the first place.
For that question, I have a most specific
answer: the Jedi Cope Shykrill

First, let me say that this is a most
unusual case. As Jed, we are bonded by
our agreement to use our powers for the
‘gooaess of all beings, not for personal
gain or to exploit others. Yes, there are
times when one is tempted to use the
Force simply because one can, but if one
does not know when and where to draw
the line, then ask more questions, and |
shall draw it for you.

Now, about Cope Shyril....

My fellow Jedi and 1 had been searching
for Force-users ke ourselves n the outlying
systems of the Corellian sector when we




found young Shykrill on Sarcophagus, the
graveyard moon of Sacorria. At the time,
the boy was living with his family, who
were groundskeepers. We had not found
him by accident, but by way of a report
from a Selonian widower, who claimed to
have witnessed Shykrill using telekinesis to
lower his wife's coffin into an open grave.
Shykril seemed like a most unassuming
child, but was indeed able to move objects
through the air with lttle difficulty.

Although some  families had been
reluctant to allow their children to join the
Jedl, Shykrills parents were most accom-
modating, and even seemed genuinely
grateful to us for granting their son the
opportunity to rise above his station on
Sarcophagus. And'so the boy left with us to
train as a Jedi. He was such a bright child.
Always displayed a pleasant disposition
when he asked for more lessons. Never
asked 2 wrong question or gave a wrong
answer. Always heloed with chores. Never
complained. In fact, over the course of
eight years of training, he never gave us
any cause for caution, or reason to imagine
why his parents might have been eager for
him to leave Sarcophagus.

Ah. 1 am getting ahead of myself.

The Jedi Esseles

it still took me nearly two months to
throw it with consistent accuracy. Cope
Shykrills ability is not merely uncanny. It is
unnatural.”

Nuck Lyu returned to Esseles, leaving
us with samples of his new blade, and
leaving me with some inclination to pay
closer attention to Shykril, who was still
training to be a Jedi Watchman himself
In the weeks that followed, | noticed no
significant change in Shykrills behavior.
Then one night, | found him entertaining a
trio of younger trainees—a Fia, a human,
and a Nosaurian—with a shadowplay near
2 campfire. Shykillstood between the fire
and a stone wall, using hand gestures to
make lively silhouettes that told a story
against the wall's surface. It was a very
compelling tale about two brothers, one
9000 and one bad. The good brother
wanted toplant seeds and grow vegetables,
but the bad brother wanted to eat all the
seeds. Lending his voice to the narration,
‘Shykrill made the good brother sound very
noble and scholarly. and the bad brother
sound ke an iliterate oaf. The bad brother
made the trainees laugh.

Now, you may have noticed by my.
hologrammic representation that | am

was the first of my peers to express some
concern about Shykril Nuck Lyu had
been instructing a group of Jed, including
Shykril, in how to use the Force to throw
2 new bladed weapon of his own design
at wooden targets. After the lesson was
over, Nuck Lyu confided to me that Shykrill
repeatedy hit his targets with extreme
precision. I conveyed to Nuck Lyu that |
was not surprised, as Shykrill was one of
our most promising Jedi.

But Nuck Lyu said to me, “You do not
understand. | designed the weapon, and

appendages or a complex physiognomy.
Although 1 had always believed that my
natural condition did not in any way
impede my abilities as a Jedi, I suddenly
felt something 1 had never felt before as |
watched Shykril's hands flutter and dance.
and cast shadows.

Envy.

1 wished I had hands so that I might
tell such a story, too, with the skill and
grace of the young Shykrill And then | felt
something else.

Shame.

— S
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Confused, I returned to my quarters to
contemplate what had transpired, and to
meditate. Twenty-three minutes later, my
meditation was interrupted by the sound
of screaming. The screaming attracted all
the Jedl in our camp, and we raced to the
area where Id left Shykrill and his small
audience. There we found Shykrill and two
of the trainees lying on the ground, covered
in blood. The third trainee, the Nosaurian,
was standing amidst the bodies, grioping

‘shadows are in my head! Get them out!” Andl

then he sit his own throat and collapsed.
Our medics did what they could. The

three trainees died. Only Shykrill survived.
The weeks passed. Shykrill was still in

him whether he was the good brother or
the bad brother. He said, “ am the brother
who lived. And now, it is time for you to
Join the shadows.”

I suddenly realized that I felt quite colc.
Dread flooded over me, and a sickness
Spread within, but these feelings ended
with supreme quickness as Shykril's head
separated from his body, having met the
honed edge of Nuck Lyu's blade. It was
Nuck Lyu himself who'd thrown the weapon
from his hiding spot, for I had summoned
him_ from Esseles when we buried the
trainees. Somehow, both of us instinctively
knew that Shykrill was responsible for the
trainees’ deaths, and that the only way to
endl his evil ways was to end his very life,

1 traveled to Sarcophagus to inform
Shykrills parents that their son was dead,
allowing them to believe that he had died

fora constitutional. He did not seem puzzled
or surprised when | brought him to the site
where the trainees had perished. There |
conveyed to him that I had witnessed part
of his shadowplay, and that | had no idea
he was such an accomplished storyteller
And with some boldness, | inquired if the
shadows ever spoke to him.

He answered, "You know they speak tome.
They spoke to you, too. I heard them. They
made you wish you had hands of your own.”

1 asked him how long he had been
listening to the shadows. He said, “If you
want to know whether the shadows spoke
to me before or after | became a Jedi, |
cant say”

1 asked if he controlled the shadows,
or if they controlled him. He said, “The
shadows and I are the two brothers. One
wants to plant the seeds, one wants to eat
the seeds.”

Remembering his shadowplay, | asked

motive for
meeting the parents. | wanted to find out
f the evil that seemed to possess Shykrill
had preceded his recruitment to the Jed
As delicately as I could, | inquired as to
whether Shykrill had a brother. Indeed, |
learned that they had had another son, but
he had dlied three years before Cope was
born. | asked if young Cope had ever talked
to an imaginary friend, or if he had ever
shared his shadow stories with them. The
parents were polite, but seemed altogether
baffled by these questions. And so I left
them on their tombworld,

Just as the Force flows through us all so.
o we all have aspects that are positive and
negative. But a Jedi knows the difference
between light, darkness, and the shadows
in between. Jedi cannot wrestle with
decisions or struggle to uphold our deals.
We must know that what we do is good
and just, and should we make mistakes, we
must rectify those mistakes.
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What made Shykrills innard so differ- the First Schism, after a battle with the Legions
ent, 5o wretched and weak, that he would of Lettow. Popularly known as the Columus Data
vield to shadows, embrace them, let Card, itinspired at least three operas on Coruscant.
them overwhelm him? Why would he ive Although the suspected Sith sympathizer Ingo
amongst us for more than nine years, learn Wavlud once noted his belief that this particular |
our ways and methods, only to eventually account was nothing less than Jedi propaganda,
kill those unfortunate trainees? Did these tests indicate the data card is authentic to the

shadows he spoke of come from within
himself, and did they die with him, or do
they continue to exist beyond his death?
1 do not know, and | have no desire to
venture into the shadows where one might
find the answers.

But | do know that we, the Jed, must be
better and stronger than killers of children.
We must be more. It is not our purpose
to understand such shadows, but it is our
purpose to use our light to extinguish them.

THE FIRST DARK
LEGION

Facts are fow about the events that led to the
First Schism, when the relatively young Jedi Order
went up against the first organized band of Dark
Jedi. We know that it was in approximately 24,500
5. that a faction of Jedi Knights renounced the
ancient Jedi Masters and experimented with new
ways to use the Force. Apparently frustrated by
the rigid teachings of their former teachers, these
rebels celebrated their freedom by giving in to their
passions and emotions, and touching the power of
the dark side. They called themselves the Legions
of Lettow, and they were led by General Xendor,
 powerful Force-using humanoid whose origins
remain unknown. The Jedi Council, enraged at this
act of disobedience, declared war on the general
and s followers. The Jedi emerged victorious.

A data card provides the following account
by a Jedi Padawan who died on Columus during

period.

€.24,500 8.
Author: Jedi apprentice Danzigorro Potts

have received the transmission, the
news that General Xendor is dead. At last,
we have prevailed over the Legions of
Lettow. 1 know it may be wrong of me, but |
am relieved by his death, as | trust it brings
an end to this awful war. For the first time
in months, 1 look forward to tomorrow:

1 wonder.... | wonder if I might find a
Spotof sunshine before morning. Betteryet,
1 might find a familar, friendly face... one
that's still breathing.

Forgive me, my Masters. My thoughts
go astray. | do not mean to dishonor your
teachings by babbling. You know | was
never good with words. | always wished |
could make them flow better. My throat is
sody.

And I'm bleeding something awul.

1 hope I'm holcing this audiocard right.

[static]

Hear my words, fellow Jedi. |, the Jedi
apprentice Danzigorro Potts, am the last
survivor of the confict on Columus. There
were nearly thirty Dark Jedi, so we were
fairly evenly matched. Tried to trap us in
this ravine, they did. The battle was fierce
and fast. It's so quiet now, peaceful even,
but we can thank the Force for all we.

We can thank the Force for.

So sorry. | want to leave you with some
important words. | guess I'm at a loss.
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/'m dying. I'm just going to say whatever
I want to say.

I killed my friend Blendri and her
apprentice Cuthallox today. right here on
the battlefield. Hadn't seen them since
they ran off with my old Master, Jook-jook
Hbroozin, to join up with Xendor. Caught
up with Hibroozin on Corulag and ran him
through, | di, but Blendri and Cuthall
kept getting away, one world to the next. A
the way to here. Not that | wanted revenge,
of course, but... well, all the rebels ha
be stopped did they not?

1 loved being a Jedi. Loved it. Wouldn't

have changed a thing. But to be honest,
after Blenari joined up with the Legions of
Lettow, I started thinking. About how long
she'd been comp

ining about the Jed
Order being so sterile. About hor
she was by all that endless meditat

Understand. . I was never tempted by
the dark sice. Being in the light was never a
dangerous balancing act for me, it wasn't
Maybe it's because I'm simpler than some,
or s Blenari says. I mean, that's what she
used to say. But | never ducked a battl,
and  never betrayed the Jedi, and I never
wanted to do bad things.

To the Jedi who finds this data card, I'm
hoping you'll remember this about Blendri
You see, Blendi was my best friend when
we were children. She was the one who
showed me how to use the Force, even
before we knew what the Force was. She
was a good girl, Blendri was. A really good
person. Maybe she teased me a few times
when she became a Jedi Knight and | was
still an apprentice, but | knew she was
just joking. The reason I mention this is
because I don't think she joined the dark
Side and the Legions of Lettow because
she was evil. | think she just got tired of all




the Jed rules, being told what to do, how
to behave, how not to behave, al the time.
Ithink it crushed her a bit.

As for all the other Jedi who left the
Order to join the legions. .1 don't know.
It seems too easy to blame everything
on Xendor and the dark side. Moybe
we.... maybe the Jedi were partly to blame,
too. rm not good with history, but I know
that for more than five centuries the Jedi

described by other Jedi as  tragic and
despicabe figure.

The story is known by most Jedi. Ulic
Qel-Droma, the great Jedi who attempted
to destroy a Sith sect from within but
Succumbed to the dark side instead After
Joining forces with Exar Kun, a renegade
Jedl who had embraced the dark side for
purely selfish reasons, Ulic became a Dark
Lord of the Sith, and killed his own brother

2 dark Jedi here and there, I heard tell. But
then along came Xendor, teling Jedi they
dlcn't have to obey orders all the time.

1 know it sounds crazy; but | wonder.
maybe the Jedi need an enemy. | think.
without a common enemy, we... well
just wind up fighting each other...and
ourselves. Does that make sense?

It's getting really cold, | only wish—

[End of recording.]

ULIC QEL-DROMA’S
RETURN TO THE
LIGHT s

Recorded 3980 a..v. on the Great Holocron
: Vima Sunrider

My mother, the Jedi Nomi Sunrider;
kept two holograms for as long as | could
remember. One hologram was of my father
Andur, who was Killed when | was just @
baby. The other was of Ulic Gel-Droma.
1 was still a child when my mother and |
watched Ulic's ship leave Ossus, and I knew
even then that he had been my mother's
second great love. Because I remembered

Sith War. The Sith War concluded when my
mother stripped Ulic of his Force powers,
and Exar Kun was destroyed on Yavin 4.
Many Jedi would prefer that the story
ended there, so that it might continue
to serve as a perfect cautionary tale for
those who consider walking the dark path
However, Ulic's story did continue.

A decade after the Sith War, during the
Jedli Convocation at Exis Station, | was a
rebellious teenager and eager to learn the
ways of the Jedi. Although my mother had
insisted that | apprentice to her, she was
often preoccupied by her duties as a leader
in the Republic and a spokesperson for
the Jedi Knights. I admit | felt neglected,
but | was also determined to become a
Jedl. 1 cannot explain my reasoning, but
when I overheard the Jedi Sylvar remark
that Uiic Gel-Droma had gone from being
the greatest Jedi Knight of his era toin
Syhar's opinion—a war criminal who
wandered free and unpunished, | realized
that | wanted to be trained by Ulic.

Iwasnot so desperate to gain knowledge
that | would seek it from the man who had
killed S0 many—including Sylvar's mate,
the Jedi Crado—during the Sith War. Nor
was I trying to spurn my mother or attract
her attention. | maintain it was something in

t0 associate him with the man he became,

Ui,
Although | knew he was no longer the man
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I remembered from my childhood, I sensed
that | would find there was still goodness in
him, and that he would be a great teacher.

A spacer named Hoggon delivered me
to the frozen, desolate world Rhen Var,
where | found Ulic in an abandoned city.
The lost look in his gaze would have been
an obvious sign to anyone that he was a
shattered being, ravaged by guilt and
regret. 1imagined his only reason for being
on Rhen Var was that he found it a sitable
place to die. After I identified myself and
explained why Id sought him out, he told
me to go home. Soon afterward, I became
lost in a blizzard, but Ulic saved me. As
much as he believed he had nothing to
offer me, I was convinced that he had to
be my teacher. With great reluctance, he
finally accepted.

And despite his inability to feel the
Force, he taught me how to understand
it. Although he was no longer capable of
buildling a lightsaber, he instructed me to
‘construct my own. From him, | learned that
there isn't a rule book or a simple test to
take to become a Jedi Master; one can only
achieve this by facing ordeals, making life-
and-death choices, and then facing more
ordeals.  believe my time with Ulic gave him
2 sense of purpose he had not felt since he.
was a Jedi. By the time my anxious mother
tracked us to Rhen Var; | was 3 Jed.

Unfortunately, Hoggon had identified
Ulic, and he alerted the vengetul Sylvar;
together they arrived shortly after my
mother Sylvar attacked Uiic, but he refused
to fight her, and his example convinced her
that she had, over the years, become a
pawn of her own emotions. Although Ulic
freed Sylvar of her anger. he was unable to
anticipate or dodge the blaster fired by the
glory-seeking Hoggon.

My mother held Uiic as he died, and

to our astonishment his body vanished,
leaving my mother clutching at his emoty,
ragged clothes. Ulic may no longer have
been able to touch the Force, but he
understood it more than any of us.

He had the heart of a Jed|

FOUR STAGES OF |
THE DARK SIDE

D espite vima sunider's convictons, not al e
agreed with her assessment that Uic Gel-Droma
had redeemed himselt One such Jedi was Master
Tolris Shim, a contemperary of Gel-Droma, who
made the following recording ten years prir to
Gel-roma'sdeath

have been asked to provide an
explanation for how Ulic Gel-Droma, who
sought to destroy the Krath and the Sith,
became a Sith Lord and a committer of
fratricide. While certain  influences and
circumstances may have seemed specific
to Gel-Droma’s transition from Jedi to Sith
Lord, an objective analysis suggests that
his transition to the dark side was not so
unique.

Whether by accident, inciination, or
misdirection from others, even the most
discilined Force-user eventually steps
onto the path that leads to the dark side.
This gateway to corruption is paved with
good intentions, more frequently traveled
25 a means to efficiently achieve a desired
result than to accomplish deliberate evil

Because Force-users who crave power,
embrace hatred, seek revenge, and suffer
tragedy are especially susceptible to
being lured toward the dark side, some
members of our Order have proposed that
Force-sensitive beings should somehow
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be identified and conscripted at infancy,

stronger and more reliable Jedi, the
notion of recruiting babies to our cause is
obviously controversial. Opponents to the.
‘proposal are quick to note that the historic
record ists numerous Jedi who raised their
own children in the Jedi ways with mixed
results. Because even these Jedi-trained
offspring were not entirely immune to the
lure of the dark side, it seems that even
3 lifetime of training is no guarantee to
prevent casualties.

The dark path is experienced in four
stages: temptation, imperiiment, ~sub~
mission, and atonement or redemtion.
To those who believe they are immune to
any of these stages, just as Ulic Gel-Droma
may have believed himself immune, I say
you are already victim to the dark side’s
seductive tendis, and urge you to listen
5 you have never listened before.

First stage: temptation. Because you are
a2 Jedi and possess Force powers, ol
will find yourself in situations in which
youmay be tempted to use or demonstrate
your abilties, to rush to the aid of an ally,
confront apparent dangers, or resolve
differences hastily. But if you are prone to
action before patience, to draw blood first
and ask questions later; you will step onto
the dark path.

Second stage: imperiiment. A Jedi must
know when to act and when to wait. A Jedi
cannot be indecisive, nor can a Jedi take a
detour onto the dark path and expect to
findl a guidepost that willreturn him to the
light. If you obsess about doing the right
thing no matter what the cost may be, and
believe you can maintain at least some
semblance of the light when you finally

make your decision, you are imperiled to
remain upon or revisit the dark path. If
you accept the dark side of the Force as
2 means to power, you are most likely not
concerned about taking the next step.

Thirdstage: submission. Onceyouaccept
the dark path, you may no longer believe
there is any need to justify your actions. If
you are at all aware of how far you have
strayed from the ways of the Jedi, you may
be merely tainted by the derk side but
might stilfind a way to return to the light.
If you find it liberating and exhilarating to
give yourselffully to the dark side, then you
are a Dark Jedl, and it s the responsibility
of your former allies to either stop you or
attempt to bring you back to the light.

Fourth stage: atonement or redemption.
Through a period of meditation, refiection,
and absolution, a Jedi who is tainted by
the derk side can atone for her actions.
A Dark Jedi cannot atone, but may find
redemption by turning away from the
dlark side and performing a selfless act of
heroism without calling upon the dark side
of the Force. A Dark Jedi who has no desire
torelinquish the power of the dark side and
return to the light cannot be redeemed.

The possibility of atonement or redemp-
tion has led various Jedi to believe that
they could control their journey on the
dark path in order to conquer evil. None
has ever succeeded.

Do encourage that you avert your gaze.
from the shadows? No, I do not! Nor do 1
suggest that you blind yourself by the light.
1 merely say that one cannot avoid the
darkness unless one knows where it lies and/
the routes that lead to it, and that a Jedi is
ultimately responsible for his powers. Trust
that even the most learned Jedi Master must
always be mindfl of the dark path.

May the Force be with you.
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THE
REFORMATION
OF REVAN

past five decades that our Order did not
foresee. First the Jedi Knights Exar Kun and
Ulic Gel-Droma proclaimed themselves Sith
Lords, then—some thirty-six years later—
Revan and Malak did the same. Besides the

€.3951 8.

Author: Deesra Luur Jada

It has been five long years since the
destruction ofthe Jedienclave on Dantooine,
and only now am | able to return. It grieves
me to see what remains of the enclave.
Ruins and rubble. What wasn't leveled by
Darth Malak has been plundered by the
now vanquished Sith occupiers and the fess
reputable of the surviving natives. Although
1 trust that my predecessor, Master Dorak.
the former official chronicier of the enclave,
would have looked upon these remains
without & pained expression, | wonder if
it is not for the best that he did not live
to see this. It was no secret how much he
considered the enclave a part of himself.

When | became a Jedi historian, |
expected my days would be filled with the
study of ancient mediations and batles, not
a5 a chronicler of current events or an ar-
chaeologist of recent history. Increasingly.
1 feel like nothing more than a necrologist,
dispatching weekly obituaries to the
archives on Ossus. | remain conscientious
of my work, for all the good it has done.
Just today. | found myself correcting &
young Padawan and some locals who were
Speaking of “the day the Sith Lords Malak
and Revan assaulted Dantooine.” Perhaps it
really doesn't matter to the locals whether
only Malak was responsible, but it should
matter to the Jedi.

1 never foresaw that I would live in such
times. But then there has been much in the

fact that il were
that Exar Kun, Revan, and Malak al trained
on Dantooine.

Was history repeating itself? No, I think.
not, as these men had different motives
for becoming Sith Lords. Exar Kun craved
forbidden knowledge, and the misguided
Gel-Droma sought to destroy the Sith
from within; they forged an alliance with
the Mandalorian warriors and started a war
with the Jedi. Revan and Malak, on the other
hand, were at war with the Mandalorians
after Exar Kun and Gel-Droma had been
defeated, and...well Revan and Malak
were frustrated soldlers. | knew they were.
restless in their desires to defend  the
Republic, and when they attempted to stop
the Mandalorians from conquering more
fringe worlds, they were outraged by the
Jedi Council's instructions to use caution
and meditate on the situation.

Did anyone foresee that they would
openly defy the Council, use the Manda-
lorians’ own tactics to defeat them, then
become warlords? That they would lead
not only the surviving Mandalorians, but

throughout the Mandalorian Wars? Or that
they would discover relics created by the
pre-Republic Rakata civilization as well as
numerous Sith artifacts, and use these in
combination with their dark sice powers to
very nearly crush the Republic? That they
would prociaim themselves the new Dark
Lords of the Sith—Darth Revan and Darth
Malak—and revive a Sith Academy on the
Sith tombworld of Korriban?
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rtured and transformed

that his transformation was




but killed Darth Malak and destroyed the
Star Forge as el

IF only the Sith threat had ended there.
Since the destuction of the Star Forge,
there have been reports of the existence
of others, Sith calling themselves Darth
Traya, Darth Sion, and Darth Nihilus. An
unconfirmed report suggests that Nihilus
was responsible for the catastrophe that
killed al life on the planet Katarr last year,
including the entire Jedi Convocation that
had gathered there to discuss the future of
our Order. It was there that Master Dorak

Dantooine, Masters Zez-Kai Ell, Kavar, and
Vrook Lamar all fell to Darth Traya,

Do / think Revan redeemed himself? |
don't know that it s the place of a historian
to make such a judgment, and I shallleave

ensured that Revan could never entirely
be the same man who conquered the
Mandalorians and became a Sith Lord. But
it was this new Revan, when he chose not
to return to the dark side, who ultimately
chose to reform on his own terms.

We will never be able to restore the Jedi
enclave that was on Dantooine, but Revan's
‘example encourages me to rebuild.

ADDENDUM BY r

TIONNE SOLUSAR

Today only ruins remain of the enclave on
Dantooine. Carbon tests have determined
that some structures were built more than a
century after Deesra Luur Jada’s recording,
indicating that the enclave was rebuilt, but
eventually fell into disuse.

THE DARK JEDI |
CONFLICT ___

The crest Hoiocron indicates the existence of
an ancient Sith fortress on the planet Almas in the
Cularin system, which was also the site of a Jedi
academy. Evidently, the Jedi first became aware
of this fortress during the New Sith Wars, when
they tracked Darth Rivan to Almas. Rivan had used
the Force to begin terraforming the previously
poisonous world, and also created an alchemical
bond between his commanders and their roops.
The Jedi hunted Rivan down and kiled him,
but abandoned Almas and left the Sith fortress
standing. They may not have had much choice: the
fortress was and is impervious to blasterfire.

It seems the Jedi and the Republic forgot about
the Cularin system until nearly three centuries
290, when the near-human explorer Reidi Artom
rediscovered Cularin and visited Almas. An entry
from Artom’s logbook, dated 232 ., provides a
vivid description of her view of the Sith fortress
from orbit:

Circling over the fourth planet, I am
coming toward a devastated wasteland. A
few greenish purple plants grow here, but
that's it. In the center, part of & buiing

of the structure below the ground. There's
something strange about the place. I can
feel it, even from here. A Jedi would say that
the Force is strong in this place. | don't know
about that, but it sure is creepy. The green-
purple grasses don't grow anywhere near it
The structure is mad from some kind of
stone, all black. There aren't any entrances
or windows of any kind s far as I can see.
Sensors cannot penetrate the interior.
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Greetings, my friends.

As you know, it has been two weeks
since academy headmaster Nerra Ziveri
disappeared. His last known position was
on the far side of Almas, at the Sith temple.
What you may not know is that for some
vears, Master Nerra had turned much of his
attention to probing the fortress's dark side
aura in earnest. His final communication
was with me, telling me to take charge of
the academy.

Yes. Yes, I know what many of you
are thinking. You are recalling an earlier
disappearance, and you are imagining the
worst. But we have several new students in
our presence, students who are unfamiliar
with the precedent, and must now know
the story of Kibh Jeen.

One hundred  thirty-five years ago,
the Council sent the Jedi Gornah and his
Padawan, the Jedi consular Kibh Jeen,
Whatever it 1s -samicone ehutis going to Almas. They traveled by shuttle, with

Qornah as the pilot. Their mission was

to have to find out. I'm going to follow a
Hindh st isnd to examine and explore the Sith temple,
which—though long dormant—continued
to radiate evil. There was some urgency to

ventually, more spacers leared of the Cularin
system, and colonization began. By 188 sa.v. a
team of Jedi noted that they, too, had sensed the
powerful infection of the dark side surrounding
the fortress on Almas. That same year, the Jedi
Council dispatched two Jedi to investigate. What
happened next became a tale told to each new

the mission, because many colonists were
arriving in the Cularin system at the time.
But the same day that Gornah and Kibh
Jeen touched down on Aimas, Qornah died
and Kibh Jeen vanished.

Months later, another Jedi team dis-
covered Qornaty's remains. Therewas nosign
of Kibh Jeen or the shuttle. Because there
were no known eyewitnesses to whatever
had transpired on Almas, the Jedi Council
sent the most powerful psychometrics to
trace the paths and reconstruct the actions
of both the dead and missing Jedl. What
these psychometrics learned was shocking.

generation of Jedi at the Almas academy, which
was founded eleven years ater the arrival of the
Jedi investigators.




After Gornah and Kibh Jeen had landed
their shuttle on Almas, they walked toward
the haif-buried fortress. As Qornah probed
the area with the Force, he did not hear
the whispers  that pressed against his
apprentice’s mind. Kibh Jeen succumbed
to these whispered temptations, cutting
his Master down from behind. Then,
stepping over Qornah's corpse, Kibh Jeen
approached the walls of the fortress and
disappeared.

Jeen rematerialized shortly before the.

there always being no more or less than
two Sith

After this regrettable incident, the Jedi
decided to maintain a permanent presence
near the fortress to study it and attempt
to ward off its evil. Our academy is now
over 130 years old, and from what | have
gathered the fortress remains, as ever, a
malevolent entity that we can only continue
to monitor from a distance.

1know some of you may be eager to find
out what happened to Master Nerra Ziveri

arrivalof
body. Evidently he had accessed the Sith
fortress, and gained much knowiedge.
Taking the shuttle, he set off across space.
There, the psychometrics account ends

others to his service. Soon he had built an
army, and he unleashed his forces on the
floating cities of Genarius, the third planet
in the Cularin system. Thousands died. This
assault launched the Dark Jeds Confiict.
For seven years, Kibh Jeen and his
mindless soldiers dominated the Cularin
System. Their warships stopped or attacked
all incoming transports, then disappeared
to their hiding places in the asteroid belt.
No one could find them, let alone eliminate

than wondering, and it is discomforting
that we are left with so many questions.
Was the power of the dark side strong on
this world before the arrival of the Sith Lord
who built the fortress? Was the fortress
entirely responsibe for transforming Kibh
Jeen into a Dark Jedi, or was there already
a darkness lurking within him? Were Kibh
Jeen's dying words about the Sith a threat
or a warning? Should we expect the return
of Master Nerra Ziveri, or count him among
the dead?

Only this 1 know for certain. Although
the answers may be found within that
fortress, these are not answers we should

casualty, and let us be patient. For though
‘patience can be difficult, it is by the will of
the Force that we shall wait.

them. Jedi Master Lanius Qel-Bertuk retained his
position as headmaster at the Almas academy
during the Clone Wars after he relinquished his
lightsaber and refused to serve in the Republic
army. The academy was destroyed during the Jedi
Purge, and it is presumed that Master Lanius was
killed. The Sith fortress remains standing, and Jedi
are prohibited from venturing near it. The fate of
Jedi Master Nerra Ziveri remains a mystery.

Finally, a Jedi Knight and her Padawan
came to Cularin. After they organized the
System'sinhabitants and trading companies
tobuild an armada, the Jedi used the Force
to locate the pirates and lure them into
a trap. The pirate fleet was crushed, and
Kibh Jeen did not escape. Before he died,
he was heard spouting gibberish about
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THE CONVERSION
OF COUNT DOOKU

When the sedi Master Count Dooku renounced
the Jed Order n 32 ... he made a brif offcil
statement, which i preserved on the Great

Holocron:
For many years, I have served the Jedi
Order and done my best to honor the
traditions of the Jedi. Today | am compelled

t0 announce that | am leaving the Order
It is not unreasonable for anyone to
wonder why | have decided to leave at this
time. Yes, | am aware of various allegedly
discreet queries from those  searching
for a reason. The recent, tragic loss of my

Following Count Dooku’s announcement, the
recently elected Supreme Chancellor Palpatine
sent the following message to the Jedi Council
Forgive me, members of the Council, for
Ifear 1may be overstepping the boundaries
of proper protocol. | have learned that
Jedi Master Dooku intends to leave the
Jedi Order. I only wish to express that |
am saddened to learn of his decision, and/
hope that his departure is ot a painful
one. I regret I only met him a few times,
but certainly knew his reputation and
even admired him, even if I dldn't entirely
agree with his criticisms of the Senate.
Because Dooku has become something
of & public figure, Ive been asked by a
‘media representative for a comment on his

former pupi, Qui-Gon Jinn?
Baltizaar? My highly publicized criticisms
of an increasingly corrupt Senate? Some
of my contemporaries have suggested that
seeds of discontent were planted twelve
years ago, at the Battle of Galidraan. While |
cannot deny that these events have left their
mark on me, I will only allow that the time
has come that I can no longer be a Jedl.

As most of you are aware, financial re-
Sources are at my disposal on my home-
world, Serenno. While I would like to think
my many years of devoted service to the
Order disavows any notions  that | am
vielding to economic circumstances, I will
enlighten those who don't know me so well
with a certain piece of wisdom that | have
always found true: money creates as many
‘Droblems as it does opportunities.

It is my plan to return to Serenno and
serve my people as a philanthropist. It is
my last request as a Jedi Master that you
respect my decision, as well as my privacy.

Good-bye, old friends, and may the Force
be with you.

but 1 think it
I make no comment. I don't know if there
is anything my office can do to help the
Order at this time, but please know that /d
be happy to do whatever | can.

It remains unknown whether Palpatine’s alter
g0, the Sith Lord Darth Sidious, recruited Count
Dooku as his apprentice before o after Dooku left
the Jedi Order. And unlike other Jedi who have
taken the path to the dark side. Dooku remains
Something of an enigma. If he craved power in his
youth, he was extremely discreet. According to
various records, it seems most Jedi were unaware
of his astronomical wealth until after he left the
Order. After his long tenure as a Jedi Master, he
was well past middle age when he became a Sith
apprentice. Was Dooku merely a very powerful
man who wanted more power, or did he have a
secret agenda?

Despite Dooku's dismissal of any specific fac-
tors that may have contributed to his decision to
leave the Order, one can assume that the death of
Qui-Gon Jinn did not weigh heavily on his decision.
Because Dooku was undoubtedly aware of the




report that Qui-Gon Jinn had been slain by a Sith
Lord, one can conclude that he chose to become
anapprentice to Darth Sidious despite the way Qui-
Gon died. As for his public criticisms of the Senate,
these were stated shortly after the Battle of Naboo,
when Dooku probably had already joined forces
with Darth Sidious. However,if one is to search for
any seeds of discontent that may have led Dooku
to the dark side, the conflicts on both Galidraan
and Baltizaar bear some examination.

According to records from 44 sav.. the
incident on Galidraan began when the Jedi Council
received an urgent message from the governor of
Galidraan, who claimed that an army of Mandalorian
mercenaries was slaughtering political prisoners,
women, and children on his world. Master Dooku
led a contingent of twenty Jedi to Galidraan and
commanded the Mandalorians to surrender. The
Mandalorians refused and a melee ensued, leaving
eleven Jedi and all but one of the Mandalorians
dead. The surviving Mandalorian was Jango Fett,
Who was turned over to the governor of Galidraan,

One of the surviving Jedi at Galidraan was
Dooky's final Padawan, a female human named
Komari Vosa. According to an official report, Komari
Vosa personally vanquished twenty Mandalorians
on Galidraan, and Dooku praised her openly,
predicting an eventful future for her. However,
Vosa's fighting skills were not yet sufficient to
quarantee her promotion to Jedi Knight, and
shortly after the Battle of Galidraan it was Dooku
himself who denied Vosa the opportunity to take
the trials for Jedi Knighthood.

Although Komari Vosa was released from the
Jedi Order, she somehow joined a group of Jedi
on a rescue mission to Baltizaar in the year 39

An excerpt follows:

With all due respect, I urge the Council
to consider our responsibility to the Jed
a5 well s to the Republic. To send our
brethren to any world at a moment's notice
may bring approval from the Senate, but
does it honor those who fell at Galidraan?
1am not a fatalist, nor am I suggesting that
we embrace the bureaucracy of the Senate
252 means to determine whom we can and
cannot save, but | am concerned that we
allow ourselves to serve without question.
Yes, the Bando Gora are criminals, but s it
ot criminal to squander the lives of Jedi
o missions that are so obviously doomed
from the start?

As passionately sincere as this protest may
sound, it may be nothing more than a testament
to Dooku's legendary charisma. At some point, he
begantoreconsider the value of Jedilives, for twelve
vears after the Battle of Galidraan he conscripted
Jango Fett as the template for the clone army that
virtually eliminated the Jedi Order.

Some scholars have suggested that it was by
the will of the Force that the lives of Dooku and
Fett intersected as they did, but it should be noted
that Darth Sidious also played a crucial role in their
alliance. Had not Darth Sidious conscripted such a
weaithy and infiuential apprentice when he did, it
seems doubtful that he could have orchestrated a
‘galactic war within such a relatively short period of
time. Althoughit can be surmised that Darth Sidious
needed Dooku much more than Dooku needed
Darth Sidious, the historical record shows that the
needs of Darth Sidious—while acting as Palpatine—

ssx. after
cult of criminals known as the Bando Gora. Like
the mission to Galidraan, many Jedi perished on
Baltizaar, and it is believed that Vosa was among
the casualties. It is not known whether Dooku was
‘aware of his former Padawan's actions on Baltizaar,
but he did submit a protest with the Jedi Council

had changed by to
test Count Dooku against Anakin Skywalker.

still, many questions remain. Why did Dooku,
an idealist with considerable wealth and power,
and a Jedi who had studied the ways of the Force
for almost eight decades, ally himself with Darth
Sidious? Was Dooku ever sincere about his outrage
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over the loss of Jedi at Galidraan and Baltizaar,
or was he preparing for an eventual scheme to
exterminate the Jedi long before he left the Order?
And if Dooku even slightly foresaw that he might
be replaced by Anakin Skywalker, did he accept
this fate for the glory of the Sith? The answers may
always remain a mystery.

DARK SIDE
DISCIPLES

A Darth sidious's Sith apprentice, Darth Tyranus
was compelled to abide by the Rule of Two and

didi not have a Sith apprentice of his own. However,
Tyranus trained at least one disciple, Asaij Ventress,
in the ways of the dark side, and also inst

ucted the
cyborg General Grievous in the art of lightsaber
comb

. Before his Sith identity became known to
the Jedi, Tyranus—maintaining his public persona of
Cou

Dooku~also attempted to corrupt the Jedi
Master Quinlan Vos. Obi-Wan Kenobi encountered
all of these individuals, and wrote of them in a

book that Luke Skywalker recovered from Kenobi's
home on Tatooine.

Two days ago, on one of my walks, |
came across the twisted,

thered husic
of a short desert plant that had grown in
the shadows of a dlusty rock formation.

Yesterday 1 passed the same plant again
and noticed it had flowered sm:
petals, flecked with dark gray. This
morning, | was surprised to find the entire
plant had vanished. Even though | knew
some creature had probably eaten it, I felt

a sense of loss that surprised
thought of Asajj Ventress.
I've already w

ten instructions for how
to build a

lightsaber. Now 1 find myself

compelled to write something of the

ho use them.

m the history
Gatabooks, the Sith have wielded light

sabers forat least four thousand years. They




jeved to have been extinct

were long b
untiljust sixteen years ago, when my Master
andl ueled with an Iridonian Zabrak who
used a double-bladed lightsaber. This Sith
killed my Master, and then I killed him in

self-defense.

Ten years later. my apprentice Anakin
Skywalker and | dueled Count Dooku at
the Battle of Geonosis. The leader of the
Separatist movement, Dooku was a former
Jedi Master who—we realized too late—
had turned to the dark side. This was most
unfortunate, not only because Dooku had
been a revered Jedi, but also because he
swordsman. Dooku escaped
at the Battle of Geonosis, but not before
he informed me that a Sith Lord was

was a master

manipu the Galactic Senate. Three
devastating years later, | would learn that
he 9 the truth. The Sith Lord was

Supreme Chancellor Palpatine.

s tel

About ten weeks after the Battle of
Geonosis, Anakin and I had our first
encounter with Asajj Ventress. She was
a humanoid, hairless with pale skin, who

wielded two lightsabers simultaneously.
These lightsabers could also be joined at
the handes to create a double-bladed
apon. Before she attacked, she told me.

that she had emerged from misery and
suffering, only to find the Jedi she had
once worshiped were nothing but “weak,
misguided fools.” She added that she
agreed with Count Dooku: the galaxy was
in need of a Jedi purge.

Asajj Ventress escaped that day, but not
before she iled one Jedi and maimed his
apprentice. It was obvious by her technique
that she had received training from Dooku.
Over the course of the Clone Wars, Anakin
and I faced off against Ventress on other
worlds. But despite all her fury and murder-
ous inclinations, I always sensed something
within her that distinguished her from the
Sith Lords: an underlying fear. Mostly, it was.
a fear of being alone. And I sensed that there.
was some good in her, some part that had
not been corrupted by Dooku. Where the
Sith Lordis were unquestionably evil Ventress
s Simply a slave to the dark side.
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Eventually, | learned some details of
Ventress's istory. She was bornon Rattatak,
an Outer Rim world so remote that it was
unknown to the Republic. She was stil a
il when her parents were killed by one of

Afeer: Ky

Five months after Ventress's death,
Anakin defeated Dooku in orbit of Corus-
cant, but we were unable to stop Grievous
from fleeing into space. | neglected to
mention that Grievous was a cyborg who
their

Narec becamestranded/on Rattatak, he found
the orphaned Ventress and realized she
was Force-sensitive. Narec trained Ventress
as his apprentice, and apparently trained
her relatively well, for together they de-
feated many criminals. Tragically, a group
of warlords killed Narec, and rather than
honoring the ways of the Jedi, Ventress
sought vengeance. Andonce again, she was
alone. Is it any wonder that she developed
such a supreme hatred for the Jedi Order
that "abandoned” her Master?

At some point, Dooku recruited Ventress

lightsabers as trophies. He was capable of
wielding four lightsabers simultaneously. All
in all, 8 most unpleasant fellow. | defeated
him on Utapau.

And then the Purge began. | would soon
learn that 1 was among the few Jedi to
survive, and that Palpatine had taken a new

the loss of loved ones, and had reason to
distrust the Republic and the Jedi Order:
But when | finally caught up with Vader, |

pendent Systems. Even though Ventress
had killed Jedi and other innocents, |
managed to convey my hope that she
might listen to reason and stop using fear

For
unlike Ventress, Vader was not a victim of
unfortunate circumstances. Yes, he had his
struggles and his shortcomings, but he was
ot a weak being who feared abandonment.

And
1 was still trying to reason with her when
‘she nearly killed me on Boz Pity. She would
have, too, had not Anakin's lightsaber dealt
‘her a mortal blow. Her death, roughly five
months before the Jedi Purge, did nothing
to slow the Clone Wars, for by that time
General Grievous—another of Dooku’s
discioles in lightsaber combat, if not the
Grk side—was already in command of the
Confederacy’s droid armies.

19 thought that Ventress would use
her dying breath to curse me and the Jedi
Order. Instead she cautioned me to defend
Coruscant from Dooku, for that was the
key to victory. Indeed, Dooku and Grievous

opportunities to better himsel, yet he only
craved more power, and chose his own path,
betraying the Jedi and becoming a Sith. He
was my greatest failure.

My duel with Vader was awful in its
savagery. In the end, he was more deter-
mined to kill me than defend himself, and
was blind with fury when | felled hirm. I feft
him maimed and burning on the shores of
a lava river. To have dealt him a killng blow
might have been the merciful thing to do,
but because | am a Jedi and not a cold-
blooded murderer, all | could do was leave
Vader to his fate. Had I killed him then and
there, I believe I would have taken a step

Coruscant.
that 1 might have been right about her all
along. And then she was gone.

that he had found
S0 impossible to resist. But by leaving
him for dead, | fear | failed yet again, for




1 500n learned that Vader had survived, in
o fashion. Like the late General Grievous,
he is mostly machine now, a malevolent
construct of pistons and gears, plastoid
and wires, his mortal remains fueled by
the dark side. The galaxy will never know
peace until Darth Vader and the Emperor
breathe their ast.

Itis hard for me to see what the future
holds.

was the Inquisitor's duty to eradicate him. Inquisitors
2150 s0ught out non-Jed Force-users who might be
turned to the service of the Emperor. To accomplish
their objectives, they were provided with tools and
resources, including ships, troops, weapons, credits,
Force detectors, and torture devices.

Potential Inquisitors were carefully tested and
examined, first by Imperial Intelligence, then by
the Grand Inquisitor, and finally by the Emperor

ongoing studies of the Force to help me be
minaful of the present, as well as the daily
rigors of survival on Tatooine. Whatever
tomorrow may bring, | must be ready for it.

I have collected a small number of
seeds from my desert walks. I think I will
plant them and see what they will grow, in
memory of Asajj Ventress.

himselt.
their ability with the Force without seeming either
t00 powerful or too critical of the Emperor's caus:
as such extremes indicated that an applicant might
be no different from his or her quarry, and could
prove unreliable.

Following the death of Palpatine, most Imperial
Inquisitors—bereft of support and
gradually disappeared from the galaxy.

ADDENDUM 5Y T
TIONNE SOLUSAR )
Records indicate that Obi-Wan Kenobi or-
Gered Ventress's comse transported from
Boz ity to Coruscant for a Jedi cremation
However, the ship bearing Ventress never
arrived at its destination. Investigators sub-
sequently reailzed that she had used a Force
technique to muie her fe signs and achieve
a state of near-death stasis. Her fte remains
anknown.

IMPERIAL
INQUISITORS |

Fotoingthe secimuroe emperorpaipatinereste
the ol of ImperialInquistors,men and women oyel
o im and tasked with hunting down th remaining
Jed i the glany. I a captured Jed would ot urn
o the dark sde and jon Palatine’ New Order t

THE EMPEROR’S
HANDS

Douring nis reign, emperor paipatine retained
Mara Jade as an elte Force-trained assassin who
was known toa elec few as the Emperor' Han,
The New Republic was unaware of the existence
of the Emperor's Hand until 9 As.. when Mora
Jade met Luke Skywalker Mara mad the following
recording three years later, when she visted the
Jedi academy on Yavin 4 while Luke was on a
misson with Corran Horn in the Suarbi systen.
The recording serves s a reminder that even the
most dangerous servants of the Empire have the
capacityfor change;

This is for you, Tionne. I feft you in the.
lurch at the commissary this afternoon.
1'm sorry. If you weren't so busy right now,
149 tell you in person. I'm not much for
apologies or storytelling, but feel like | owe
you some kind of explanation.

m













Just before you found me in the
commissary, I'd experienced an awkward
moment with some new Jedi trainees. Id
noticed three of them doing a lousy job
of pretending that they weren't looking at
me. | walked over to their table and said,
“Something on your minds?” Not really a
question on my part. Thanks to the Force, |
knew what was coming.

Is it true,” one of them said, “that you
used to be Palpatine’s personal assassin?”

Al right, so my history is no fonger a
Secret. But how many times have | been
asked that question at the praxeum?
Enough, Tionne. Enough so that each time.
I hear it, | realize that some people aren't
satisfied with whatever knowledge they
have. They want more. And they feel like
they have to hear it from me.

1 said, “Yeah, it's true. Now tell me who
blabbed so can go cut his head oft"

Well, | thought it was funny. Not the
trainees, though. No, they just cringed and
looked a bit scared. Not a 9ood ook for
prospective Jed.

So then | grabbed some food, sat down
at a bench by myself, and tried to think if
there was some better answer | could have
given. Better yet, some response to make
people just stop asking.

What's kind of funny about all thisis that
when | was Palpatine’s assassin, no one
ever asked about my vocation. Most people
who saw me around the Imperial Palace
just assumed | was there for decoration.
Except for Darth Vader, Grand Moff Tarkin,
¥sanne Isard, and a few other mostly dead
Imperials, no one had any idea of what I
dlid. Maybe some of my targets figured it
out at the last moment. But only some.

1 was still working on my food when you
Joined me. You said you sensed something
was wrong, and asked if | was all right. |

toldl you everything was just terrific, but |
acknowledge that | wasn't very convincing.
You said if I ever wanted to talk youd
be happy to listen, and it might make me
feel better.

I shot you a nasty look as I left the
bench. You didn't deserve that look. { know
you meant well. Again, Im sorry. 1 hope you
understand when | say that talking rarely
makes me feel better. Talking doesn't
change the past. But for some fool reason,
I want to set the record straight with you.

1don't know how much you know about
me, or how much you think you know about
me, but here’s the short version. From
infancy, | was trained in the Force at what
was then the Imperial Palace on Coruscant.
1 have no memories of my parents. The
Emperor's advisers taught me the art of
political intrigue. His spymasters taught
me infiltration techniques. / got my combat
training alongside the Imperial Royal

The Emperor himself trained me
to develop my Force powers, specifically
from the dark side of the Force. | learned
to listen for his telepathic “voice,” which
could hear across the galaxy, and to draw
Strength from his own vast reserves of
power.

The purpose of all this training was, as

private quarters. It was a breeze.

Who were my targets? You name ‘em.
Ambitious planetary governors,  greedy
erime lords, disioyal Imperial officers. Did
1 believe they were threats to the general
‘public? Most of them.

Did  ever feel sorry for them? Emotions
were never part of the job. | was sworn to
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dlo the Emperor’s bidding. | couldn't even
feel sorry for myself if d tried

Did 1 ever miss a target? Yeah. A guy
named Skywalker on Tatooine. You had to
be there.

After | failed that assignment, the Em-
peror ordered me to give up the chase for
the time being, tackle something else. Days
later, I received his final command: You will
Kill Luke Skywalker.

Iknew Palpatine was dead. Can't explain
how much rage I felt. Some people get
steamed f they lose a hand. 1 was the hand,
severed but still twitching, and I'd lost the

And here | thought I was going to give
you the short version.

I'm taking off now, Tionne. Going back to
my job with Karrde. Nothing personal, but |
know myself well enough to know I need to
put some distance between me and Yavin
4for a while. You can share this with Luke if
you want. As for any new trainees, let them
think what they will

Next time we meet, maybe you'l tell me
‘about yourself /'l just listen. Take care.

A few weeks after making this recording, Mara

learned that she had not been the only Emperor’s
Hand.

one person who' me.

Didn't have much time to sulk. Isard
knew about me, saw me as a threat, and
imprisoned me on Coruscant. I escaped.
She sent her best after me. I sent them
back as best | could.

Went to the Outer Rim Territories. Hop-
Pped around from world to world. Worked
under various  identities. | was Merells,
2 come-up flector for a swoop gang on
Caprioril That's where | was when a female.
cyborg found me. She wanted to bring
me back to sard. | dldn't want to go. So
1 didn't. Cyborg got my lightsaber but not
me. Better luck next time.

Kicked around some more, wound
working with Talon Karrde. Finally got

one of Palpatine’s concubines, had also served as
a Force-trained assassin who operated under the
same secret appellation. Uniike Mara, Roganda
claimed a Jedi lineage. Barely escaping the Jedi
Purge, Roganda used her Force powers not only
to survive the Inquisitors but also to achieve high
social status within the Empire. She died in 27 As.v.,
slain by her own mentally unstable son.

After Mara learned about Roganda Ismaren,
1 urged her to help us anticipate future dangers
by recalling others who might have served as
Emperor's Hands. At our next meeting, she allowed
me to record her statement

Now that 1 know | wasn't the only Hand),

alot of my memories feel like they ve taken
2 good kick. For all I know, every courier

y
when 1 killed an ill-mannered clone who
was derived, 5o I'm told, from the cells of a
certain hand lost on Cloud City. Eventually
got an invitation to learn the ways of the
Jedi 1m stil considering it

But let's face it It's hard to fit in when
you're consistently pegged as. the evil
Emperor's former it lady. And despite
Luke's ongoing invitation to learn the ways
of the Jedi here, I'm not really sure | want
o fitin.

2
Hand, and every one of them was unaware
of the fact that the Emperor had more
Hands than a dianoga has tentacles.
But/canrecall one particular encounter
with absolute clority. Remember the female.
cyborg 1 mentioned, the one I fought on
Caprioril? I'd seen her once before, a few
months before Palpatine died. At Endor,
thatis. Iwas with Palpatine in his chamberat
the Imperial Palace when she was ushered
in by Darth Vader. She was covered head-




to-heel in metallic circuitry, and | thought
she and Vader made quite a pair. Hard to
forget 2 build like that. Her eyes were &
cold gray and might have been the original
items, but her head was so shiny, | could
see myself reflected back off her skull.

The Emperor had asked me to leave
then. Being merely an extension of his
will, | obeyed. But as | passed the woman,
1 felt an immediate, inexplicable, and to-
tal animosity for her, ar
the feeling was mutual. An

cyborg’s transparisteel gaze... | could tell

1 also sensed

behind that

she was mocking me, silently laughing at
me. Like she knew something that I dldn't
and the joke was or

 me.

And as I stepped out of the chamber,
I peripherally heard Palpatine cackle:
‘Come, Lumiya. You will be an extension of

Seems pretty obvious now, doesn't it

Subsequent research has determined there
were at least five more Emperor's Hands, some of
whom may have also been under the impression
that they were unique in their relationship to

atine. They include the resurrected leader of
the Legions of Lettow (following Xendor's death),

n Lyn; the failed Jedi student Sarcev Quest;
the hulking Jeng Droga, who piloted the Emperor's
shuttle; Maarek Stele, the former swoop pilot who

became a TIE

ighter ace; and Cronal, the former
Prophet of the Dark Side who became the Imperial
Intelligence agent Bl

hole.

While there has been no account of Maarek
Stele or Blackhole in decades, five of the seven
aforementioned Emperor's Hands are dead. Arden
Lyn was killed by the resurrected Palpatine in 10

. Sarcev Quest was reportedly executed by
Jeng Droga in 23 4a.v; that same year, Jeng Droga
was slain by Kyle Katarn. And most recently, Luke
Skywalker killed Lumiya after the unsolved murder
of Mara Jade.

UNDER EXAR
KUN'S INFLUENCE

Master Skywalker asked me to talk
about my experience with the dark side.
1 guess he's hoping that other students, if
they hear me tell about what happened,
they might not go down the dark path like
I dlic. If anyone can learn from me, that's
great, but to be honest, I think its. . well
it's probably very unlikely that anyone can

make the same mistakes | made. | mean,

how often does a Jedi get p

ossessed by a
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Sith spirit and get his hands on a weapon
ke the Sun Crusher?

Sorry, possessed isn't totally right, at
least that's not how it was at first. Maybe
1 should back up a bit, talk about what
happened before | became a Jedi.

My parents were political resisters.
The Empire put my parents and me in the

*

1 regret that I did not heed my Mas-
ters’ cautions, that 1 took the situation
personally. and regarded it as something
like & challenge. No matter what my
Masters said, | actually believed that Han
and Leia would die if | didn't 9o to them
immediately. There was also the matter of
dealing with Vader. It was so hard not to

brother in the Imperial Military Academy
on Caride.

I recognized the dark side when
Exar Kun whispered in my ear, but | was
S0 overconfident, | thought I could resist
where even Anakin Skywalker had failed.
But the dark side swallowed me whole, and
left me wishing I could just be free of my
Jedi talent so | wouldn't have to fear what |
might do with it.

LUKE SKYWALKER
ON THE DARK SIDE

Recorded at the Jedi praxeum on Yavin 4 in 11 as.v.
Author: Luke Skywalker

During my training with my Master,
Yoda, on Dagobah, I had a vision of Leia,
Han, and Chewbaccain a city in the clouds.
They were in pain. Yoo told me it was the
future Id seen, and that f 1 eft Dagobah, |
might help my friends or possibly destroy
all for which they had fought and suffered.
I chose to leave against the advice of both
Yoda and the spirit of Obi-Wan Kenobi,
who told me | would be tempted by the
dlark side. Somehow they sensed I would
confront Darth Vader at Cloud City. Obi-
Wan had told me that Vader killed my
father, so | believed he thought I might be
seeking revenge.

him. | didn’t know if 1 could stop Vader, but
1 was prepared to sacrifice myself to save
my friends. I thought the dark side was
something I could handle, an adversary
that I could ultimately conquer.

1 was wrong. And | walked right into
vader's trap.

Vader had captured my friends to lure
me to Cloud City. He was waiting for me,
and 1 was unprepared for our duel. He
didn't just beat me. He ruined me. And
when he was done, he told me that he was
ot the man who'd killed my father; he was
my father. He tempted me with the power
of the dark side, invited me to join with him
against the Emperor so that we could rule
the galaxy together

And even though 1 was still in shock
from the physical wounds inflicted by
Vader as well as his monstrous claim, |
sensed he was telling me the truth about
our relationship. I also knew his invitation
was legitimate. To my horror, it seemed, for
2 moment, that accepting his offer would
e a logical move, the only one that might
ensure I survive the hour. It even flashed
through my mind that | could pretend to
ally with him, then attempt to escape at
a later time. Yet somehow instinctively, |
knew such a desperate plan would fai, and
that | could never join him. | also knew that
1had to get away from him immediately.

‘Back on Dagobah, 1 never envisioned
that I would be the one who needed to be




rescued. 1 barely managed to escape Vader,
and would have died if Leia—who'd already.
gotten away on the Millennium Falcon—
hadn't responded to my telepathic plea.
What did 1 accomplish at Cloud City?
Except for gaining devastating knowledge
about my lineage and the dark side’s hold
on my father, practically nothing. | didn't
save Han, and I only further endangered
Leia and the others on the Falcon by
urging them return to Cloud City to get
me. In hindsight, | believe there was only
‘one thing I'd done right: I refused Vader's

to the dark side. I did so for a variety of
reasons, some of which seemed to make
sense at the time, and many of which still
cause me difficulty. But | had to doit. | had
to know my father. I had to know why he
chose the dark side.

The powers of control and destruction
weren't the only things | found in the
dlark side. | also found great isolation and
Sadness. | found fear: These are the feelings
my father fel, the feelings even the Emperor.
felt, in his moments of darkest triumph.

What | experienced has given me an
the dark side that i vital

at the time, for | had also learned that my.
Masters were right, that my Jedi training
was far from over...and that | was not
immune to the dark side.

Just as those who are not predisposed.
to dishonesty might fleetingly consider the
thoughts of thieves, the noblest of Force-
users are vulnerable to the dark side. You
may not think yourself especially curious,
‘easily angered, or envious, but the dark side
is 2 strong seducer. It is a power that draws
from subconscious fears, plays off innocent
desires, and feeds off selfish thoughts to

to the fight against it. More importantly,
the love of my sister and my friends drew
me back. It redeemed me. Even the foulest
victim of the drk side can be redeemed.
My experience also taught me that the
dork side cannot be conquered, no more
than the light side can be extinguished.
You can fight the dark side and even
have victories, but the battle itself can
never really end. Learn from the lessons
others have endured, so their strength can
become your strength

intoa

You will find, at some point, that the
dark side will speak to you. It s seductive,
offering you everything with little effort on
your part. But you can identify it by your
own emotions. If you use the knowledge
of its presence for enlightenment, to help
others, it may be from the light side. But
if you use it for your own advancement,
out of anger or revenge, then the power
s tainted Don't use it. You will know when
you are calm, passive.

Master Yoda said that once you start
down the dark path, it willforever dominate
your destiny. And yet during the time of
Palpatine’s return as a clone, I went over

ADDENDUM BY

TIONNE SOLUSAR |

During the period he spent with Palpatine’s
clone, Luke Skywalker also gained insights
into the dark side by reading Palpatine’s
books. It was not until 35 as.v. that he learned
that Anakin Skywalker had feared for the life
of his wife, Padmé Amidala, and had become.
convinced by Palpatine that knowledge of the.
Gark side was the key to learning to achieve
immortality. Although Luke maintains that
‘even the foulest victim of the dark side’
an find redemption, it should be noted that
various Jedi do not share this belief:
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Today th sitn are regarded as their own Orcer
but the word Sith has changed in meaning over
the millenni, Before the Dark Jeds known a5 the
Exies arrived on the planat Korriban in Sith space
and prociimed themselves ith Lorc, the original
Sith were a species of proud, violent warrors.
Characterized by crimson hices, glowing yellow
eyes, and ferce, predatory profies, the Sith other-
wise appearedt s faily typical umanoids.Pimitve,
supersitous, and barely civlzed, the Sith readly
accepted the Exies as gods but also maintained a
crude castssystem based on theirmany subspecies;
the wario caste, known as the Massassi, became
thefoot solders of the Sth Empire

The Sith devoted themselves to viorshping
ther new masters, who honed theirbatte arts and
expanded their empie to neignboring worlds and
sar systems. Becausethe renegade Jedi were exied
from the OId Repubic before the development of
persona biaste technology, it is only natural that
Wwespons of the Sth Empie would take a ifferent
course of evolution. Scholars continue o dispute
whether the Exies arived inSith space with archac
ightsabers, bu it s understood that the Sith Empre
exploredaichemical metalray toprociuce mysically
Honed Sith swords, which—ike lightsabers—could
defiect enercized beams and bots, but cid ot
reauire power packs or eneray cells

Eversincethe SithLord Naga Sadow edthe Sth
armies back to Republic space o launch the Great
Hyperspace War, there have been many battles

T

PART FOUR

SITH

1OR

TIONNE SOLUSAR.

written o rewritten by the victors of such battles,
and most can only imagine how the Sith might
have chronicled their confrontations with the Jedi.
Although it is hoped that the recently discovered
Telos Holocron might reveal previously unknown
details about the Sith, the device's contents remain
inaccessible to contemporary Jedi. Because other
Holocrons can be accessed by any Force-sensitive
being, we must consider the possibility that this is
not an ordinary Holocron, and that it is locked to
those who might use it to undermine the Sith.

| know the Telos Holocron is more than a
tantalizing puzzle, and it may prove more hazardous
than valuable. If it was engineered to yield infor-
mation only to a Jedi who craves the power of the
dark side, we may be left with no other option but
to destroy it

THE DARTH TITLE |

Recorded 40 Ay
Author: Agent Gannod Chant, special investigatory
agent for the Council on Security and Intelligence,
transiator of the Ingo Waviud Manuscript

Many of the ar Loras of the sitn chose to
ad the Darth honorific o their name. The very
word has become synonymous with the wonrous
power of the dark sde. However, the oriins of the

between thy History is most often

as nothing
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more than a contraction of Dark Lord of the Sith,
there is some evidence for a deeper interpretation
of the term.

Darth Revan and Darth Malak are generally
believed to be the first Dark Lords to have used
the title. Given that much of their power was
derived from the Star Forge, a creation of the
extinct Rakata species, some historians see Darth
s a corruption of Daritha, the Rakatan word for
“emperor” Similarly, others note that the word for
onuest” in Rakatan is arr; and the
‘death” is tah. This has led to theories.
that Darth is derived from darr tah and means
“triumph over death” or “immortal” A competing
theory asserts that the true meaning of darr tah is
“conquest through death” ... of one's enermies.

Numerous other cultures or species can—and
do—make similar claims to the etymology of the
Darthtitle. Inthe end, however, there is no definitive
answer.

Following Revan and Malak, there was some-
thing of a flurry of so-called Dark Lords who took
the Darth title. These included Darth Bandon, a
former Jedi who was Malak's apprentice, and Darth
Traya, formerly a Jedi Master named Kreia, who
was cast out and succeeded by her apprentices
Darth Sion and Darth Nihilus. Although the Waviud
Manuscript is unclear on details, text indicates that
all of these Dark Lords died in the year 3951 s.0.

The Dartn title does not surface again until
‘approximately 2000 a:.v., with the emergence of
Darth Ruin. It is now believed that Ruin was the
former Jedi Master Phanius, who was long counted
among a relatively small number of "Lost” Jedi
Masters. Darth Ruin was ultimately kiled by his
own followers. A millennia later came Darth Rivan,
a Zelosian who took his name from a corrupted
Sith manuscript that misidentified Darth Revan as
“Darth Rivan, the most powerful Dark Lord of the
Jedi Civil War” Darth Rivan fled into space at the
end of the New Sith Wars, but the Jedi eventually
Kiled him,

In approximately 1000 as.v. the Darth title

was resurrected by Darth Bane, who established
the Rule of Two, and his apprentice, Darth Zannah.
A date of death for Bane and Zannah has yet to
be determined, but it is known that they were
succeeded by Darth Cognus and her apprentice
Darth Millennial. Allegedly, Millennial’s repeated
questioning of the Rule of Two and other laws of
the Sith Order prompted Cognus to end Millennial's
training; because Millennial went on to found the
Prophets of the Dark Side, we can assume that it
was Cognus who was a direct antecedent of those
‘who maintained the Rule of Two.

Approximately one hundred years ago, the
reigning Sith Lord was a Muun known as Darth
Plagueis. Little is known of Plagueis, and it is easily
conceivable that his apprentice, Darth Sidious,
alter ego of the notorious Palpatine, destroyed all
information about him. Darth Sidious proved to be
the grim culmination of a thousand years of Sith
philosophy and teachings. Research indicates that
Sidious served for many decades as the apprentice
of Darth Plagueis, learning diligently at the feet of
his Master.

Sidious also selected a young Iridonian Zabrak
‘named Darth Maul to become his apprentice. Little
is known about the early years of Maul, though it
was clear that he trained for years toward a single
urpose: to become a living weapon that could be
unleashed against the Jedi. When Maul died at the
hands of Obi-Wan Kenobi, however, Sidious was
forced to find another to join him in the service of
the dark side.

For his second apprentice, he chose Count
Dooku, the fast of the infamous Lost Twenty. While
Sidious remained hidden behind the mask of a
politician loyal to the Republic, Dooku became the
Sometimes visible face of the Sith, taking the name
Darth Tyranus and leading a violent Separatist
movement that dragged the Republic into civil
war=—all part of Sidious's grand scheme to bring
himself to power.

During the war against the Separatists, a
fiery young Jedi named Anakin Skywalker rose to




prominence. Having long recognized Skywalker's
potential, Sidious, after elevating himself to Su-
preme Chancellor in his role as Palpatine, betrayed
Darth Tyranus, allowing him to be executed by
Skywalker. This paved the way for Sidious to take
Anakin as his apprentice, corrupting the idealistic
youth until he was transformed into the monstrous
Lord Vader.

With the deaths of both Sidious and Vader,
some thought the teachings of the Sith would be

inexperienced to learn the teachings of the ancients.
Iassure you, these naysayers are in error, and have
gravely misjudged you. The simple fact that you
hear my words now is proof that you are worthy.
No, I am not the first keeper of this Holocron. It
has been passed down through the ages by many
Sith Lords, most of whom left records for your
erudition. Al that we know, we shall share freely
with you. All we ask in return is that you keep an
open mind, and use this knowledge for the benefit
It

lost forever. However, based on my
and our experiences with Sidious—it is clear that

we ask this of you, but out of respect. Of all those

thi of time before

who upon this device, no one

the agents of
beloved New Republic once again.

A
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Although Agent Gannod Chant should be
mmended for his investigation and analysis

of the Wavlud Manuscript, it should be
noted that his mention of Count Dooku as
Darth Sidious’s “second apprentice” may be
erroneous: our limited information about Darth

Sidious does not preclude the possibility that
he had another apprentice before Darth Maul.

GATEKEEPER
OF THE TELOS
HOLOCRON

Gireetngs. my curious renc. Long have 1 hoped
tratsomeone would activate tis Holocro, seeking
information tha you have been unable to ciscover
clsewher. 1 would ot be surprisd f some alleged
acisers have suggested that such knowledoe
s dangerous, and that you s 100 young or

of ige than you.

Though you are wise beyond your years, |
would not be dismayed if you do not recognize
my simulacrum. You see, | have chosen to appear
before you not as | have come to be, but as | was
long ago, when | was young. A vanity perhaps, but
I know from experience that a much older teacher,
no matter how gifted, can appear antiquated, or
even obsolete, and | would be remiss to encourage
You to believe | am or ever was your superior. After
all, you are full of life, and 1. Well, because the
Holocron is now in your hands, | must assume that
1am but a whisper from the past.

So please forgive my youthful facade, which |
hope will only serve you to more readily accept me.
s an equal, an ally, and as a friend.

My name is Palpatine.

There are so many things we must discuss,
but first let us be certain that we share a true
understanding of our history, for only then can we
move on to the future.
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THE CONQUEST
OF SITH SPACE _

Author: Ajunta Pall

To my descendants and those of my
brethren.... Whenyousurvey thegreatness
of our Sith Empire, you may find it pleasing
to gaze down from the highest spires of
our fortresses on Ziost, o to travel from
one already conquered world to the next,
receiving tribute from the subjects you
inherited from your forefathers. But if you
find yourself content to rule in this manner,
1 promise that your rule will be a short
one. It is not enough to be powerful or
mindul of the Force to survive. You must
also be ambitious. And while you plan for
future conquests, 1 urge you to examine
the foundations of your fortresses, for
these structures did not spring up from the
ground on their own.

And for all the things you have and
all that you covet, thank not just your
forefathers. Thank the Jedi Knights, for it
s because of them that you now enjoy our
achievements.

It is likely you are aware of our long,
terrible war with the Jedi Knights, which
lasted more than a century. Yes, I was
once a Jed, a defender of the Republic,
as were most of my brethren, but one
must lear to crawl before learning to
walk. Unfortunately, the Jedi have been
walking on their treadmill of contentment
for 50 long that most had forgotten what
it was like to leap. When a cadre of more.
ambitious Jed opened themselves to the
dark side, they discovered the Force could
be used to bend ife itself. .. well, that was
the leap we had to take.

So envious were the Jedi Knights of
our ability to transform  creatures into
improved manifestations, they madeit their
ongoing duty to hunt us—the Dark Jedi—
wherever we attempted to experiment and
practice our knowledge. It is regrettable
that we could not persuade more of our
persecutors tojoin us i darkness, andit was
most disillusioning to be so overwhelmed
on that mining world. Yes... yes, we were
forced to surrender

Predictably, our benevolent captors
had not been able bring themselves to
Kill us directly, and so chose to remove us
symbolically, purging our names and all

e of our existence from galactic
records. And so we were herded onto a
drone starshio and banished—without any.
weapons or navigational instruments of any
kindto this previously unexplored region
of the Outer Rim. Yes, there was some slight
satisfaction in that we left behind some of
our precious Leviathans on Corbos, which
should prove to be most inconvenient for
future generations, but make no mistake: we
hadl no reason to believe we would survive.

As our defenseless ship traveled into
the uncharted space, guided only by the
dlork side, our thoughts were heavy with the
losses we had suffered. But after our shio
emerged from hyperspace, we soon arrived
upon the world you know as Korriban. We
were astonished to find that the native Sith
were Force-sensitive. Certainly our so-called
banishment was not the consequence of
Jedl whim but the willof the Force.

The Sith attempted to terrify us with
crude but imaginative illusions, some
of which were reasonably impressive.
Although we lacked weapons, we were
obviously stronger and more intelligent
than they, and yet they were still eager
to prove themselves and prevent us from




appropriating their alchemical secrets. It
was almost immediately ciear that even
their most talented sorcerers were no
match for us, but they demonstrated honor
when they yielded.

& I of the

ry. While they decay in their stodgy
trappings and power-inhibiting rules of

luct, we grow stronger every day. It is
only a matter of time before we shall thank

them in an appropriate manner.

Eventual

their Massassi warriors—lived only to serve
theirnew masters. They really are amazingly

able, the Massassi. New starships were

constructed, weapons were fashioned, and

more remarkable beasts were conceived.

Force to create organic wonders, numerous

offspring are living proof that the Massassi
are biological
members of my brethren.

And so we... we who were the fallen

tain they were too ambitious, for there

is such a thing—were impatient to give

thanks. They analyzed a nav computer
from the ship that had brought us to Sith
space, then reprogrammed it for a return
trip through hyperspace. Obviously. | tried
to discourage them. Even if they had re-

traced the same route, there w

s 10 way to
calculate or even imagine whether the path
had remained clear with the passage of
time. With their newly gained knowledge
of Sith alchemy and numerous weapons

and warriors, they left Korriban despite

my cautions. That was the last we saw o
heard of them. Because so many years

have transpired since their departure, it




is reasonable to suspect that they neither

accomplished their objective nor revealed

our focation to anyone in the Republic.
Wil there be another confrontation
with the Jedi? As 1 said, it is only a matter

of time.

Allow me to introduce one of the earliest Sith

of

Lords, Ajunta Pall, w
what became known as the Hundred-Year War.

ho fought in the final bat

THE SITH CODE

Over many millennia, since the Exiles

became Sith Lords, the Sith Code has serve

as the backbone of our Order. The tenets of the

Sith are more than just words to be memorized,

Learn them, understand them. They will lead
You to the true power of the Force: the power
the dark side.

Peace is a lie. There is only passion.
Through passion, I gain strength.
Through strength, I gain power.
Through power, | gain victory.
Through victory my chains are broken.

P T e L

PALPATINE

SITH WORLDS

1am Seviss Voa, Si
servant of Lord Kaan. | have studied many

ord and trusted

ancient texts, including Naga Sadow’s
witings on Sith aichemy, and have visited
the ruins of several Sith temples.

You wish to know about the worlds
of the Sith Empire? There were many,
over one hundred that were habitable, and
the Sith controlled the riches of a thousand
ord Koan's guidance, we

species. Under
shall undoubtedly reclaim allthese planets
and many more! My research is ongoing,

but 1 will share what I know of the major
The best-known planet is Korriban in

the Horuset system, the ancestral home of




the Sith. An arid, desert planet, Korriban is
the tombuworld of Sith Lords and the former

power base of the Sith Order. The massive

Jes that were carved out of the rocky

cliff walls of

the most ilustrious Sith Lords, as well as

treasures that remain well protected by

ferocious creatures and  intricate

Because the power of the dark side tran
scends the simple biological functions and
spatial fluctuations of existence, it is not
surprising that Korriban is home to many
restless spirits

But Korriban was not always a e

against Rakata invaders and subsequently
acquired Rakat

technology. Although the
Sith were victorious under King Adas's rule,
Korriban was so devastated by the Rokata

that most Sith chose to relocate to Ziost.

During the relocation, Ziost was a

forested
yielded to an ice age that leveled the vast
woodlands as well as most evidence of
ring Sith Citadel is
among the few remaining structures, and it

worid,

€ it eventually

The to

was adopted as the central me:

g place
for the original Sith Lords, those Exiles of
the Jedi Order who found their way to Sith
ace following the Hundred-Year War

According to records, the Sith Lords

ht have gained greater knowledge of
their subjects from an ancient Sith library
temple on Krayiss Il Apparent
ed Holocrons and artifacts

Sith species, but ruins on Krayiss Il have

identified as a library, and its

collections may have long turned to dust.

Would Lord Kaan have allowes

that? 1 think

Although the Sith s

ecies were ex
perienced builders of monumental ar-

chitecture, they cert

benefited from

the instruction
s

the Sith Lords. Travelers of

th

ipace willfind significant Sith temples

Thule and Thurra systems. So far, I ha

shared my knowledge of these temples with
only Lord Kaan. If you
re devotion to the Sith, migh be
persuaded to provide coordinates for one

your sin

of these temples, but be advised that most

expeditions resul

he Sith Lord Ludo Kressh's private

fortress was on the Sith world Rhelg.

Kressh's rival for the tt

of Dark Lord of the
a fortress

on Khar Delba, but also kept a secret

Sith was Naga Sadow, who




stronghold/in  crater on Khar Delbas moon,
Khar Shian. According to legend, Sadow's
lunar stronghold was his primary fortress,
and the Khar Delba structure merely served
5 2 decoy to Kressh's attacking forces.
‘Sadow must have preferred locations where
sunlight never reached, for both his former
properties can only be visited with an ample
supply of glow rods. Those who venture
to explore these dark environs may gain
nothing more than a better appreciation
for ancient construction methods, but |
personally found the Khar Shian ruins to be
extremely enlightening.

Just prior to the Great Hyperspace War,
the Sith Lord Garu lost or abandoned the
Holocron of King Adas on the planet Ashas
Ree. This was the same Holocron that was
eventually recovered by the renegade
Jedl Freedon Nad, and which helped him
conquer the planet Onderon. | have yet to
visit Ashas Ree, but various Sith texts stress
that it is an insignificant world. Tragically,

Those with greater ability are sent to
Ryloth, Umbara, and Nar Shaddaa. These
students learn to use the dark side for

use the dark side to kil their targets without
moving a muscle.

Both Dathomir and lridonia currently
have Sith academies where apprentices
Study under Sith Masters. Successful
trainees become the counterparts to the
Jedi Knights, and swell the ranks of our
armies. But just as the Jedi Knights must
answer to their Jedi Masters, so do our own
adepts and acolytes answer to the Sith
Lords. Those with the potential to become
Sith Lords are trained on Korriban.

Duty calls, but 1 will speak of more
worlds at my earliest opportunity. Long live
the Brotherhood!

Ziost, Khar Delba, and Khar Shian—went
the way of Ashas Ree, as all were largely
stripped of their relics by Republic forces
after the Great Hyperspace War. Perhaps
the greatest loss during that period was
Veeshas Tuwan, an ancient Sith library on
the Sith world Arkania. For destroying our
history, all Jedi deserve the most painful
death Lord Kaan can conceive!

Since the formation of the Brotherhood.
of Darkness, many worlds have become
sites for Sith training. Those with noticeable
but limited abilty in the Force are sent to
Honoghr, Gentes, or Gamorr to become Sith
Warriors or Marauders. There they learn to
channel their emotions into mindess rage
and battle fury. Our alchemists transform
them into ravaging beasts of destruction
to let loose upon our enemies.

ADDENDUM BY
_PALPATINE )

For his loyalty to Lord Kaan, Seviss Vaa
perished with the rest of the Brotherhood of
Darkness at the Battle of Ruusan. Seviss Vaa
was justified in hating the Jedi for laying waste
€050 many Sith artifacts, but he overlooks the
fact that countless treasures were destroyed
during civil wars among the Sith Lords. Had
Lord Kaan and his disciples survived the Battle
of Ruusan, it is probable that infighting or
betrayal would have brought an end to their
conspicuous Brotherhood. Seviss Vaa does
ot mention the destruction of the planet
Malachor V and its Sith academy some four
thousand years ago, but even if he was aware
of those details, it is doubtful that he would
have arrived at the same conclusion as Darth
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Bane: more than two Sith Lords do not equal a
stronger Sith Order.

Regarding Seviss Vaa's descriptions of
the worlds in Sith space, | can only assume he
either lied about his visits to Khar Delba and
Khar Shian or that his powers of observation
were sorely lacking, as | recovered valuable
relics on both worlds. The Sith temples he
mentioned in the Thule and Thurra systems
are on Thule and Dromund Kaas, respectively,
and were relatively easy to find despite Seviss
Vaa's cautions.

But | do acknowledge some deb to Seviss
Vaa for bringing the temple on Dromund Kaas to
myattention. The temple’s foundation dates back
to the original Sith Empire, but seems to have
been abandoned after the Great Hyperspace
War. Atter Drth Bane initated the Rule of Two,
the temple was rediscovered and expanded by
Darth Millennial, the failed apprentice of Darth
Cognus. Millennial founded the Prophets of the
Dark Side, a sect that not only survived but in
fact anticipated my arrival on Dromund Kaas.
Because the Prophets can predict the outcome
of specific events, they have proved most useful
a5 my personal advisers.

Seviss Vaa might have also observed
that most worlds associated with the Sith
are characterized by barren terrain. The best
example of this may be the Sith space world
of Viun, where frequent acid rainfalls prevents
the growth of any vegetation, and where Darth
Vader chose to build his retreat, Bast Castle.
Even if Sith worlds were not desolate to begin
with, most were by the time the Sith finished
building their fortresses. This is only natural,
given how the dark side drains energy from
lving things.

Personally, 1 prefer the tranquility of my
personal retreat on Byss, which has many lake
chains that are not unlike those on Naboo. |
also believe in encouraging the growth and

development of some life-forms, if only to
enjoy the eventual pleasure of guiding them
toward their eaths. The only negative aspect
of Byss s a relatively small population and a
certain lack of culture.

I am looking forward to  reclaiming
Coruscant.

THE FALL OF THE
SITH EMPIRE

A sncient sec consuiar namedt ia turned to
the ways o the Sith and became the gatekeeper
for & most nlightening Holocron, which found s
way to my possession. Kia had an encyclopecic
Knowledge of the Sith Empie under Naga Sadow.
Althoush Kia id not always cite i sources, some
of is knowleage may have been gained from &
Sith Holocron kept by the Jed aster Ocian-Urr on
Ossus. Kias account of the Fall of the Sith Empire
is more opiionated than abiective, but isnsihts
25 former Jec are most valuabl,

Author: Kia

Once, the Sith Empire ruled over 120
habitable worlds across an expansive area
of the Outer Rim. Founded by a relatively
small group of exiled Dark Jedi, who
arrived in Sith space without weapons
and in a single starship, this Empire was a
testament to the greatness of the ancient
Sith Lords. Unfortunately, less than two
thousand years after it began, the Sith
Empire was brought to ruin because of a
single Sith Lord's impatience.

The tale begins with the death of
Marka Ragnos. A half-breed Sith and
warlord descended from the original Jedi




Exiles, Ragnos had tremendous power and
a frightening grasp of the dark side of the
Force. Through a series of short, ruthless
campaigns against his enemies, he had
risen to prominence, claiming the exalted
title Dark Lord of the Sith. Ragnos main-
tained dominance by pitting his detractors
against one another, manipulating them
into challenging him or simply assassi-
nating them. During his reign, he was
one of the few Sith alive who knew of the
Republic and its defenders, the Jed Order.
Feared, admired, and obeyed, he ruled the
Sith Empire for more than a century. The
cause of his death remains unknown, but
may have been the result of old age.

Only minutes after Ragnos's corpse
was interred within a great tomb, two Sith
Lords began wying for the title of Dark
Lord: Ludo Kressh, a half-breed Sith who
was determined to maintain the Empire
that Marka Ragnos had bui, and the more
ambitious Naga Sadow, who claimeda “pure
blood”lineage to the Jedi Exiles and wanted
toexpand the Sith Empire. So great was their
animosity that it roused the spirit of Marka
Ragnos, who informed the antagonists of
their ancient ties to the Republic and the
Jedl. He urged them to choose their battles
wisely, as the fate of the Sith Empire hung in
the balance. Evidently after Ragnos's spirit
faded away. Ludo Kressh offered to make
peace with Sadow. but Sadow refused to
consider Kressh anything other than his
sworn enemy.

If Marka Ragnos—or. more precisely,
his spirit—knew exactly what was in store
for Kressh and Sadow, he did not say. By
all accounts, Ragnos was as shrewd as he
was cunning, and he must have recognized
the possibility that the Jedi remained
as strong as they had been when they
defeated his ancestors. We may never




know whether Ragnos had believed the
Sith were not yet ready to expand toward
Republic space and enter into a protracted.
war against the Jedi, or if he hoped Kressh
and Sadow might resolve their differences
without bloodshed. But we do know what
happened next.

A pair of hyperspace explorers from
the Republic blundered upon Korriban.
Oblivious of Sith history, they claimed
they came in peace, and were interested
in establishing a trade relationship. Ludo
Kressh suspected the alleged explorers
were precursors to an invasion and wanted
to kill them at once. but Naga Sadow
insisted that the pair be interrogated,
as they might lead the Sith Lords to new
worlds to conquer. And there was the
fundamental difference between Kressh
and Sadow: where Kressh was cautious
and saw potential danger, Sadow was
determined and saw opportunity.

Subsequently, the Sith Lords became
dlvided into factions devoted respectively
toKressh and Sadow. Sadow allowed one of
the explorers to flee so that he could track
the interloper back to Republic space, and
used his dark side powers to create the
llusion of an even more enormous army
for the Sith than actually existed. Sadow's
eventual assault on Republic space
instigated the Great Hyperspace War.

Only a few details of this war are im-
portant. The Jedi and the Republic repelied
Naga Sadow’s invasion. Sadow returned to
Sith space, only to be confronted by Kressh's
armada. SadowkilledKressh,but the Republic
fleet had followed Sadow o Sith space and
forced him to flee. Defeated by the Republic
and banished by Kressh's survivors, Sadow
took refuge on the fourth moon in the Yavin
System, where he commanded his Massassi
warriors to buid a series of great temples.

There, Sadow would die. never forgetting
the Empire he had lost.

When | first learned of Naga Sadow's
role in the Fall of the Sith Empire, all | could
thinkof was how events might have unfolded
differently, had Sadow beenless brash. Some
Sith scholars have faulted Kressh for his lack
of daring and unwillngness to endorse and
support Sadow’s schemes of conquest, but
1'am quick to slap these scholars down.
Although 1 renounced the Jedi Order for
the Sith, | gained much from Jedi patience
exercises, and maintain that every Sith
could benefit from such discipline.

Seize the day. and you have the day.
But wait for the right day to seize, and you
willseize entire lifetimes.

DARTH REVAN'S
SITH HOLOCRON

Dt Revan's words were preservea by Dartn
Bane, who transcrbed ther from his memory of
Revarts Hlocron, T Holocron was thee thousand
Jears ol when Bane discovered and studied it on
Korriban, To prevent anyone eis from stucying the
Holocron, Bane destroyed i shorty before the final
Batte of Russan

Author. Revan

1am Darth Revan, Dark Lord of the Sith.

Those who use the dark side are also
bound to serve it. To understand this is to
understand the underlying philosophy of
the Sith.

The dark side offers power for power’s
sake. You must crave it. Covet it. You must
seek power above all else, with no
reservation or hesitation.

|

____ [emwanex)




The Force will change you. It will
transform you. Some fear this change.
The teachings of the Jedi are focused on
fighting and controlling this transforma-
tion. That is why those who serve the light
are limited in what they can accomplish.

True power can come only to those
who embrace the transformation. There
can be no compromise. Mercy, compassion,
loyalty: all these things will prevent you
from claiming what is rightfully yours.
Those who follow the dark side must
cast aside these conceits. Those who do
not—those who try to walk the path of
moderation—will fail, dragged down by
their own weakness.

Those who accept the power of the
dlark side must also accept the challenge
of holding on to it. By its very nature, the
Gk side invites rivalry and strife. This is
the greatest strength of the Sith; it culls the
weak from our order. Yet this rivalry can
250 be our greatest weakness. The strong

THE RULE OF TWO

Author: Darth Bane

1.am not a man of words. But / respect
the power of words, for that is what
transformed me. The words of the Sith
Code. Others had heard them, contem-
plated them, and so on. But I understood
them, and they changed me. For what was
I before | heard those words?

Nothing.

Just another miner on Apatros. Just a
target for my father's rage. My name was
Dessel, but because my father regarded
me as the bane of his existence, he called
me Bane.

Iwas eighteen years of age when he last.
unleashed himself on me. Broke my nose,
my father did. Also knocked out two teeth,
blackened both of my eyes, and cracked
my ribs. | took it all without a word. Only

must be careful lest they be
by the ambitions of those beneath them
working in concert. Any Master who in-
structs more than one apprentice in the
ways of the dark side is a fool. In time,
the apprentices will unite their strength
and overthrow the Master. It is inevitable.
Axiomatic. That is why each Master must
have only one student.

This is also the reason there can only
be one Dark Lord. The Sith must be ruled

after.
1 have the strength to wish him dead. But
oh, how 1 wished so strongly. And then |
passed out myself.

Iawoke to find my wish had come true.
The authorities ruled it a natural death. A
heart attack, brought on by a combination
of too much alcohol, a life working in the
mines, and the overexertion of nearly
beating his own son to death with his bare
hands. | din't realize at the time that my

the strength and power of the dark side. If
the leader grows weak, another must rise
to seize the mantle. The strong rule; the
weak are meant to serve. This is the way
it must be.

My time here is ended. Take what |
have taught you and use it well.

power of the
dlark side, by way of the darkness within
myself. For then, I did not know of the dark
side, and barely knew of the Force. | did
ot have that knowledge. I did not have
those words

But 1 did have the power.

1 was twenty-three, working as a miner
on Apatros for the Outer Rim Oreworks

s
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Company, when one night I fell into a card
‘game with spacers at a cantina. They talked
ofthe war between the Jediand the Sith, the
Jedi general Hoth against the Brotherhood
of Darkness. | had heard plenty of wild
tales of Jedi performing extraordinary feats
through the mystical power of the Force. |

figured they were legend and myth, or at
least exaggerations. Granted, | had had

1 started off as a Sith trooper with
the Gloom Walkers unit. | first saw action
on Kashyyyk, and was promoted to ser-
geant after we conquered the planet. On
Kashyyyk, and later on Trandosha and
Phaseera, | became more aware of my
special abilities that enabled me to survive
against apparently impossible odas, but |
dlid not know the source of these abilities. |

true, so I knew there were powers that
transcended the physical world. But the
stories of what the Jedi could do seemed
too impossible to believe.

Listening to those spacers, | wasn't
convinced that the Sith were monsters. Bad
things happen on both sides during any
war. As far as | knew, the Sith were people,
just like you. Just like me. And I didn't go
along with the Jedi belief that al beings
are created equal. After all, some beings
are smarter or stronger than others. And
for al that Jedi talk about helping those in
need, it didn't change the fact that a Jedi
had never saved me from any injustice.

That same night, I with a

was a coward and a fool.
After a year of service, my talents
came to the attention of the leaders
of the Brotherhood of Darkness, and |
was transferred to the Sith Academy on
Korriban to learn the ways of the Sith. It
was there that | first learned that the Sith,
like the Jedi, also drew power from the
Force, and that it was this power that had
sustained me through so many battes.
Many students took new names for
themselves on Korriban, leaving their old
lives behind. | took what had once made
me weak and usediit to make myself strong.
I took the name Bane.
ode

Republic ensign who turned out to be a bad
loser. When | left the cantina, the ensign and
two naval solciers attacked me. It was dark,
50 dark that I could barely see  thing, but |
‘Somehow saw the vibroblade coming at me. |
sawit clearly, as f it glowed with an inner fre.
Iknew this was strange, because vibrobladies
don't emit light. It was the ensign who was
holding the weapon. | grabbed his wrist and
forced the blade straight into his chest.

The two soldliers fled. | knew they
would report me to the authorities, that
it would be their word against mine, and
that o one would believe | had acted in
self-defense. | had no interest in going to
prison. 1 left Apatros immediately. and |
Joined the Brotherhood of Darkness.

of the Sith. Others may have spoken the
words with conviction, but 1 found meaning
in them that others could not even imagine.
At times, | believed the words were meant.
for me alone. Eventually, my belief would
prove valid.

When 1| wasn't learning from  the

housed in a crumbling temple. The Jedi
had long ago eradicated many teaching
tools of the dark side, and the library was
limited to scrolls, tomes, and manuals. |

and felt that the ancient knowledge would
be the ke to unlocking my full potential.




Through these works, my understanding of
the Force took shape.

Kaan, the founder of the Brotherhood
of Darkness, believed that strength lay in
numbers. But as our war against the Jedi
continued, my studiies led o the conclusion
that the Brotherhood, having amassed an
army of thousands, had thinned the power
of the dark side. When Kaan, hoping to
heighten morale and increase solidarity,
conferred the title of Dark Lord to all
the Sith Masters, | was the only one who
protested. These so-called Lords could no
more be equals than the billions of beings
whom the Jedi were unable to protect.

Because the title of Dark Lord had
been trivialized, | proclaimed myself Darth
Bane. | had been told that the Darth title
was no longer used because it promoted
rivalry among the Sith and gave the Jedi
an easy target. Obviously, Kaan and his
minions were all cowards.

And 50 I gave Lord Kaan a detailed
description of one of the most fearsome
creations of the ancient Sith: the thought
bomb, a ritual that would unleash the
pure destructive energy of the dark side
to consume all Force-users within a wide
radius, trapping. their energy within an
ovoid shell. | gave instructions for the
thought bomb to Kaan because I knew he
would eventually use it against the Jedi;
even though it would also mean an end to
the Brotherhood. Aided by his fellow Lords,
Kaan created and detonated the thought
bomb at the final Battle of Ruusan.

I was the only Sith to survive the
cataclysm, but not the only Force-user.
Zannah was  young girl, one of the many.
children whom the Jedi had brought to
Ruusan in their last, desperate efforts to
vanquish the Sith. She would become my
apprentice, Darth Zannabh.

The power of the dark side cannot be
dlispersed among the masses. It must be
concentrated in the few who are worthy
of the honor. The Sith must be ruled by
a single leader: the very embodiment of
the strength and power of the dark side.
IF the leader grows weak, another must
rise to seize the mantle. To serve this one
true Sith Master, there can be only one true
apprentice.

Two there should be: no more, o less.
One to embody the power the other to
crave .

The Rule of Two.




ON SELECTING
PPRENTICES

Tve retationship between a sith Lord Master and

more powerful than any other
teacher and student, a duality greater than th
fundamental entities of mind and matter. It is vital
that neither believes there is gr
single Sith Lord, or in an Order that ex
Because you are ne
you might assume that it s the Master's duty to
ledge of the dark side to h
ould not be more mistaken. It is
duty to learn al that he can from
faster, and the Master's right to refrain from
aling all of his secrets. My own Master, Darth
Plagueis, ma
much, at w
ch trenuous
endeavor. The most important thing to remember
is that the apprentice’s purpose is to serve the
Master. Only when you consider how few beings
are worthy of becoming a Sith Lord can you begin
to understand the
2 rrying out your
one who has every intention
you can accomplish your
an expect that your apprentice
come to want your life, for it is only natural for
pprentice t e. An apprentice
hould be ambitious, but if your own ambition s t

live, you must be mindful.

il be

hoose someone quicker and you won't dodge
the blade at your back.

cho and you
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Choose someone more devious and you'l hold
the blade that kils you.

Choose someone more clever and you'll never
know your end.

Despite these cautions, an apprentice is
A Master without an apprentice is a
Master of nothing.

I took inspiration from the Jedi tradition of
indoctrinating  Force-sensitive  infants  when |
selected one apprentice, whom | named Darth
Maul. | took him from his homeworld, Iridonia,
and raised him as | would construct the perfect
weapon. | trained him in numerous exotic and
forbidden martial arts, disciplined him constantly,
and personally applied the Sith tattoos that were
evidence of his complete dedication to the dark
side. Maul had but one reason for being: to exact

essential

have seemed less like a calculated risk than a gross
exercise in wishful thinking. Im sure you will agree
that such suggestions are insulting. No, | knew exactly
what | was doing when | allowed events to happen
s they did. Why train an apprentice to hate the Jedi
‘when the Jedi can train him for you?

| did not wait long to appoint my next
apprentice. | had had my eye on the Jedi Master Count
'Dookufor quite some time, and had even met with him
on several occasions when | was a Senator to discuss
his ideologies. Dooku's infinite charm, impeccable
manners, and powers of influence were precisely what
I needed to accelerate my goals for galactic conquest.
Despite his many years of service to the Jedi Order, it
was refreshingly easy to convince him to ally with me.
Of course, it helped that | knew of his light fascination
with Sith Holocrons when he was but  Jedi Padawan.

the Jedi Order for
of the Sith ranks. Oh, how he dreamed of burning the
Jedi Temple to the ground. | know, for | gave him that
dream repeatedy.

Maul completed his basic training several years
before the Battle of Naboo, and served me well as
an assassin and extension of my will As loyal as he
was, | made no effort to caution him when | foresaw
his death in a duel with the Jedi on Naboo, for by
that time, the Jedi had already become aware of
their “Chosen One:" the remarkably powerful Anakin
Skywalker. 1 had foreseen that young Skywalker would
eventually become my apprentice, but that | would
have to wait for him. Uttimately, Maul was nothing
more than a tool, and despite his sense of purpose
he never realized that it was not his destiny to raze
the Jed Temple. But by slaying Qui-Gon Jinn before
he was in turn kiled by Obi-Wan Kenobi, that tool
accomplished a different goal: he rattled the Jedi
Order's long-complacent  attitude  regarding  the
existence of the Sith, making many of them nervous
and paranoid, and also created a path for Skywalker
to be trained in the ways of the Force by Kenobi, a
Jedi with relatively limited experience.

To those who do not know me, my actions—or
apparent inactions—during the Battle of Naboo may

Tyranus.

Both Darth Tyranus and his alter ego ac-
complished a great dealn the years that he served me.
As Tyranus, he arranged for the creation of the clone
‘army for the Republic, and as Dooku, he became the
leader of the Republic’s opposition, the Confederacy
of Independent Systems.

Tyranus also enlisted Asajj Ventress to our cause.
If ever there were a Sith aspirant, it was Ventress, but
her hatred of the Jedi was 5o intense that it requently
blinded her and made her tactless. She may have
Geluded herself into believing she was Tyranus's
apprentice, especially after he bestowed upon her
a pair of lightsabers that had once belonged to
Dookus last Padawan, Komari Vosa. Perhaps Ventress
deserved them, for she was an occasionally capable
‘warrior, nothing more o less. The report of her death
‘on Boz Pity hardly came as a surprise.

But s with Darth Maul, Darth Tyranus's tenure
‘was not indefinite. When the opportunity finally came
for Anakin Skywalker to take his place beside me.
it was imperative to end Tyranus's apprenticeship.
Skywalker himself did the deed, which came as a
‘complete surprise to Tyranus. It still amuses me that
the old scoundrel never foresaw that my goals might
hinge on his death.
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And 5o Anakin Skywalker, hopelessly entranced
by my promise to show him the secrets to eternal
Iife, became Darth Vader. Although he fulflled Darth
Maul's dream of bringing down the Jedi Temple and
also killed the leaders of the Confederacy, | regret
Vader disappointed me early on when he allowed
himself to be mutilated by Kenobi. Yes, Vader

My Master's strategy involved many
protracted schedules and labyrinthine
details, but | shall summarize my most
significant accomplishments: as Darth
Tyranus, | took measures to secure what
would become an eventual army for the
Republic, and as Dooku, I founded and

in the Force, to
succeed me? Never. Granted,

A

to kill me. But that only lasted for so long,

It has been six years since the Battle of Endor.
s leader of my Dark Side Adepts, Miltary Executor
Sedriss has been most loyal, and is commended for
reviving me here on Byss. But for all his usefulness,
Sedriss s only a moderate Force-sensitive, acapable
errand boy but hardly the stuff of a Sith apprentice.
No, it is only appropriate that my next apprentice
must be someone with more unique qualities.

It must be Luke Skywalker or his kin.

THE CONFESSION
OF DARTH
TYRANUS

Author: Darth Tyranus

I, Darth Tyranus, make this recording
for no other reason than that it will edify
future Sith Lords

It has been twelve years since my
former incarnation, the Jedi Master Dooku,
voluntarily renounced his commission to
the Jedi Order. The years have been fruitful.
After leaving the Jedi, I returned to Serenno.
and claimed my family title of Count, which
gave me access to and control over vast
fortunes. This allowed the financing of plans
conceived by Master Darth Sidious, plans
designed to bring about chaos, dividing the
Republic as well as the Jedi.

war rages across the galaxy. and the Jedi do
ot realize they have been manipulated. In
the end the Jedi will be remembered, if at
all as nothing more than an embarrassing
footnote in history, and the Sith will rule, at
last bringing structure to the galaxy.

Although the Jedi do currently suspect
that I—or more precisely. Count Dooku—
have allied myself with the dark sice, it is
with some satisfaction that I can claim they
remain ignorant of my alliance to the Sith.
No, 1 am ot surprised that they are so siow
to connect the dots. My satisfaction lies in
the knowiedige that the longer they remain
ignorant, the stronger my Master and / grow.

According to the Jedi Archives, at the
time | abandoned the Order, | was only the
twentieth Jedi Master to do so. It stillamuses
me to recall the Jedi Councif's response
when I notified them of my decision to
leave. I had aiready prepared a recorded
statement, but they insisted that | come
before them. | acquiesced, and Mace Windu
greeted me with a single word: "Why?"

Not feeling in any way compelled
to reiterate the vague explanations I had
already offered in my prepared statement,
1 looked at Windu quizzically. Not more
than three seconds of silence passed when
Yoda took it upon himself to answer on my
behalf. He said, “Because time it is for him
t0.go." And indeed it was.

But why was the time then, and not
years earlier? Why not while | was a youth




at the Jedi Temple on Coruscant,
first became aware of the Sith

Wwhy not
when | first realized that the Senate was
corrupt beyond salvation, and that the Jedi

were nothing more than servants to that

corruption? To answer this, | must frst tell

you something of the Jed that | was

Jedi Temple at a very early age. | spent
hough Jedi

younglings were not permitted to have

years training with Yoo,

contact with their biological families

were eage. By the

wed toknow of our

time I learned of my heritage on Serenno, |

e and becoming a Jedi that

in whether my relations

contained any reserves

in my name, which might provi

the unlikely event that  failed to become a

Knight. A true Jedi, 1 believed, did not

K in terms of power.
At the age
rame Cerulian chose me as his Padawan

thirteen, Jedi Master

apprentice. Cerullan was a member of the
Jedi Council and had an avid interest in

story, which included the
Sith Holocrons. Cerulian never gave me any

rudly of ancient

fcation that s interest in the Sith was
anything but scholarly; 1 believe he may have
been more intrigued by the provenance and

mechanics of the devices than he

curious about their contents. Butin choosing

me as his apprentice, Cerullan aroused the

envy of one of my contemporaries, a Jedi
learner named Lorian Nod. Nod stole a

Holocron from the Jedi Arc

s and blamed
it on me. | had considered Nod a friend, but

when the Coun

i questioned me about the
allegations, | was compelled by my ow

sense of honor—:

el the truth,

And 0 Nod was expelled fron




1 found it interesting that the Council
stressed that Nod was expelled not for
stealing the Sith Holocron, but for lying
and implicating me. Although | did not
contemplate the Council's reasoning much
at the time, | am certain | came away from
the experience with the impression that
JediMasters were more concerned with loy-
alty and honesty than with the temporary.
loss of a Sith Holocron. 1 also learned that
friendiship was a bond that had its limits,
and | made my first enemy.

What became of Lorian Nod, you
wonder? Not much, really. He spent some
years in and out of prisons, but eventually
became something of a leader on Junction
5, his homeworld, | met with him just last
year, when | invited the Junction system to
Join the Confederacy. Nod declined. He's
dead now.

1 will not inundate you with too much
minutiae of my years with the Jedi Order
but eventually | became a Jedi Knight. | was
inmy early twenties when | took on my first
Padawan learner, Qui-Gon Jinn, a rebellious
spiit with & deep connection to the iving
Force. Eventually, I became a Jedi Master:
Let it be said that | was a good Jedi.  never
shirked from duty, nor was | tempted by the
dork sicle. Was 1 occasionally outspoken?
Yes. And did | prefer some semblance of
independence that allowed me to operate
beyond the confines of the Jedi Temple? Yes.
There was a minor commotion when | turned
down an invitation tojjoin the Council but the

Outer Rim. We had been summoned by
Galidraan's governor, who claimed. that
Mandalorians were committing atrocities
against his people.

Thanks to Master Thame Cerulian,
1 had some knowledge of the history
of the Mandalorians, a nomadic group
of mercenary warriors with origins  that
date back many thousand of years. | was
also aware that there had been decades
of infighting between two Mandalorian
factions, but they operated primariy on
lawless worlds outside Republic space,
rarely drawing attention to themselves as
they almost never left any evidence of their
handiwork. By all accounts, they were the
epitome of professional soldiers.

Because Galidraan wasaRepublicworld
and the Mandalorians' alleged actions were
as brazen s they were barbaric, | allowed
two possibilties: either the butchers on

Tragically. | did not allow for a third

possibility: Galidraan's governor had lied,

and the Jedi Council had believed hir.
Five Consular-class cruisers delivered

entire task force totaled twenty Jed. all
hastily witharawn from various respective
assignments for this emergency. The Jedi
Council had selected us not because of
our combat experience but because of our

the Force as a proactive peacekeeper. After
all, my proficiency with a lightsaber made.
me most useful n the fiel.

And so it was as a Jedi Master, some
twenty-four years ago, that | led my Pada-
wan Komari Vosa and a Jed task force to
Galidraan, a snow-covered planet in the

get there. | was the senior Jedi Master, and
when I realized that most of my comrades’
awareness of the Mandalorians was. . shall
we say... limited, | was beyond chagrined.
Ves, the situation was urgent. Innocent
people really were being slaughtered on
Galidraan. Against any other small army,
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twenty Jedi would have been more than
enough. But based on what | knew of the
Mandalorians, I did not hesitate to request
reinforcements from the Jedi Council
In hindsight, I should have insisted. But
reinforcements could only travel so fast
through hyperspace, and, as I said, inno-
cents were dying.

We located the Mandalorians in a smal
valley, and had the high ground when we
surrounded them. | wasn't surprised when
they refused to surrender.

Galidraan was a bloodbath.

When the confiict ended, eleven Jedi
andallbut one of the Mandalorians ey dead
in the snow. Komari Vosa was stillstanding,
having slein twenty Mendalorians single-
handedly. The surviving Mandalorian, |
So0n learned, was named Jango Fett. He'd
killed three Jedi with his bare hands. As a
Jedl, I could neither hate nor fear Fett, but
1 i feel something for him that surprised
me. I felt respect.

Had Fett and | been the only survivors.
of that battle, I would have lowered my
lightsaber and bid him safe journey. He was
the last of his kind, and I never known

Mandalorians, but by the Mandalorian

collaborated with Galidraan's governor to
lure Fett's faction with a false assignment,
then summoned the Jed for help.

Even though  knew that the Senate was
corrupt, the Council was fallble, and Jedi
training methods were far from perfect, |
remained with the Jedi Order for twelve
years after Galidraan. Why? Because I stil
believed that | could accomplish some
g00d as a Jedi. | thought 1 could bring
about some positive changes, right certain
wrongs, and do better than maintain the
status quo. In short, | was an utter fool.
Even worse, and | confess this with some
degree of shame, | could not imagine a life
beyond the Order. | was weak.

But then Imet Darth Sidlous. He showed
me the way to the dark side, and he made
me strong.

| SITH ALCHEMY

Asthoush the incigenous sith peopie practced
achemy long before the Jed Exies conauered
their workds,t wasthe Exiles cum Sith Lorcs who
refined and perfected these dark ars. One of the
most powerfu Sith alcherists was Naga Sadow,
Wwho lf detaie ecords of is work within a Sth
Holocron | came across some years ago.

another being who so thoroughly deserved
to go wherever he pleased. But other Jedi
had survived, and I doubted that we were
unanimous in our regard for Fett. In the
end, it was the Council who decided his
fate, for via transmission they ordered me
to turn him over to Galidraan's governor:
And like a gutless animal, | obeyed

The governor remained in power, and.
Fett was sold into slavery. Although Jedi
lives had been ost, it was quickly concluded
that we had accomplished our mission, and
there was no subsequent investigation.

Eventually, | learned the entire fiasco
had been a setup. The civilians had been
kiled not by Fett's faction, the True

Author: Naga Sadow

Ask me of my heritage, and I shall tell
you. Ask me of my ambitions, and you shall
know them. Ask me for my hand in battle,
and I shall likely fend you both.

But ask me the secrets of Sith alchemy, |
andl | would ask you for three measures of |
blood: one from a person you love, one from |




2 person you hate, and one from yoursel

A triangle do these measures form, and a
rful triangle it s, 5o long as your own
s strong with dark side energy

and not rife with forel

impurities. If your

bloodline reveals that you are merely a
sy or pretender to Sith knowledge, may
my words reach out to tear your eyes and
tongue from your head, and may you dros

inyourloved one’s blood while your enemies

look upon your wretched forn

Because you have not alre

cumbed to the defenses that guard

prepared the t
triangle with the sacred words, and brace
yoursel

le of blood. Now fill the

for death.

know the sacred words. Welcome,

my apprentice. Yes, I shall grant you know
ledige de:

have passe

werfections, for you
barely.
A you are alreadyy aware, Sith alchemy

e your
my test,

ves one the power to alter the m

composition of

ianimate matter. First, you will learn how

to construct the equipment

create such alterations. I wi

how to produce

apons and armor

that are impervious to all others

poisons that will convert the noblest of

beings to your dark causes. Finally, you will

reate mutants steeped in the dark side

Let us bex

expand the Sith Empire. After his

death, Sadow's secrets w ined by Freedon

Nadd, who passed them on to Exar Kun. Bacause
none of them came to a glorious end, | think it's best
that | guard Sadow’s teachings a bit longer. However,




| am tempted to incorporate some of his findings

into my own book, The Creation of Monsters.

"SITH WEAPONS _

thor: Komok-Da

1 am Komok-Da, direct descendant of
the original Sith, and Master of weapons
and armor. | will tell you of Sith weapons,
but only if you vow to use them, for nothing
displeases me more than to know that a
weapon gathers dust.

The earliest Sith weapon was the Sith
sword. When the exiled Jedi first arrived in
Sith space, it was with these blades that my
ancestors greeted them. The Sith sword is
an alchemically atered blade attached to an
ordinary sword hilt. The alterations enable
the blade to deflect blaster bolts, just as
lightsabers do. The blade also focuses the
Force energy of the user, giving the edge an
unnatural sharpness. As the wielder grows
more proficient in the power of the ark
sice, the blade becomes more deadly.

Sith swords are effective against light-
sabers not only because of the way their
alchemically altered metal refracts the
lightsaber's energy, but also because they
retain their rigidity and sharoness against
such energy weapons. And unlike ancient
lightsabers, Sith swords do not require
power packs or energy cells. Despite the.
fact that a Sith sword was often o match
for a lightsaber when wielded by a trained
Sith warrior, they are seldom used by
contemporary Sith. Although lightsabers
are a superior weapon, there is still nothing
quite as satisfying as feeling the warm
Spray of blood when one cleaves through
one’s enemy with a metal sword.

There are no records that tell whether

the earliest Sith Lords had any knowledge
of lightsaber technology, which the Jedi
were stillrefining when they banished the
Dark Jedi to the Unknown Regions. The
earliest existing record of a Sith who used
a lightsaber was the self-prociaimed Dark
Lord of the Sith, Freedon Nadd, a former
Jedli apprentice who learned the ways of
the Sith from the spirit of Naga Sadow.
Despite Nadd's complete lack of Sith
lineage, it s a testament to his powers that
he conquered Onderon and transformed it
into a prosperous world.

More than three hundred years after
Nadd's death, his spirt trained another
renegade Jedi, Exar Kun, who modified
his own lightsaber into a double-bladed
weapon. Since adopted by other Sith
warriors, the double-bladed lightsaber
can be ignited from either end or both
ends simultaneously. On some models, the
handlie can be disconnected at the middle to
become two separate weapons. The design
of the double-bladed lightsaber maximizes
the weapon's potential and provides an
addled surprise in dluels with Jedi.

Armor and talismans can be alche-
mically treated during construction to tip
the scales of battle. Dark armor is almost
always created to meet the specific needs
of the wearer, and generally provides
additional protection against blasters and
lightsabers, or extra resistance  against
certain forms of attack. Sith talismans are
less restrictive physically, and can provide
the wearer with an extra defense against
blaster bolts, lightsaber blades, and even
the Force itself. | will advise anyone that it is

cannot always be trusted to serve one's
best interests.
The Sith lanvarok is a short-range




weapon worn on the forearm and designed
to hurl thin, solid disks in an unpredictable
spray pattern. My ancient ancestors devel-
oped the lanvarok as a hunting weapon,
and those who are strong with the Force.
will have litle difficulty guiding the disks
t0 their targets. The lanvarok is specifically
designed for either the right or left forearm,
few are interchangeable from right
to left. Although the lanvarok is time-
consuming to reload, it is well worth the
wait when one sees the fear and surprise in
the eyes of one’s enemies as they receive a
suddlen hail of whirling projectiles.
Although edged

never dismiss the use of Sith poison.
Created by means of Sith aichemy, this toxin
is more accurately described as a disease;
once in the system of a Force-using being,
it remains there, gradually weakening the
enemy's resistance to the dark side of the
Force. Sith poison can be introduced into a
victim's system by ingestion, but I admit a
preference for using a long-range dart for
injection. The poison feeds victims' anger.
drawing them closer to the dark side. A
strong dose can overcome those who have.
alreadly embraced the dark side, and even
the most powerful Sith are usually unable to

detalled instctions on buling any Sith

| FORCE LIGHTNING/

Trose who foow the aark sice may learn to
release pure eneray from thir ingertps. Tis Force
lightning can be irected at a target and cause
areat pain a5 t siphons oft the ling eneray and
eventualy ki s victm. Knowlacige of this pover
has long been imitd tothe SithLorcs, No,you are
ot prepared fo any more informatin a tis fme.

SITH SPIRITS _

Tnereis 2 on nistory of sith Lords and crk
sicrs who abandoned their physical forms upon
death to become one with the Force, and retun
o the materal resm 35 ghostly incamations
Some of these sprs were lost forever, bt others
found weys to attach ther essence to objects and
locations strong in dark power. The Necropolis on
Korrban is especialy strong with the dork sice,
and numerous ir sicers have sousht ot spirts
there,often with isastrous resuls. Bear in mind,
my curious frend, that few spits re content o
remain a5 such, and most aspire o e again in
some corporeal form

My study of it istory has revealed several
instances in which Sith spits cramaticaly shapect
evens and inlunced aspfing Sith Lords. The frst
such case occured more than e thousand years
250 on the panet Korroan, during the funeral o the
reiring Dar Lord of the i, Marka Ragnos. Tis was

you must first demonstrate your ability to
Kill without mercy. Return to me with proof
of your kill and you shall be rewarded. But
be warned: | will not be impressed if you
return with small prey.

way of

Author: Kia

The Dark Lord of the Sith Marka Ragnos
had been dead for only a brief period of
time when his spiri halted a dlel between
the rival Sith Lords Ludo Kressh and Naga
Sadlow both of whom sought to claim the
exaltedttle of Dark Lord of the Sith. Ragnos
dlc not tell Kressh and Sadow of his beliefs
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or give them specific direction. He only.
informed them of the existence of the Jedi,

about the death of Kressh, the Fall of the
Sith Empire, and Sadows relocation to Yavin
4, where his spirit was ultimately interred.

Yavin 4 and discovered the descendants of
Sadow's Massassi. These Massassi delivered
Nadidtoa temple, where he awakened Naga
Sadow's spirit. After gleaning information
about Sith sorcery and plundering Sadow’s
vauls for Sith artifacts, Nadd traveled to
the planet Onderon, which he conquered
and made his own; there he proclaimed

for over a century. Following his death, his

Nadd had hoped to utilize Sadow’s ancient
alchemical laboratory to accomplish his
own rebirth in a new body, but his spirit
was vanquished by the power-hungry Exar
Kun. Before Nadd's spirit surrendered to
utter annihilation, he reached out to the
Krath on the planet Koros Major; and told
them to beware of Exar Kun. However, Kun
sensed Nadd's communication with the
Krath, and became determined to destroy
his Sith-infiuenced rivals.

By the time Kun arrived at the city of
Cinnagar on Koros Major, Ulic Gel-Droma
had killed Satal Keto and joined Aleema to
lead the Krath. Kun and Gel-Droma dueled
but were stopped by the spirit of Marka
Ragnos, who told them that they would
restore the Sith Empire to its former glory.
Ragnos proclaimed Kun the new Dark Lord
of the Sith, and Qel-Droma his first and
foremost apprentice.

Although Exar Kun and Uiic Gel-Droma

for more than 350 years, until Jedi arrived
on Ondleron and terminated his possession
of King Ommin. But Nadds spirit hardly
became inactive, nor was his range limited
to0.a single world. The Jedi were stilldealing
with Ommin on Onderon when Nadd
contacted Satal and Aleema Keto, the
founders of the Krath, and told them they
were the future of his work. Even after the
Jedii transferred his remains to Onderon’s

Jedi Knight Ulic Gel-Droma, and foretell
that Gel-Droma would become a Sith Lord.

Although the Jedi had designed and
built Freedon Nadd's new tomb on Dxun to
withstandtheages,itwasnotiongbefore the
Dark Jedi Exar Kun infiltrated the structure
and found Nadds remains. Nadd's spirit
awakened yet again, and directed Exar
Kun to Naga Sadow’s fortress on Yavin 4.

Jedi students, Gel-Droma was ultimately

stripped of his powers and/Kun was defeated

by the Jedi on Yavin 4. As of yet, there are

o records of any further appearances by

Marka Ragnos or other significant Sith

spirts, but most believe that Ragnos's

return is only a matter of time.

Having survived the destruction of the second
Death Star as a ghostly manifestation, | can assure.
You that it is a most wearisome state to be in. It is
not enough to retain one's powers beyond death,
for anoncorporeal avatar can only do so much. The
primary advantage of becoming a Sith spirit s that
it allows one the opportunity to return in a new
body. 5o that one might again enjoy the pleasures
of the flesh. Because the flesh is weak, and can be
severely ravaged by the dark side, one must take
care when choosing a body.

Yes, this is the essential paradox of the dark
side: the more successful the dark sider, the more
quickly that dark sider's body decays.

|
|
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How do I retain my youthful countenance? You
flatter me. Read on, my friend. Read on.

IMMORTALITY
THROUGH
CLONING -

As practicaly everyone knows, coning s the
science o taking a cell from 3 Iing organism
dupicting the genetic cods, and srowing the coll
into an exact duplicae of the cell donor Whie the
achievements made by Kaminoan cloners shouid
ot be overlooked, an underiable probiem with
Kaminoan-engineered clones s that they can
reauire longer perioc of gestation before they
arive at maturity. Whi this may be suitable for
some long-term plans, such as rasing a secret
army, such time-consuming techmology s generally
inconvenien or those who may find themselves i
need o 2 body sooner than they expected.
Secking an_slterative, Imperial scintists
utiized Spaarti cylinders,which ar refinements of
Kominoan technolosy deveioped on Cartao during
the Clone Wars. These four-metertall tanks are
mechanical wombs filed with nutrient chemicals
and organic catayzers. Whie the clone body
mature, special polymer chains are troduced to
thenutrient cyincer. These polymers combine with
the sin to form  tough ibrous membrane that

How do you go about transferring your life
essence into another body? Patience, my friend
Patience. | don't know you that well

Yet

P

ADDENDUM BY
TIONNE SOLUSAR w0 55v) |

Although these isights from the mind of Darth
Sidious are nearty priceless in their

torical

value, it is important to point out the fact
that Palpatine’s numerous clones were indeed
just that—clones. The possibilty remains that

real Paipatine. Regardess
they brought imminent danger to the galaxy,
andwe are fortunate these clones were stopped
before they wrought any further destruction.

| THE DARK SIDE
COMPENDIUM

Author: Palpatine

Because 1 nave no imtention of aying. 1 60 not
feel any compulsion to create some werk of art
o survive me. However, | am ot 50 sefsh that
1 om unwilling to share my various thoughts and
experiences regaring the cark side. An 5o | now

phase. From start to finish, the procedure results in
an adult clone within a few weeks.

As one's body is consumed by the power of
the dark side, the key to immortality is the growth
of new bodies into which one can project one’s life
essence. Unfortunately, because the clones are one
step removed from the natural life process itself,
they are much more vuinerable to the effects of
the dark side, and age at an extremely accelerated
rate. The only logical solution is to grow many more
clones at the same time as backups.

o o my
masterpiece, the three books that make up The
Dark Side Compendium.

THE BOOK OF
ANGER

Many sesi ciain tohave found sereniy, ant hat
hrough srenity they have overcome anger. Such
arrogance is astouncing. These fools have never




faced their anger, and thus have no idea whether
they have truly overcome it o not. True calm s only
achieved through testing the limits of one’s anger
and passing through unscathed. The capacity for
this ability lies within everyone, though most fear
to test their own strength, and are thus considered
at best weaklings, and at worst irresponsible.

When the Force is sensed and moved by
emotion, from the very center of the body, and
meditated from the lower vital centers of the being,
it acts with the destructive power of a storm.. and
the savagery of a beast

Anger is the most potent catalyst to this kind
of power. And anger that becomes rage, when
channeled through the “vital gate” in the center
of the body, can unleash absolutely unstoppable
potency through the body.

Add the exquisite control of a fine intelligence
standing watch over anger, and one has aggression
that can kil with precision, crush cartilage from
afar .. or murder opponents from a great distance.

| have learned that Anger and Will joined
together are the greatest power.

I have learned to meditate Anger and Will with
clarity and precision, and | have learned to open
the hidden reservoirs of dark side Power,

Anger concentrated by Willin the vital center
of the body creates a portal through which vast
energies are released~the energies of the dark
side of the Force.

Standing watch with the mind, in my med-
itation of Anger, | have slain my enemies from
great distances through the dark side Power that
permeates the galaxy. | have created lightning, and
unleashed its destructive fire.

Using this knowledge, | can unleash the dark
side energies that are all around us, even to shatter
the fabric of space itself.In this way, | have created
storms.

Through a simple act of Will, | can generate
Force Storms, energy storms that are vastly
destructive and virtually unstoppable. Although
triggering such storms requires mere thought and
inclination, | admit | am not yet able to completely

control the phenomenon. Among my goals is to
perfect this control.

THE WEAKNESS
OF INFERIORS

Interiors continualy endaner ther own ives
and the fives of others through poor decisions,
+eckless behavior and simple nabilty to engineer
the reaity of their ambitious dreams. They are
like chiren, crying in frustation because they
do not comprenend their own limitatins. These
Wweakiings need structure—to be shown thirplace
In the existing socil order. It is let to the wise
and powerful to provide that structure n order for
Givilzationto survive and thrivein the galaxy. Those
Who camot—or wil not—accept that peace and
order are far more important thantheir own sefish
esires must be removed from society before they
can infict any lasting damage.

1. Allpower comes from outside the weak.
The weak have never been known to
beleve inthemselves or i thei abilty to
wield power

‘The face of authority. The weak live as in
a dream. Al their thoughts, actions, and
urges are governed by the face and the
Voice that controls this dream. The face
and voice they have learned to obey. The
face and voice of Authority.

The law of fear. A consequence of the first
two tenets is that the weak live in fear.
The mere suggestion of violence from
one in authority is enough to inspire their
obedience. How can one who doesn't
believe in his own powers stand against
the power of another? It s impossible.

4. The weak do not understand the Force.
The Force is the ultimate means to gain
authority over the weak. The weak do not
understand the Force. The weak do not




sense the Force, therefore how can they
understand or use the Force? So it is that
the weak are at the mercy of those who.
know and use the power of the Force.
‘The proper use of the Force can inspire
awe and obedience in the weak.

It has been said that anyone who knows the
ways of the Force can set her- or himself up as a
King on any world where only she o he knows the
ways of the Force. Any Jedi could do this. But the
Jedi, fools that they are, adhere to a religion in which
the Force is used only in the service of others.

How shortsighted of them. Is that not why they
lost the galaxy to the dark side?

THE CREATION
OF MONSTERS

Atoush the Force can be used to create
terrifying illusions, it i sometimes more satisfying
to create actual creatures that are willing and eager
to shred and devour one's enemies on command,
Such monsters are most useful when maintaining
discipline and anxiety among subjects and enemies
while one’s attention is required elsewhere. These
creations must be able to follow basic commands,
but should not be designed with too much
intelligence or self-awareness. Their functionis first
and foremost to serve their master.

A novice might begin with a small herbivore
that appears relatively defenseless, some simple-
minded thing at or near the bottom of the food
chain. The goal is to transform the creature into
something higher on the evolutionary ladder and
considerably more ferocious.

Strengthen muscles and bones, especially the jaw
and along the spine.

Conquer the temptation to create specimens
that are superior in every way. The danger of such
monstrosities being turned against you is too great.
Instead, focus on instituting controlling weaknesses
into each and every beast you construct. Make it
strong where you are weak, but weak where you
are strong. It must have a fatal flaw that you—and
only you-know how to exploit. And always, without
fail, be prepared to destroy your most valued
creation....or be prepared to be destroyed by it

Do not disregard such practical aspects as
whether the monster will be required to access
standard doorways or travel upon floors that can
support only a limited amount of weight. A large
beast is a wondrous thing to behold, but it can also.
make an easy target.

Alterations should not be merely cosmetic. A
monster is most effective when it is hungry and in
some degree of pain. Selectively sever or expose
nerve endings and alter the creature’s internal
organs so it has the energy to maintain tself and
can digest what it consumes.

Training is also essential. To test your creature,
set it loose in a pit or cage with at least a dozen
members of its original species, preferably blood
relatives. Should it ail to meet one's expectations,
either in the categories of efficiency or ferocity,
vet manage to emerge from the test relatively
undamaged, you do not need to begin from scratch.
Monsters can lear from experience, and can be
fine-tuned by further enhancements and torture.

Of all the monsters | have created, I stil regard
Darth Vader as something of a minor masterpiece.
No, he was not an entirely alchenical creation, but
he was my monster nevertheless. Even though he

and abilties that can be augmented for maximum
I

pleasure in transforming Anakin Skywalker from a

claws, do not refrain from adding such features. If
its eyes are set on either side of its head, revise
the configuration to enable them to face their
brey head-on, or add an entirely new set of eyes.

bright-eyed, into the greatest
Jedi killer of all time. Yes, he ultimately turned
‘against his Master, as monsters sometimes o, but
that was my fault, not his. Given the opportunity to
create Vader again, | would, and with zeal.
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PART FIVE

OTHER

FORCE-

USING

ORGANAZATIONS

RECORDED 40 B.5.Y
Since the Batte of Endor, Luke Skywalker and
other Jedi have encountered several Force-using
organizations, and discovered evidence of similar
groups that date back to antiquity. Some of these
groups evolved entirely on their own, while others
developed after some initial contact with—or
influence by—the Jedi or Sith. This chapter offers
concisehistories of the more significant Force-using
organizations and their respective philosophies on
the Force.

FOLLOWERS OF
PALAWA

A secretive roup of hermitson Bunci  worla
Inthe Pacanth Resch, the Followers of Palawa was
an ancient oroup of Force-users that may have
rediated the JedOrder Records suggest that they
refocatedito Bundukiafter thefromeworic, Palaws,

and the science behind midi-chiorians, and also
mastered a technique for falling into a deep trance
that enabled them to sleep for decades without
aging. Although the hermits were highly revered

AUTHOR
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by natives of Pacanth Reach, records indicate that
many of the Followers turned to the dark side. The
Followers developed their own martial art, terds
kasi—a term that translates as “steel hands’=to
combat the Jedi.

One of the Followers of Palawa and a master
of terss kasi was Arden Lyn, the lover of the
commander of the Legions of Lettow, General
Xendor. After Xendor's death, Arden Lyn briefly
assumed leadership of the Legions of Lettow
until she dueled with the Jedi Master Awdrysta
Pina. Allegedly, Lyn used a powerful talisman to
annihilate Pina, but before the Jedi died he used the.
horrific technique of Morichro to arrest Lyn's body
functions, stopping her heart. Although details
remain unknown, it seems Lyn used the Palawa
trance technique in combination with her talisman
tosurvive in a suspended state for roughly twenty-
five millennia.

SORCERERS OF
TUND

Today the planet Tund in the Outer &im is
an uninhabited, imadiated wasteland, but. for
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thousands of years the once lush world was home
t0 a group of Force-users known as the Sorcerers
of Tund. The Sorcerers saw their abilities as a kind
of magic, and presented themselves to the galaxy
at large as powerful wizards.

‘The Jedi Order was long aware of the sorcerers’
existence, and recognized their field of study
as training in the Force. According to the Great
Holocron, the Jedi Council periodically sent repre-
sentatives to Tund; at first, these representatives

To tell the truth, even though the last
Sorcerer of Tund is long dead, Im not very
keen on talking about him. Mind you, my
disinclination isn't out of any respect. It's
because he was the kind of scary that
doesn't die easily. and not talking about
him is the way | prefer to keep him dea.
His name was Rokur Gepta. The first
time | saw him was in the Rafa system. |
was sitting in an office, having a little chat

attempted to persuade th join the Jedi
Order 5o they might study the Force without the

this small explosion. The blast formed a

some of whom demonstrated powersat least as great
s those of the Jedi recruiters—repeatedly declined.
Eventually, the Jedi Council discreetly opted to allow
the sorcerers to study the Force in their own fashion.
but the Jedi continued to visit Tund to make sure that
the sorcerers did not delve into the teachings of the
dark side. Apparently, the sorcerers gave the Jedi no
‘cause for concern, for it seems the two groups came
to coexist without any tensions.

The Jedi Order's last official vist to Tund was
well over a thousand years ago, before the New Sith
‘Wars that eventually ended at the Battle of Ruusan.
It is unknown whether the ancient Jedi attempted
to enlist the sorcerers to join them in their fight
against the Sith, but it seems they eventually forgot
about the sorcerers altogether.

Imperial-era records indicate that Emperor
Palpatine had a strong interest in the sorcerers, and
allege that their religious teachings were based on
an archaic interpretation of original Sith doctrine.
Although these records are vague, it is known
that the last Sorcerer of Tund, Rokur Gepta, allied
himself with the Empire and acquired the Wennis,
3 decommissioned Imperial cruiser, along with an
Imperial-trained crew that he commanded at his
own discretion. The infamous smuggler-turned-
entrepreneur Lando Calrissian had a series of
encounters with Rokur Gepta, and mentioned the.
Sorcerer in his bestselling 22 .6.v. memoir, How to
Succeed in Everything. An excerpt follows.

blue-black that evaporated
into tiny orange sparks, and when. the
Sparks winked out, there was this vaguely
humanoid man standing. there, wearing
heavy, deep gray robes and a turban-iike
headdress that ended in bands of opaque
cloth across his face.

To the best of my knowledge, nobodly
was ever quite sure what species the Tund
wizards were, or even if they were all
members of the same species. But | knew
a thing or two about the sorcerers, like
that they re boringly mysterious and given
to flashy entrances. | wasn't immediately
impressed. | figured this one had used a
flash-bomb to make his big debut.

Then | noticed his eyes. They were
ke twin whirling pools of insane hunger
of some sort. It was hard to look into
those eyes without feeling like they would
drive you mad, and | realized | may have
misjuciged his abilities. What did Gepta
want? He'd been searching for a legendary
treasure, the Mindharp of Shar, in various
ruins throughout the Rafa system, and after
his hunts repeatedly came up empty, he
decided to forcibly enlist me (o do the job.
A every archacologist and anthropologist
knows, 1 did find the Mindharp, but it was
engineered to help restore the native Toka
totheirglory as the Sharu, and its power was




more than Gepta could hande. I thought
he died during the subsequent uprising on
Rafa IV, but Id misiudged him again.

A year later, | traveled to Oseon 5792,
a planetoid that belonged to the trllionaire
Bohhuah Mutdeh, and was greeted by the
impossibly corpulent Mutdah himself. At
least that's who I thought was greeting
me until my host transformed before my
eyes into Rokur Gepta, who'd kiled the
real Mutdah. What happened next was
most unpleasant. Gepta used his powers
to manipulate my memories and torture
me. At one point, he took a break o drone
on about how after what happened in the
Rafa system, his whole purpose for being
was to make life miserabe for me.

Fortunately, a squadron of Renatasion
starfighters just happened to pick that
particular moment to blast away at Oseon
5792, and 1 was able to escape. It was only
5 1 was breaking free from the table that
Gepta had secured me to that I realized his
so-called powers involved some complex
electronic equipment that he'd attached
to the back of my head, which left me
wondering about the limitations of the
Sorcerer's magic. | can thank my droid pal
Vuffi Raa for the Renatasians coming when
they did, even though he might have told
me in advance why they were looking for
him in the first place.

A few months after that, Gepta caught
p with me at ThonBoka, where | was
helping the Oswaft defend  themselves
against an Imperial armad. Gepta arrived/in
his warship and ordered the Imperial fleet to
stand

1 was allowed one weapon and Vuffi
Raa’s assistance. The latter was Gepta's
idea. He said the droid could help make
the fight fairer because I lacked ‘magic
powers.” Gepta was under the impression
that Vuffi Raa's programming made him
incapable of fighting. He dldn't know
that Vuffi Raa's tentacles could think for
themselves.

The dlel didn't last long. While Vuffi
Raa kept Gepta busy, I blasted away at
him, though he initially seemed immune.
It wasn't until | squeezed off o shot that
tore through the left ankle of his space suit
that 1 dic any real damage. Gepta's form
withered and faded, leaving his space suit
empty: Only 1 hadl a hunch it wasn't entirely
empty.

1 pawed through the suit until | found
‘something down n the eft leg. It was a small
bundle of ugly, slimy tissue, resembling a
half-cooked slug with a dozen skinny; hairy
black legs. | recognized it as a Croke, an
intelligent but remarkaby nasty species, ail
masters of camouflage and llusion. Crokes
are nearly impervious to hard vacuum, and
this particular Croke was stillalive. He was
also responsible for more murders than you
can count, friend, s no, I did not hesitate
to squeeze that vicious thing to death, even
though | knew it would be quite a chore to
get the mess off my gloves.

The Imperials hadn't  expected the
Sorcerer of Tund to die, but they had
no intention of honoring his deal. They
opened fire on the Oswaft, but then Vuffi
Raa’s progenitors showed up. They were
metallc spheres, and

space suits and go one-on-one in a duel to
the death in the vacuum of space. If | won,
the Imperials would leave. If he won, the

there were thousands of them. They
were. .. awesome. They only had'to destroy.
one Imperial cruiser before the rest of the

el |
wasn't going to let that happen, was I?

1f you want to watch the duel yourself,
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the Star Destroyer Eminence’s holo-
grammic log recorder caught the whole
thing, and copies can now be found in most
New Republic libraries. Parents be warned:

society that various government institutions and
businesses employed them as a part of their daily
operations

After Dorin joined the Republic, the Jedi

ot be suitable for small children.

ranks, and the Baran Do dwindled. However, those
Jedior

powers to disguise himsel, his use of technology
toinvade Lando Calrissian's mind suggests that his
mastery of dark magic was incomplete. However,
his skills were apparently adequate to permit him
to infiltrate the Sorcerers of Tund, learn many of
their secrets, and then annihilate them along with
all life on their planet. Soil samples confirm that
Gepta used a unique bioweapon—not the Force or
“magic”~to lay waste to Tund. It remains unknown
whether Emperor Palpatine was aware of Gepta's
limitations as a sorcerer, but given the amount of
Imperial power that Gepta had at his disposal, it
seems that Palpatine had some degree of respect
for the Croke.

BARAN DO SAGES

late to begin Jed training continued to train under
the remaining Baran Do Sages, who passed down
their eons-old tradition as it was before the coming
of the Jedi. till, the Baran Do members became so
few that their order faded into relative obscurity
on their own world until Kel Doran society came
to regard them as little more than wizards and
prophets. By the time of the Clone Wars, the Baran
Do were almost completely forgotten. As a result,
they went virtually unnoticed when Darth Vader
and the Imperial Inquisitors began hunting Force-
sensitives, and they still exist today.

After the formation of the new Jedi Order, the
Baran Do Sages contacted the Jedi and offered
their help as well as their insights into the Force. In
the following recording, made in 30 As.v. the Baran
Do Dorn Tio explains the Baran Do philosophy and
training methods:

Dear Jedi Masters,

Thousands
the Galactic Republic i 5975 ., the native Kel
Dor species identifis the power of the Force and
developed their own Force traditon. Known as the
Baran Do Sages, this group of Force-sensive Kel
Dors studied the Force to expand ther aready
exceptionalsenses a5 3 means ofprecicting danger
for their people. By using their powers to foresee
the future,the pas, and places ar away,they not
onlyproved aninvaluabl resource orinvestgating
crimes and iscovering the truth sbout mysterious
events, but aiso succeeded i avertng everything
from natural sasters to war. Because the Baran
Dossprecictons proved consitenty relabie, they
acted 25 advisers and seers for the leaders of
Dorin They eventually became so intearated into

you
know litle of our order. We have attached
records of Old Republic-era Jedi that
attest to our long history, and welcome any
questions you may have.

We have chosen to contact you now
because we anticipate that the Jedi are
evolving toward a different view of the
Force. This view will regard the dark side as
an essential part of the Force, something
incapable of being completely shunned
or conquered. The Baran Do have long
maintained that the dark side is a necessary
evil, as essential to the Force as death s to
life. However, we also stress the importance
of distinguishing between the ight and the
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darkness. We anticipate that this evolving
view will cause confusion, anxiety, and
danger within the Jedi Order. All Jedi may
ot find solutions to their concerns in the
ways of the Baran Do, but all will find we
are very good isteners.

As you may know, the Kel Dors tend to
see all moral issues in terms of black and
white, and since our earliest civilization our

taxing, but encourages introspection and
thoughtfuiness at all times.

In short, the Baran Do listen, watch, and
learn. Whenatpeace, weare atourstrongest.
Generally, we take action only when we are
sure of our path. Because we are not quick
to act unless extremely pressed for time
or reacting to some immediate threat, the
ancient Jed, as well our fellow Kel Dors,

and punitive amputations for criminals.
Although the Baran Do have never harmed

utation as bloodthirsty executioners. This
is unwarranted, for like the Jedi we kill
only when we think, feel, and believe it
necessary. But unlike the Jed, we have
5 greater safety net for apprentices and
members of the Baran Do, Because we can
predict whether a Baran Do Sage might
be drawn to the dark sice, we have always
been abe to prevent this from happening.

The Baran Do philosophy revolves
around quieting the mind and listening
to the environment. It was this quiet,
meditative outlook that led our ancestors
into the study of the Force as a sensory
aid. The ancient Baran Do learned to shut
out the noise and clutter of the world
around them and instead fisten to the
‘guidance of the Force. Our training focuses
on meditative practices as well as. the
interpretations of sensations and visions.
Many aspects of the training involve some
form of sensory deprivation or sensory
overioad. An apprentice might be placed
in a lightproof. soundproof chamber for
‘hours or days, then be transferred to a loud,
‘crowded room where the goalis to establish
and maintain communication with a sage
on the far side of the room. The training
regimen s neither rigorous nor physically

However, we have seldom been inactive.

Even during the Jedi Purge, we continued

to help our people, usually discreetly and

without their knowledge. We. prediicted

and altered weather patterns, acted as

foretellers and diviners, and protected the

Kel Dors however we couid,

Forallourabilites at foresight, we were

as stunned and/surprised by the events that

concluded the Clone Wars as the greatest

Jedi Masters. We anticipate that some Jedi

will now wonder why the Baran Do did not

attempt to fight the Empire. The answer is

simple: the Force told us that we were too

few, and that we would be exterminated.

And 50 we chose the path of patience, and

50 we endured.

We expect to hear from you. Trust that

we will listen, and are willing to help the

new Jedi Order to the best of our abilities

Following the war with the Yuuzhan Vong,
Jacen Solo traveled to Dorin and studied briefly
with the Baran Do Sages. Jacen has yet to make a
report on this experience.

' MECROSA ORDER

Originaly swor to dsfend and protect the
House Meceti a cosltion of noble famiies n the
Tapani sector, the Mecrosa Order was foundied in







approximately 4200 s.s.v. by Viscountess Mireya,
a native of Viun who had married into the Mecati
family. At some point over the next two centuries,
the Mecrosa Order was corrupted, allegedly by
Mireya herself, who had brought Sith teachings with
her from Viun. The Tapani sector was terrorized by
the Sith-influenced Mecrosa Order for decades
until the Jedi—soon after defeating Exar Kun in
the Great Sith War—used their collective might to
eliminate the Mecrosa in what came to be known
35 the Cleansing of the Nine Houses. Despite
‘occasional rumors, it is believed that the Mecrosa
Order was completely crushed.

THE KRATH __

Founded by ateema keto andt her cousin satal
Keto, son of the ruer o the Empress Tta system,
theKrath began s  secret roup with  fascinaton
for artifactsfrom the time of the Great Hyperspace
War. They dabbled in Sith magic and eventually

[ YSANNA

In 10 s, Luke Sigwalker and kem Solusar
iscovered the Ysanna, a tribe of Force-sensiive
humans nthe planet Osausinthe Adegasystem. The
Vsanna are the descendants of the Jedi who coud
ot escape Ossus during the Sith-triggered Cron
Supernova more than four thousand years earer,
but managed to survive in the vast subteranean
cavens that run beneath the mountain ranges
northwest of the ancient Jedi rary.

Luke had leamed of Ossus from the Tadyn
Holocron, which identiied the plnet 3 3 center
of Jec learing for thousands of years. Shortly
after Luke and Kam armved on Ossus, the Ysanna
atempted to defend their world by attacking vith
proectl weapons tha were enhanced through weak
implamentation of the Force. Over the course of
generatons, the Ysanna forgot their e hrtage and
used therlatent Force abilties a5 & form o atavstic
magic. ut when the Ysanna realized that Luke was
JediMast ing

spirit of b
who offered to guide them in their study of the dark
side. Soon Aleema and Satal used their newfound

to Ossus, they yielded and welcomed him.
Luke left Ossus with two Ysanna, a young woman

abilities to lead a rebellion against
of the Empress Teta system.

The Jedi Ulic Gel-Droma led a small group of
Jedi to deal with the Krath. After Ulic's master Arca
Jeth was killed by a Krath-constructed war droi
Ulic swore to infiltrate the Krath and destroy them
from within. Unfortunately, Uiic became the victim
of Sith poison and was unable to stop himself from
joining the dark side. Ulic killed Satal and joined
Aleema to lead the Krath, but the Krath's power
essentially came to an end when the Dark Jedi Exar
Kun became the first Dark Lord of the Sith and Ulic
became his first apprentice.

d Je brother
them in the ways of the Force. The following year,
Jem died while defending Luke from the reborn
Emperor Palpatine’s minions on New Alderaan.
Shortly afterward, Rayf died while defending Anakin
Solo from Palpatine on Nespis VIl

Although the tragic deaths of Jem and Rayf
left Luke justifiably hesitant to train more Ysanna,
the Ysanna themselves fully supported his effort to
rebuid the Jedi Order, and welcomed the new Jedi
Order's decision to relocate its academy to Ossus.
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PROPHETS OF
THE DARK SIDE

L 5 xa. kyte Katar was helping to detend
2 New Republic outpest on Altyr V when he
iscovered ancient inscrptions that revesled the
locaton of the Dark Force Templ on the swamp
word Dromund Kass, which les i the Dromund
system in Sith space. To learn whether the Empire
hac any awareness of tis temple, Katarn trveled
o Dromund Kaasto nvestigate, only to temporary
Succumd to the pure Sith evl that permested the
iace. When he was lter found by Mara Jade, he
engagec her in acuel, but Mara brought him back
to the liont by deactating her liohtsaber and
surtendering,forcing him to choose between the
arkness and her own fe. Ther iscoveries at the
temple alowed Jedi scholas to piece together
parts of Dromund Kaas's istory

More than 5 thousand years a0, Dromund
Koas wasthe st ofabatte btween Sith and Jeci
uring the New Sith Wars,th intersella confict
that tmately ended when the Sith Lord Kaan
detonsted a thought bom at the Batle of Ruusan.
Vears atr,ater Darth Bane had nsituted the Rule
of Two, the ith Lora Darth Cognus sithr drove
offor was abandone by hr apprentice, he three-
eyed mutant Darth Milennil, ho eected the Rule
of Twoin favor of Lord Kaan's phiasophy of Rl by
the Strong. Flesing o Dromund Kaas t escape the
wrath of Dath Cognus, Darth Millnrial meditated
on' Sith teachings and combined them vith the
theores of earty and pre-Republic thinkers such as
Plarises and Dak Ramis to create a reiion that
e cale the Dark Force. Milenrial haled himselt
a5 2 rohet chosen by the wilof the Force, and
attracted many Force-usersfrom across space

The pracitoners of the Dark Force became
Known s the Proghets o the Dark Side, and the
most powerfl members of thelr order were adept

at using the Force to predict the outcome of

future events. Although they continued to accept

additional adherents to their religion, the Prophets

took measures to ensure that Millennial’s legacy

remained unknown to the Sith—as well as the Jedi
i

Eventually, sometime before the Clone Wars,
Palpatine’s alter ego Darth Sidious discovered the
Prophets and conscripted them as his advisers.
Apparently, Darth Sidious consulted the Prophets
almost as often as he looked into the dark side
himself, making sure that all that he had foreseen
would occur. He also entrusted them with the
training of Dark Side Adepts, including the Force-
sensitive Grand Admiral Nial Declann, and recruited
the Prophet Cronal as one of his secret operatives.

Shortly after the Clone Wars began, the Jed
Master Yoda discovered that the Dromund system
was one of some three dozen star systems—
including Kamino~that had been deleted from the
Jedi Archives and was missing from commonly used
star charts. Evidently, the Jedi-turned-Sith Count
Dooku was responsible for expunging this data
from the Archives. So far, no records have revealed
whether Yoda ever visited the Dromund system.

After Palpatine became Emperor, he brought
to Coruscant the two most powerful Prophets of
the Dark Side, the Supreme Prophet Kadann and
the High Prophet Jedgar. Before the Clone Wars,
Kadann had been a Jedi Knight, and Jedgar—
disturbed by intense nightmares of future events
throughout his childhood—abandoned the Jedi
Order at age thirteen, after no Jedi Knight would
accept him as a Padawan. According to Mara Jade,
the Prophets and their loyal assistants reportedly
fled Coruscant shortly after Palpatine left for the
Endor system. Whether the Prophets of the Dark
Side had foreseen the end of the Empire remains a
mystery, as does their fate.




OTHER FORCE-USING ORGANIZATIONS

ZEISON SHA |

Aumest two thousand years betore the rise of
the Emire,a or0up of familes and friends of the
Jedi fied to the remote Outer Rim pianet Yanibar
o escape the intal conflcts that led to the New
Sith Wars. The grous's plan had been to stabiih
2 temporaryrefuge and wat for their Jed relaives
and ales to come for them when it was safe
However, it seems tha al the Jedi who knew the
location of ths refuge were kiled n bttie, and the
colony on Yanibar was forgotten.

Vanibar was aharshworldofseasonal extremes,
and the origina coloists might have perished hac
ot some of them been Force-sensitve. Over the
following centurie, theirdescendants developed &
new Force tradition,the Zeison Sha, hose members
used thir taients to deal with the dangers native
o Yanibar and defend the otherwise defenseles,
The Zeison Sha came to regard ther isolaton as
abandonment by the Jed. and they focused ther
teachings on seft-relance and independence

A few centuris after the formation of the
orginal colony fringe traders visted Yanibar
and were surprised to find a relativey thriving
settement. The planet’s inhabitants—a mix. of
humans and nonhumans ncluing Duros, Twileks,
and Rodans—maintained 3 relative measure of
anonymity unil the end of the New Sith Wars,
Some Zeison Sha returned o the galaxy at large,
but afer the Jed Isared of thir existence,they
were alarmed tha the Jadi were al too cager to
appropriate their Force-sensiive chiten so that
they might b rised as Jedi cisciples on Coruscant
This only bolstered anti-edi sentiments among
the Zeison Sha, The Jedi Bodo B3as former keeper
of the Tedryn Holocron, provided the following
information

580 5.
hor: Bodo Baas

" Atter many years of planning and
preparations, I regret our diplomatic mission
to Yanibar failed to convince the Zeison
Sha of the Jedi Order's sincere hope that
we might join forces. They remain cautious
and distrustful of us, and only reluctantly
weicomed us after we agreedthat we would
not attempt to meet their children unless
adult Zeison Sha were present.

In fact, the Zeison Sha made it quite
clear that they oppose the concept of
separating Force-sensitive infants and chil-
dren from their families. Their philosophy is
50 centered on being able to take care of
oneself and one’s family, and even I must
admit that most Jed, myself included,
cannot entirely comprehend this form of
devotion.

They did allow us to observe a Zeison
Sha training session. I had heard  that
Zeison Sha are masters of the telekinetic
powers, but | was astonished to see that
their abilities in this area far surpass
those of many Jedi. Not only do they use
their telekinetic powers with apparently
effortless ease, but they are also able to
Somehow wrap the Force around their
bodies so that they can resist damage from
harmful objects. Most remarkable.

Interestingly, they eschewenergy weap-
ons for something they call a discblade, a
small metal circle with handgrips on the
top and bottom; four thin, curved blades
protrude from the circle’s sides. The Zeison
Sha warriors throw their discblades with
extreme precision, and use the Force to
return the weapon to their waiting hands.

1 inquired whether their philosophy of
self-reliance caused any losses to the dark
side, and the Zeison Sha representatives
acknowledged there had been some.
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With all respect to their order; | pointed
out that self-sufficiency can quickly tur
to selfishness, and that incredible feats of
telekinetic skill more often lend themselves.
well to attack rather than defense. Hearing
my words, one of the of the younger Zeison
Sha warriors, a Twilek female, stepped
forward and said, “If not for self-refiance,

on contact, and Noon fashioned a suit of armor
for himself, hoping it might protect him against
any Jedi who might track him down. Despite this
precaution, Noon was never found by the Jedi and
died alone on Susevfi, survived only by his journal,
which went unread for thousands of years.

During the Clone Wars, an Anzati Jedi named
Nikkos Tyris left the Jedi Order, allegedly after

your ancestors left them here.”

Because this warrior's elders did not
reprimand her. | could only assume they
agreed with her assessment. Despite the
Jedi Order’s hope to reconcile, it seems
that the Zeison Sha are determined to
remain independent.

JENSAARAI _

I 1 s, Corran Hom and Luke Siowaker
aiscovered the exstence of the Jensaara, Force-
users who trained much s the Jedi did, even to
the point of constructing and using lihtsabers.
Although the two Jec perceived that the Jensasral

Count Dooku. Evidently, it was from this Holocron
that Tyris falsely learned that Jedi had stolen their
discipline from the Sith, and had perverted Sith
teaching to prevent Force-users from following the
true way to the Force. Tyris claimed he had found
the Saarai, which translates from Sith as the “true
way." and he attracted other Jedi as his followers.
Tyris's pupils became known as Jensaarai, or “the
hidden followers of truth,” and they were united by
their belief that the Jedi were evil

In 195 s, Corran Horn's grandfather, the
Corellian Jedi Nejaa Halcyon, found Tyris and his
pupils on Susevfi. Halcyon's duel with Tyris left
both men dead, and most of Tyris's pupils were
slain by other Jedi. The few surviving Jensaarai—
whose incomplete training had left them ignorant
of many facts but relatively uncorrupted—escaped

were not evil,
Jensaarai had a strangely twisted view of history;
for example, they equated Obi-Wan Kenobi with
Darth Vader in terms of being a Jedi exterminator.
It was eventually determined that the Jensaarai
order was founded on various misconceptions and
erroneous beliefs about the Jedi and Sith.
Subsequent research has revealed the fol-
lowing details about origins and evolution of the
Jensaarai. During Exar Kun's reign as a Sith Lord
more than four thousand years ago, Kun corrupted
the Jedi Larad Noon to join the Brotherhood of the
Sith. After Kun was defeated, Noon—apparently
scarred by Sith ideology and the countless deaths
he had caused~fled to the moon Susevfi, where he
discovered a peculiar ore called cortosis. Cortosis
was capable of rendering lightsabers inoperative

and texts that might help
them defeat their “evil” adversaries. It was Tyris's
primary apprentice who discovered Larad Noon's
journal on Susevi

Noon's journal described his theory of Jiaasjen,
a Sith word that translates as “integrating the
shadow,” which was an amalgamation of Noon's
Jedi learning with his Sith experiences. Some
scholars have since suggested that Noon may have
developed his theory to keep himself from going
insane with guilt and to justify the atrocities he
committed during the Sith War. In any case, Tyris's
primary apprentice drew from Noon's journal to
create a new Force tradition, a unique blend of Sith
and Jedi teachings. Shortly after Luke Skywalker's
first encounter with the Jensaarai, the Jedi arrived
at the following conclusion:
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The Jensaarai were being taught the
Jedii way by people who had accepted
Sith thoughts and philosophies, but they
themselves were not sufficiently developed
tobe initiated into them. Their masters had
not yet found the hooks by which they
could be opened to the dark side. And
then, after the deaths of their masters,
they continued learning, but did so with
the orientation of protecting themselves
from the Jedi. They dedicated themselves
to defense—choosing the correct path for
the wrong reasons.

After realizing that Luke Skywalker and his

allies were not their enemies, Tyris's former primary

apprentice, the Saarai-kaar or “keeper of the truth,

and the Jensaarai made peace with the Jedi. The
Jensaarai continue to exist as a small but separate
organization, and have long enjoyed a student
exchange program with the Jedi academy.

'KORUNNALI

Less than a week ater the sect purge it the
Jedi Temple in rins, various Coruscant-based
media outets began distriuting The  Prvate
Jourmals of Mace Wi the contents of these
journai reacly convinced the general public hat
the Jedi Order had been scheming for years to
conauer the Republic. Infact, Emperor Palpatine’s
propagands architects were esponsive for these
pericuar Joural, bt some scholas belove that
the propagencists utiized. actual recorcings by
Mace Wind to lend credence o therr abrications.
Althoush the authorsip of the follwing entry
remain in question,the nformation i consistent
With recorcs of the lanst Haruun Kl and remains
the best known account of the Korumma.
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215 s,
Author (alleged): Mace Windu

The AlHar system—of which Maruun
Kal is the sole planet—lies on the nexus of
several hyperspacelanes: the hub of a wheel
called the Gevarno Loop, whose spokes join
the Separatist systems of Kilisu, Jutrand,
Loposi, and the Gevarno Cluster with Opari,
Ventran, and Chmanss~—all loyalist. Due to
local stellar configurations and the mass
sensitivities of modern hyperdrives, any
Ship traveling from one of these systems to
another can cut several standard days off
its journey by coming through Al'Har, even
counting the daylong realspace transit of
the system itself.

None of these systems has any vast
strategic value—but the Republic has lost
too many systems to secession to risk
losing any to conquest. Control of the
AlHar nexus offers control of the whole
region. It was decided that Haruun Kal is
worth the Council's attention—and not
Solely for ts military uses.

In the Temple Archives are reports of
the Jedi anthropologists who studied the.
Korun tribes. They have a theory that a Jedi
spacecraft may have made a forced/landing
there, perhaps thousands of years ago
during the turmoil of the Sith War, when
50 many Jedi were lost to history. There
are several varieties of fungi native to the
jungles of Haruun Kal that eat metals and
silicates; a ship that could not Iift off again
immediately would be grounded forever,

o comm equipment would be equally
vulnerable. The ancestors of the Korunnai,
the anthropologists believe, were these
shipwrecked Jedi.

This is their best explanation for a
curious genetic fact: all Korunnai can touch
the Force.




The true explanation may be simpler: we
have to. Those who cannot use the Force do AING-TII
ot long survive. Humans can't ive n those

Jungles; the Korunnai survive by following
their grasser herds. Grassers, great. six-
limbed behemoths, tear down the jungle

T nereare few recoras ot the Aing-Ti, a oroup of
Force-sensiive monks who e nar the Kathol it
For decades,spacers nly hined a thei exisence,
teering clear of the Aing-Ti's mammoth cigara-
shapedt starships, which are etched with millons
of giyphs and symbos. Rare images and holociis
reveal the AngTi 35 two-metertall edentate
mammalswithoited protective covering of bony
plates that e decorated with painted symbols
these markings resemble the ones that appear
on the huls of their ship. Some spacers say the
Aing-Ti e wating fo an answer rom “the Ones
Who Dwel Beyond the Veil”presumaby the area
beyond the Kathol Rit

that the Korunnai make their precarious
lives. The grassers protect the Korunnai
from the jungle; the Korunnai, in turn—with
their Force-bonded companions, the fierce
akk dogs—protect the grassers.

When the Jedi anthropologists were
ready to depart, they had asked the elders
of ghsh Windu if they might take with
them a child to train in the Jedi arts, thus

the Aing-Tii in 19 4.5.v. when he was searching for
the Caamas Document, the notorious record that
identified a group of Bothans who had participated
in the devastation of the planet Caamas shortly
after the end of the Clone Wars.

to serve the peace of the galaxy.

That would be me.

1 was an infant, an orphan, called by
the name of my ghésh, for my parents had
been taken by the jungle before my naming

day. | was six months old. The choice was Like most spacers, I heard stories about
made for me. the Aing-Ti, but | was as surprised as anyone
I've never minded. when I saw their ships materiaize i the

Exocron system. Id gone there looking for
‘my former boss, Jorj Car das, and the Caamas
‘Document, but Id been followed by the crime
Jord and slaver Rei'kas and his leet.

1 was with Admiral Trey David of the
Exocron Combined Air-Space Fleet when
the Aing-Tii ships arrived. Huge ovoid things,
covered with. thick hul plates that made
them look like some sort of armored sea
creature. No symmetry at al to the conical
Projections— figured they were exhaust
ports or thruster pods—that jutted from the
"huil And when I say the shios materialized, |
‘mean ust that. There was no flicker of motion
to indicate a normal hyperspace jump. They
Just appeared

1n22 6.5.v, a Coruscant spaceport came under
siege by terrorists who claimed to be from Haruun
Kal. The terrorists demanded that the Republic leave
their planet because they did not want to enter the
war between the Republic and the Confederacy of
Independent Systems. All the terrorists were killed
by a squad of clone commandos. Subsequently,
an Imperial armada laid waste to Haruun Kal. If
any Korunnai survived, their whereabouts remain
unknown,




One of the Aing-Tiiships openedfire on
one of Rei’kas's ships. Cut the thing in half.
The slavers returned fire but didn't even
scratch the Aing-Tii. David said that the
Aing-Tii hated slavers, which soon became
retty obvious. The Aing-Ti blew away the
rest of Rei'kas's fleet, then vanished just as
quickly as they'd materialized

On Exocron, my former boss, Jorj
Cardas, told me more about the Aing-Tii
To make a long story short, he said he was
dlying when he'd had a run-in with Yoda on
Dagobah years ago, and that Yoda told him
that his only chance to postpone his death
was to seek out the Aing-Tii monks of the
Kathol Rift. Car'das wound up learning the
ways of the Force from the Aing-Tii, which
was a surprise to me because Car'das, by
his own admission, wasn't a born Force-
sensitive. He said the Aing-Tii have a
different view of the Force, not in terms
of black and white, like we think of Jedi
and Dark Jed, but more like a full-color
rainbow. However, their actions against
the slavers certainly proved that their view
isn't so objective that it stops them from
blowing up bad guys.

Cartdas gave a demonstration of a
very unusual skill he'd learned from the
Aing-Tii. We were sitting around a table
in his conversation room, and he made a
decanter appear on the table. There was a
sharp pop of displaced air as the decanter
materialized. Said he'd “merely moved it”
from his cooking area in an acjoining room,
that all he had to do was envision that the
decanter was already on the table in front
of us. I've seen Skywalker and Mara do a
lot of amazing things, but never anything
ke that.

Jacen Solo studied with the Aing-Ti, and
confirmed that their ships do not travel through

hyperspace but instantaneously materialize at
any desired destination from one point of the
Galaxy to the next, While the technology behing
this fantastic method of teleportation 1s barely
comprehensibi to anyone but the AingTi, it is
probable tha they incorporate the power of the
Force. According to Jacen, the Aing-Ti may have
2 symbiotc connection with their 3nps, yet have
ot developed their own Force abilties to any
Great effect. He added that they seem indifferent
o Jedi and refer tothe Force as “ Giftfrom Those
Beyond the veil”
MATUKALI
Obrigiating in the aays of the o1d Repubiic
the Matuial developed their Force tradition many
years before the ise of Darth Bane and the New
Sith Order. At that time i history,the Jec Counell
was relativel lax with t views on Force-users and
aid not attamt to indoctrinate Force-sensiive
chicren shorty after birth. What distinguished
the Matukai from other organizations was the wiay
by which they made their own bodies the primary
focus for thir abilties. While the Jedi tracitionally
meditatecwhenthey were ot physically exercising,
the Motuka used physical exrcise as a form of
meditaton. I this capacity,ll Matukal re masters
of ther own bodies

Verious records note that the first Matukal
was & human femal from the world of Karvoss
11 who discovered her abilty to touch the Force
while practicing a form of mediative martial ars,
Althoush existing records have yet to reveal this
Woman's name, they incicate that she became a
refativey strong presence in the Force and began
teaching other Force-sensitve students, who in
tum followed her example. The unique aspect of
Matukai training s that it allows any beings with
otherwise negiigbleinherent strength nthe Force
o develop t into something formidable using
ther bodies a5 2 focus. Through basic meditative
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martial arts, physical exercises, and somatic rituals,
they fan the spark of the Force inside them, hoping
the spark will one day become a flame.

The basic philosophies of the Matukai revolve
around a balance and harmony between the spiritual
aspects of the Force and the physical aspects of
the body. The general tenets of the Matukai include
keeping the body clean and strong, purifying
themselves through physicalactivity, focusing onthe
Force through exercise and ceremony, and avoiding
any taint of the dark side. They also teach a sort of
flexibilty of spirit that entails never allowing oneself
to become flustered or upset, and to always remain
relaxed and stress-free. This enables their bodies to
channel the Force with greater efficiency.

The Matukai never grew beyond fifty or sixty
members at any given time, and were somewhat
nomadic, without any base of operations. Stil,the
Jedi Council eventually recognized the growing
power of the Matukai tradition and sent represent-
atives to discuss a possible affiiation.
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Shortly after our failed diplomatic
mission to Yanibar, we learned that a
Matukai named Mendor Typhoons and two
of his apprentices had defeated a gang of
pirates near Ord Radama. A meeting was
arranged in Ord Radama’s orbit, and upon
meeting Typhoons, | sensed he was a being
with a good sense of humor. The way he
smiled when he said that he felt that the
Jedi method of teaching the Force was
both elitist and ineffectual, and that he
thought he could do a better job of training
Students than the Jedi Order could, he was
S0 inoffensive and charming that | thought
he was making himself the object of a self-
deprecating joke. But he wasn't. He was
Serious. And/ suddenly realized that he andl
his apprentices were even less interested in

allying with the Jedi than the Zeison Sha.

Because the Matukai generally draw
from a pool of Force-users who would
ot qualify for Jedi training in the first
place, I believe we should be content to
let the Matukai exist as an autonomous
organization, provided that they continue
to steer clear of the dark side.

Like the Zeison Sha, the Matukai do not use
lghtsabers. Their weapon of choice s the wan-
shen. a tall polearm with 3 single-edged blade on
e end. The biade i forged and molded with the
a1 of the Force, maing it exceptionally hard. The
Matukai use the wan-shen as their external focus
for the Force and can manipulat the weapon with
oreat speed, using their bodies a5 the central axis
1o create a whitwind of metal and blade,

Many Matukai were hunted down and kile by
Imperia Inquisitors after the Jedi Purge, b the
fow survivors were able to preserve thei Force
tradition and s it on to apprentices in secret,
Some of these Matukai have chosen to jon Luke
Siomalker's Je academy, which has ess srngent
tandards fo admission than the ol Jedi Counci.
FORCE WITCHES
I the ola mepubic era, counties primitive
worlds boasted enclaves of Force-users known
35 Force witches, who-—as thei name indicates—
crew ther power from the Force. Because their
worlds typically had. low levels of technology.
Force witches were islated from Republic space,
and many generations of witches were unaware
of the existence and formaized training of the
Jedi and the Sith. Threfore, mast Force witches
beleved themselves to be uniaue i their special
abilties, and developed their own tracitons. The
most dangerous were those who drew thei power
chifly from the dark side these dark Force witches
preyed upon the weak to e ther respective
worlds, which they were uniely to leave unless
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they seized a starship from an unfortunate visitor.

Of all these cultures, the Force witches on the
planet Dathomir inthe Outer Rim are among the most
noteworthy. Represented by matriarchal clans, they
‘generally took their clan names from the locations
that they respectively ruled. These eponymous clans
included the Singing Mountain, Great Canyon, and
Misty Falls clans. The original Dathomir Witches
drew their power from the light side of the Force, and
from exiled Witches who embraced the dark side.
Unfortunately, the exiles eventually created their
own clan, the Nightsisters, and frequently opposed

better with her sharp eyes that see well
even in the daylight, and the rancor thrived
and became huge. In time, she became
2 herd mother, and her herds prospered
while others dled out.

Back then, the rancors did not know
how to make fine weapons like spears or
nets. They didl not know how to protect
themselves with armor. Because  the
Witches have taught them such great
things, the rancors must always love the
Witches and serve them, even when they

their
into various sects, and each took perverse pleasure
in enslaving males and competing to determine who
was the most brutal and dominant.

Records indicate that the earliest formation
of Witch clans on Dathomir occurred in approxi-
mately 600 s.s.v., after the Jedi Council banished
a fallen Jedi Knight named Allya to Dathomir so
that she might contemplate the living Force. At
that time in history, Dathomir had long served as
a prison colony for some of the Republic’s worst
criminals, who spent their every moment struggling
to survive the monstrous rancors that roamed the
planet's forests and plains. Allya used her Force
abilities to subjugate the exiles and other desperate
life forms, and constructed the foundation of a
female-dominated society in which men had ittle
or no power. She also tamed the rancors to do
her bidding, and initiated a symbiotic relationship
between rancors and Witches that continues
to this day. A rancor named Tosh, herd leader of
the Singing Mountain Clan's rancors, provided (in
6 asx.) the following narrative, which had been
passed down over many generations:

Listen, children, to the story of how our
ancestors first met the Witches.

A sickly female rancor met a Witch
who healed her. and the Witch rode on
the rancor's back, and learned to speak
the rancor's tongue. By riding the rancor's
back, the Witch was able to spot food

make to give them
rides through the wilderness or ask us to
fight the Nightsisters

ver serve the Nightsisters, children.

Theyl treat you badly, as if you were mere

Slaves. Their tastels foul,soitis best to crush

them. Ifyou cannot crush them, then escape

from them, for then you can continue to

serve the good Witches, and hope to crush

the Nightsisters another day.

Allya wrote her “spells® in The Book of Law,
a text that was based loosely on the Jedi Code.
Originally, this book of advice was intended to
quide Allya's female children in the safe and sane
use of their “magic.” Over many generations, Allya's
descendants scattered and created new clans, but
each clan made a copy of The Book of Law Kirana Ti
‘2 Dathomir Witch of the Singing Mountain Clan who
became one of the first students at Luke Skywalker's
Jedi academy on Yavin 4, provided the following
excerpt toilustrate Allya's central message:

Daughters of Alla,

Learn these words and learn them
well for they are the foundation that will
increase your strength and keep you safe
from har

Those who suffer emotion will never
enjoy peace.

Those who choose ignorance will never
know their own greatness.
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Those who yield to passion will fail to
dominate.

Those who fear death will never achieve
pure power.

Never forget that your magic must
always be used wisely.

Never concede to evil, lest you be
consumed by it.

Although Allya’s message is similarly tran-
scribed in other copies of The Book of Law, it
should be noted that each clan subsequently added
its own discoveries and spells to its respective
books, and that Allya’s original text has been
largely replaced by various interpretations. Allya’s
descendants further corrupted the Force into some-
thing that resembled a form of shamanistic magic.

Apparently, the Jedi Council made no effort
to monitor Allya’s progress or legacy, for the
Witches of Dathomir did not come to the Old
Republic’s attention until approximately 340 s.B.v.,
when the massive Jedi training vessel Chu’unthor
crashed on the planet. The Jedi Masters Yoda,
Gra’aton, and Vulatan led a team of Jedi Knights
to rescue the ship’s passengers and fought the
“spell-casting” natives, but the Witches and their
rancors sent the Jedi fleeing back into orbit. Yoda
eventually negotiated a settlement with Rell of the
Singing Mountain Clan: Yoda promised that the
Republic would stay away from Dathomir until, he
prophesied, a future Jedi would come to defeat the
Nightsisters. Yoda left the Chu’unthor behind along
with reader disks about the Jedi, but would not
give the Witches the technology to access them
because, according to Rell, “the teachings were
too powerful.” Yoda assured Rell that the Jedi who
defeated the Nightsisters would share the recorded
data with the surviving clans.

The Great Holocron yields no information about
the fate of the Chu’unthor, and has so far revealed no
data whatsoever about Dathomir. In fact, if the Old
Republic had any records of Dathomir, it seems that
all but one—a damaged computer cylinder that Luke

Skywalker discovered in the ruins of an unknown Jedi
Master’s post-Purge hideout on the planet Toola in 8
aB.y.—were deliberately deleted. Evidently, the Jedi
erased the records to maintain their centuries-long
interdiction of Dathomir. Although the deletion of
records may have seemed the best way to prevent
others from falling into the Witches’ clutches, it
is disturbing to current scholars that this action
also served to conveniently cover up the fact that
a preceding Jedi Council had been responsible for
banishing Allya to Dathomir in the first place.

Fortunately for historians, the Jedi Witches
of Dathomir kept oral as well as written records.
Despite the pact that assured the Jedi would stay
away from Dathomir, there are several Dathomirian
accounts that describe a Jedi-like warrior—not the
one of Yoda’s prophecy—who arrived on Dathomir
and fought a clan of Nightsisters around 30 B.B.v.
According to Voren Na’al, archivist emeritus of the
Historical Council, the Jedi was Quinlan Vos, who
prevented a Nightsister named Zalem from using
an ancient teleportation device called the Infinity
Gate—allegedly built by the pre-Republic Kwa
species—to obliterate Coruscant. However, Voren
Na’al acknowledges that virtually all the information
related to this mission was drawn from a single
source: a woman named Ros Lai, who claimed to
be a former Nightsister in a memoir she apparently
self-published in 28 B.8.v. Efforts to confirm Ros Lai’s
identity or fate have so far been unsuccessful.

In 8 Aa..y.,, Luke Skywalker learned of the
Chu’unthor and Dathomir from the aforementioned
record found on Toola. He traveled to Dathomir,
where he quickly realized that the Witches were
Force-users, and ultimately assisted the belea-
guered clans to temporarily defeat the Nightsisters.
Since the founding of the Jedi academy on Yavin
4, several Witches of Dathomir have successfully
trained to become Jedi.
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THE REBORIN _

In 12 a.B.v., the Chistori Jedi student Desann killed
Havet Storm, a fellow Jedi apprentice, and fled
Yavin 4. Allying with Imperial admiral Galak Fyyar,
Desann began experimenting with Sith alchemy
and artusian crystals to artificially imbue human
Empire Youths—who had previously displayed little
or no talent in the Force—with dark side powers.
Brought to Ruusan, the Empire Youths found
that their innate powers had quadrupled. Desann
named this new militia the Reborn.

Soon the Reborn came to the attention of the
Jedi academy. Despite magnified Force powers, the
barely trained Reborn were no match for the more
disciplined Jedi. Aided by Luke Skywalker and Lando
Calrissian, Kyle Katarn defeated Admiral Fyyar before
he confronted and killed Desann on Yavin 4.

DISCIPLES QOF

Three years after the defeat of Exar Kun’s spirit
on Yavin 4, Kyle Katarn and Jedi academy trainee
Jaden Korr learned of a new Sith cult, and that the
spirit of Dark Lord of the Sith Marka Ragnos had
survived in the tombs of Korriban. The cult, known
as the Disciples of Ragnos, was founded by the
Dark Jedi Tavion Axmis, who had discovered the
Scepter of Ragnos, a Sith relic that was strong with
Force energy and housed Marka Ragnos’s ancient
Sith sword. Tavion resurrected and was quickly
possessed by Ragnos’s spirit, but Jaden Korr
defeated them and brought an end to the cult.

SHADOW

In 23 a.B.y., four years after the Pellaeon-Gavrisom

treaty officially ended the war between the Empire
and the New Republic, the Jedi became aware of a
new threat: the Dark Jedi Brakiss, a failed student
of Luke Skywalker’s Jedi academy, had founded the
Shadow Academy, a mobile, hyperdrive-capable,
torus-shaped battle station with a cloaking device.
Brakiss headed the Shadow Academy on behalf of
the Second Imperium, a radical group headed by
four of the late Emperor Palpatine’s most loyal per-
sonal guards, who refused to recognize the peace
accords and used the station as a training center for
a new legion of Dark Jedi and stormtroopers. Initial
Force-using recruits came from the Nightsisters of
Dathomir, and the Nightsister Tamith Kai assisted
Brakiss as an instructor.

The leaders of the Second Imperium had
outfitted the cloaked battle station with chain-
reaction explosives, which they promised to
detonate if they ever became displeased with the
Shadow Academy’s progress. After Brakiss and
Tamith Kai failed to destroy the Jedi academy
on Yavin 4, the Shadow Academy was destroyed
along with its leaders.

FALLANASSI

In 16 a.B.Y., Luke Skywalker met the Force-sensitive

Akanah Norand Pell and became aware of her
affiliation with the Fallanassi. Also known as Adepts
of the White Current, the Fallanassi are a mysterious
religious order made up of Force-using females
who can manipulate reality. Like the Witches of
Dathomir, the reclusive Fallanassi have developed
their own traditions over time, but rather than using
their powers to dominate, they practice pacifism

‘1
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and submit to the source of their power, the “White
Current Although Luke observed that the White

Current and the Force were one and the same, the

Fallanassi maintain that their own religion more truly.

embraces the light, and they do not approve of how

Jedi use the Force to accomplish their goals.

If the Fallanassi themselves know anything
of the origins of their order, they have yet to
disclose significant details. Imperial-era records
indicate that they may have existed for many years
in secret on the planet Lucazec until one of the
order’s members—Akanah's mother, Isela Talsava
Norand~—revealed their existence to Lucazec's
Imperial governor. Hoping to utilize the Fallanassi
‘and their powers, the Empire offered ts protection
to the Fallanassi in exchange for an oath of loyalty.
The Fallanassi refused and fled.

After hiding on various worlds, the Fallanassi
finally settled in the Koornacht Cluster on the
planet Doornik-628€. which had been renamed
Jtp'tan by peaceful Hikig pilgrims. The Hikig had
fled their own homeworld to escape religious
persecution and build the Temple of the Infinite
Spirit on Jtptan, where they welcomed the
Fallanassi. In 17 &a.v, both the Fallanassi and Hiig
nearly met their doom when the genocidal Yevetha
began exterminating all non-Yevethan settlements
in the Koornacht Cluster. Instead of using their
formidable powers as a weapon against the
Yevetha, the Fallanassi merged the Hkig temple
with the White Current to create an illusion of a
great ruin; when the Yevetha arrived in Jtp'tan's
orbit, the illusion deceived them into believing the
Hkig were already destroyed.

Luke persuaded the Fallanassi leader, Wialu,
to create an illusion of a New Republic “phantom
fleet” that ultimately helped bring an end to the
Yevethan threat at the Battle of Nzoth. With the
Yevetha defeated, the Fallanassi felt they were
no longer needed on Jtiptan. Eventually, they
relocated to Pydyr, a moon of Almania, which had
been decimated by the Dark Jedi Kueller.

In 35 asy. Jacen Solo traveled to Pydyr to

Study the White Current in order to gain a greater
understanding of the Force, and received some
training from Akanah. The following recording was
sent to Luke Skywalker shortly after Jacen left
Pydyr. Although Akanah expressed concern about
Jacen leaving the moon before his training was
complete, it should be noted that Luke had reason
to be cautious of Akanah, which is why he turned
this recording over to me for analysis. According
to Luke, after he met Akanah, she deliberately
misled him about the identity of his mother in an
apparently desperate effort to enlist him to help
her find her own missing parents and the relocated
Fallanassi. Evidently, he has not communicated
with her since the Battle of N'Zoth,

Luke Skywalker. It is I, Akanah of the
Fallanassi.

Nearly two decades ago, | lied to you
about the identity of your mother. My
motives were selfish and unpardonable.
Despite my apologies and that | have
strived ever since to uphold the values of
the Fallonass, | feel—even from for across
the galaxy—that you still and always will
distrust me. This remains my greatest
regret

I must assume you are aware that your
nephew, Jacen Solo, has spent the past five
years searching for, as he puts it, “the true
nature of the Force.” His search brought
him to Pydyr. Although  sensed that he was
more interested in gaining knowledge of
the White Current than immersing himself
in i, 1 granted his request to study with us
out of respect to you, because I still feel |
am in your debt.

The Fallanassi had heard that since the

more than simply light or darkness. | admit,
1 have difficulty understanding this. With
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and submit to the source of their power, the “White
Current.” Although Luke observed that the White
Current and the Force were one and the same, the
Fallanassi maintain that their own religion more truly
embraces the light, and they do not approve of how
Jedi use the Force to accomplish their goals.

If the Fallanassi themselves know anything
of the origins of their order, they have yet to
disclose significant details. Imperial-era records
indicate that they may have existed for many years
in secret on the planet Lucazec until one of the
order’'s members—Akanah's mother, Isela Talsava
Morand=—revealed their existence to Lucazec's
Imperial governor, Hoping to utilize the Fallanassi
and their powers, the Empire offered its protection
to the Fallanassi in exchange for an oath of loyalty.
The Fallanassi refused and fled.

after hiding on various worlds, the Fallanassi
finally settled in the Koornacht Cluster on the
planet Doornik-628E, which had been renamed
J't'p'tan by peaceful H'kig pilgrims. The H'kig had
fled their own homeworld to escape religious
persecution and build the Temple of the Infinite
Spirit on Jt'p'tan, where they welcomed the
Fallanassi. In 17 a.8.v., both the Fallanassi and H'kig
nearly met their doom when the genocidal Yevetha
began exterminating all non-Yevethan settlements
in the Koornacht Cluster. Instead of using their
formidable powers as a weapon against the
Yevetha, the Fallanassi merged the H'kig temple
with the White Current to create an illusion of a
great ruin; when the Yevetha arrived in J't'p'tan’s
orbit, the illusion deceived them into believing the
H'kig were already destroyed.

Luke persuaded the Fallanassi leader, Wialu,
to create an illusion of a New Republic “phantom
fleet” that ultimately helped bring an end to the
Yevethan threat at the Battle of N'zoth, With the
Yevetha defeated, the Fallanassi felt they were
no longer needed on Jt'p'tan. Eventually, they
relocated to Pydyr, a moon of Almania, which had
been decimated by the Dark Jedi Kueller,

In 35 agxv., Jacen Solo traveled to Pydyr to

study the White Current in order to gain a greater
understanding of the Force, and received some
training from Akanah. The following recording was
sent to Luke Skywalker shortly after Jacen left
Pydyr. Although Akanah expressed concern about
Jacen leaving the moon before his training was
complete, it should be noted that Luke had reason
to be cautious of Akanah, which is why he turned
this recording cover to me for analysis. According
to Luke, after he met Akanah, she deliberately
misled him about the identity of his mother in an
apparently desperate effort to enlist him to help
her find her own rissing parents and the relocated
Fallanassi., Evidently, he has not communicated
with her since the Battle of N'Zoth.

Luke Skywallker. It is [, Akanah of the
Fallanassi.

Nearly two decades ago, [ lied to you
about the identity of your mother My
motives were seffish and unpardonable.
Despite my apofogies and that | have
strived ever since to uphold the values of
the Fallanassi, I feel—even from far across
the galaxy—that you still and always will
cistrust me. This remains my greatest
regret.

Irmust assume you are aware that vour
nephew, Jacen Solo, has spent the past five
vears searching for, as he puts it, “the true
nature of the Force." His search brought
him to Pydyvr. Although | sensed that he was
maore inferested in gaining knowledge of
the White Current than immersing himself
in it, | granted his request to study with us
out of respect to you, because [ still feel |
am in your debt.

The Fallanassi had heard that since the
war against the Yuuzhan Vong, the Jedi
have developed a new wiew of the Force,
that you now believe that it embraces
more than simply light or darkness. | admit,
I have difficulty understanding this. With




all respect, if the Jedi no longer ook to the
light, how can they serve it? You once told
me that the White Current was not unlike
the Force, but our philosophies are so very
different. It troubles me to think that the
Jedli now regard themselves as beyond
light and dark, beyond good and evil

Itoldl Jacen that it was an error of pride
that Jedi believe they can use the Force
instead of submitting to it, and i this pride
they have caused more suffering than they
have prevented. With so much power and
without a guiding light, might the Jedi
cause more harm than good?

I acknowledge that I have limited
understanding of Jedi, and that Jacen may
have decided to end his training on Pydyr
because of our disparate beliefs. But you
said once that the Force s a river from
which many can drink, and the training of
the Jed s not the only cup that can catch
it. Because you may still believe this, |
hope you will at least respect my concern
for Jacen and also for you. So long as the
Jedi make no distinction between the light
and darkness, it s not enough to trust and
believe that the Force will guide you in
your decisions and actions.

Thank you for listening to me, Luke. |
‘hope that the light is with you always, and
that this message findss you well.

o)
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PART SIX

THE CHOSEN ONE

RECORDED 40 Ab.Y

Blecause some Jeai nave been able to use the
Force toanticipate possibe future vets, t s not
surprising that Jodi rcords relate various accourts
of proshecies. The Great Holocron contains many
references to the prophecy of the Chosen One:

A Jedi will come

To destroy the Sith

And bring balance to the Force.

Records are unclear about this prophecy’s
exact origin, or whether the above words were the
actual prophecy or a concise interpretation. Several

* AUTHOR:

TIONNE SOLUSAR

o not, but not yet born is he or she. This
much, sense I can. A vessel of pure Force
the Chosen One will be, more powerful
than any Jed in history.

Records reveal only occasional references on
the subject of the Chosen One until 32 ... It was
in that year that the Jedi Master Qui-Gon Jinn told
the Jedi Council on Coruscant that he believed he
had found the Chosen One in the form of Anakin
Skywalker. Evidently, this belief was prompted by
Qui-Gon Jinn's discovery of Anakin's midi-chiorian
count, which was by all accounts higher than any

of debate as far back as twelve hundred years ago,
but it may in fact be much older. However, records
do establish that approximately two hundred
years before the Battle of Yavin, Jedi Masters
became aware of an abrupt change in the shape
of the Force, and many believed that a looming
sense of dread pointed to the growing power of
the dark side; some Jedi suggested that the Sith
had retured, while others—maintaining that the
Sith were extinct—dismissed this notion. But as
time passed without any indication of Sith activity,
the Jedi Master Yoda proposed that the gathering
darkness was a sign of the coming fulfillment of the
prophecy of the Chosen One. According to Master
Yoda via the Great Holocror

Was Anakin Skywalker the Chosen One? Con-
temporary Jedi have noted that Anakin and
his alter ego, Darth Vader, were responsible for
countless deaths, yet he ultimately returned to
the light and defeated Emperor Palpatine at the
Battle of Endor; furthermore, Anakin's own death,
it seemed, brought an end to the Sith Order a the
time. Palpatine’s subsequent resurrection attests to
the fact that Anakin did not completely destroy the
Sith, leaving some to suggest that he failed to fulfil
the prophecy, and wonder whether the prophecy
has yet to be fulfilled. Some Jedi scholars have
even suggested the possibility that an unknown
Sith Lord conceived the prophecy as part of the
Sith Order's long-term plan to conguer the galaxy,

dork
side cannot be, but only by the Chosen
One. And who might be this Jedi? Know |

but th "
Now, at a time when the Sith have once again
revealed their existence, it may be overly generous
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to say that Anakin Skywalker fulflled the prophecy
from a certain point of view. Still, all Jedi should
be aware of his accomplishments and failings; his
biography is not only a caution to the dark side but
als0 a reminder that Sith Lords generally do not
begin their lives as evil beings.

Because many official records of the Jedi were
expunged, altered, or lost after Emperor Palpatine
seized control of the Republic, there are relatively
few records of Anakin Skywalker. If Anakin or
Vader himself ever left a complete record, it has
Yet to be found. Anakin's actual birthplace remains
unknown, but various sources confirm that he
was born into slavery, probably in the Outer Rim
Territories. It should be noted that slavery was
illegal throughout the Republic at the time of his
birth, but that Republic laws were seldom enforced
in the Outer Rim,

Itis believed that Anakin was about three years
ol when he and his mother, Shmi Skywalker, arrived
on Tatooine, and that they were the property of
Gardulla the Hutt. Not long after their arrival, they
were acquired by a Toydarian junk dealer named
Watto, who evidently obtained them by gambling
with Gardulla. Implanted explosive transmitters
discouraged the Skywalkers from escaping their
masters.

Eight years after the Battle of Yavin, Leia
Organa Solo obtained a datapad that had
previously belonged to Anakin's mother, Shmi
Skywalker.

TATOOINE
CHILDHOOD

Recorded in 8 asy.
Author: Leia Organa Solo

My mission to Tatooine hardly went

as expected. Han, Chewbacca, C-3PO,

Mos Espa. When Alderaan was destroyed,
Killk Twilight was returning from a museum
foan on Coruscant, and that was the last
anyone knew of it for years. We'd hoped
to bid on it without attracting attention to
ourselves, but.. I don't believe it's wise to
9o into details at this time, but I will say
that our primary interest in acquiring the.
painting was cultural preservation.

What it expect was that the mission
would evolve into a series of discoveries
about my biological father, Anakin Skywalker
1 might have anticipated at least some of
what 1 leamed if | haon't so deliberately
avoided any interest in his fife. At some
point, Luke had told me that he'd learned

Anakin was nearly ten years old and had spent
most of his childhood as a slave when Qui-Gon
Jinn found him on Tatooine. Just five years ago,
the astromech droid R2-D2 yielded recordings
that shed light on the circumstances of Anakin's
conversion to Darth Vader. More recently, the
Great Holocron has provided even more accounts
of Anakin's life, allowing us to assemble the most
detailed biography to date.

on Tatooine, but I know for a fact he never
told me that Anakin had lived in Mos Espa,
something I wish I known beforehan

Sorry. I'm being unfair. Every time Luke
mentioned anything about our father, | just
shut him out. | dicn't want to know. | didnt
need to be reminded that | was related to
Darth Vader Whenever | thought of him, Istill
‘saw him overseeing my torture on the Death
Star, or remember him standing behind me.
‘25 Alderaan exploded, or ordering Han frozen
n carbonite. Not exactly fond memories.




Anyway, after we arrived at the auc-
tion in Mos Espa, | was surprised to find
myself distracted from our mission by
an old holocube that was up for bid. The
holocube showed an image of a blue-eyed
young boy standing in front of a Podracer
cockpit. His eyes reminded me of Lukes
and made me remember a strange dream
19 had earlier on the Millennium Falcon,
Just before we'd arrived on Tatooine. The
dream had been... unnerving as well as
strange, a vision of Tatooine’s twin suns and
a dark nebula transforming into Vader's
helmet, then shifting into Luke’s face. Even
though I've come to understand that many
of the diplomatic “gifts" I once attributed
to intuition were really the glimmerings of
Force sensitivity, I initially dismissed the
dream. I shouldn't have, for I now realize
it foretold that 1 would find on Tatooine &
Ppath to the Skywalkers' past.

Han tried o buy the holocube for me,
but | made it more than ciear that | wanted
nothing to do with the thing. It wound
up being bought by a Gotal for thirteen
hundred credits. I eventually learned that
the holocube had been putup for auction by
Kitster Banal, a childhood friend of Anakin.
1 met Kitster as well as Wald, whod also
known Anakin as a boy, and I encountered
others who'd known Anakin's mother. |
even met an old Podracer pilot who once
competed against Anakin, and who swore
up and down that Anakin was one of the
only pilots who never cheated. I found
myself flummoxed to hear so many people
Speak of my father with such fondness and
admiration, but then they had only known
him s Anakin, and none of them ever
Saw him again after he left Tatooine. Wald
absolutely refused to believe that his friend
had become Darth Vader.

Years ago, Luke sold the place where

he was raised by Owen and Beru Lars to
Siyla Darklighter and her husband, Jula
Last month, their daughter Anya found a
datapad on the property. They knew it was
old and didn't belong to them, so they set
it aside, planning to forward it to Luke, but
gave it to me instead. This datapad turned
out to be a journal made by Anakin's
mother, Shmi Skywalker. My grandmother.

Anakin. Obviously, she had hoped to share
it with him someday.

And 0 on Tatooine | learned that
Anakin and Shmi, as well as Kitster and
Wald, had been slaves. At age nine, Anakin
met a Jedi named Qui-Gon Jinn, then won
his freedom—along with a sum of credits—
ina Podrace called the Boonta Eve Classic.
1 don't yet know Qui-Gon Jinn's exact roll
in the situation, but the following excerpt
from Shmi Skywalker's journal seems to
offer some explanation:

I can't tell you how I struggled with the decision

to let you race for Qui-Gon that day. When you
noticed his lightsaber, you were so convinced he
had come to free the slaves... it crushed me to
hear him tell you the truth. But as Qui-Gon himself
said, you give without thinking of yourself, How
could I say no when you hatched your plan to win
the parts they needed to repair their ship?

A slave boy helping a Jedi. To me, it seemed

matters should have been the other way around.
1 would have said no, and | know you would have
forgiven me. But you wouldnt have forgotten,
either. For the rest of your life, you would have
remembered the Boonta Eve and how your mother
wouldn'tlet you help a Jedi. And that wouldn't have
been fair to you. | couldn't deny you the chance to
be the hero you dreamed of.

Anakin was unable to buy his mother's
freedom, something that must have pained




him more than anyone imagined. He left
Tatooine with Qui-Gon Jinn, who had
promised to bring him to the Jedi Temple
on Coruscant. Eventually. Shmi learned
from a messenger. a female Falleen who
might have been a Jedi, that Qui-Gon Jinn
was slain at the Battle of Naboo, but was

Gon Jinn, a valuable Tobal lens that Shmi
eventually used to gain her freedom from
Watto. Shmi wound up marrying a moisture.
farmer named Cliegg Lars, whose son
Owen would later raise Luke.

Before he left Tatooine, Anakin gave
some credits to Kitster, who used them
to buy a filmsiplast copy of Par Ontham's
Guide to Etiquette; a purchase he believes
ultimately helped him secure his own
freedom. Anakin also left behind a esign
for a swoop, which his mother gave to
Kitster and Wald. Wald eventually used the
plans to builda swoop that he flew in a race
to win his freedom. Clearly, young Anakin
Skywalker was an inspirational person to
those who knew him on Tatooine, and a
very different individual from Darth Vader.

ADDENDUM BY

TIONNE SOLUSAR

Leia Organa Solo's record resumes with her
account of Anakin's return to Tatooine, ten
years after the Battle of Naboo.

the messenger who Gelivered the Tobal lens
to Shmi Skywalker

It can now be revealed that the painting
Killk Twilight contained a hidden code key for
Shadowcast, a secret i

that transmitted Rebel messages encrypted
within imperial propaganda programming via
the HoloNet. Leia Organa Solo's allusion to
“cultural preservation” referred to her desire to
preserve thepainting as wellas maintain security.
for the Rebel agents whose lives and operations
depended on the secrecy of Shadowcast.

' PODRACER

CHAMPION

sy,
Author: Teemto Pagalies

Hi.I'm Teemto Pagalies. From Tatooine.
I hope this message reaches, um, Leia
Organa Solo. Maybe you remember me?
We met here, on Tatooine, about three
years ago. I work for a lady named Ulda.

At the Mos Esa Arena. Oply I dldn't know
who you were at the time.

After you found out I was a Podracer,
you asked me some funny questions about
Anakin Skywalker, like if he ever cheated
at Podracing. I thought that was a laugh.
Since then, 1 learned some stuff from guys
1 know. Maybe you also remember Ody.
Wald, and Kitster?

Anyway, | wasnt nosing around It just
that some people talk. And sometimes |
listen. Like Oy teling me that you wanted
to buy that swoop to go looking for Kitster:
Then a few days after you talked with me, |
run into Wald. He was fuming. Said he met
3 ladly who claimed that Anakin Skywalker
‘grew up to be Darth Vader, and that he told
her it was a lie. | had to agree with him, it
sounded crazy. But | asked him what the
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And then a few weeks after that, | hear
Ulda talking to some moisture farmers, and
the name Skywalker comes up. I figured
out they're talking about Anakin's mother;
and about a diary that wound up going to
Anakin's daughter. And | figured they're
talking about you.

503 couple of years go by. But thenjust
a fow weeks back, we got the news about a
new Jedi academy starting up. There was
a vid about it that showed you and your
brother. I recognized you straight off

Then last week, Kitster comes out here
to get yelled at by Ulda about something.
They used to be married, you know. Anyway,
when they e done, | go right up to Kitster—
because Id figured he was somehow
connected to whatever you were doing
on Tatooine—and 1 ask him, s it true that
Anakin Skywalker became Darth Vader?”

Kitster glared at me a millisecond, then
shrugged and said, “What do you think?”

1 can still see pretty well with the one
eyel'vegot left. Well enough to know when
someone’s trying to dodge me.

Well, I remembered our little con-
versation from three years ago. | told you I
hadla vidof the Boonta Eve Classic that your
father won. 1 made a copy of it for you, and
Im transmitting it along with this message.
Because for some reason, | want you to
see what | saw that day. | want you to see
that the kid never cheated. Not once, even
when he couldve. Anakin Skywalker was
great. A Podracer champion, through and
through. | don't know f that's important to
you, butitis to me.

1 don't know what else to say. All this
talking has made my throat dry. | guess
thats it

Bye.

ARRIVAL AT THE
JEDI TEMPLE

Recorded 32 aax.
Author: Jedt Master Ki-Adi-Mundi

Meditation i ifficult

Several months ago. | pursued. the
criminal Ephant Mon to Tatooine. At the
time, 1 did not know of Anakin Skywalker's
existence, let alone that Tatooine was
his homeworld. The galaxy seemed less
complicated then, when I believed the Sith
were extinct. But upon meeting Skywalker,
who is absolutely teeming with midi-
chlorians and may very well be the Chosen
One, | could not help questioning my own
perceptive abiliies.

Time and again, the Force has guided
my heart and my weapon. I trust my most
‘powerfulally, but cannot dismiss a sense of
personal failure. I was on Tatooine before
Qui-Gon Jinn discovered the boy. Although
I sensed a disturbance in the Force there,
how could | have not sensed the presence
of one so strong with the Force? It is not
that my own powers are more considerable
than Qui-Gon's were, but that Skywalker is
2 beacon of power.

Itis lttle consolation that every member
of the Jedl Council was surprised by recent
events: the discovery of Skywalker, the
death of Qui-Gon Jinn, and the return of
the Sith. Despite our initial refusal to allow
Skywalker to be trained to become a Jed,
none of us anticipated the circumstances
that would prompt us to revise our decision.
This troubles us al

Now evidence has surfaced that Sharad
Hett may be alive. and once again | am
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traveling to that haven of mirages and lies
called Tatooine. Before | left Coruscant, the
Dark Woman herself told me she has had
dreams of great dangers that await me at
my destination. She has never given me any
reason to dismiss the value of her reams.

Tatooine cannot be a coincidence. | do
not believe in coincidences.

“Events are moving too fast.” Those
were my own words, addressed to Qui-Gon
on the occasion of the Council's decision to
reject his request to train young Skywalker.
So much has happened since then. | find
it troubling that | am unable—even during
meditation—to entirely suspend those

rds from

What disturbs me most of ailis Anakin
‘Skywalker himself. It is not in my nature to
make assumptions about anyone based on
appearance, and yet I find it almost
alarming that the boy looks so entirely un-
remarkable. If 1 did't know better, | would
have dismissed him as a harmless raga-
muffin. His responses to our tests showed
he was incredibly adept at using the Force
to anticipate the immediate future, but
could he really have been conceived by
the midi-chlorians, as Qui-Gon suggested?
And if he is the Chosen One, destined to
bring balance to the Force, why do I sense
Some danger about this boy, as if he is &
threat? 1 wish | knew.

Like Anakin, | was well past infancy

whether I was too old to learn the ways
of the Force, that my Cerean childhood
might cloud my judgments, but...I am
ot certain of how to express myself. My
mind tells me I should feel empathy for
Anakin, but my instinct tells me something
else. Jedi are trained not to feel fear, but
1 believe that this may be the discomfort

1 sense from Anakin. No, I'm not afraid of
him. He is, after all, merely a boy. But as
a father myself, I can positively attest that
children can grow in unexpected ways, and
this may be what I fear: not who Anakin
Skywalker s, but what he might become.

With respect to Qui-Gon's memory, |
will make every effort to treat Anakin as
1 would any Padawan, but | intend to be
much more mingful of him than others.
And given that the Sith have resumed
their dark enterprise, I shall take some
consolation in the knowledge that Anakin
was not discovered by them instead.

ADDENDUM BY 5
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The preceding recording was made by Ki-
Adi-Mundi during a voyage on a Republic
Cruiser to the planet Tatooine, shortly after
his first meeting with Anakin, and was found.
in a datapad among a collection of personal
artifacts donated to the new Jedi library by Ki-
Adi-Mundi’s descendants on Cerea. According
0 the Great Holocron, Ki-Adi-Mundi was four
vears old when the Jedi known as the Dark
Woman discovered him and brought him to
the Jedi Temple on Coruscant. As previously
noted, Ki-Adi-Mundi did/find the renegade Jedi
Knight Sharad Hett, whose son A'Sharad Hett
became Ki-Adi-Mundi's Padawan apprentice.
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sympathetic, | asked him f he was thinking
of his mother. He kept his eyes skyward as
he answered, “No, | was thinking of yours.
His tone was not unkind or antagonistic
but 1 did sense a certain tension in his
words. | asked why he was thinking of my
mother, and he said, fixing me with an
expression that indicated his answer was
obvious, “Because someone should.
Idlidtknow what to say to that. Anakin
knows that a Jedi must relinquish familial
y found
myself more concerned for his future than

attachments, but...I sudder

ever before. He misses his mother— know
this as well as anything. Although he left
Tatooine willingly, he left a part of himself
there. 1 can only offer him guidance, but if
he is the Chosen One, it seems inevitable
that he must free himsalf from that bon.

FIRST MISSION

Before 1 submit my report of my
activities over the past year; | have reason
to make a statement about Obi-Wan
Kenobi and his Padawan, Anakin Skywalker

A you know, because only members

of the Jedi Council were aware of my

assignment, Obi-Wan and Anakin

under the impression that | had betrayec
our Order, and did not know of my mission
to infitrate the criminal syndicat
by the pirate Krayn.
attention that some members of the Council
have expressed dismay over the fact that
Anakin unintentionally revealed me as &

operated

t has come to my
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has also pondered whether Anakin acted

honorably when he killed Krayn.
Furthermore, | am aware  that  the

Galactic Senate, in response to Republic

ADDENDUM BY

TIONNE SOLUSAR

A contemporary of Obi-Wan Kenobi, Siri Tachi

Nar Shaddaa, is considering the formation
of an independent committee toinvestigate
the legal and ethical ramifications of
allowing Padawans to particioate in “dan-
‘gerous missions.” | know it is not my place
to criticize the Senate, but | will alow that
1 would sooner have any Padawan at my
side in battle than | would any Senator.

Although it was through Anakin's actions
that my identity was revealed to Krayn, it
would be o grave injustice if any review
board held Anakin accountable. Obi-wan
and Anakin had no way of knowing that our
paths would cross, and had every reason to
‘believe | had abandoned the Jedi Order. With
all due respect, / remind the Council that
Obi-Wan and Anakin ol not happen uf
me by accident. After al it was the Council
that sanctioned their mission to escort the
Colicoids across treacherous territories.

Did Anakin act with impatience during
his first mission as a Jedi? Yes. But those
of you who know me well wil recall that
1 was never good at patience exercises at
the Temple, either. After Anakin realized I
had not betrayed the Order, he proved to
be most resourceful. More than anyone, he
s responsible for liberating the slaves on
Nar Shaddaa.

Was Anakin motivated by revenge to kill
Krayn? Only Anakin can answer that question
truthfull But a5 a witness to their duel, and
150 as a Jedi, | can attest to the fact that
had I been in Anakin's position, Krayn would
have died by my lightsaber. In that capacity,
I believe that Krayn's death was decided not

before she became a Jedi Knight. Drawn from
the Great Holocron, the preceding excerpt of
her report to the Council does not shed any
additional light on Anakin Skywalker's role in
the liberation of slaves on Nar Shaddaa or the.
death of the pirate and slaver named Krayn.
Efforts have not revealed additional records
of Anakin's activity on Nar Shaddea in 28
aav. but there is confirmation that Krayn was
accountable for at least five raids on Tatooine.
One such raid occurred while Anakin was
still living on that world, but no other data
is currently available. Siri Tachi served in the.
Clone Wars, and died during a mission with
Obi-Wan on the planet Azure in 20 sa.

RETURN TO
TATOOINE

Recorded in 8 aay.
Author: Leia Organa Solo

From those who knew my father
on Tatooine, | have leamed that Anakin
returned to the desert planet at feast once
after he became a Jedi. As best as | can
figure, this happened just before the Battle
of Geonosis, which kicked off the Clone
Wars. About one month before Anakin's
return, Shmi Skywalker made the following
entry in her journal:

Today there are more Tuskens out on the plain.
We can't see them, but the lowing of their banthas

by Anakin, Force.

Owen and Cliegg keep saying
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we'l be all right as long as we don't go out at night.
1'd feel better if they didn't make such a point of
keeping their blasters within reach, even inside.
But there isn't much food out here for banthas; the
Tuskens will have to move on soon. And Cliegg is
9oing to the Dorr Farm tomorrow, to tart organizing
local farmers. We'll be fine, Anakin, I'm sure.

s the final entry in Shmi'sjournal,
Luke's Aunt Beru had a younger sister,
Dama Whitesun Brunk, who  remained
on Tatooine and is now an innkeeper in
Anchorhead. It was Dama who told me
that Shmi was taken by Sand People. She'd
been gone for weeks by the time Anakin
arrived at the Lars family's moisture farm.

1 don't know how Anakin learned about
his mother' situation, or even if other Jedi
knew that he had traveled to Tatooine.
According to Kitster Banai, it was Anakin's
former master Watto who told him where to
findl Shmi. And according to Dama, Beru—
who was Owen Lars's girfriend at the time—

was out at the Lars homestead with Owen
and his father, Cliegg, when Anakin arrived.
Anakin left the moisture farm by himself
to search for his mother. Evidently, he
tracked her to a Tusken camp, and he soon
returned with her body. Beru told Dama
that Shmi was dead when Anakin brought
her back to the moisture farm, If Beru knew
whether Shmi had still been alive when
Anakin found her, she never told Dama.
Anakinburiedhis mother at the moisture
farm. There used to be a headstone, but it
seems Owen removed it. Beru told Dama

that Owen said he dion't see a need for

anyone to know
Ilearned more about Shmi's death ater,
when Han and | arrived at the remains of an

here Shmi was buried.

for Kitster when a Jawa named Herat had
directed us to the site, which was in an
oasis deep in Tusken territory. According
to Herat, it was a “ghost village” where an




entire tribe of Tuskens had been hacked to
pieces by an angry ghost. The camp's ruins
had become a sacred place to the nomadic
Tuskens, who would present gifts and make.
sacrifices when they visited.

There were about thirty bantha wool
huts still standing. I hadn't given much
thought to Herat's description of the area,
but it really was. .. well it was haunted. |
don't know how else to put it. When I first
set eyes on the huts, | felt the area was
alive with some kind of phantom pain.

There was one hut that stood apart from
the others, still supported by an exterior

outsice. | realized it had been a holding
cell. And 1 knew that this had been the
place where the Tuskens had taken Shmi
and.... and theyd tortured her. This was the
place where Anakin, three decades earlier,
had found his mother. The place where he
first surrendered to his anger:

For his mother's lfe, Anakin had taken
the lives of dozens of Tuskens. Even the
children. Andiin doing 0, he ot only avenged
his mother but created a legacy of death for
the area as well. In the three decades since
Anakin slaughtered his mother's abductors,
the Tuskens have transformed the site into
their own. | found a pile of atleast a hundred
skulls, most of them human.

If the Tuskens still fear the “ghost”
of Anakin Skywalker, | can't imagine why
they continue to sacrifice captives. Why do
Sand People do anything? No one knows.
That's what makes them Sand People.

til, what Anakin did was wrong. He
was a Jedi. Al | could think of was that he
should have known better:

And perhaps he did know better. Kitster

Banai told me that after he'd heard that
Anakin'had visited Watto's junk shop in
search of Shmi, he'd gone to the Lars farm,

had already left on a starship. Beru toldl
Kitster that when they buried Shmi, Anakin
Spoke to her grave, saying he had not been
strong enough to save her: And then Anakin
promised that he wouldn't fail again.

Kitster figured out on his own that
Anakin had slain the Tuskens at the oasis.
He didn't condone Anakin's actions, but
when he thought about what Beru had
toldl him, he thought that Anakin may have
realized what a terrible mistake he had
made, and knew that he'd failed as a Jedi.
Kitster said that the Anakin Skywalker he
knew would have been sorry for what he
had done.

1d like to believe that's true.

FORBIDDEN
LOVE

As previousty notea, Jedi of the 0ld Repubic
were generally forbicden to engage in romantic
reltionships. ARhough they did not csmis love,
they were cautious of emotional attachments, and
Knew that various possesive aspects o ove could
lead o the dork sice of the Force

n 21 s, during the Clone Wars, Cularn
Contral Broadcasting reporter Yara  Grugara
interviewed Jeci Maste Lanius Gel-Bertuk, then
headmasterat the ddi acaderny on Almas. Lanius
told the following stors, which ilustates how
most Je of the O1d Republ egarded emotional
attachments

There was a story 1 eard once, about
o man who wanted to find the Force
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He believed he could reach a place on a
faraway planet, or maybe a moon, where
‘he would find a swirling white cloud made
of pure Force energy. He traveled the
‘galaxy from one side to the other in search
of this swirling white cloud. He left his life
behind, he left his family behind, and he
left his children behind. All of his friends,
all of his valuables, everything that had
ever meant anything to him. He traveled by
freighter, doing manual labor as he hopped
from one planet to the next. He would get
off, ask questions, describe the cloud, and
then find a new freighter: He never held on
to the disappointment of his failures, but
they became many. I coulon't even guess
how many planets he visited, how many
languages he must have spoken, how many
times he must have pushed himself to go
on and try just one more world, because
there he might find the Force.

1 don't know if the cloud exists. But |
know that he never found it, and that he
dlied old and disappointed.

Because for all his leave-takings, for all
the things he removed from his life, he
retained one attachment, one thing that
he valued above ail others. Ironically, his
attachment was to the Force itself, and
for it, he gave up what could have been
a productive lfe to chase a dream across
2 galaxy.

Friendship in the Jedi Order is one
aspect of our philosophy. We are all part
of the Force. As Master Yoda says, it
surrounds us and penetrates us. All of us.
The friendships that we have should be the
same. So, no: friendiship is not forbidden. It
s part of who and what we are. We work
together. At times, we may fight together.
Sometimes we even die together. But we
o not die to save another Jedl, We dle~if

we must—knowing that allfe s sacrosanct.
We are all, every one of us, vital to the wil
of the Force.

We now know that Anakin Skywalker and
Senator Padmé Amidala of Naboo married in
secret in the year 22 s..v, just after the Battle of
Geonosis. It was only after the astromech droid
R2-D2 divulged recordings of Anakin and Amidala
that contemporary scholars became aware of their
relationship. It s almost a certainty that Anakin told
o one of his marriage, and subsequent interviews
with Amidala’s. relatives have determined that
family members were also obiivious

After Leia Organa Solo discovered the identity
of her mother, she realized that Pooja Naberrie—
a former representative of Naboo and a friend
she had known since her service in the Imperial
Senate—was not only Padmé Amidala’s niece but
als0 her own first cousin. In 35 a..v., Pooja Naberrie
recalled meeting Anakin when she was a child, just
prior to the Battle of Geonosis:

1 was just a little girl, only four years
old, when I first saw Anakin. Oh, my. |
thought he was the most handsome man
1d ever seen, and so talll My memory of
him is entirely from a child's perspective,
and I still envision him as a giant.

1 was at my grandparents’ home with
my sister Ryoo, who's two years older,
when he came to Naboo. He came walking
up the street with Aunt Padimé, and they
brought an R2 unit. Ryoo and | always got
S0 excitedwhen Padmé would visit, because
we sometimes didn't see her for months
at a time. And if you're four and six years
old, months can seem like years! Anyway,
f 1 remember right, | think Ryoo and | must
have thought that Anakin had brought the
droid to us as a present, because we just
started dancing around it,right there in the
street outside the house. We were 5o sily.




1d overheard someone say that Anakin
was Padmé’s bodyguard, and | don't think |
thought there was anything strange about
that. Paomé was often accompanied by a
security officer named. .. Oh, my, what was
his name? Ty? No, Captain Typho! Anyway.
1 just imagined that Anakin was Padmé’s
boyfriend. | thought they both looked so
beautiful together.

Well, Ryoo and I were just heartbroken
when we learned that they weren't staying
at the house. They left just a few hours later
for the Lake Country. | recall our mother
saying something about Padmé needing to
get away from the city and rest for a few
days. We cried because we wanted the
droid o stay and play with us!

A few days later; | remember there
was some concern in our house about no
one knowing where Padmé was. She and
Anakin had been staying at a retreat in the
Lake Country, but then they'd left without
telling anyone where they were going. My
mother was a bit frantic until a few days
later, when she received word that Padimé
was alive and well.

It wasn't long after that that Padmé
returned to Naboo with Anakin, and that
was the second time | met him. | remember
that encounter more clearly because of
the way I reacted when I saw that his right
hand had been replaced with a prosthetic.

nothing to with me. My mother apologized
for my behavior, but Anakin said there was.
o reason for anyone to be sorry. He knelt
down beside me, held out his left hand to
me, and asked me if [d put my hand in his. |
dic. He smiled and gave my fingers a gentle
Squeeze, then said, “That's for good luck,
50 we'll il hang on to our fingers from now
on."m sure he just wanted to make me feel
better; and he did. But I stll elt 50 awful for
him for losing  hand.

And then, three years later, Padmé was.
dead. It was awful. She was 5o young. And
o one in our family seemed to know how
she had died, or at least no one told us. My
Sister and 1 did learn that there had been
assassination attempts, and that was why
Anakin had been acting as her bodyguard.

At her funeral, I didn't just weep for
her. | thought Anakin was dead, too. We'd
heard that the Jedi had attempted to
overthrow the Republic, and that most of
the Jedi had been killed. To Ryoo and me,
Anakin was our hero. We couldn't imagine
him doing anything wrong. | had all sorts
of fantasies about how he might have been
killed or injured while trying to save Padmé,
or that he'd gone into hiding because he
refused to participate in the so-called Jedi
takeover: Silly drearns.

But all that was...How long ago?
About fifty-five years, | think. And now, my

metal, and | thought it looked cold. And
there were exposed wires. | guess it may
have been just a temporary prosthetic.
When my family and | greeted him and
Padmé, I coulai't stop myself from staring
at his new hand. And then | looked up into
his eyes.

He looked... well, | thought he looked
angry, and 1 just started crying. Maybe he
was angry, but n hindight, I'm certain it had

her discovery that Padmé was her mother,
and of what became of Anakin. My head
s stil reeling. I've known Leia ever since
we both served in the Imperial Senate, and
to think that neither of us ever had the
slightest inkiing that we were first cousins.

If Leia hadn't toll me herself, | don't
think | ever would have believed that
Anakin Skywalker became Darth Vader.
Its just so...s0 entirely inconceivable
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that that lovely young man could have
come Vader. And yet that's exactly what
happened, isn'tit? To think ! held his hand.
His good hand. Oh, my.

Soon after Pooja Naberrie leared that Padmé
Amidala and Anakin Skywalker were the parents
of Leia Organa Solo and Luke Skywalker, she
discovered the only known record of her aunt's
wedding. The record was in a databook that had
once belonged to a man
to the Naberrie family. For ethical reasons, Pooja
Naberrie refused to divulge the man's identity or
ovide a copy of the record, but she allowed that
he was authorized to perform marriages and

ho was an old friend

at

the wedd

ing took place at a villa in the Naboo Lake
Country at atime that coincides with Anakin's first
visit to Naboo following the Battle of Geonosis;

DARTH VADER

The acions of Darth Vactr have been described
throughout this record by various sources, and
there i ittle more that can be added here that

hasnit already been said. For all our efforts

understand how and why Anakin Skywalker became
Darth Vader, we can only speculate whether
Anakin might have turned to the dark side without
Palpatine’s influence. Given that he did not entirely
destroy the Sith, and that his training of Lumiya led

to the death of Mara Jade, it is difficult for mo:
contemporary Jedi to attach any significance to
the idea that he may have been the Chosen One
of prophecy. Although Darth Vader may endure as
an inspiration to those who seek darkness, he also
Serves as a caution to Jedi who aspire to keep to

the light.
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